
Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 2

akerc
Typewritten Text



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 4



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25,2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Edith Moreida X49444 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Commissioner Gomez 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Commissioner Gomez 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

APPROVE PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING OCTOBER 1 THROUGH 14, 
2012 AS "THE TWELFTH ANNUAL BI-NATIONAL HEALTH WEEK" 
THROUGHOUT TRAVIS COUNTY. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 5



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Caryl Colburn, CES Director - 854-4618 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Roger Jefferies, County 
Executive, JPS - 854-4759 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge, Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE A~TI 
ON PROCLAMATION DECLARING OCTOBER 2012 AS DOMESTI 
VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
On behalf of the Austinrrravis County Family Violence Task Force, CES requests that 
October 2012, the National Domestic Violence Awareness Month (OVAM), be observed 
in Travis County by the Commissioners Court by reading the attached proclamation (see 
Attachment A). The proclamation recognizes all domestic violence victims and the work 
being done to eliminate this offense in Travis County. 

It is important that more awareness is brought to the destruction domestic violence 
brings to our families and to the community at large, so we can speak out against this 
violent crime with one voice. More awareness and education will bring about a common 
(Jhilosophy we _fan shareJo. support the efforts currently being made by the 
Austinrrravis County Task Force members to reduce this crime and also to support 
future endeavors to do away with this egregious offense. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends that the OVAM 
Proclamation be read at Commissioners Court to the Travis County community on 
September 25,2012. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: This is an opportunity to encourage all to 
participate in activities being planned in Austinrrravis County for OVAM such as, the 
Stand Up for Safe Families Paddle Parade on Lady Bird Lake, October 4th from 5 p.m. 
to 7 p.m.; The "Football is a contact sport. Love shouldn't be" campaign sponsored by 
Sheriff Greg Hamilton, Travis County Sheriffs Office, the Texas Advocacy Project, the 
school districts in Travis County, Austin ISO, Del Valle ISO, Eanes ISO, Lake Travis 
ISO, Manor ISO, and Pflugerville ISO who will place a Purple Ribbon on the helmets of 
their varsity football players in October. Announcements will be made before and during 
each game recognizing October as Domestic Violence Awareness Month and thanking 
the football players for uniting together to bring awareness to Domestic Violence. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 6



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar 854-4107 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming, 
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Approve Resolution Recognizing the Central Texas Chapter of the National 
Forum for Black Public Administrators (NFBPA) for Hosting the State of 
Texas' Regional Conference in Travis County on October 25, 2012. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The National Forum for Black Public Administrators (NFBPA) is a 
professional membership organization dedicated to the advancement of 
leadership in the public sector. Nationally, the membership is represented 
by managers and executives in virtually all disciplines among local, State 
and Federal governments. There are over 2,500 members representing 
more than 350 jurisdictions and 40 local chapters in 37 states. NFBPA is 
the premier association of Black public leadership. The organization 
provides support to local government managers in a multitude of 
disciplines, through intensive training, professional development programs, 
and a powerful network of public leadership. Locally, the Central Texas 
Chapter has over 180 members and provides the same support services as 
the national organization and serves as a resource for local public 
administrators. 

On October 25, 2012, NFBPA will host PRIDE 2012 at the Omni Austin 
Hotel at Southpark in Austin, Texas. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 7



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 9



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012
Prepared By/Phone Number: Norman McRee/854-4821
ElectedlAppointed Official/Dept. Hd: Leslie Browder, County
Executive, Planning & Budget
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge

AGENDA LANGUAGE:

Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health
Care for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund
for payment of $1,255,762.81, for the period of September 7 to September 13, 2012.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:

See attached.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:

The Director or Benefits Manager has reviewed the reimbursement submitted and
concurs with the findings of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits
Contract Administrator and therefore recommends reimbursement of $1,255,762.81.

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:

See attached.

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:

Employee Health Benefit Fund (8956) — $1,255,762.81

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:

John Rabb, 854-2742
Diane Blankenship, 854-9170
Jessica Rio, 854-9106

AGENDA REQUEST DEADIJNE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge’s office, cieryAker@co.tuavtxs by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m.
for the next week’s meeting.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 10



TRAVIS COUNTY
RECOMMENDATION FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS

DATE: September 25, 2012

TO: Members of the Travis County Commissioners Court

FROM: John Rabb, Benefits Manager

COUNTY DEPT. Human Resources Management Department (HRMD)

DESCRIPTION: United Health Care (UHC) (The Third Party Administrator for
Travis County’s Hospital and Self Insurance Fund) has
requested reimbursement for health care claims paid on behalf
of Travis County employees and their dependents.

PERIOD OF PAYMENTS MADE: September 7, 2012 to September 13, 2012

REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTED
FOR THIS PERIOD: $1,255,762.81

HRMD RECOMMENDATION: The Director or Benefits Manager has reviewed the
reimbursement submitted and concurs with the findings
of the audits by the Financial Analyst and the Benefits
Contract Administrator and therefore recommends
reimbursement of $1,255,762.81

Please see the attached reports for supporting detail information.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY

HOSPITAL AND INSURANCE FUND

SUPPORTING DETAIL FOR THE

WEEKLY REIMBURSEMENT REQUEST TO

COMMISSIONERS COURT

FOR THE PAYMENT PERIOD

SEPTEMBER 7, 2012 TO SEPTEMBER 13, 2012

Page 1. Detailed Recommendation to Travis County Auditor for
transfer of funds.

Page 2. Chart of Weekly Reimbursements Compared to Budget.

Page 3. Paid Claims Compared to Budgeted Claims.

Page 4. FY Comparison of Paid Claims to Budget.

Page 5. Notification of amount of request from United Health
Care (UHC).

Page 6. Last page of the UHC Check Register for the Week.

Page 7. List of payments deemed not reimbursable.

Page 8. Journal Entry for the reimbursement.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY
RECOMMENDATION FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS

DATE: September25. 2012
TO: Susan Spataro, County Auditor
FROM: Norman McRee, HR Financial Analyst
COUNTY DEPT. Human Resources Management Department (HRMD)

United Health Care (UHC) (Travis County’s Third Party Administrator for our Self Insured Health
Care Fund) has requested reimbursement for health care claim payments made on behalf of Travis
County employees and their dependents as follows:

PERIOD OF PAYMENTS PAID:
FROM: September 7,2012
TO: September 13,2012

REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTED: $ I ,255,762.81
SUPPORTING DETAIL FOR REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTED:

NOTIFICATION OF AMOUNT OF REQUEST FROM UHC*: $ 1,845,056.09

bank withdrawal correction $ (2,850.00)
LESS: REIMBURSEMENTS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY

COMMISSIONERS COURT: September18, 2012 $ (603,445.04)

Octobers,2OlOadj $ 135.10
Adjust to balance per UHC $ (0.13)
AJE Correction - Vision Payment 6/1/2012 $ 16,866.79

TOTAL CLAIMS REIMBURSEMENT REQUESTED BY UHC FOR THIS WEEK**: $ 1,255,762.81

PAYMENTS DEEMED NOT REIMBURSABLE $ -

TRANSFER OF FUNDS REQUESTED: $ 1,255,762.81

The claims have been audited for eligibility and all were eligible in the period covered by the claim.

All claims over $25,000 (3 this week totaling $89,016.78) have been audited for data entry accuracy and the
following information is correct for each claim audited: date of service, eligibility, nature of service, name of
and amount billed by provider, amount billed by date and amount paid by UHC.

Fifteen percent (15%) of all claims under $25,000 ($177,317.08) have been audited for data entry accuracy and the
following information is correct for each claim identified for this random review: date of service,
eligibility, nature of service, name of and amount billed by provider, date and amount paid by UHC. Claims in this
random audit met the above requirements but may qualify for more detailed analysis through other resources.

All claims have been reviewed to determine ii they have exceeded the $225,000 stop loss limit.
Claims that have exceeded the limit will be reimbursed by Sun Life effective November 1, 2011.
Cumulative fiscal year stop loss reimbursements from Sun Life total $211,782.51.

All claims submitted in this transfer have been audited to confirm accuracy of billing and legitimacy of
claim under the service provisions of the health care contract and all are contractually legitimate, legally
incurred and accurately billed claims.

I certify that all data listed on this recommendation for transfer of funds is correct and that the payments
shown have been made solely for the purpose of health insurance claims.

Y-J7---.iz
Diane Poiro , Director, HRMD Date

Jopfr Rabb, B nefits Manager D e

‘The uti7q,J
Cindy Purinton, Benefit Contract Administrator Date

A/r / /,a
Norman McRee, Financial Analyst Date

** Agrees to the total payments for this period per the check register received from UHC. See
the final page of this period’s check register attached.

/

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4
ft p
3 c 0 0 p a

10
/1

8/
2

1
0

/2
5

/2
1 7/

1/
20

11
11

/8
/2

07
7

11
/7

5/
20

11
11

/2
2/

20
1

12
/6

/2
07

1
12

/2
0/

2
7

12
/2

7/
20

71

1/
3/

20
7

1/
10

/2
01

2
1
I7

7
/

2
0

1/
24

/2
0

12

“
1

/2
o

7
2

2/
7/

20
1

2/
74

/2
0

2
/2

1
/2

0
1

2/
28

/2
07

2

3/
6/

20
72

‘3
/2

o
7

2
1

3/
20

/2
07

2

/2
Q

12

‘3
/2

o
7

2 ‘7
/2

o
1
2

4/
24

/2
0

12 12

5/
22

/2
0

12
5/

29
/2

01
2

6/
5/

20
12

6
i
i

6/
79

/2
0

6/
26

/2
0

12

7/
10

/2
0

12

7/
24

/2
0

12

8/
7/

20
12

8/
14

/2
0

12
8/

27
/2

0
12

8/
2 8/

20
12

9/
11

/2
01

9/
18

/2
07

2
9/

25
/2

0
12

P
ai

d
C

la
im

s
A

m
ou

nt

0
i

0
) a 0 p a a

—
‘I

(3 p
3

0 a p C a

C
,

0 3 3 Co 0 cD C.
)

0 C ci m

:
D

4

-

‘1 -< . 1%
)

%
l

.
<

3
0
•

<
0

CD 1
< 3
m

W
C

D
C

D

0 -
,

C
o

C
,’

0
)

0
)
- 1 1%

)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



C?
)

N
)

—
.
-

N
)

N
)
-

-

—
-

-N
—I

a
-
.
.
.
-

a
C?

)
-

5
3

N
)

a
a

a
a

a
a

a
J
N

)

0
)

N
)

CD N
)

a N
)

0
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

a N
)

C
j
r

C
D

C
?
)
N

)
-

.
a

co
CD

—1
0

)
(1

1
.N

C?
)

N
)

—
a

CD
CD

—
.1

CD
01

.N
C?

)
N

)
-

a
CD

CD
H

0
)

01
-N

C?
)

N
)
-

a
CD

CO
-J

0
)

(1
1

.N
C?

)
N

)
-

a

0
)
0
)

-
—

N
)

—

0
1

-
.

-
.
.

01
CD

-

3
5
R

3
a

a
a

a

(1
1

-N N
)

a N
i

CD C?
)

N
)

a

-N N
)

N
)

a N
)

CD 0
)

N
)

a N
)

CD C?
)

a N
)

a N
)

CD 0
)

N
)

a N
)

CD N
)

a N
)

-H N
)

0
) N
)

a N
)

-H CD N
i

a N
)

N
)
-

—
C?

)
N

)
N

)
-
-
-
’

-
N

)
N

)
-

a
C?

)
-.

a
C?

CD
-.

-
-

—
1
a

-
.

—
i
a

C?
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
ç

5
5
3

a
a

a
a

a
-

a
a

a
a

a
a

-H N
)

N
)

a N
)

-J (X
C

N
)

a N
)

0
) N
)

CD N
)

a N
)

N
)
-

C?
)

N
)
-

—
-N

.-
-

-N
-J

a
a

a
a

a

0
)

N
)

a N
)

01 a N
)

a N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

C.
)

N
)
-

a
C?

)
0
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

a
a

a

01 C?
)

N
)

a N
)

N
)

CD N
)

a

N
)

N
)

N
)

a

N
)

-
0
1
0
)
-

N
)

N
)

N
)

a
a

a

-N N
)

a

C
?
)
N

)
N

)
&

.
—

N
)

N
)

k
-

N
)

N
)

.A

C
D

C
D

N
)
C

D
N

)
C

?
)
0

)
.

0
)
0
)

N
)
5
N

)
N

)
5N

)
3
5

o
a
a
a
a
a
a
a

a
a

2

Z
5
3
:3

N
)N

)

C
D
0 o
z

W
C

D

C
D

—
C

D
3

‘C C 0
.

(0 CD

CD 0
.

CD 0
.

0 CD

•0 CD -‘ 0 a
.

-u CD 0
.

C
)

CD 3 CD CD CC
C

(0 H 0 0
)

N
)

C?
)

-N CD C?
)

N
)

-N

CD 0
.

Do C 0
.

(cC CD CD 0
.

C
)

CC
) 3 (IC 0 Q CD CD -N N
)

N
)

a N
)

CD C?
)

a N
)

CD C?
)

a CD 01

r N
)N

)
C

D
N

)
—

I
a
-
..
-
-
io

C
?
)

5
R

3
a
a

a
a
a
a
a
a

a 0
)

N
)

a

-o CD -
I 0 a
.

-I 0

-
0

C
D

C
D

-
H

C
D

N
)
N

)
N

)
N

)
-
O

Q

g1
N

)
N

iN
)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)N
)N

)N
)N

)
N

)N
)N

)N
)

N
)N

)
N

)
N

)N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)N

)N
)N

)N
)N

)
—

j
-

-

-

—
—

N
)

0
)

CD
-J

C?
)

C
)1

C
D

-
0
)

-
CD

a
01

C?
)

H
-

(X
l

C?
)

o
o

0
)

N
)

-
C

CD
CD

CD
(1

1
CD

(3
1

N
)

N
)

C
C

(1
1

CD
CD

0
)

CD
0
1
a
N

)
C

D
a
0
)
C

D
0
1
N

)
C

D
0

1
C

D
C

D
0

1
N

)
C

D
C

D
N

)
—

N
)
—

0
1

0
1

C
D

-
H

a
C

D
N

)
C

D
C

D
a
C

D
C

D
—

N
)
0

1
C

?
)
—

—
-
-
)
C

D
c
.)

C)
H

D
C

D
1
)

—
O

-
0
)
-
-
-
C

?
)
N

)
0
)
N

)
-
-
J
O

C
D

C
D

-N
-X

C
?)

.N
a

.N
C

)
1
C

?
a

D
C

3
1

—
I
-

C?
)

—
J

CD
N

)C
?)

0
—

-J
-N

—1
-N

CD
CD

CD
CD

a
N

)
C?

)
CD

CD
N

)
CD

N
)
-

C
ii

N
)

(3
1

CD
-N

CJ
1
a

o
’
a

CD
N

)
(3

1
—

1
C?

)
-N

-
0
)

N
)

C?
)
a

-J
C)

1
CD

CD
-

(3
1

C
-N

—
I

-N
0
)

CD
—.

C
D

C
D

o
C

D
0
)
C

D
N

)
—

C
D

N
)
a
C

D
C

D
—

a
N

)
N

)
—

—
0
1
-
H

C
D

0
1
N

)
C

D
a
C

?
N

)
a
C

D
—

a
0
1
—

C
?
C

D
C

D
C

D
.

3
CD

a
-

C
)

N
)

CD
0

)
0

)
a

C
ii

3
i
a

CD
H

CD
C.

)
0
)
-

-
CD

CD
CD

CD
0

1
0

)
CD

C?
)
-

0
C?

)
CD

0
C.

)
C?

)
0
)

(3
1

0
1
-

CD
01

N
)

N
)

N
)

(X
l

CD
N

)
-N

CD
-

N
N

)
0

1
0

1
0

)
C?

)
0
)

-
CX

I
-

—
i
0

0
)

-J
N

)
CD

CD
0
)

N
)
a

CD
C.

)
C.

)
0

)
C?

)
CD

N
)

0
)
a

.N
-

N
)

C,
)

-N
CD

0
)

-N
-N

a
-

-
CD

0
)

—
1

0
)

N
)

C
)

-N
01

CD C
D

W
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
C

D
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
(
1

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

C
3

1
C

J
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

0
1

C
3

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0

1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
C

X
1
C

3
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1

<
CD

0
)
0
)
0
)

CD
0
)0

)
0
)
0
)
0
)
0
)

CD
CD

CD
0

)
CD

CD
CD

CD
CD

CD
CD

0
)

0
)

0)
0)

0
)

0
)

0
)

0
)

CD
0
)

0
)

0
)

0
)
0

)
0

)
CD

0
)

CD
CD

CD
0
)

CD
CD

CD
CD

CD
CD

0
)

( ;1
-

(X
l0

1
0
1
C

1
1
(Y

1
0
1

CX
I

C
X

IC
Y

IO
1C

Y
IC

)1
C

X
I

0
1
(7

1
(3

1
0
1

1
1
0
1
(7

1
0
1
0
1
-

N
)

N
)

N
i

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)N

i
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)N
)N

)
N

)N
)N

)N
)N

)
N

i
N

N
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
0

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C.
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C.
)

C.
)

C?
)

C?
)

C.
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C.
)

C?
)

C?
)

C,
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C.
)

C?
)

C.
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C,
)

r C
D

C
D

C?
)

N
)

N
)
a

C?
)

C?
)

—
0

C?
)

-N
N

)
01

C?
)
a

N
)

C?
)
-

-
-N

-N
N

)
—

-N
-

N
)

-N
-

-N
N

)
C?

)
-

01
0

-
CX

C
a

-
a

-
-N

a
-

N
)
a

-
a

-
-

—
-

o -4
,

0
0

j
If

,‘l
IF

IF
IF

,

N
)

-
C?

)
—1
-

-
-

-
N

)
-

N
)

N
)

-
N

)
—

N
)
-

N
)

N
)

-
-

C)
CD

CD
—

J
N

)
N

)
C?

)
01

—
1

CD
0
)

-
—

1
N

)
C?

)
0
)

—
I

CD
N

)
(3

1
0
1
0
)

N
)

N
)

0
1

0
)
-

C
.)

-N
-N

C?
)

CD
C?

)
0
)

N
)

CD
N

)
0
)

C?
)

CD
(D

C
D

(M
(D

—
J-

H
N

i—
°C

J1
C

D
$

D
O

M
(
.
)
-
N

3
0
1
-
J
H

N
)
M

C
D

N
)
C

D
C

?)
—

J
C

?
)a

0
0
)

(D
O

)
(X

l
0
1
-
N

0
0

)
0

1
C

D
C

D
—

°
a
—

J
N

)
N

)
a
u

1
C

D
N

iI
C

D
a
-
H

C
D

C
C

.)
0

’
-
-
J
N

)
C

?
)
c
?
)

0
)
0
)

—
‘-

-N
N

)C
?)

a
—

C?
)

0
)
C

?
)

—
—

J
-N

-J
CD

CD
N

)
0
)

CD
C?

)
CX

C
C?

)
C?

)
-

C
.)

CO
N

)
0
)

N
)

CD
CD

C?
)

-N
-

0
1
0
)

—
1

CD
-N

N
-

a
01

-N
N

)
N

)
a

01
C?

)
C?

)
CD

(a,
C

D
C

D
C

D
.N

C
D

N
)

N
)N

)C
)—

J
N

)
0

0
C

?
)
0
)
N

)
—

J
C

D
0
0
0

(0
0

1
“
N

’
p
-
H

-N
C

?)
-N

C
?)

—
1

0
)

-N
(1

1
-N

0
)

a
—

H
-

C?
)

CD
—

1
01

0
CD

-N
0
)

—
3

N
)

CD
C?

)
—

3
C?

)
CD

CD
N

)
-

CD
(1

1
0
1

—
3

CD
—

J
N

)
CD

C?
)

CX
C

a
N

)
(3

1
(0

CD
(3

1
C

C
—

a
—

CX
I

(X
l

C
-

N
)

CD
0

CD
-N

01
—

1
0

-N
N

)
N

)
(3

1
0
)

N
)
j

N
)

—
C

C
CD

-N
—

N
)

C
N

)
a

CD
0
)

CD

0
-
f
l

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

C
D

0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
0
1
-
N

-
N

C
?
)
C

?
)
C

?
)
C

?
)
C

?
)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
N

)
-

0
0
1
0
1

a
-
H

C
D

_
0

1
a
C

?
-
H

_
0

)
C

D
C

D
C

D
N

)
_

-
H

C
D

C
?
0

1
C

D
N

)
C

D
a
C

D
C

D
_

C
D

C
D

C
D

0
1

0
1

o
a
C

D
0
1

C
D

-
N

o
0

1
C

D
a
-
H

o
C

D
-
H

C
D

C
D

N
)
a
-
H

C
D

0
1

C
D

o
—

C
D

C
D

-
N

C
D

0
1

C
?
)
C

D
C

D
C

1
1

C
D

C
D

c
.)

C
?
)
a
C

D
a
-
H

0
1
—

’
-
-
-
’
-

,

—
N

.
-

e
f
l

CD
CD

CD
CD

CD
CD

CD
—

I
—i

—
3

—
I

—
I

H
CD

0
)

0
)

CD
CD

CX
I

CX
I

01
0

1
(3

1
-N

-N
-N

-N
-N

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

C?
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

N
)

—
‘

-<
N

)
a
C

D
N

)
O

9
p

-
H

-
J
C

J
1
N

)
0

L
j

co
C?

)
—

CD
—

3
a

a
—

i
—

—
0

)
0

)
01

a
—

i
-N

—
—

C?
)

-
-N

a
C

.)
a

—
I

CD
N

)
CD

0
)

—
J

N
)

0
)

CD
-

CD
—J

N
)

N
)

0
)

N
)

(1
)

—
a

a
—

‘-
a

—
J

CD
-

CX
1

(3
1

0
—J

a
—

i
—

‘-
CD

CD
C?

)
-N

a
a

-N
C?

)
—

‘-
—

CD
(X

l
CD

-N
—

‘-
-N

0
)

N
)

—
3

-N
01

—
‘-

N
)

—
‘-
a

CD
—

l
C?

)
0

CD
a
.
-

4
-

‘1 -< - 0 C
D

_
j

-o
- N; o

2
.

m
m

m
m

‘
<

0
o
J

C CD 0 > 0 C z a-
I.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Comparison of Claims to FY Budgets
Week 50

100.00%

98.00%

96.00%

94.00%

‘I.’
C
0
a.

Cl)
4.’a,

In

I 92.00%

90.00%

88.00%

86.00%

Fisca’ Years

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Norman McRee

From: SIFSFAX@UHC.COM
Sent: Friday, September 14, 2012 12:47 AM
To: Norman McRee
Subject: UHG FUNDING NOTIFICATION

TO: NORMAN MCREE FROM: UNITEDHEALTH GROUP
FAX NUMBER: (512)854-3128 ABS
PHONE: (512) 854-3828

NOTIFICATION OF AMOUNT OF REQUEST FOR: TRAVIS COUNTY

DATE: 2012-09-14 REQUEST AMOUNT: $1,845,056.09

CUSTOMER ID: 00000701254
CONTRACT NUMBER: 00701254 00709445
BANK ACCOUNT NUMBER: 0475012038 ABA NUMBER: 021000021
FUNDING ADVICE FREQUENCY: DAILY
FREQUENCY: FRIDAY INITIATOR: CUST METHOD: ACH BASIS: BALANCE

CALCULATION OF REQUEST AMOUNT
+ ENDING BANK ACCOUNT BALANCE FROM: 2012-09-13 $904,619.58
- REQUIRED BALANCE TO BE MAINTAINED: $2,668,041.00
+ PRIOR DAY REQUEST: $00.00

UNDER DEPOSIT: $1,763,421.42

+ CURRENT DAY NET CHARGE: $81,634.67
+ FUNDING ADJUSTMENTS: $00.00

REQUEST AMOUNT: $1,845,056.09

ACTIVITY FOR WORK DAY: 2012-09-07

CUST NON NET
PLAN CLAIM CLAIM CHARGE
0632 $40,724.75 $00.00 $40,724.75

TOTAL: $40,724.75 $00.00 $40,724.75

5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



UNITED HEALTHCARE CHECK REGISTER FOR TRAVIS COUNTY SUBMITTED 20120913

CONTRNBR PLNID TRANS AMT SRSDESGNBR CHKNBR GRPID CLMACCT NBR ISS DT
701254 632 -203.68 Al 11192AH 7 9/4/2012
701254 632 -203.7 Al 25360 AA 6 9/4/2012
701254 632 -203.71 Al 42331 AH 1 9/4/2012
701254 632 -206.25 Al 37814 AH 8 9/4/2012
701254 632 -216.83 Al 91674 AE 8 9/4/2012
701254 632 -221.41 Al 22584 AH 3 9/4/2012
701254 632 -227.38 Al 52935 AH 1 9/4/2012
701254 632 -231.91 Al 96020 AA 6 9/4/2012
701254 632 -244.95 Al 11191 AH 9 9/4/2012
701254 632 -282.67 Al 7854 AH 9 9/4/2012
701254 632 -284.45 Al 75271 AH 2 9/4/2012
701254 632 -290.18 Al 43474 AH 1 9/4/2012
701254 632 -290.18 Al 96016AA 3 9/4/2012
701254 632 -295.25 Al 75276AE 15 9/4/2012
701254 632 -381.93 Al 75182 AA 1 9/412012
701254 632 -423.57 Al 55281 AH 1 9/4/2012
701254 632 -442.86 Al 85333 AA 1 9/4/2012
701254 632 -524.81 Al 77472 AE 8 9/4/2012
701254 632 -567.51 Al 102876 AH 8 9/4/2012

TRANS TYPCD TRANSDT WK END Dl
— 200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012

200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012
200 9/11/2012 9/13/2012

1,255,762.81

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Hospital and Insurance Fund - County Employees

UHC Payments Deemed Not Reimbursable

For the payment week ending: 09/13/2012

CLAIM TRANS

CONTR_# TRANS_AMT SRS CHK_# GRP ACCT# ISSDA TE CODE TRANS_DATE

Total: $0.00

________

9/14/2012 1 :36:15 PM

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County - Employee Health Benefits Fund (526)

Journal Entry for the Reimbursement to United Health Care

For the payment week ending: 9/13/2012

Type EE/RR Cost Center G/L Account
Transaction

Amount

CEPO EE 1110068956 516010 $ 180,387.19

RR 1110068956 516110 $ 30,138.23

Total CEPO $ 210,525.42

EPO EE 1110068956 516030 $ 330,575.74

RR 1110068956 516130 $ 39,458.19

Total EPO $ 370,033.93

PPO EE 1110068956 516020 $ 609,782.03

RR 1110068956 516120 $ 65,421.43

Total PPO $ 675,203.46

Grand Total $ 1,255,762.81

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Meeting Date: 9/25/2012
Prepared By/Phone Number: Cynthia Lam-Roldan, 854-4822
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, 854-9106
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe

AGENDA LANGUAGE:
Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for Human
Resources Management Department:

A. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and

B. Non-routine request from Sheriffs Office for a variance to Travis
County Code § 10.03002, General Overview for Determining Pay
Policy.

C. Non-routine request from Transportation and Natural Resources,
consider and approve revised seven job descriptions and one new job
description.

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:
Attached are Personnel Amendments for Commissioners Court approval.
A. Routine Personnel Actions — Pages 3 — 7, 9 -12

FY 13 Temporary Slot Extensions — Pages 9 - 11.
Approval requested to extend temporary slot end dates effective
October 1, 2012. HRMD has reviewed appropriate documentation; PBO
has confirmed FY 13 funding.
* Temporary employees “02” (less than 6 months).
* Project workers “05” (more than 6 months, includes Retirement

Benefits).

FY 13 Temporary Slot Conversions — Page 12.
Approval requested to convert temporary slots from temporary
employee (less than 6 months) to project worker (more than 6 months,
includes Retirement Benefits). PBO has confirmed FY 13 funding.

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge’s office, Cheryl.Aker(co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for
the next week’s meeting.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 11



B. Non-Routine Personnel Action — Pages 8, 13 - 15.
Sheriff’s Office requests approval for a salary adjustment that exceeds
10% above midpoint—Travis County Code § 10.03002, Slot 104,
Licensed Vocational Nurse, PG 15. HRMD has reviewed supporting
documentation and recommends approval; PBO has confirmed sufficient
funds.

C. Non-Routine Personnel Action — Pages 8, 16 - 66.
Transportation and Natural Resources requests approval for the
revision of seven job descriptions and creation of one job description.
HRMD has reviewed supporting documentation and concurs with this
request.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Diane Poirot at
854-9170 or Todd L. Osburn at 854-2744.

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:
N/A

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:
N/A

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:
None.

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:
Todd Osburn, Human Resources Management Department, 854-2744
Diane Poirot, Human Resources Management Department, 854-9170
Leslie Browder, Planning and Budget Office, 854-9106
Cheryl Aker, County Judge’s Office, 854-9555

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge’s office, Cheryl.Aker(co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for
the next week’s meeting.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



iII’ 1IW
Human Resources Managenertment

700 Lavaca Street, 4t Floor • P.O. Box 1748 I Austin, Texas 78767 • (512) 854-9165/ FAX (512) 854-9757

September 25, 2012

ITEM#:

DATE: September 14, 2012

TO: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge
Ron Davis, Commissioner, Precinct I
Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner, Precinct 2
Karen L. Huber, Commissioner, Precinct 3
Margaret Gomez, Commissioner, Precinct 4

VIA: Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget’”

FROM: Diane Poirot, Director, HRMD /J.p

SUBJECT: Weekly Personnel Amendments

Attached are Personnel Amendments for Commissioners Court approval.

A. Routine Personnel Actions — Pages 3— 7, 9 -12

FY 13 Temporary Slot Extensions — Pages 9 - 11.
Approval requested to extend temporary slot end dates effective October 1, 2012. HRMD has reviewed appropriate
documentation; PBO has confirmed FY 13 funding.

* Temporary employees “02” (less than 6 months).
* Project workers “05” (more than 6 months, includes Retirement Benefits).

FY 13 Temporary Slot Conversions — Page 12.
Approval requested to convert temporary slots from temporary employee (less than 6 months) to project worker
(more than 6 months, includes Retirement Benefits). PBO has confirmed FY 13 funding.

B. Non-Routine Personnel Action — Pages 8, 13 - 15.
Sheriff’s Office requests approval for a salary adjustment that exceeds 10% above midpoint — Travis
County Code § 10.03002, Slot 104, Licensed Vocational Nurse, PG 15. HRMD has reviewed supporting
documentation and recommends approval; P80 has confirmed sufficient funds.

C. Non-Routine Personnel Action — Pages 8, 16 - 66.
Transportation and Natural Resources requests approval for the revision of seven job descriptions and creation
of one job description. HRMD has reviewed supporting documentation and concurs with this request.

If you have any questions or comments, please contact Diane Poirot at 854-9170 or Todd L. Osburn at
854-2744.

LB/DP/TLO

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachments
cc: Planning and Budget Department

County Auditor
County Aud Ito rPayro l (Certified copy)
County Clerk (Certified copy)

2
September 25, 2012

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



WEEKLY PERSONNELAMENDMENTS--- RQUTJNE I

. N:EHfl.RES ;4:•
çijy.

Dpt Slot PosThon TitlO Dept Requets kHRMD Reommeids4r
Ley,ejiiJary LeveltSalary 31

County Atty 11 Attorney VII 30 / $101,000.00 30 / $101 ,ooo.oö
County Atty 159 Investigator 67 / Step 5 / $38,037.48• 67 / Step 5 / $38,ö

Part-time
District Atty 259 Attorney ll 23 / Minimum / $59,466.58 23 / Minimum / $59,4

Sheriff 198 Cadet 80/Step I /$38,919.50• 80/Step I /$38,9ö.
Sheriff 1099 Cadet** 80/Step I I$38,919.50• 80/Step 1 /$38,919.5O.
Sheriff 1131 Cadet** 80 / Step I / $38,91 9.50• 80 / Step I / $389

Sheriff 1136 Cadet** 80 / Step I / $38,91 9.50• 80 / Step I I $38,9ö
Sheriff 1864 Cadet** 80 / Step 1 / $38,919.50• 80 / Step I / $38,919JO

Dept Slot Position Title Dept HRMt **Temporal,y
rk Requests Recommends Status Type

Grade/Salary Code

Constable 1 20001 ACC Intern 98 / $12.00 98 / $12.00 02
HRMD 20022 ACC Intern 98 / $12.00 98 I $12.00 02

JP Pct 1 20008 ACC Intern 98 / $12.00 98 / $12.00 02
Probate Court 50005 Attorney I 22 / $28.43 22 / $28.43 05

:,AR.EER 1 .P;PE ::.,;,
‘ :::. ‘ :. •

ep Slot Current -, Nw Current Proposd Comments
PoIon ‘ Pos%ipn Annual nua1 Current HRMD Practice

4V, TitlelGraçje. TitlelGrade a1a,v, .Salay,. r 1 3

Constable 45 Deputy Deputy $44,291.10 $47,480.16 Career Ladder. Peace
2 Constable* I Constable Sr Officer Pay Scale

Grd 61 I Grd 62 (POPS).
ActiáPvs Authorized :

3

.

.

,6mos = 05,incIU!iRetirement Benefjts)

ntcmhr 2 2012

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CAREER LADDERS :.:.: . . . .: . .,
bept Slot Current New Current Proposed r Qómments?’

Posjtlbfl 4oson nnal Annua çurint HRMD Pracqce
TitleIGradè TitlIGadé i .SaFar Salary14 I

Sheriff 524 Corrections Corrections $39,706.37 $43,159.58 Career Ladder. Peace
Ofcr* / Ofcr Sr / Officer Pay Scale
Grd 81 Grd 83 (POPS).

Sheriff 990 Cadet* I Corrections $34,594.77 $39,706.37 Career Ladder.
Grd 80 Ofcr / Grd 81 Officer Pay Scale

, (POPS).
$.

.
.‘ .:

S’ftt N’*’ . P& äê’d4P1 L44 .I, I 1 7 I’WI ‘7 I’F pP P P4 Yp P 7 1 t’ ‘i’

; . Poj3lon Ppsition j’nuaI AnnUal Cuñent HRMI) Practice
TtleIa iffeId’rdO Salary &aliry

,
Pretrial 64 Pretrial Pretrial $41,034.24 $43,085.95 Career Ladder. Pay is

Services Ofcr II / Ofcr II I between mm and
. ..

.

midpoint of pay grade.
. Ac.tual:..v .Authorezed ., p.

.
.

.. . .

ROMQflO SAL.ARYtADJ UST.M ENI NTARY

___JSTEMQ4tGTS,,

Z
tt- POifin iitJe Dë SlbótitIe óPJ1ts

1(m) —Grade
— .aJaiy JQ1).J, — Grade —.S’alary

County Slot 165/ Legal County Slot 130/ Paralegal I Promotion. Pay is between
Atty Secretary! Grd 15 I Atty Grd 18 I $44,562.96 mm and midpoint of pay

$38,750.40 crade.
County Slot 139 I Customer County Slot 99 I Business Promotion. Pay is between
Clerk Support Analyst I I Clerk Analyst II I Grd 24 I mm and midpoint of pay

Grd 20 I $49,995.50 $65,540.80 grade.
CSCD Slot 367** I Probation CSCD Slot 367** I Probation Salary adjustment. Pay is

Ofcr II I Grd 16 / Ofcr II / Grd 16 I below minimum of pay
$33,764.43 $34,815.04 grade.

j

4

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Lateral transfer. Employee
transferred to different slot,
same position, same
department, same pay
grade, retains current pay.
Lateral transfer. Employee
transferred to different slot,
same position, same
department, same pay
qrade, retains current pay.

trict
Atty

Slot 25/Attorney VI!
Grd 29 I $89,986.42

District
Atty

Slot 142/Attorney VI
/ Grd 29 I $89,986.42

District Slot 142 I Attorney IV* District Slot 25 / Attorney IV* /
Atty / Grd 27 / $77,956.53 Atty Grd 27 I $77,956.53

District Slot 212 / Attorney VI District Slot 229 I Attorney VI Lateral transfer. Employee
Atty / Grd 29 I $96,589.38 Atty / Grd 29 / $96,589.38 transferred to different slot,

same position, same
department, same pay
grade, retains current pay.

District Slot 229 I Attorney VI District Slot 212 I Attorney VI Lateral transfer. Employee
Atty / Grd 29 I $91,409.97 Atty / Grd 29 I $91,409.97 transferred to different slot,

same position, same
department, same pay
grade, retains current pay.

District Slot 240 I Attorney VI District Slot 238 / Attorney VI Lateral transfer. Employee
Atty I Grd 29 / Full-time Atty I Grd 29 I Part-time transferred to different slot,

$89,986.42 $44,993.21 same position, same
department, same pay
grade. Status change from
full-time to part-time (40
hrs to 20 hrs). Retains
current rate of pay.

District Slot 259 / Attorney 11* District Slot 240 I Attorney 11* Lateral transfer. Employee
Atty I Grd 23! $59,466.58 Atty / Grd 23 / $59,466.58 transferred to different slot,

same position, same
department, same pay
grade, retains current pay.

5
‘)L ‘f’i4’)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



- Juvenile
Probation

Sheriff Slot 305 I Corrections
OfcrSr/Grd 83/
$59,545.41

Slot 399 I Program
Coord*/Grd 18/
$47,991.01

Sheriff Slot 1498 I
Corrections Ofcr Sr I
Grd 83 I $59,545.41

Lateral transfer. L..,ioyee
transferred to different slot,
same position, same
department, same pay
grade, retains current pay.
POPS lateral transfer.
Employee transferred to
different slot, same
position, same department,
same pay grade, retains
current pay.

Slot 236 / Program
CoordlGrd 18/
$47,991.01

Juvenile
Probation

Sheriff Slot 441 I Corrections Sheriff Slot 572 / Corrections POPS lateral transfer.
Ofcr Sr/ Grd 83/ Ofcr Sr/ Grd 83/ Employee transferred to
$43,159.58 $43,159.58 different slot, same

position, same department,
same pay grade, retains
current pay.

Sheriff Slot 572 / Corrections Sheriff Slot 441 / Corrections POPS lateral transfer. —

Ofcr Sr/ Grd 83 I Ofcr Sr I Grd 83 / Employee transferred to
$45,382.90 $45,382.90 different slot, same

position, same department,
same pay grade, retains
current pay.

Sheriff Slot 1498 / Sheriff Slot 305 / Corrections POPS lateral transfer.
Corrections Ofcr Sr I Ofcr Sr / Grd 83 / Employee transferred to
Grd 83 I $48,763.31 $48,763.31 different slot, same

position, same department,
same pay grade, retains

____________________ current pay.
TNR Slot 206 I Equipment TNR Slot 479 / Equipment Voluntary job change. Pay

Operator Sr / Grd 13 I Operator I Grd 12 I is between midpoint and
$39,208.63 $37,248.19 max of pay grade.

tuai:vs
. .:;.,. ..:;.. : ..:,

6

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



needs PBO has coni d fu

FY13 BUDGET CLASSIFIcATIONH,HI.NGES ,2
jCurreit HJMD Recommen4j

ot FISL) FLSA

TAX 52 ACCOUNTING NE 12 ACCOUNTANT! E 17
COLLECTOR CLERK / 12044 17045

ITS 65 SYSTEMS E 27 SYSTEMS E
ENGINEER III I ARCHITECT I I
27832 28833

ITS 123 SYSTEMS E 25 SYSTEMS E
ENGINEER II I ENGINEER III /
25831 27832

ITS 128 SYSTEMS E 25 SYSTEMS
ENGINEER II I ENGINEER III I
25831 27832

ITS 135 BUSINESS E 26 CUSTOMER E 2
ANALYST III I SUPPORT MGR /
26878 28854

ITS 115 WEBMASTERI/ E 22 WEBMASTER Il/ E 24
22861 24862

RMCR 4 RECORDS NE 15 RECORDS ANALYST NE 17
ANALYST ASSOC / /17490
15489

PRETRIAL 16 COURT SVCS E 18 OFFICE MGR/ E 19
SERVICES MGMT ADMIN 19708

COORD I 18396
PRETRIAL 14 TRAINING E 20 PRETRIAL MGRI E 21
SERVICES EDUCATION 21335

COORD SR I 20573

in .FY .‘

7
September 25, 2012

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ShIt Péitin
T41e Grade —

Slot 104 I Licensed
Vocational Nurse I
Grd 15/$51,912.70

Salary adjustment. Pay is
greater than 10% above
midpoint, Travis County
Code § 10.03002.

iiPNc. jNEoB.

Comprehensive Planning E 26 Long Range Planning Mgr I 26X)(X E 26
Mgr I 26592

Right of Way Program E 25 Real Estate Division Mgr I 25XXX E 25
Mgr/ 25518

Assistant Public Works Director I 29XXX

8

I SECTION B. NON-ROUTINE PERSONNEL ACT.ONS

bept
JFroi1
1L

.:NONRØ1jTINE :Sá’1á Adlustflient

Sheriff

TitIe — Graçé)
4

Slot 104 / Licensed
Vocational Nurse I
Grd 151$45,853.27

To)

Sheriff

Engineering Svcs Div Dir I E
29254

29 Development Svcs and Long Range E 29
Planning Div Dir! 29)(XX

SentAmber 25 2012

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Co. Agricultural Ext Serv 20022 Education Instructional Spec

THIS SECTION LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.

Co. Agricultural Ext Serv 20005 Volunteer Coord

... 20010, 20027, 20069, 20070,Facilities Mgmt
20075, 20077 Custodian

... 20020, 20025, 20029, 20035,Facilities Mgmt
20076 Groundskeeper

HHS 20075 Case Worker

HHS 20088 Planner

HHS 20028 Social Worker

TNR 20059, 20061, 20062, 20063, Park Tech I
20065, 20066, 20067, 20069,
20070, 20071, 20072, 20073,
20075, 20076, 20089, 20090,
20091, 20092, 20094, 20096,
20097, 20098, 20099, 20102

TNR 20055 ParkTechll

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Facilities Mgmt
50076, 50077, 50078, 50079,
50082, 50083 Building Operations Worker

Facilities Mgmt 50003, 50004, 50009, 50010, Building Security Guard
50015, 50051, 50052, 50065,
50066, 50067, 50068, 50085

Facilities Mgmt 50053, 50054, 50055, 50056, Custodian
50057, 50058, 50059, 50060,
50061, 50062, 50063, 50064,
50081

Facilities Mgmt 50070 Office Spec

HHS 50037, 50077 Accountant Assoc

HHS 50078 Administrative Assoc

HHS 50168, 50169, 50170 Carpenter

HHS 50080 Case Worker

HHS 50067 Interpreter Sign Language II
50019, 50021, 50024, 50059,HHS
50060, 50069, 50231

Interpreter Sign Language III

HHS 50006, 50050, 50061, 50062, Interpreter Sign Language IV
50075, 50234, 50235, 50237,
50259, 50260, 50786

50013, 50014, 50016, 50071HHS
50230, 50251, 50781

Interpreter Sign Language V

HHS 50011, 50012, 50025, 50063, Interpreter Sign Language VI
50064, 50240, 50241, 50250,
50252, 50777, 50778, 50779,
50780, 50782, 50784

HHS 50031, 50049, 50082, 50120, Office Spec
50185, 50229, 50244, 50262,
50264

Juvenile Probation 50325 Building Maint Worker

TNR 50118 GIS Spec

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



50006, 50007, 50008, 50009,
50012, 50016, 50017, 50018,
50019, 50022, 50026, 50028,
50029, 50030, 50032, 50033,
50034, 50035, 50037, 50038,

50039, 50040, 50102, 50103,
50106, 50107

TNR 50023, 50024, 50042, 50066, Park Tech II
50075, 50076, 50078, 50079,
50080, 50081, 50082, 50083,
50084, 50093, 50119, 50201

TNR 50044, 50045, 50047, 50049, School Crossing Guard
50050, 50051, 50052, 50053,
50054, 50055, 50056, 50057,
50058, 50059, 50060, 50061,
50063, 50064, 50065, 50067,

50068, 50069, 50070, 50072,
50073, 50089, 50094, 50095,
50096, 50108, 50109, 50110,
50111, 50112, 50113, 50114,
50115, 50116, 50117, 50120,
50121, 50202

Veterans Services 50005 Office Spec Sr

THIS SECTION LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY.

TNR

•

Park Tech I

44

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Samuel T. Biscoe,
County Judge

Ron Davis,
Commissioner, Pct. I

Karen L. Huber,
Commissioner, Pct. 3

Sarah Eckhardt,
Commissioner, Pct. 2

Margaret Gomez,
Commissioner, Pct. 4

12

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Haiiei Resogwces Mwuigement Departmea

700 Lavaca Street,4tFloor 0 P.O. Box 1748 0 Austin, Texas 78767 0 (512) 854-9165/ FAX(512) 854-4203

MEMORANDUM

DATE: September 14, 2012

TO: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge
Ron Davis, Commissioner, Precinct 1
Sarah Eckhart, Commissioner, Precinct 2
Karen L. Huber, Commissioner, Precinct 3
Margaret Gomez, Commissioner, Precinct 4

VIA: Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning & Budget

FROM: Diane Poirot, Director, HRMD IYf
SUBJECT: TCSO Non-Routine Salary Adjustments, Slot #104

HRMD requests Commissioners Court to discuss and consider the following action.

Travis County Sheriff’s Office Request:

Travis County Sheriff’s Office (TCSO) requests approval to increase the current salary
of one Licensed Vocational Nurse in the amount of $6,059.53. The proposed salary
adjustment would bring the employee to the range maximum. The salary adjustment
would apply to the following slot:

Slot# From To

104 $45,853.17 $51,912.70

Policy

Travis County Code 1O.O3OO2(b) states that existing employees may be moved along
a pay range with permanent salary savings at the manager’s discretion. Movement
greater than 10% above midpoint requires Commissioners Court approval.

ssue

The proposed salary increase places the employee greater than 10% above the
midpoint of the pay grade. By policy, this makes the proposed salary action nonroutine.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Recommerditbn

HRMD recommends approval of the proposed salary adjustment. TCSO’s request
facilitates internal equity among the Sheriffs Office LVNs and is consistent with the
intent of the referenced policy. Planning and Budget Office (PBO) has confirmed
funding. The action would be effective September 16, 2012.

H
2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Greg Hamilton, Travis County Sheriff

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 31, 2012

Todd Osbum, Compensation Manager HRMD

FR©M Greg Hamilton, Sheriff5)/Il
JCT: Salary Adjustment ç TCSO Licensed Vocational Nurse

I have authorized a salary adjustment of 13.2 % effective September 2012, for
Licensed Vocational Nurse. This salary adjustment is based on internal

equity with other LVNs within the Sheriffs Office. ; current salary Is
45,853.17 an new salary, on September 15, 2012, will be51,912.70 for an
increase of $6,059.00. Funding has been confirmed by PRO.

If there are any questions, or additional information needed, please do not hesitate
to contact my office.

I-)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Hwrnwi Resources Mao geruljeo?nt Dertoieot

700 Lavaca, Suite 420 0 P.O. Box 1748 o Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX (512) 854-420

BACKUP MEMORANDUM

DATE: September 14, 2012

TO: Members of the Commissioners Court

VIA: Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning & Budget Office

FROM: Diane Poirot, Director, Human Resources Management Dept.

SUBJECT: TNR Reorganization and Associated Job Description Changes

The Transportation and Natural Resources Department (TNR) has submitted a proposed
reorganization of its management team in its FY 2013 budget. If approved in the final budget,
the reorganization is scheduled to be effective on October 1, 2012.

Seven current job descriptions are affected by this reorganization and the department is
proposing the creation of one new job title. HRPJID has reviewed the proposed changes and
is seeking Commissioners Court approval of the proposed changes.

The proposed job description changes can be organized into three groups: minor job description
changes (4), title changes (3), and new jobs (1).

Minor Job Changes:

TNR has proposed minor job description changes for four titles. These titles are:

• TNR Assistant Director (PG 31);
o Parks Division Director (PG 29);
• Public Works Director (PG 33); and
o Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Division Director (PG 27).

These proposed changes are concerned primarily with reporting relationships and clarification of
some duties and responsibilities. Pay grades, titles, and qualifications are not affected.

Title Chang:

TNR has proposed three title changes. These are:

• Right of Way Program Manager (PG 25) to Real Estate Division Manager (PG 25);
• Comprehensive Planning Manager (PG 26) to Long Range Planning Manager (PG 26);

and

1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



o Engineering Services Division Director (PG 29) to Development Services & Long Range
Planning Division Director (PG 29).

The proposed changes for these jobs are more substantive and reflect changes to reporting
relationships, supervisory responsibilities, duties and responsibilities, some qualifications, and
organizational placement. Although no pay grade changes are scheduled at this time, HRMD is
recommending that new position numbers be created for these jobs.

New Job:

TNR has proposed the creation of one new job title. This title is:

• Assistant Public Works Director (PG 29)

According to the organizational chart proposed by TNR, two Assistant Public Works Director
positions are envisioned. Both positions will report to the Public Works Director. One will
oversee Capital Improvement Projects and one will oversee Road and Bridge Maintenance. The
proposed pay grade has been slotted based on internal equity relationships.

S ummarv:

At this time HRMD is asking Commissioners Court to approve the attached job descriptions. If
approved, any subsequent personnel actions that may be associated with these jobs will be
brought separately and will reference these actions. TNR has asked for HRMD’s assistance in
reviewing the pay grade assignments for these titles. Depending on the outcome of this
analysis, possible recommendations for pay grade changes may come at a later date.

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TNR’s nagemeflt Team
FY13

Mer

j I Drecto
l nreD

Natural ROSOUrCOS
Program M. ?Uk5 ieCt SoMeRS DMsio Assistant Pubh Ass’siant

I•-i ProRtam ManURer
evioPm0et unUger ManURer WorkS Dirotter CIP DireCtor - Road &

5eMCeSRe

IroUflRfltU

-

1naepno€r0

ManaR
Mger ManMor

Perrrnt Pr0R°’°
Manager

504

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

INTRA-DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM

TO: Diane Poirot, Director, HRMD

FROM: Executive, TNR

DATE: September 17, 2012

SUBJECT: Internal Restructuring FY 13 — Job Description Revisions

TNR is requesting approval of newly created job descriptions, as well as revisions to certain current job
descriptions in support of its internal restructuring scheduled for FY 13 implementation on October 1,
2012 (Organizational Chart for affected positions attached).
NOTE: TNR also requests that the new and significantly revised job descriptions be included in the
benchmark study your team plans to conduct in December 2012.

Revised and proposed job descriptions are attached in Word format with legislative changes noted, or
PDF (scanned) marked copy with noted revisions.

Summary of newly created or revised job descriptions:

• Assistant Public Works Director — This is a new job description. Incumbents to this job
description will report to the Public Works Director.

o The new job description will apply to the current Road Maint Brdg Fleet Div Dir, Slot
5. Fleet Services will no longer be within the scope of this position (Fleet Services
Division Manager — Slot 375 — will also report directly to Public Works Director). New
job description covers areas of Road & Bridge Maintenance and Traffic programs, and
removes reference to Fleet Services.

o The new job description will apply to the current Engineering Div Mgr, Slot 14. New job
description covers areas of Capital Improvement Programs.

• Real Estate Division Manager — This is a revision of the Right of Way Program Manager job
description and has been edited to include some Right of Way, but more expanded aspects to
include Park Land and other land acquisition, such as cemetery expansion, etc.)

o The revised job description will apply to the current Right of Way Program Manager,
Slot 460.

• Development Services and Long Range Planning Division Director — This is a revision of the
Engineering Svcs Div Dir job description and has been edited to incorporate direction of the
scope of Comprehensive Planning Manager (job description also slated for revision).

o The revised job description will apply to the current Engineering Svcs Div Dir, Slot 286.
• Long Range Planning Manager — This is a revision of the Comprehensive Planning Managerjob

description and has been edited to reflect the change from “comprehensive” to “long range”
planning.

o The revised job description will apply to the current Comprehensive Planning Manager,
Slot 327.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TNR Assistant Director — Revise Job Summary to incorporate department-wide operations versus
limited scope, and remove references to limited scope areas in remainder ofjob
description. Change references of “Executive Manager” to “County Executive”. Revisions to
Duties and Responsibilities as follows:

o 3rd Bullet — insert “improvement” between “capital” and “program”
o 7th Bullet — change “Coaches” to “Directs”

Revised job description will apply to the current TNR Assistant Director, Slot 3.

Request for revisions to other job descriptions (PDF marked copy attached):

o Parks Division Director — Revise Job Summary to include scope of “and plans for park land”, to
incorporate direction of the scope of Planning Project Manager, Slot 47 which will now report to
Parks Division Director. Add a bullet (or incorporate into an existing bullet) “planning for park
land”, as well as adding to Knowledge, Skills and Abilities. Change reference of “Executive
Manager” to “County Executive” in current 7th bullet.

o The revised job description will apply to the current Parks Division Director, Slot 16.
• Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir — Change reference of “Executive

Manager TNR” to “TNR Assistant Director” in Job Summary.
o The revised job description will apply to the current Natural Resources and Env Qty Div

Dir, Slot 376
o Public Works Director - Change reference of “Executive Manager” to “TNR Assistance Director”

in Job Summary.

For all intents and purposes, employees in these positions will begin operating per the revisions effective
October 1, 2012.

Please feel free to contact me, Donna Holt or Carol Joseph at 854-9383 if you have any questions.

SMM:DH/ts
0101 Job Descriptions

Attachments: Job Description Drafts
TNR Organizational Chart

cc: Todd Osbum, Compensation Manager, HRMD
Carol Joseph, Assistant Director, TNR
Donna Holt, Administrative Services Director, TNR
Tina Salazar, HR Manager, TNR

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 31317 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 1O/O1112g4/g1 42

JOB SUMMARY:

Dir cts department-wide operations in multiple complex functional or programmatic areas within the Transportation andural Resources department. Directs the overall operations, staff and functions through subordinate maflg
Pr vides leadership, oversight and direction in all planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations inBC ordance with state, federal and local laws, policies and procedures, and guidelines. Develops departmental stgjcof; s to aoals and obiectives and imorove effectiveness and efficiency of services. Pla&-icrpIem ts.e
oe dinatec development and implementation of management work plans, budgets, uLeyI yv nu ObJeotwe&
M ages and evaluates, planning, administrative, fiscal functions and information systems. Plans and -4e4€ elopment of department at Commissioners Court meetings and participates in overall administration. Serves-asAc nn Fxentitive Manaaer ‘ Trr9spgrtptjgp ,r-I ,r,-’ during the rvF fh Executive Mnnr—

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in thisclasification represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible workschedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and controls planning, budgets, resource allocation, financial systems and information technology of the
department. Directs, oversees and participates in the development and implementation of the department’s
planning, organizing, mission, overall strategic goals and objectives. Directs scheduling, monitoring and deploying
of human, operating and capital resources to accomplish policies, plans and program outcome measures. Ensures
that the department adheres to agency goals and objectives.

• I Participates actively in organizational strategic planning. Assists the County ExecutiveExecutive Manager withoverall departmental responsibilities and has delegated authority to make necessary departmental decisions in
absence of County ExecutiveExecutive Manager.

• Develops, manages and controls departmental programs, budgets and personnel. Oversees the development of
the department budget, including revenue forecasting, departmental budget reviews and recommendations to the
County ExecutiveExecutive Manager. Supports the County ExecutiveExecutive Manager in presentation of budget
and capital improvement program to Commissioners Court. Reviews and approves department operating
expenditures. Assists senior managers in implementing fiscal transactions and decisions. Plans future budgetary
requirements.

• Manages conflict resolution for the department. Evaluates and reports on program performance. Prepares process
analyses using statistical process controls to continually improve the quality of processes and output.

• Represents the department at business meetings, legislative sessions, conferences, seminars, boards, panels and
committees.

• Directs, develops and monitors departmental policies and operating procedures. Implements, communicates and
effectively uses policies and procedures. Coordinates with departments, agencies and organizations to accomplish
desired goals and objectives. Communicates with County Executive Executive Manager and Commissioners Court.

• DirectsCoaches’ senior managers on matters of department structure and leadership. Plans and evaluates the
work of senior level management, professional, technical and other support staff. Interprets policies for
subordinates. Resolves conflicts and exercises broad coordination over activities. Reviews, evaluates and
recommends improvements to department administrative and financial internal controls and systems and
procedures.

• Plans, develops and directs a comprehensive long-term strategic plan for automated systems needs for the
department, including centralized corn puter applications, personal computers and telecommunications functions.
Oversees automated systems within the department, including prioritizing requests for applications development or

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 31317 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
P* GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 1O/O1/12941g4

enhancements, hardware and software standards and equipment acquisition and replacement. Coordinates
technical staff placed within the department. Positions the department to effectively respond to the changing
technological environment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Planning, Finance or a directly related field AND
seven (7) years of senior level management experience, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Planning, Finance or a directly related field.
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Planning and research methodology.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Standards of policy analysis, finance and contract management.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.

Quality management principles and practices.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 31317 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/1204104

• Techniques of statistical measurements and applications.
• Governmental procurement and contracts management requirements.
• Principles and practices of microcomputers, data processing and MIS functions and equipment capabilities.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interact effectively with staff, public, elected and appointed officials.
• Direct and organize department activities.
• Establish program goals and objectives that support the strategic plan.
• Identify problems, evaluate alternatives and implement effective solutions.
• Direct the development of agency policies and procedures.
• Prepare clear, complete, accurate and logical verbal and written reports and make presentations.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cant.)
• Direct preparation of department budget function.
• Plan, coordinate and direct the work of senior managers and professional.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Value diversity and promote shared responsibility, teamwork, systems integration and acceptance of change.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Listen and communicate effectively both verbally and in writing.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with representatives of outside agencies, consultants, other

County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20—50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties7
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 31317 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01(12

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs department-wide operations in multiple complex functional or programmatic areas within the Transportation and
Natural Resources department. Directs the overall operations, staff and functions through subordinate managers.
Provides leadership, oversight and direction in all planning, organizing, implementing and evaluating operations in
accordance with state, federal and local laws, policies and procedures, and guidelines. Develops departmental strategic
plans to accomplish goals and objectives and improve effectiveness and efficiency of services.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification represent senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible work
schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Directs and controls planning, budgets, resource allocation, financial systems and information technology of the
department. Directs, oversees and participates in the development and implementation of the department’s
planning, organizing, mission, overall strategic goals and objectives. Directs scheduling, monitoring and deploying
of human, operating and capital resources to accomplish policies, plans and program outcome measures. Ensures
that the department adheres to agency goals and objectives.

• Participates actively in organizational strategic planning. Assists the County Executive with overall departmental
responsibilities and has delegated authority to make necessary departmental decisions in absence of County
Executive.

• Develops, manages and controls departmental programs, budgets and personnel. Oversees the development of
the department budget, including revenue forecasting, departmental budget reviews and recommendations to the
County Executive. Supports the County Executive in presentation of budget and capital improvement program to
Commissioners Court. Reviews and approves department operating expenditures. Assists senior managers in
implementing fiscal transactions and decisions. Plans future budgetary requirements.

• Manages conflict resolution for the department. Evaluates and reports on program performance. Prepares process
analyses using statistical process controls to continually improve the quality of processes and output.

• Represents the department at business meetings, legislative sessions, conferences, seminars, boards, panels and
corn m ittees.

• Directs, develops and monitors departmental policies and operating procedures. Implements, communicates and
effectively uses policies and procedures. Coordinates with departments, agencies and organizations to accomplish
desired goals and objectives. Communicates with County Executive and Commissioners Court.

• Directs senior managers on matters of department structure and leadership. Plans and evaluates the work of
senior level management, professional, technical and other support staff. Interprets policies for subordinates.
Resolves conflicts and exercises broad coordination over activities. Reviews, evaluates and recommends
improvements to department administrative and financial internal controls and systems and procedures.

• Plans, develops and directs a comprehensive long-term strategic plan for automated systems needs for the
department, including centralized computer applications, personal computers and telecommunications functions.
Oversees automated systems within the department, including prioritizing requests for applications development or
enhancements, hardware and software standards and equipment acquisition and replacement. Coordinates
technical staff placed within the department. Positions the department to effectively respond to the changing
technological environment.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 31317 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Planning, Finance or a directly related field ANDseven (7) years of senior level management experience, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory ormanagement experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education andexperience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Public Administration, Business Administration, Planning, Finance or a directly related field.
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Planning and research methodology.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Standards of policy analysis, finance and contract management.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Quality management principles and practices.
• Techniques of statistical measurements and applications.
• Governmental procurement and contracts management requirements.
• Principles and practices of microcomputers, data processing and MIS functions and equipment capabilities.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Interact effectively with staff, public, elected and appointed officials.
• Direct and organize department activities.
• Establish program goals and objectives that support the strategic plan.
• Identify problems, evaluate alternatives and implement effective solutions.
• Direct the development of agency policies and procedures.
• Prepare clear, complete, accurate and logical verbal and written reports and make presentations.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: TNR Assistant Director

JOB CODE: 31317 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 31 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Direct preparation of department budget function.
• Plan, coordinate and direct the work of senior managers and professional.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Value diversity and promote shared responsibility, teamwork, systems integration and acceptance of change.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Listen and communicate effectively both verbally and in writing.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with representatives of outside agencies, consultants, otherCounty employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20—50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject tostanding, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiej
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 33256 ELSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 33 LAST REVISED: 1O/O1/1241O4

JOB SUMMARY:

Un1er administrative direction of the TNR Assistant DirectorExecutive Manager TNR, plans, organizes, directs, reviews
and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the Public Works division. Coordinates and works closely with
officials, department heads and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the
department and/or County with customers and media. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance
with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the state,
court and the department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification serves as the administrator. This classification is distinguished by the administrative duties and
responsibilities, licensed as a Professional Engineer (P.E.), and required additional senior level management, project
management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County employees
and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the department and/or County
with customers and media.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations
and applicable standards and procedures established by the state, court and the department.

• Manages the resources of the department to ensure the completion of long-term projects on time and under budget.
Develops and implements plans for financing improvements and reviews and approves the improvements. Reviews
plans, reports, budget estimates and proposals. Manages the preparation and administration of the budget.
Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts, supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.
Oversees the preparation of bid documents and contracts, and manages these contracts to successful completion.
Monitors inter-governmental actions.

• Directs and participates in the development and implementation of strategic short and long-term plans. Develops
and implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures or priorities, and coordinates with officials to achieve those
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and
standardizes department policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances and complaints.
• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional

association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.
• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND eight (8) years of directly related, increasingly responsible and varied
professional engineering project management, developing and managing public works, or municipal management
experience, including five (5) years of senior level management, project management and/or administrative experience.

fcY7

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 33256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 33 LAST REVISED: ioioiii’uo

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) in the State of Texas issued by the Texas Board of Professional
Engineers. If licensed in another state, must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) months ofdate of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Civil Engineering a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of municipal public works, including planning,

design, construction, operation and maintenance.
• Technical, legal, financial and public relation problems involved in the conduct of a municipal public works program.
• Methods of preparing designs, plans, specifications, estimates, reports and recommendations relating to proposed

public works facilities.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Theory, principles, practices and methods of state and local public engineering, construction, street maintenance

and contract administration.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, sources,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Improving seamless customer service delivery.
• Building and maintaining strong relationships with the community, employees and other agencies.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance and dispute resolution.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards in variety of engineering projects.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 33256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 33 LAST REVISED: 10/01/1 204/Q4

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Direct, plan and implement division operations and activities.
• Provide operational management, administration, organizational leadership and team building.
• Manage and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Delegate authority and responsibility, and to schedule and program work on a long-term basis.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a fastpaced and stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

O

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 33256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 33 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the TNR Assistant Director, plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the
activities, functions and operations of the Public Works division. Coordinates and works closely with officials,
department heads and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the department
and/or County with customers and media. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with
statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the state, court
and the department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification serves as the administrator. This classification is distinguished by the administrative duties and
responsibilities, licensed as a Professional Engineer (RE.), and required additional senior level management, project
management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet
the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County employees
and outside agencies. Serves as professional technical advisor, and may represent the department and/or County
with customers and media.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with statutory applicable laws, rules, regulations
and applicable standards and procedures established by the state, court and the department.

• Manages the resources of the department to ensure the completion of long-term projects on time and under budget.
Develops and implements plans for financing improvements and reviews and approves the improvements. Reviews
plans, reports, budget estimates and proposals. Manages the preparation and administration of the budget.
Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts, supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.
Oversees the preparation of bid documents and contracts, and manages these contracts to successful completion.
Monitors inter-governmental actions.

• Directs and participates in the development and implementation of strategic short and long-term plans. Develops
and implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures or priorities, and coordinates with officials to achieve those
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and
standardizes department policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances and complaints.
• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional

association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.
• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND eight (8) years of directly related, increasingly responsible and varied
professional engineering project management, developing and managing public works, or municipal management
experience, including five (5) years of senior level management, project management and/or administrative experience.

-

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 33256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 33 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) in the State of Texas issued by the Texas Board of Professional
Engineers. If licensed in another state, must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) months of
date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Civil Engineering a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles and practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of municipal public works, including planning,

design, construction, operation and maintenance.
• Technical, legal, financial and public relation problems involved in the conduct of a municipal public works program.
• Methods of preparing designs, plans, specifications, estimates, reports and recommendations relating to proposed

public works facilities.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Theory, principles, practices and methods of state and local public engineering, construction, street maintenance

and contract administration.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, sources,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Budget preparation arid office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Improving seamless customer service delivery.
• Building and maintaining strong relationships with the community, employees and other agencies.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance and dispute resolution.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved engineering methods and standards in variety of engineering projects.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools and testing materials.
• Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 33256 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 33 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to:
• Direct, plan and implement division operations and activities.
• Provide operational management, administration, organizational leadership and team building.
• Manage and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Delegate authority and responsibility, and to schedule and program work on a long-term basis.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutieil
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

rn

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir =

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 1oio1I129

JOB SUMMARY:

Unkier administrative direction of the TNR Assistant DirectorExecutive Manager TNR, serves as the Environmental
Officer to the Commissioners Court, and directs, administers and manages operational activities of the Natural
Resources and Environmental Quality Division. Provides consultation and guidance directly to the Commissioners Court
on a wide variety of technical, policy and regulatory issues in natural resource and environmental contexts. Directs the
development and implementation of complex natural resource and environmental projects and programs. Develops
policies and procedures. Plans, directs, monitors, allocates and controls resources, staffing, equipment and materials.
Develops, implements and monitors budget, and oversees all other administrative matters for the division. Coordinates
and works closely with officials, department heads and outside agencies. Supervises and directs work of subordinate
managers. Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, rules,
regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the Federal Government, State, Court and the
department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification is responsible for overall
performance and environmental compliance in the areas of civil environmental enforcement, natural resource grants,
hazardous materials management, solid waste regulatory matters, recycling, waste minimization, stormwater system
management, general water quality protection, air quality protection, cultural and natural resource management and
endangered species preserve and habitat conservation plan management in a countywide scope. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division. Manages
resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing requirements and hires accordingly.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates,
prioritizes and schedules assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and
trains staff, including assignments and distribution of workload to adjust to changing priorities.

• Directs, manages and controls division’s budgets. Prepares and submits a variety of fiscal and administrative
reports. Ensures adequate resources available for operation of division.

• Directs planning, development and implementation of policies and programs to ensure compliance with State,
Federal, County, Local environmental laws and regulations on a countywide basis. Reports to and provides
recommendations to Commissioners Court on environmental regulatory, technical and policy matters. Represents
the County before Local, State and Federal regulatory agencies.

• Directs and conducts research, consultation and provides reports to Commissioners Court in response to queries
from constituents and Commissioners Court regarding current and prospective environmental and natural resource
issues, program activities and plans.

• Plans, directs, oversees work plan creation/implementation and strategic planning for cultural and natural resource
consultation and management services on Travis County owned or managed lands to include habitat conservation
planning, open space and preserve management, park and preserve land acquisition, ecological monitoring and
restoration.

• Works with Program Manager to create work plans, conduct strategic planning for, and direct performance of natural
resources grant acquisition and administration services, solid waste minimization and recycling services, hazardous
materials management services and regulatory support programs in the areas of stormwater management, air
quality and civil environmental enforcement.

• Serves as liaison with other agencies, the media, State and Federal authorities and other local political subdivisions
with regards to coordination of environmental and natural resources protection.

--

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfrGRADE: 27 LASTREVISED: 10I01I120

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Directs and performs administrative duties to include reports, correspondence, short and long term strategic
planning, attending meetings and training, preparing annual work plan, budget and project status reports.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Responds and investigates citizen inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Environmental Engineering, Biology, Botany, Natural Resources, Planning, Business Administration
or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of senior management level experience in supervising planning,
coordinating and managing of environmental and resource management activities, including four (4) years of mid- tosenior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education andexperience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering, Biology, Botany, Natural Resources, Planning, Business Administration or
a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Principles of project management.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Grant information sources, standards and guidelines.
• Consultant contract management policies and procedures.
• Requirements for contract plans, specifications, and estimates.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and directing a variety of projects.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data.
• Performing contract negotiation.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.

2,1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir =

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/1209

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in: (Cont.)
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, coordinate, organize and effectively prioritize program and projects.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of subordinates.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Prioritize needs and develop and implement plans of action.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Address complex issues so they may be understood by the audience.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. May work in extreme
temperature/weather change/conditions, and smoke on prescribed or wild fires. May be subject to contact with
dangerous machinery, fumes, and hazardous chemicals.

rnTs job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

2)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the TNR Assistant Director, serves as the Environmental Officer to the Commissioners
Court, and directs, administers and manages operational activities of the Natural Resources and Environmental QualityDivision. Provides consultation and guidance directly to the Commissioners Court on a wide variety of technical, policyand regulatory issues in natural resource and environmental contexts. Directs the development and implementation ofcomplex natural resource and environmental projects and programs. Develops policies and procedures. Plans, directs,
monitors, allocates and controls resources, staffing, equipment and materials. Develops, implements and monitors
budget, and oversees all other administrative matters for the division. Coordinates and works closely with officials,
department heads and outside agencies. Supervises and directs work of subordinate managers. Monitors andoversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations and applicable
standards and procedures established by the Federal Government, State, Court and the department. Performs all workusing appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. Incumbents in this
classification represents senior management within the department. This classification is responsible for overall
performance and environmental compliance in the areas of civil environmental enforcement, natural resource grants,
hazardous materials management, solid waste regulatory matters, recycling, waste minimization, stormwater system
management, general water quality protection, air quality protection, cultural and natural resource management and
endangered species preserve and habitat conservation plan management in a countywide scope. This classification
may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes, directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division. Manages
resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing requirements and hires accordingly.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance, coordinates,
prioritizes and schedules assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Orients and
trains staff, including assignments and distribution of workload to adjust to changing priorities.

• Directs, manages and controls division’s budgets. Prepares and submits a variety of fiscal and administrative
reports. Ensures adequate resources available for operation of division.

• Directs planning, development and implementation of policies and programs to ensure compliance with State,
Federal, County, Local environmental laws and regulations on a countywide basis. Reports to and provides
recommendations to Commissioners Court on environmental regulatory, technical and policy matters. Represents
the County before Local, State and Federal regulatory agencies.

• Directs and conducts research, consultation and provides reports to Commissioners Court in response to queries
from constituents and Commissioners Court regarding current and prospective environmental and natural resource
issues, program activities and plans.

• Plans, directs, oversees work plan creation/implementation and strategic planning for cultural and natural resource
consultation and management services on Travis County owned or managed lands to include habitat conservation
planning, open space and preserve management, park and preserve land acquisition, ecological monitoring and
restoration.

• Works with Program Manager to create work plans, conduct strategic planning for, and direct performance of natural
resources grant acquisition and administration services, solid waste minimization and recycling services, hazardous
materials management services and regulatory support programs in the areas of stormwater management, air
quality and civil environmental enforcement.

• Serves as liaison with other agencies, the media, State and Federal authorities and other local political subdivisions
with regards to coordination of environmental and natural resources protection.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir =

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Directs and performs administrative duties to include reports, correspondence, short and long term strategicplanning, attending meetings and training, preparing annual work plan, budget and project status reports.
• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professionalassociation meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.
• Responds and investigates citizen inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Environmental Engineering, Biology, Botany, Natural Resources, Planning, Business Administration
or a directly related field AND seven (7) years of senior management level experience in supervising planning,
coordinating and managing of environmental and resource management activities, including four (4) years of mid- tosenior level supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education andexperience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Environmental Engineering, Biology, Botany, Natural Resources, Planning, Business Administration or
a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Principles of project management.
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Grant information sources, standards and guidelines.
• Consultant contract management policies and procedures.
• Requirements for contract plans, specifications, and estimates.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Resolving supervisory/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and directing a variety of projects.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data.
• Performing contract negotiation.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.

‘:2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Natural Resources and Environmental Quality Div Dir =

JOB CODE: 27309 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 27 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)
Skill in: (Cont.)
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, coordinate, organize and effectively prioritize program and projects.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of subordinates.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Develop and implement new and innovative ideas.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Utilize online resources.
• Prioritize needs and develop and implement plans of action.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Address complex issues so they may be understood by the audience.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives ofoutside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject tostanding, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. May work in extremetemperature/weather change/conditions, and smoke on prescribed or wild fires. May be subject to contact withdangerous machinery, fumes, and hazardous chemicals.

[ñs job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutiesI and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
on_the_specific tasks_assigned_to_the_position.

_____________

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 29315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
Pm GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 1O/O1/124l4iI 42

JOB SUMMARY:

ME1nages and directs activities of Parks programs and services, and plans for park land.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two parks-related job classifications within the Senior Management/Middle Managementjob family. Represents senior management within the department. This classification may require a flexible workschedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

JUses a strategic planning process and plans, organizes and provides leadership to an interdisciplinary group ofprofessional, managerial and technical staff, to ensure comprehensive and coordinated Parks programs andservices through an annual work plan and performance objectives. Sets the standard for current as well as futureservices. Prepares the strategic direction and goals of the division, determines staffing requirements and plansaccordingly for resources. Develops and evaluates alternatives and recommends action to solve problems.Researches and implements new programs and practices needed to sustain strategic initiatives. Directsdevelopment and implementation of Standard Operating Procedures for existing and new operations/processes.
• Planning for park land.

• Provides expert consultation to Commissioners Court, political entities, agencies and internal management staffregarding current and prospective issues, program activities and plans. Functions as a member of the department’s
senior executive management group.

• Works directly and through middle-level managers and supervisors to manage, develop and direct operations staff.Provides leadership and guidance. Leads by example. Implements effective management controls. Ensureseffective two-way communications within chain of command. Develops and maintains relevant performancestandards and measures. Addresses personnel issues in a fair and timely manner.
• Analyzes division program initiatives, determines strategies, prioritizes implementation and ensures high quality delivery

through appropriate tracking and feedback processes. Defines, prioritizes, schedules and monitors multiple operations
projects, developing and maintaining comprehensive project plans/schedules. Reviews and analyzes annual contract
deliverables. Develops project resource strategies, allocating budget, staff, tools, etc. necessary for implementation ofprojects. Reports metrics and service deliverables to ensure quality and satisfaction.

• Responsible for development of processes and maintaining day-to-day operations for budget and fiscal operations,
capital and human resources. Develops and deploys management systems that optimize resources.

• Ensures compliance with County and other applicable standards.

• Serves as liaison with State and Federal authorities and other local organizations to ensure coordination. Serves asI key liaison between County ExecutiveExecutive Manager, Commissioners Court and operations staff. Works with
peers from across the County on common issues. Develops relationships with professional organizations, peer
groups and industry trade groups to stay current on practices.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field AND seven
(7) years of senior management level experience in managing parks, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 29315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAW GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/0111204/04

42

of this job.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Park and Recreation Professional (CPRP).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques of park management and operations and pjj

land planninc.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searching.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Work design, time management, facilitation and managing budgets.
• Resolving leadership/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, organize and effectively direct programs.
• Direct and lead work of professional and support staff members.
• Coach, mentor and motivate staff.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Anticipate future requirements, and research and analyze emerging programs.
• Conduct and prepare feasibility studies.
• Develop proposals including estimates for resource usage.
• Prepare statistical reports and complete cost/benefit analysis.
• Effectively communicate strategic directions and goals.
• Communicate with a broad base of stakeholders and multiple management layers.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Make decisions where there is uncertainty.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 29315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAfr GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/1294494

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all di1
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 29315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Manages and directs activities of Parks programs and services, and plans for park land.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is the second in a series of two parks-related job classifications within the Senior ManagementJMile
Management job family. Represents senior management within the department. This classification may require aflexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Uses a strategic planning process and plans, organizes and provides leadership to an interdisciplinary group ofprofessional, managerial and technical staff, to ensure comprehensive and coordinated Parks programs and
services through an annual work plan and performance objectives. Sets the standard for current as well as future
services. Prepares the strategic direction and goals of the division, determines staffing requirements and plansaccordingly for resources. Develops and evaluates alternatives and recommends action to solve problems.
Researches and implements new programs and practices needed to sustain strategic initiatives. Directs
development and implementation of Standard Operating Procedures for existing and new operations/processes.

• Planning for park land.

• Provides expert consultation to Commissioners Court, political entities, agencies and internal management staff
regarding current and prospective issues, program activities and plans. Functions as a member of the department’s
senior executive management group.

• Works directly and through middle-level managers and supervisors to manage, develop and direct operations staff.
Provides leadership and guidance. Leads by example. Implements effective management controls. Ensures
effective two-way communications within chain of command. Develops and maintains relevant performance
standards and measures. Addresses personnel issues in a fair and timely manner.

• Analyzes division program initiatives, determines strategies, prioritizes implementation and ensures high quality
delivery through appropriate tracking and feedback processes. Defines, prioritizes, schedules and monitors multiple
operations projects, developing and maintaining comprehensive project plans/schedules. Reviews and analyzes
annual contract deliverables. Develops project resource strategies, allocating budget, staff, tools, etc. necessary for
implementation of projects. Reports metrics and service deliverables to ensure quality and satisfaction.

• Responsible for development of processes and maintaining day-to-day operations for budget and fiscal operations,
capital and human resources. Develops and deploys management systems that optimize resources.

• Ensures compliance with County and other applicable standards.

• Serves as liaison with State and Federal authorities and other local organizations to ensure coordination. Serves as
key liaison between County Executive, Commissioners Court and operations staff. Works with peers from across
the County on common issues. Develops relationships with professional organizations, peer groups and industry
trade groups to stay current on practices.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field AND seven
(7) years of senior management level experience in managing parks, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory or management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

1N

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 29315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cant.)

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.
Preferred:
Master’s degree in Parks and Recreation, Conservation, Business Administration or a directly related field.
Certified Park and Recreation Professional (CPRP).

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques of park management and operations and park

land planning.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State and Federal regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searching.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Work design, time management, facilitation and managing budgets.
• Resolving leadership/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Plan, organize and effectively direct programs.
• Direct and lead work of professional and support staff members.
• Coach, mentor and motivate staff.
• Work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously and produce timely and tangible results.
• Anticipate future requirements, and research and analyze emerging programs.
• Conduct and prepare feasibility studies.
• Develop proposals including estimates for resource usage.
• Prepare statistical reports and complete cost/benefit analysis.
• Effectively communicate strategic directions and goals.
• Communicate with a broad base of stakeholders and multiple management layers.
• Prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action.
• Work as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Make decisions where there is uncertainty.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, representatives of

outside agencies, and the general public.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Parks Division Director

JOB CODE: 29315 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-50 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject tostanding, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of aIFdje1
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JB TITLE: Engineering Services Development Services and
Long Range Planning Division Director

JOB CODE: 29254 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE 29 LAST REVISED 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY

Unier administrative direction of the Executive Manager TNR Assistant Director directs the development ajimplementation of complex engineering projects and programs. Develops policies and procedures. Allo’
resources staffing equipment and material Monitors budget and oversees all other administrative matters fort’iidivision Coordinates and works closely with officials department heads and outside agencies Supervises and
work of professional and technical staff Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliancejp.
applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicable standards and procedures established by the State, court ahjI
department. Performs all work using appropriate safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This
disinguished by the director duties and responsibilities, licensed as a Professional Engineer (P.E.), or licem
ceiftified urban or regional planner by the American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP), and required additional
level management, project management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a fi
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes and directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the di
Manages resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing requirements and hires accorc
Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County -

outside agencies. Negotiates with firms for outsourcing work.

• Develops, manages and controls division’s programs, budgets and personnel. Plans future budgetary requirE
for division. Purchases, monitors and maintains fixed assets common to division. Evaluates and repc
program performance of division. Prepares process analyses and uses statistical process controls to conl
improve quality of processes and output.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, reg
applicable standards and procedures established by the State, court and the department.

• Directs, develops and monitors division/department policies and operating procedures. Implements, commu
and effectively utilizes department policies and procedures. Coordinates with other division directors, depart
agencies and organizations to accomplish division/department goals and objectives.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts, supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integn
• Participates in the development and implementation of strategic short-term and long-term division plans. D

and implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures and priorities, and coordinates with officials to ac
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Stud
standardizes divisional policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance and c
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

jRepresents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and pro
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Directs current and long-range planning proiects related to transportation, land development regulations,

I ,J Q
44:5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JB TITLE: Engineering Services Development Services and
j Long Range Planning Division Director

JOB CODE: 29254 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

f development of new County ordinances and legislative initiatives.

. Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND six (6) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professionalengineering design and/or analysis experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including four (4) years of mid- tose ior level supervisory/management or project management experience.
Or Bachelor’s degree in Urban Planning AND six (6) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professjófrjaj:’ur an planning and/or analysis experience as a Certified Planner, including four (4) years of mid- to senior /éIJsu ervisory management or proect management experience
Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) in the State of Texas issued by the Texas Board of Professjonl.Engineers. If licensed in another state, must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) morth’édae of hire. Or AICP certified in urban and regional planning or obtainable within one (1) year from hire date.

Valid Texas Drivers License

Knowledge Skills and Abilities
Knowledge of
. Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
. Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning
. Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
. Supervisory principles practices and techniques
. Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, soistandards, policies and procedures.
1.J_Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
. Legislative processes.
. Methods, techniques and practices of long range, advanced, comprehensive, urban and regional planning.
. Modern, advanced methods of planning research, data collection and analysis.
. Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
. Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graØhidproject scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
. Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
. Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects
. Analyzing and evaluating complex data technical engineering data and reports
JContract negotiation, compliance, and dispute resolution
. j Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
. Contract management and project budgeting
. Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
. Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• I Adapting approved planning and engineering methods and standards a variety of planning and engineeringprojects.
. Using and caring of equipment, tools, and testing materials.
. Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and otherrelated electronic equipment.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JB TITLE: Engineering Services Development Services and
J Long Range Planning Division Director

JOB CODE: 29254 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
i.J_Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Work in open, participatory, public forums of diverse opinions and values, educated debates and complex issues.
• Initiate and develop proiects and programs.
• Bring together several viewpoints into a balanced position.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Ability to: (Cont.)
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject tostanding, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all dutie
and responsibilities. The essential duties; functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary ILped on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

LL1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Development Services and Long Range Planning
Division Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Under administrative direction of the TNR Assistant Director, directs the development and implementation of complex
engineering projects and programs. Develops policies and procedures. Allocates resources, staffing, equipment andmaterial. Monitors budget and oversees all other administrative matters for the division. Coordinates and works closelywith officials, department heads and outside agencies. Supervises and directs work of professional and technical staff.Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and applicablestandards and procedures established by the State, court and the department. Performs all work using appropriate
safety procedures.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification isdistinguished by the director duties and responsibilities, licensed as a Professional Engineer (P.E.), or licensed as acertified urban or regional planner by the American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP), and required additional senior
level management, project management and/or administrative experience. This classification may require a flexible
work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Plans, organizes and directs, reviews and evaluates the activities, functions and operations of the division.
Manages resources to ensure the completion of projects. Determines staffing requirements and hires accordingly.
Prepares a variety of fiscal and administrative reports.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County staff and
outside agencies. Negotiates with firms for outsourcing work.

• Develops, manages and controls division’s programs, budgets and personnel. Plans future budgetary requirements
for division. Purchases, monitors and maintains fixed assets common to division. Evaluates and reports on
program performance of division. Prepares process analyses and uses statistical process controls to continually
improve quality of processes and output.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
applicable standards and procedures established by the State, court and the department.

• Directs, develops and monitors division/department policies and operating procedures. Implements, communicates
and effectively utilizes department policies and procedures. Coordinates with other division directors, departments,
agencies and organizations to accomplish division/department goals and objectives.

• Negotiates and oversees services contracts, supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.
• Participates in the development and implementation of strategic short-term and long-term division plans. Develops

and implements goals, objectives, policies, procedures and priorities, and coordinates with officials to achieve those
goals. Plans, schedules, reviews and evaluates work needs on a short and long-term basis. Studies and
standardizes divisional policies and practices.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances or complaints.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Development Services and Long Range Planning
Division Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont.)

• Directs current and long-range planning projects related to transportation, land development regulations, and the
development of new County ordinances and legislative initiatives.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND six (6) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
engineering design and/or analysis experience as a licensed Professional Engineer, including four (4) years of mid- to
senior level supervisory/management or project management experience.
Or Bachelor’s degree in Urban Planning AND six (6) years of directly related, increasingly responsible professional
urban planning and/or analysis experience as a Certified Planner, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level
supervisory management or project management experience.
Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Licensed to practice as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) in the State of Texas issued by the Texas Board of Professional
Engineers. If licensed in another state, must acquire license reciprocity in the State of Texas within six (6) months of
date of hire. Or AICP certified in urban and regional planning or obtainable within one (1) year from hire date.

Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Principles, procedures, practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of engineering.
• Advanced mathematical and statistical methods as used in engineering and planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, regulatory codes, rules, permits, licenses, purposes, sources,

standards, policies and procedures.
• Recent developments and current literature regarding engineering.
• Legislative processes.
• Methods, techniques and practices of long range, advanced, comprehensive, urban and regional planning.
• Modern, advanced methods of planning research, data collection and analysis.
• Methods, practices and techniques of inspections, compliance and enforcement.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, presentations, spreadsheets, databases, maps, records, graphics,

project scheduling and management, and other related engineering applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Planning and directing a variety of engineering projects.
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data, technical engineering data and reports.
• Contract negotiation, compliance, and dispute resolution.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Contract management and project budgeting.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Applying principles and practices as used in engineering.
• Adapting approved planning and engineering methods and standards a variety of planning and engineering

projects.
• Using and caring of equipment, tools, and testing materials.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Development Services and Long Range Planning
Division Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in (Cont.):
• Using and caring of computer-aided design and drafting (CADD), Geographic Information System (GIS) and other

related electronic equipment.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects, and activities.
• Work in open, participatory, public forums of diverse opinions and values, educated debates and complex issues.
• Initiate and develop projects and programs.
• Bring together several viewpoints into a balanced position.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional and technical subordinates.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Interpret plans and specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Perform complex engineering studies, analysis and design.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Manage time well, perform multiple tasks and organize diverse activities.
• Work independently.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JB TITLE: Comprehensive Long Range Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 26592 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 04/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs development and administration of the Comprehensive Plan for the County’s physical development. Develops
long-term plans and policies and formulates recommendations related to capital improvement programs, County
ordinances, and development regulations in the County’s unincorporated areas, including the extraterritorial jurisdiction
(EtJ) of municipalities. Directs the development of eom-prehensive planlong range planning elements including
transportation, land use, parks and open spaces, storm water management and water quality, and natural resources.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior management/Middle Management job family.
th Executive Manager of Travis County’s Transportation and Natural Resources Departmen—Manages both
professional staff and hired consultants working on projects related to the County’s Comprehensive Plan. Coordinates
with other implementing agencies and County departments, including the Commissioners Court and appointed citizen
advisors. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises program personnel, including assigning and reviewing work and overseeing department and employee
goals and their implementation. Recommends hiring, training, terminating, and disciplining of employees as
necessary.

• Directs current and long-range planning projects related to transportation, land development regulations, the
Comprehensive Plan, the development of new County ordinances, and legislative initiatives.

• Coordinates economic development as it relates to planning issues.

• Reviews reports, makes recommendations on policy change requests and presents staff analysis and
recommendations at County meetings.

• Answers questions regarding state statutes and County codes, providing supporting materials such as copies, maps,
and letters as required.

• Prepares plans in accordance with state law, including timetables, County resolutions, public notices, service plans,
analysis and recommendations, ordinances, and exhibits.

• Manages the compilation of demographic, economic and environmental data and makes projections and estimates.

• Maintains up-to-date knowledge of relevant laws and ordinances, including reading and responding to
correspondence and technical reports. Prepares reports when necessary.

• Prepares and manages portions of annual departmental budget.

• Works with outside consultants to provide the information needed to conduct analysis and prepare reports.

• Directs the implementation elements of, and updates to the Comprehensive Plan including: the Transportation Plan;
Parks and Open Space Plan and Land Use Plan.

• Directs and manages special planning projects.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

J4B TITLE: Comprehensive Long Range Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 26592 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 04/01/12

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Provides necessary information and reports to various other organizations, including the Commissioners Court and
its subcommittee, advisory committees, technical committees and community groups.

• Oversees community development initiatives, including citizen outreach, communication plans, regional planning
forums, and inter-agency task forces.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Urban and Regional Planning, Engineering, Public Policy/Administration, Business Administration
or a directly related field AND seven (7) years increasingly responsible experience with transportation planning, strategic
planning, policy analysis, and program development, including two (2) years senior level supervisory or management
experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
AICP (American Institute of Certified Planners) certified in urban and regional planning or obtainable within one (1) year
from hire date.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Urban and Regional Planning, Engineering,. Public Policy/Administration, Business Administration or
a directly related field AND six (6) years of relevant experience, including two (2) years senior level supervisory or
management experience;

Knowledge, Skills, and Abi titles:
Knowledge of:
• Methods and practices of long range, advanced, comprehensive, urban and regional planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Modern advanced methods of planning research, data collection and analysis.
• Principles and techniques of planning.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Complex mathematical and analytical methods as used in planning.
• Strategic planning techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Legislative processes.
• Community issues.
• Public administration and governmental agencies.
• Sources of information, current literature, and recent developments.
• Administrative and related business principles.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases, statistical packages, project scheduling

and management, presentation/graphics and related software applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

-

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JB TITLE: Comprehensivo Long Range Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 26592 ELSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 04/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)
Skill in:
• Selecting, supervising, training, motivating and evaluating interdisciplinary professional employees.
• Developing comprehensive and long-range comprehensive plans in development of innovative solutions.
• Economic analysis, including cost/benefit and marginal analysis.
• Program planning, development and implementation.
• Statistical analysis and policy research.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Analyzing and evaluating data, policies and technical issues.
• Setting up systems for conducting analysis and compiling reports.
• Coordinating, developing and making presentations.
• Coordinating work of others.
• Conducting interviews and group meetings.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage a team of experienced interdisciplinary professionals.
• Work in open, participatory, public forums of diverse opinions and values, educated debates and complex issues.
• Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of subordinates.
• Initiate and develop projects and programs.
• Apply knowledge to data, policy, and process analysis.
• Perform complex planning, research and analysis.
• Reach sound conclusions and make recommendations.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Formulate broad perspectives.
• Interpret planning and program objectives to groups and public.
• Bring together several viewpoints into a balanced position.
• Compile data and write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Maintain appropriate records.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5—20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, occasional indoor/outdoor activities, climbing stairs, bending,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the
essential functions.

rnis job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

— — -, — r n <

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Long Range Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 26XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Directs development and administration of the Comprehensive Plan for the County’s physical development. Developslong-term plans and policies and formulates recommendations related to capital improvement programs, Countyordinances, and development regulations in the County’s unincorporated areas, including the extraterritorial jurisdiction
(ETJ) of municipalities. Directs the development of long range planning elements including transportation, land use,parks and open spaces, storm water management and water quality, and natural resources.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior management/Middle Management job family. Manages both professionalstaff and hired consultants working on projects related to the County’s Comprehensive Plan. Coordinates with otherimplementing agencies and County departments, including the Commissioners Court and appointed citizen advisors.This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Supervises program personnel, including assigning and reviewing work and overseeing department and employeegoals and their implementation. Recommends hiring, training, terminating, and disciplining of employees asnecessary.

• Directs current and long-range planning projects related to transportation, land development regulations, theComprehensive Plan, the development of new County ordinances, and legislative initiatives.

• Coordinates economic development as it relates to planning issues.

• Reviews reports, makes recommendations on policy change requests and presents staff analysis andrecommendations at County meetings.

• Answers questions regarding state statutes and County codes, providing supporting materials such as copies,maps, and letters as required.

• Prepares plans in accordance with state law, including timetables, County resolutions, public notices, service plans,
analysis and recommendations, ordinances, and exhibits.

• Manages the compilation of demographic, economic and environmental data and makes projections and estimates.

• Maintains up-to-date knowledge of relevant laws and ordinances, including reading and responding tocorrespondence and technical reports. Prepares reports when necessary.

• Prepares and manages portions of annual departmental budget.

• Works with outside consultants to provide the information needed to conduct analysis and prepare reports.

• Directs the implementation elements of, and updates to the Comprehensive Plan including: the Transportation Plan;
Parks and Open Space Plan and Land Use Plan.

• Directs and manages special planning projects.

--

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Long Range Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 26XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10101/12

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: (Cont.)

• Provides necessary information and reports to various other organizations, including the Commissioners Court and
its subcommittee, advisory committees, technical committees and community groups.

• Oversees community development initiatives, including citizen outreach, communication plans, regional planning
forums, and inter-agency task forces.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Urban and Regional Planning, Engineering, Public Policy/Administration, Business Administration
or a directly related field AND seven (7) years increasingly responsible experience with transportation planning,
strategic planning, policy analysis, and program development, including two (2) years senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience, that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
AICP (American Institute of Certified Planners) certified in urban and regional planning or obtainable within one (1) year
from hire date.

Preferred:
Master’s degree in Urban and Regional Planning, Engineering, Public Policy/Administration, Business Administration or
a directly related field AND six (6) years of relevant experience, including two (2) years senior level supervisory or
management experience;

Knowledge, Skills,, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Methods and practices of long range, advanced, comprehensive, urban and regional planning.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Modern advanced methods of planning research, data collection and analysis.
• Principles and techniques of planning.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Complex mathematical and analytical methods as used in planning.
• Strategic planning techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• Legislative processes.
• Community issues.
• Public administration and governmental agencies.
• Sources of information, current literature, and recent developments.
• Administrative and related business principles.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases, statistical packages, project scheduling

and management, presentation/graphics and related software applications.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Long Range Planning Manager

JOB CODE: 26XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 26 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Skill in:
• Selecting, supervising, training, motivating and evaluating interdisciplinary professional employees.
• Developing comprehensive and long-range comprehensive plans in development of innovative solutions.
• Economic analysis, including cost/benefit and marginal analysis.
• Program planning, development and implementation.
• Statistical analysis and policy research.
• Leadership, collaboration and negotiation techniques.
• Problem solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Analyzing and evaluating data, policies and technical issues.
• Setting up systems for conducting analysis and compiling reports.
• Coordinating, developing and making presentations.
• Coordinating work of others.
• Conducting interviews and group meetings.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage a team of experienced interdisciplinary professionals.
• Work in open, participatory, public forums of diverse opinions and values, educated debates and complex issues.
• Coordinate, plan and prioritize programs, projects and activities.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of subordinates.
• Initiate and develop projects and programs.
• Apply knowledge to data, policy, and process analysis.
• Perform complex planning, research and analysis.
• Reach sound conclusions and make recommendations.
• Manage time well and perform multiple tasks, and organize diverse activities.
• Formulate broad perspectives.
• Interpret planning and program objectives to groups and public.
• Bring together several viewpoints into a balanced position.
• Compile data and write clear and comprehensive reports.
• Maintain appropriate records.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with departmental clientele, representatives of outside

agencies, other County employees and officials, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 5—20 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, Sifting, repetitive motion, reaching, occasional indoor/outdoor activities, climbing stairs, bending,
stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the
essential functions.

[1hjs job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary

[ped on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Right of Way Program Manager

JOB CODE: 25518 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

JOB SUMMARY:

Cv rsees and directs the planning, budgeting, implementation, coordination, administration, and operation of actJytjL
y tems, projects, staffing, and programs of real estate-related functions — to include negotiation, consufting
re ommendations regarding leases, contracts, liability, purchases and sales of real property — for the Countyt-
de artment. Plans, manages, and supports acquisition of conservation and park land, right-of-way for maintenance arvJ
co struction of infrastructure and public works projects, property sales, and condemnation via eminent domain. oi4es

ining and management for right of way transactions. Develops right of way acquisition sGhedules and-bu4ge4e-
P-c iides land acquisition information and support to numerous programs.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

Th s is the second in a series of two right of way related job classifications within the Professional—Support jGb—fam-.
Th s classification is distinguished from other classifications, requiring that requires both-the--technical knowledge and
m nagerial skills. This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develop, budget, implement, oversee, administer and evaluate codes, specifications, strategic plans, policies and
procedures for countywide programs, projects and issues related to right-of-way and overall real estate.

• Manage complex and complicated real estate transactions to ensure they are completed timely, in compliance with
all legal requirements, and minimize liability for the County.

• Serve as liaison between County personnel and property owners, consultants, attorneys, and/or developers.
Interface with elected officials, senior management, departments, divisions, and outside agencies or firms involving
County real estate projects, programs, and/or transactions.

Review, approve, make presentations and recommend action to elected officials and senior management on
purchase agreements, property sales, counter-offers, and cash-flow proiections for real estate programs.

• Coordinate and direct real estate staff in preparation and review of appraisals, technical reports, contracts, leases,
purchases, sales, and documentation activities to ensure accurate and appropriate work production. Determine fair
market value of real property; analyze and evaluate real estate appraisals for accuracy and soundness.

— Coordinate and complete programs and projects with County and private sector engineers, attorneys, property
owners, and outside developers, to ensure execution of best practices and limited liability for the County.

— Negotiate on behalf of the County with property owners, private attorneys, agencies, company officials, and
developers on price, terms, and contract provisions in complicated and complex real estate transactions.

• Represent the County and department at business meetings, conferences, seminars, panels, and committees.
• Prepare real estate and right-of-way reports, contracts, legal documents, correspondence, consultant agreements,

written analysis, negotiations and counter-offers. Review, edit and approve real estate contracts and documents.
• Prepare annual budget, cash flow, and work plan. Assist in the development of long-range County plans for related

programs and projects. Develop, review and recommend budget expenditures for Coun projects.

Coordinate all departmental actions for real estate agreements and contracts related to leases, property purchases
and sales, licenses, and condemnation proceedings to ensure compliance with County, legal, and regulajy
guidelines. Provide guidance, review, analysis, and real estate legal and property development insight to County
Attorney for support in condemnation cases.

Provide land acquisition or disposition support, information, and guidelines to environmental professionals.
transportation planners, engineers. County departments, and other agencies. Develop standard protocol for
coordinating title curative issues, project analysis, and work-flow processes.

Suoervise suooort staff. evaluate staff job oerformance. Coordinate. orioritize. schedule & assian resources:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:

TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

Preferred:
Gucent-State of Texas Real Estate Lic

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal and State real estate legal procedures, laws, and techniques for the acquisition of property.
• Acquisition of right-of-way under the threat of condemnation; applicable Federal and State laws, rules, regulations

and guidelines related to real estate and right-of-way acquisition policies, procedures, processes, and requirements.

JOB TITLE: Right of Way Program Manager

JOB CODE: 25518 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

authorize staff productive and non-productive work hours; orient and train staff.

. Perform other job-related duties as appropriate or assigned.

.— Manages, develops, implements, oversees, and administers projects, budgets, codes, specifications, stcategio
p1ans, policies and procedures for countywide programs, projects and issues. Develops and implements tp
for evaluating program activities. Identifies the need to revise program areas.

.— Supervises support staff, evaluates staff job performance and coordinates, prioritizes, schedules and assignm-et€authorizes staff productive and non productive work hours. Orients and trains staff.

.— Evaluates, analyzes, and provides written recommendations regarding right of-way transactions.

.— Represents the department at business meetings, conferences, seminars, panels and committees-i
.— Acts as liaison on right of way matters. Performs County, interlocal and code enforcement coordination. AdvisesCounty staff, citizens and other agencies and consultants on matters relevant to County programs and projects.Resolvos problems.

— Prepares right-of way reports, contracts, legal documents, correspondence, consultant agreements, written analys4s-
negotiations and counter offers. Reviews, edits and approves real estate contracts and documents.

.— Prepares annual budget, cash flow, and work plan. Assists in the development of long range County plan for related
programs and projects. Develops, reviews and recommends budget expenditures for County projeets-

.— Provides guidance, review, analysis, and real estate legal insight to County Attorney for support in condemnatioR
oases.

.— Provides land acquisition support, information, and guides to transportation planners, —engineers, County
departments, and other agencies.

• Performs other job related duties as assigned.

Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Finance, Real Estate or Public Administration or a directly related field
apjlicable to real estate practices AND five (5) years experience in complex real estate-related activWes—acquisition. oc
cei44e4 including three (3) years for a government, and oetwo (42) years of 44—4o—senior level supervisory or
management experience;

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Estate licensure by the Texas Real Estate Commission.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Right of Way Program Manager

JOB CODE: 25518 FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/09

Phases of right of way acquisition process.
State right of way acquisition policies and procedures.

.— State and Federal acquisition requirements.
• Eminent Domain laws and appraisal and development land planning theorie&y, principles, practices, and technj.
.— Land planning and appraisal techniques and guidelines.
• Real estate markets, research work, eminent domain procedures, deed and tract restrictions, easements, property

descriptions, survey field notes and title curative procedures.
• Standard theory, principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, nLocal, and County standard legal practices and principles for public purchase of conservationpreserve land.-applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelles.
• Budget preparation and office management.
• I Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and a variety ofother software-paGkae.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervisory/management issues, including planning, motivating and managing teams.
• Analyzing and interpreting real estate valuation, appraisal theory and title issues.
• Advanced negotiation techniques and styles; particularly as related to Rreal estate negotiationsnd eminent domain

law..
• Interacting with all levels of management, employees, multiple outside agencies, and outside contractors.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Accomplished Rublic speaking and effective content delivery.
• BothAccurate, precise, persuasive, and advanced verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage time well, perform and prioritize multiple tasks, organize and plan diverse activities, and manage regular

interruptions.
• Meet deadlines and produce projects in a timely manner while working on several projects at oncesimultaneously.
• Work as a team member and leader within a highly diverse organization.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandumsL-oc reports, and complex contracts.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, engineers,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to driving,
standing, walking, carrying, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching,
crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all duties
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Real Estate Division Manager

JOB CODE: 25XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Oversees and directs the planning, budgeting, implementation, coordination, administration, and operation of activities,
systems, projects, staffing, and programs of real estate-related functions — to include negotiation, consulting, and
recommendations regarding leases, contracts, liability, purchases and sales of real property — for the County anddepartment. Plans, manages, and supports acquisition of conservation and park land, right-of-way for maintenance
and construction of infrastructure and public works projects, property sales, and condemnation via eminent domain.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This classification is distinguished from other classifications, requiring both technical knowledge and managerial skills.
This classification may require a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Develop, budget, implement, oversee, administer and evaluate codes, specifications, strategic plans, policies and
procedures for countywide programs, projects and issues related to right-of-way and overall real estate.

• Manage complex and complicated real estate transactions to ensure they are completed timely, in compliance with
all legal requirements, and minimize liability for the County.

• Serve as liaison between County personnel and property owners, consultants, attorneys, and/or developers.
Interface with elected officials, senior management, departments, divisions, and outside agencies or firms involving
County real estate projects, programs, and/or transactions.

• Review, approve, make presentations and recommend action to elected officials and senior management on
purchase agreements, property sales, counter-offers, and cash-flow projections for real estate programs.

• Coordinate and direct real estate staff in preparation and review of appraisals, technical reports, contracts, leases,
purchases, sales, and documentation activities to ensure accurate and appropriate work production. Determine fair
market value of real property; analyze and evaluate real estate appraisals for accuracy and soundness.

• Coordinate and complete programs and projects with County and private sector engineers, attorneys, property
owners, and outside developers, to ensure execution of best practices and limited liability for the County.

• Negotiate on behalf of the County with property owners, private attorneys, agencies, company officials, and
developers on price, terms, and contract provisions in complicated and complex real estate transactions.

• Represent the County and department at business meetings, conferences, seminars, panels, and committees.
• Prepare real estate and right-of-way reports, contracts, legal documents, correspondence, consultant agreements,

written analysis, negotiations and counter-offers. Review, edit and approve real estate contracts and documents.
• Prepare annual budget, cash flow, and work plan. Assist in the development of long-range County plans for related

programs and projects. Develop, review and recommend budget expenditures for County projects.

• Coordinate all departmental actions for real estate agreements and contracts related to leases, property purchases
and sales, licenses, and condemnation proceedings to ensure compliance with County, legal, and regulatory
guidelines. Provide guidance, review, analysis, and real estate legal and property development insight to County
Attorney for support in condemnation cases.

• Provide land acquisition or disposition support, information, and guidelines to environmental professionals,
transportation planners, engineers, County departments, and other agencies. Develop standard protocol for
coordinating title curative issues, project analysis, and work-flow processes.

• Supervise support staff, evaluate staff job performance. Coordinate, prioritize, schedule & assign resources;
authorize staff productive and non-productive work hours; orient and train staff.

• Perform other job-related duties as appropriate or assigned.
r-.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Real Estate Division Manager

JOB CODE: 25XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration, Finance, Real Estate or Public Administration or a directly related field
applicable to real estate practices AND five (5) years experience in complex real estate-related activities, including
three (3) years for a government, and two (2) years of senior level supervisory or management experience;
OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:
Real Estate licensure by the Texas Real Estate Commission.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS: (Cont.)

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Federal and State real estate legal procedures, laws, and techniques for the acquisition of property.
• Acquisition of right-of-way under the threat of condemnation; applicable Federal and State laws, rules, regulations

and guidelines related to real estate and right-of-way acquisition policies, procedures, processes, and requirements.
• Eminent Domain laws and appraisal and development land planning theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Real estate markets, research work, eminent domain procedures, deed and tract restrictions, easements, property

descriptions, survey field notes and title curative procedures.
• Standard theory, principles, practices and techniques.
• Federal, State, and Local standard legal practices and principles for public purchase of conservation preserve land..
• Budget preparation and office management.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, spreadsheets, databases and other software.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Supervisory/management issues, including planning, motivating and managing teams.
• Analyzing and interpreting real estate valuation, appraisal theory and title issues.
• Advanced negotiation techniques and styles; particularly as related to real and eminent domain law..
• Interacting with all levels of management, employees, multiple outside agencies, and outside contractors.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Accomplished public speaking and effective content delivery.
• Accurate, precise, persuasive, and advanced verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Manage time well, perform and prioritize multiple tasks, organize and plan diverse activities, and manage regular

interruptions.
• Meet deadlines and produce projects in a timely manner while working on several projects simultaneously.
• Work as a team member and leader within a highly diverse organization.
• Research, compile, analyze, interpret and prepare a variety of memorandums, reports, and complex contracts.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, engineers,

representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Real Estate Division Manager

JOB CODE: 25XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 25 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 20-25 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
driving, standing, walking, carrying, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling,
crouching, crawling, pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions.

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all diii5j
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Assistant Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

JOB SUMMARY:

Under the direction and Professional Engineer license of the Public Works Director, assists in planning, organizing,
reviewing and evaluating activities, functions and operations of the Capital Improvements Program CIP), OR the Road
and Bridge Maintenance (RM) and Traffic Program.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

This is a job classification within the Senior Management/Middle Management job family. This classification may require
a flexible work schedule in order to meet the needs of the department.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

• Uses a strategic planning process in support of the annual work plan to organize, review and evaluate the activities,
functions and operations of the assigned Program, including project management, survey and construction
inspection, and leadership to an interdisciplinary group of professional level managers, technical and administrative
staff for the assigned Program.

• Directs, develops and monitors policies and operating procedures directly related to program area. Implements,
communicates and effectively uses resources and departments, agencies and organizations to accomplish goals and
objectives of the department and division. Responsible for development of processes and maintaining day-to-day
operations for budget and fiscal operations, capital and human resources. Develops and deploys management
systems that optimize resource utilization.

• Determines staffing requirements and makes recommendations for hiring accordingly.

• Coordinates and works closely with officials, department heads, multiple outside suppliers, other County staff and
outside agencies. May negotiate with private professional consultant firms for outsourcing work.

• Develops, manages and controls division’s work programs, schedules, budgets and personnel. Plans future
budgetary requirements for the Program. Purchases, monitors and maintains fixed assets common to the Program.
Evaluates and reports on Program performance. Prepares process analyses and uses statistical process controls to
continually improve quality of processes and output.

• Monitors and oversees that services delivered are in compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
applicable standards and procedures established by the State, Commissioners Court and the department.

• Develops and monitors policies and operating procedures related to the Program. Implements, communicates and
effectively utilizes department policies and procedures. Coordinates with other division directors, departments,
agencies and organizations to accomplish division/department goals and objectives.

• Negotiates and oversees service contracts and supplemental agreements and services assuring financial integrity.

• Analyzes division program initiatives, determines strategies, prioritizes implementation and ensures high quality delivery
through appropriate tracking and feedback processes. Defines, prioritizes, schedules and monitors multiple operations
projects, developing and maintaining comprehensive project plans/schedules. Reviews and analyzes annual contract
deliverables. Develops project resource strategies, allocating budget, staff, and tools necessary for implementation of
projects. Reports metrics and service deliverables to ensure quality and satisfaction.

• Supervises professional, technical and administrative support staff, evaluates staff job performance. Coordinates
schedules and assignments. Authorizes staff productive and non-productive work hours. Confers with and advises
staff on problems related to the design, operation, interpretation and compliance of systems.

• Analyzes and responds to difficult inquires, grievances and complaints.

-. i2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Assistant Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES (Cont.)

• Serves as liaison with State and Federal authorities and other Local organizations to ensure coordination. Serves as
key liaison between TNR Assistant Director, County Executive, Commissioners Court and operations staff. Works
with peers from across the County on common issues. Develops relationships with professional organizations, peer
groups and industry trade groups to stay current on practices.

• Represents the County by attending meetings, community meetings, seminars, conferences and professional
association meetings. Participates in private organizations and participates serves on related committees.

• Performs other job-related duties as assigned.

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:

Education and Experience:
Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering AND seven (7) years of directly related, increasingly responsible senior level
management experience, including four (4) years of mid- to senior level supervisory/management or project
management experience.

OR,

Any combination of education and experience that has been achieved and is equivalent to the stated education and
experience and required knowledge, skills, and abilities sufficient to successfully perform the duties and responsibilities
of this job.

Licenses, Registrations, Certifications, or Special Requirements:
Incumbents to CIP position must be licensed to practice as a Professional Engineer (P.E.) in the State of Texas issued
by the Texas Board of Professional Engineers. If licensed in another state, must acquire license reciprocity in the State of
Texas within six (6) months of date of hire.
Valid Texas Driver’s License.

Preferred:

Master’s degree in Civil engineering or a directly related field.

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities:
Knowledge of:
• Standard management theory, principles, practices, and techniques.
• Federal, State, Local and County applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
• State, Federal, County and Local regulatory or administrative requirements and practices.
• Principles and practices, programs, systems, methods and techniques of municipal public works, including planning,

design, construction, operation and maintenance.
• Technical, legal, financial and public relation problems involved in the conduct of a municipal public works program.
• Principles of project management, including scheduling, estimating, contracts and budgeting.
• Theory, principles, practices and methods of state and local public engineering, construction, street maintenance

and contract administration.
• Budgetary and fiscal process.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Online computer searches.
• Computer equipment to include word processing, windows, spreadsheets, databases and a variety of software

packages.
• Business letter writing, grammar and punctuation, and report preparation.

Skill in:
• Improving seamless customer service delivery.
• Building and maintaining strong relationships with the community, employees and other agencies.

— - / ii

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Assistant Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSASTATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

Education and Experience: (Cont.)
Skill in: (Cont.)
• Analyzing and evaluating complex data and reports.
• Contract compliance and dispute resolution.
• Supervisory principles, practices and techniques.
• Explaining complicated technical problems in simple non-technical language.
• Problem-solving and technical decision-making for developing effective solutions.
• Work design, time management, facilitation and managing budgets.
• Resolving leadership/management issues, including planning and managing teams.
• Planning and coordinating work activities.
• Researching, analyzing, compiling, preparing and presenting technical data/information and reports.
• Problem-solving and decision-making.
• Public speaking and content delivery.
• Conflict resolution and community relations.
• Both verbal and written communication.

Ability to:
• Work independently or as a team member within a diverse organization.
• Plan, organize, prioritize needs, develop and implement plans of action, and effectively direct programs.
• Coach, mentor and motivate staff.
• Perform technical research, calculations and computations, and prepare plans and reports.
• Convey complex ideas and concepts verbally and in writing.
• Plan, assign, supervise, train and review the work of professional, technical and support staff members.
• Read and understand basic legal documents.
• Interpret plans, specifications, standards, policies, procedures and regulatory codes.
• Exercise sound judgment and make decisions even where there is uncertainty.
• Manage time well, work on a wide variety of tasks simultaneously, organize diverse activities, and produce timely

and tangible results
• Anticipate future requirements, and research and analyze emerging programs.
• Conduct and prepare feasibility studies.
• Develop proposals including estimates for resource usage.
• Respond to inquiries from customers, regulatory agencies, or members of the professional community.
• Perform in a fast-paced and stressful environment while maintaining a professional manner.
• Make appropriate and effective public presentations.
• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with County employees and officials, developers, engineers,

contractors, representatives of outside agencies, and the general public.

WORK ENVIRONMENT AND PHYSICAL DEMANDS:

Physical requirements include the ability to lift/carry up to 10-60 pounds occasionally, visual acuity, speech and hearing,
hand and eye coordination and manual dexterity necessary to operate a computer and office equipment. Subject to
standing, walking, sitting, repetitive motion, reaching, climbing stairs, bending, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling,
pushing, pulling, balancing, client/customer contact, squatting to perform the essential functions. Subject to contact with
noise, vibration, fumes, foul odor, dirt, dust, mist, gases, and poor ventilation, parts, and tools or machinery. Requires use
of protective devices such as masks, goggles, and gloves. Requires fieldwork, and exposure to traffic, public work
development sites, construction site hazards, climbing and walking and traveling over rough, uneven, mud, rocky, high
grass terrain, and indoors/outdoors in all types of weather (excessive heat and cold).

a

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY JOB DESCRIPTION

JOB TITLE: Assistant Public Works Director

JOB CODE: 29XXX FLSA STATUS: Exempt
PAY GRADE: 29 LAST REVISED: 10/01/12

This job description is intended to be generic in nature. It is not necessarily an exhaustive list of all düj1
and responsibilities. The essential duties, functions and responsibilities and overtime eligibility may vary
based on the specific tasks assigned to the position.

(1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 12



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 15



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 16



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 17



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: John Carr, 854-4772 
Dept. Head: Roger EI Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director, FMD, 854-4579 
County Executive: Leslie Browder, Planning and Budget, 854-9106 
Sponsoring Court Members: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on license agreement to use the "Old 
County Jail" in the Heman Marion Sweatt Courthouse to shoot a student film 
during the period of September 28-30, 2012. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The Facilities Management Department (FMD) received a request from Brett 
Hill to shoot scenes for a film he is directing and producing in coordination 
with the Austin School of Film. The tentative title for the film is "Kisses From 
the Cactus Man". FMD and Ms. Bonner with the County Attorney's office 
collaborated on the appropriate license which is at Exhibit One. Mr. Hill has 
signed the license agreement, provided the required proof of insurance 
coverage and provided a check in the amount of $300 to cover the three 
days of access to the Old County Jail. The license agreement will provide 
for access to set up for the film shoot on Friday, September 28th after 
business hours, and then all day on September 29 and 30 as needed to 
complete the film shoot. Mr. Hill has also agreed to hire off duty FMD 
security guards or off duty Sheriff's deputies to be with his crew during the 
entire time they are in the facility. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Facilities Management Department recommends approval of the license 
agreement which will allow the film crew to use the vacant 6th and ]'h floors 
of the HMS Courthouse. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
Ms. Peg Leidtke, Director of Court Management with the Civil District Courts 
is aware of the requested use and concurs with the recommendation to 
approve the license agreement. There are no financial or legal issues that 
would impact approval of this license agreement. 

II 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 18



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: John Carr, 854-4772 
Dept. Head: Roger EI Khoury, M.S., P.E., Director, FMD, 854-4579 
County Executive: Leslie Browder, Planning and Budget, 854-9106 
Sponsoring Court Members: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive an update, and consider and take appropriate action regarding the 
700 Lavaca Building cafeteria. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

This agenda item provides follow-up information to Agenda Item #21 from 
the August 21,2012 Voting Session. As requested by the Commissioners 
Court, a panel of County employees and a representative of Sentinel Real 
Estate, as well as Dietician Margaret Gumto conducted a taste test of 
entrees, side dishes and desserts from the two candidate vendors, Hoover's 
Cooking and Luby's Cafeteria. As requested, each restaurant brought three 
entrees, three side dishes and two desserts as samples of their menu items. 
Although both Hoovers's and Luby's offer healthy and vegetarian items, they 
were instructed to bring dishes that would be most appealing to all 
participants. The tabulated results of this blind taste test (vendors items 
were not identified to the tasters) are in Attachment Six. The tasting results 
show an average overall preference from the tasting panel for Luby's 
Cafeteria for all three categories; entrees, side dishes and desserts. 

Dietician Margaret Gumto thought it would be best to discuss specific menu 
items after the cafeteria operator was selected. She thought both 
restaurants could provide a healthier menu for County employees. Both 
Hoover's and Luby's are very enthusiastic about the 700 Lavaca cafeteria 
opportunity and either is capable of providing tasty, healthy and economical 
menu options for breakfast and lunch. 

In June 2012, Sentinel Real Estate (Sentinel) initiated research of central 
area restaurants that might be prospects to operate the new cafeteria based 
upon location, pricing, type of food and ability to transport food to the 
location. When vendors indicated interest, Sentinel would then send out an 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 19



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25,2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Danny Hobby/854-4416 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Danny Hobby 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON HOLDOVER AND 
AMENDMENT FOUR TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY OF AUSTIN 
AND TRAVIS COUNTY FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The purpose of the FY 2009 EMS Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 
("Agreement") is to provide for emergency medical services and transport 
medical services to Suburban Travis County (the county's geographic area 
outside the City of Austin) through the use of City staff, City-owned 
equipment, County provided vehicles and stations, and other County
owned assets. 

The purpose for Holdover and Amendment Four is to extend coverage, 
commencing October 1, 2012 for a term of 120 days and terminable on 
January 28, 2013, subject to the amendments described in this Holdover 
and Amendment Four (see attached Holdover and Amendment Four 
document). During the Holdover term, the Agreement remains in full force 
and effect. 

Emergency Services staff and staff with City of Austin EMS are currently 
negotiating the terms of a new interlocal agreement for the delivery of 
emergency medical services, and anticipate bringing a new interlocal to 
Commissioners Court before the end of the 120 day term. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 20



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Pete Baldwin/974-0472 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Danny Hobby,County Executive 
Emergency Services 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and Take Appropriate Action on the 
Mutual Agreement to Terminate the 1994 Mutual Aid Agreement between 
Travis County and the City of Austin. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: On 
August 21, 2012, the Commissioners Court approved a motion to terminate 
the 2006 Capital Area Planning Council of Governments (CAPCOG) Mutual 
Aid Agreement, an Interlocal Agreement for mutual aid with the Lower 
Colorado Authority and the mutual aid agreements signed between 1992 
and 1994 with various cities and counties. Letters and a copy of the 
resolution have been sent to the participants in the CAPCOG Mutual Aid 
Agreement notifying them of Travis County's termination of participation in 
that agreement. This is the first Mutual Agreement that has been returned 
for signature for the Mutual Termination of a mutual aid agreement signed 
in 1994 with the City of Austin. The reason for the original agenda item 
was that all the existing mutual aid agreements contained language that did 
not comply with existing law and caused considerable issues with 
requesting reimbursements under the Fire Mitigation Assistance Grants for 
the Labor Day Fires. It was recommended and approved to terminate the 
existing mutual aid agreements and respond or request assistance under 
the State Mutual Aid Plan. Staff expects more mutual termination 
agreements to follow over the next several weeks and months. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Emergency Services and the Office of 
Emergency Management recommend approval of the Mutual Agreement to 
Terminate the 1994 Mutual Aid Agreement between Travis County and the 
City of Austin. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 21



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 
ID#7132 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM (854-1181), 
Marvin Brice, CPPB (854-9765) 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Interlocal Agreement No. 4400001128 for 
Texas Agrilife Extension Service to provide wildlife damage management 
services. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The contract pays for a full-time wildlife biologist to respond to 
complaints about damage caused by wildlife and to remedy the problem 
by public education, wildlife behavior modification and, if necessary, 
removal. 

 Since 2005, Texas AgriLife Extension Service has provided services for 
wildlife damage management in Travis County. The goals of the 
program are to reduce threats to property, health and safety caused by 
coyotes and other wildlife. Texas AgriLife Extension Service drafted this 
agreement and the agency is currently routing it for signature.  

 Contract Expenditures: Not Applicable 

 Contract-Related Information:  
Award Amount: $52,600    
Contract Type: Interlocal Agreement   
Contract Period: September 1, 2012 – August 31, 2013 

 Contract Modification Information: Not Applicable 

 Solicitation-Related Information: Not Applicable 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 22



 
ID#7132 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Special Contract Considerations:  Not Applicable 
 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Carts:  
  Cost Center:  
  Comments: A shopping cart to encumber funds will be created in 

October after the FY2013 budget is loaded in SAP 
 
 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CONTRACT NO. 13-WS-01 
 
 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
FOR WILDLIFE DAMAGE MANAGEMENT 

 
This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (Agreement) is entered into by and between Travis County, Texas, 
a political subdivision of the State of Texas (Receiving Agency) and the Texas AgriLife Extension Service 
- Wildlife Services (Performing Agency), pursuant to the authority granted and in compliance with the 
provisions of "The Interlocal Cooperation Act," Sec. 791.001, et seq., TEX. GOV. CODE ANN. (Vernon 
Supp. 2000). 
 

ARTICLE 1. STATEMENT OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED 
 
1.0 STATEMENT OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED 
 
1.01. PROJECT. In strict conformance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the 
 Performing Agency shall conduct an operational wildlife damage management (WDM) program 
 for the protection of facilities, structures, and the property from damage caused by wildlife and for 
 the protection of human health and safety from wildlife-related diseases in the County of Travis 
 and the City of Austin (Project). 
 
1.02. WORK PLAN. The Project shall strictly conform to the work plan contained in the proposal 
 submitted by the Performing Agency, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment A and 
 incorporated herein for all purposes by this reference. 
 
1.03.  PROGRESS REPORTS. During the term of the Agreement, the Performing Agency shall 
 submit to the Receiving Agency quarterly Project management information reports, with the first 
 report being due three (3) months after the effective date of the Agreement, and subsequent reports 
 submitted every three (3) months thereafter throughout the term(s) of the Agreement. 
 
1.04.  FINAL REPORT. The Performing Agency shall submit to the Receiving Agency a final report 
 containing a summary of the work performed during the Initial Term under this Agreement on or 
 before October 1, 2013. If subsequent Renewal Term(s) are approved by the Parties, final reports 
 related to each term shall be submitted each October 1 thereafter. 
 
1.05.  LICENSES. The Performing Agency shall be solely and entirely responsible for procuring all 
 appropriate licenses and permits which may be required by any competent authority for the 
 undertaking or completion of the work or services to be performed hereunder by the Performing 
 Agency, including the procurement of releases, waivers and other agreements required for access 
 to public and/or private property as necessary to carry out the services and activities set forth in 
 this Agreement. 
 

II. CALCULATION OF REIMBURSABLE COSTS. 
 
2.0 BUDGET 
 
 (a)  The Receiving Agency will reimburse the Performing Agency for allowable expenses 
  incurred by the Performing Agency in accordance with the "Budget" attached hereto and 
  incorporated herein as Attachment B. 
 
 (b)  Fiscal Year Limitation. The Parties understand and agree that Receiving Agency's fiscal 
  year runs from October 1 of each year through September 30 of the following year, and that 
  Receiving Agency funding obligations can ONLY be incurred for the portion of any 
  Agreement Term corresponding to a time period included in the approved budget for any 
  one Fiscal Year. As a result, of the total Agreement amount, Performing Agency cannot 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



  invoice, and will not be paid for expenditures during the following designated periods 
  which are greater than the following amounts: 
 
   (i) September 1, 2012 - September 30, 2012 1/12 total contract amount 
    $ 4,383.00 
 
  (ii) October 1, 2012 - August 31, 2013 11/12 total contract amount 
    $48,217.00 
 
 (c)  Performing Agency understands and agrees that funds set out in 2.01(b)(ii) are contingent 
  upon approval of such funding for the Agreement by the Commissioners Court in the 
  budget process related to the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2012, and that the amount 
  set forth under that subsection may be decreased or eliminated by the Commissioners Court 
  during that budget process without any liability of Receiving Agency. This Section 2.01(c) 
  shall apply to any future Agreement Term(s) within the Fiscal Year dates applicable to that 
  Agreement Term. In no event shall any provision of this Agreement or any Agreement 
  subject to this Agreement be interpreted to obligate the Receiving Agency beyond the funds 
  approved by the Commissioners Court for any Fiscal Year/budget period. 
 
2.02.  VARIANCE. The Receiving Agency may allow budget flexibility within categories to the extent 
 that the resulting totals do not exceed 10% of the budgeted amount. Upon written request and 
 justification by the Performing Agency, the Receiving Agency may allow, upon written 
 memorandum to the File, budget flexibility within categories when the resulting totals exceed 10% 
 of the budgeted amount. Changes made under this Section 2.02 that exceed 10% of the budgeted 
 amount shall be effective only upon receipt by the Performing Agency of such memorandum to 
 the File signed by the Receiving Agency's designated representative who, for purposes of this 
 Section 2.02, shall be Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health and Human 
 Services and Veterans Service (County Executive). 
 
2.03.  TRAVEL. Travel shall be reimbursable under this Agreement only if "Travel" is an authorized 
 budget category in Attachment B. If travel is included in Attachment B, it shall be reimbursed at 
 the approved State of Texas employee rate as established by the State of Texas. 
 
2.04.  PURCHASES. The Performing Agency shall not purchase any equipment and/or computer 
 software as a reimbursable budget item without prior written approval from Receiving Agency as 
 indicated by written document signed by County Executive and Cyd Grimes, Travis County 
 Purchasing Agent (Purchasing Agent). Equipment is defined as tangible personal property having 
 a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more per unit. Title to any 
 equipment so purchased shall be retained by the Performing Agency at the end of the Agreement. 
 

III. CONTRACT AMOUNT. 
 
3.01.  CONSIDERATION. For and in consideration of the Performing Agency's satisfactory 
 performance under this Agreement, the Receiving Agency shall pay to the Performing Agency a 
 total amount during the Initial Term not to exceed $52,600.00, in accordance with the Budget 
 referenced above. 
 

IV. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. 
 
4.01  PAYMENT. Payment shall be made by the Receiving Agency from proper appropriation items 
 or accounts which it normally uses for like expenditures (current revenue funds), by check payable 
 to the Performing Agency. Performing Agency shall provide Receiving Agency with an invoice 
 reflecting expenditures related to the Budget included in this Agreement within fifteen days of 
 each month of the Agreement term. Receiving Agency will make payment to Performing Agency 
 within thirty days of receipt of a complete and correct invoice. 
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4.02  RETAINAGE. To ensure full performance by the Performing Agency, final payment in an 
 amount equal to five percent of the total consideration may be withheld until receipt and approval 
 of all services and/or other deliverables required herein. 
 
4.03  BOOKS AND RECORDS; AUDIT. Charges for service, statements, invoices, and other 
 required documentation to evidence and properly support the requests for payment shall be 
 maintained by the Performing Agency for a period of three years, or until all evaluations, audits 
 and other reviews have been completed and all questions or issues (including litigation) arising 
 from those evaluations, audits and reviews are resolved, whichever occurs later, and delivered to 
 the Receiving Agency on request. The Receiving Agency reserves the right to audit any 
 Performing Agency account related to the Project and to verify any expense item submitted for 
 reimbursement by the Performing Agency. In the event the Receiving Agency determines that any 
 sum of money which has been paid by the Receiving Agency (1) has resulted in overpayment to 
 the Performing Agency, or (2) has not been spent strictly in accordance with the terms of this 
 Agreement, upon written request of the Receiving Agency, the Performing Agency agrees to 
 reimburse the Receiving Agency within twenty working days after such written request for 
 reimbursement. This Section 4.03 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 
4.05  CREDIT. Payments received by the Performing Agency shall be credited to the appropriate 
 appropriation items or accounts. 
 
4.06  LIMITATION. The Receiving Agency shall not be liable to the Performing Agency for costs 
 incurred by the Performing Agency before the commencement of this Agreement or after the 
 termination of the Agreement. 
 

V. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 
 
5.01  TERM. This Agreement shall be effective as of September 1, 2012, and shall terminate on 
 August 31, 2013. This Agreement may be renewed upon written agreement by the Parties prior to 
 the termination date of the Term of the Agreement. 
 
5.02  DISPUTE RESOLUTION. If a contract dispute arises that cannot be resolved to the satisfaction 
 of the Parties either Party may notify the other Party in writing of the dispute. Notification of such 
 dispute shall be sent by the Performing Agency to the Purchasing Agent, with a copy to the 
 County Executive. If the Parties are unable to satisfactorily resolve the dispute within fourteen 
 days of the written notification, the Receiving Agency may require the issue(s) to be mediated. In 
 such event, the Receiving Agency shall so notify the Performing Agency and furnish the 
 Performing Agency with the names of three mediators acceptable to the Receiving Agency. 
 Within ten days of such notice, the Performing Agency shall select a mediator from the list 
 provided by the Receiving Agency and notify the Receiving Agency of the selection. The 
 mediation shall occur within thirty days of such notification. Prior to the mediation, each Party 
 will provide the mediator with a statement of issues to be mediated, along with any other 
 information or releases required by the mediator. Cost of the mediator shall be borne equally by 
 the Parties. Unless all Parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not 
 constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute. All communications within the scope of the 
 mediation shall remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 
 154.073, unless all Parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality. 
 
5.03.  EARLY TERMINATION. The Receiving Agency may terminate this Agreement upon 60 days 
 written notice to the Performing Agency. Upon receipt of notice of early termination, the 
 Performing Agency shall cancel, withdraw, or otherwise terminate any outstanding orders or 
 subcontracts which relate to the performance of this Agreement and shall otherwise cease to incur 
 costs under the Agreement. Early termination will be subject to an equitable settlement of the 
 respective interests of the Parties accrued up to the date of termination. 
 

 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



VI. FUNDING 
 
6.01.  NO DEBT. This Agreement shall not be construed as creating any debt on behalf of the State of 
 Texas or the Receiving Agency in violation of Sec. 49, Art, III of the State Constitution 
 (Constitution). In compliance with Sec. 6, Art. VIII of the Constitution, it is understood that all 
 obligations of the Receiving Agency are subject to the availability of funds. If such funds are not 
 appropriated or become unavailable, this Agreement may be terminated. In that event, the Parties 
 shall be discharged from further obligations, subject to the equitable settlement of their respective 
 interests accrued up to the date of termination. Performing Agency acknowledges and agrees that 
 in no event shall any provision of this Agreement be interpreted to obligate the Receiving Agency 
 beyond the funds approved by the Travis County Commissioners Court for any fiscal year/budget 
 period. Other provisions not withstanding, this Agreement will be subject to termination on any 
 September 30 if, during the budget planning and adoption process, the Travis County 
 Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Agreement for the Receiving Agency fiscal 
 year following the beginning of the Agreement term. 
 

VII. OWNERSHIP. 
 
7.01.  OWNERSHIP. The Receiving Agency shall have unlimited rights to technical or other data 
 resulting directly from the performance of work under this Agreement. It is agreed that all reports, 
 drafts of reports, or other material, data, drawings, computer programs and codes associated with 
 this Agreement and developed by the Performing Agency under this contract shall be owned by 
 the Performing Agency. 
 
7.02.  COPYRIGHT. The Performing Agency shall not assert any rights at common law or in equity, 
 or otherwise seek to establish any claim to statutory copyright in any material or information 
 developed under this Agreement. The Parties expressly agree that the Performing Agency shall 
 own all right, title, and interest in and to any copyright or other intellectual property rights and any 
 material or information developed under this Agreement, including but not limited to the right to 
 use, reproduce, or publish any or all of such information and other materials without the necessity 
 of obtaining permission from the Receiving Agency and without expense or charge. All reports 
 and other materials completed as a result of this Agreement shall carry an appropriate 
 acknowledgement of Receiving Agency support on the front cover or title page of such document 
 and other materials. 
 

VIII. DATA COLLECTION AND DELIVERY. 
 
8.01.  GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS. Data, databases, and products associated with 
 electronic Geographic Information Systems (GIS), which have been collected, manipulated, or 
 purchased with funds from this Agreement, shall be subject to all applicable terms of the Texas 
 Department of Information Resources (DIR) Standards and Guidelines for Geographic 
 Information Systems in the State of Texas, August 1992. 
 
8.02.  TRANSFER OF DATA. Any GIS data to be transferred or exchanged that is collected, 
 manipulated, or purchased with funds from this Agreement must be documented as specified in 
 the Texas Metadata Standard or, at a minimum, as specified in the Texas Metadata Subset 
 Standard (projected to be implemented by DIR in 1997), subject to any subsequent updates or 
 revisions promulgated thereafter. 
 
8.03.  FORMAT. Any electronic data to be transferred in conjunction with a GIS shall be transferred in 
 ARC/INFO, an ARC/INFO-compatible format, or other mutually agreed format. Non-spatial text 
 or database data to be transferred shall be delivered in MS WORD, dbase (.dbf), or ASCII 
 compatible formats. Acceptable media for delivery includes compatible tape cartridge, optical 
 disks, and CD-ROM. 
 
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IX. EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 
9.01.  DEFINED. Each instance of the Performing Agency's failure to comply with any term, covenant 
 or provision contained in this Agreement shall constitute an event of default (Event of Default) 
 under this Agreement. 
 
9.02.  REMEDIES. Receiving Agency must use the dispute resolution process provided in Chapter 
 2260, “Texas Government Code,” and the related rules adopted by the Texas Attorney General to 
 attempt to resolve any claim for breach of contract made against Performing Party. 
 
9.03  NO WAIVER. No waiver of any Event of Default shall be considered a waiver of any other or 
 subsequent Event of Default, and no delay or mission in the exercise or enforcement of the rights 
 and powers of the Receiving Agency shall be construed as a waiver of any such rights or powers. 
 
 

X. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 
10.01.  SUBCONTRACTS. The Performing Agency may, only with the prior written consent of the 
 Receiving Agency, subcontract with other agencies and/or private entities for some or all of the 
 services to be performed under this Agreement; provided, however, such consent may be withheld 
 or conditioned in the Receiving Agency's sole and absolute discretion. Each request for approval 
 shall include a detailed budget estimate with specific cost details for each or specific item or work 
 to be performed by the subcontractor and for each category of reimbursable expense. The 
 Performing Agency shall legally bind any such subcontractors to perform and make such 
 subcontractors subject to all the duties, requirements, and obligations of the Performing Agency 
 specified herein. Nothing herein shall be construed to relieve the Performing Agency of the 
 responsibility for insuring that the services rendered comply with the terms and provisions of this 
 Agreement The Performing Agency will provide the Receiving Agency with copies of all 
 subcontracts and all amendments, cancellations, or terminations to such subcontracts upon request. 
 
10.02.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is further mutually understood and agreed that the 
 Performing Agency is contracting with the Receiving Agency as an independent contractor and 
 agrees to hold the Receiving Agency harmless to the full extent permitted under the Constitution 
 and laws of the State of Texas from and against any and all claims, demands, and causes of action 
 arising from the negligent acts or omissions of the Performing Agency, its employees or agents in 
 connection with the performance of services by the Performing Agency or its subcontractors under 
 this Agreement. 
 
10.03.  HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES. In accordance with state law, it is the 
 Receiving Agency's policy to assist historically underutilized businesses (HUB's), whether 
 minority or women-owned, to participate whenever possible in providing goods and services to 
 the agency. The Receiving Agency encourages those parties with whom it contracts for the 
 provision of goods and services to adhere to this same philosophy in selecting subcontractors to 
 assist in fulfilling the contractor's obligations with the Receiving Agency. The Performing 
 Agency will provide the Purchasing Department of the Receiving Agency with pertinent details of 
 any participation by a HUB in fulfilling the duties and obligations arising under this Agreement. 
 
10.04.  INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE. Incorporated by reference the same as if specifically 
 written herein are the rules, regulations, and all other requirements imposed by law, including but 
 not limited to compliance with those applicable rules and regulations of the State of Texas and the 
 federal government, all of which shall apply to the performance of the work under this Agreement. 
 
10.05.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties relative 
 to the subject Project. No other agreement, statement, or promise that is not contained in this 
 Agreement shall be binding except through a written modification signed by both Parties. 
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



10.06  WRITTEN CONSENT. Written consent from the Landowner, Lessee, or designee (Cooperator) 
 and concurrence with the Performing Agency will be required to access private property to 
 conduct wildlife damage management activities. 
 
10.07  LIABILITY. U. S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), Animal and Plant Health Inspection 
 Service (APHIS), Wildlife Services (WS) is the agency assigned overall program responsibilities. 
 USDA-APHIS-WS will hold Cooperator harmless from any liability arising from the negligent act 
 or omission of a government officer or employee acting within the scope of his or her employment 
 to the extent compensation is available pursuant to the Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA), 28 USC 
 2761 et. seq., except to the extent that aforesaid liability arises from the negligent act or omission 
 of the Cooperator, their employees, agents or subcontractor(s). Such relief shall be provided 
 pursuant to the procedure set forth in the FTCA and applicable regulations. 
 
10.08.  GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 
 accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. As per Texas Education Code, Section 85.18, 
 exclusive venue for a suit against the Texas AgriLife Extension Service is Brazos County or the 
 corresponding federal court; provided, however, neither the foregoing, nor any other provision of 
 this Agreement, shall be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity by either Party. 
 
10.09.  SEVERANCE. Should any one or more provisions of this Agreement be held to be void, 
 voidable, or for any reason whatsoever of no force and effect, such provision(s) shall be construed 
 as severable from the remainder of this Agreement, which shall remain of full force and effect. 
 
10.10  HEADINGS. The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall 
 not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
10.11  NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered under this Agreement shall be 
 deemed delivered when deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return 
 receipt requested, addressed to the Receiving Agency or the Performing Agency, as the case may 
 be, at the address set forth below: 
 
 Receiving Agency: 
 
 Sherri Fleming, County Executive (or her successor) 
 Travis County Department of Health and Human Services, 
 and Veterans' Service 
 P.O. Box 1748 
 Austin, Texas 78767 
 
With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
  
 Honorable David Escamilla (or his successor in office) 
 Travis County Attorney 
 P.O. Box 1748 
 Austin, Texas 78767 
 ATTENTION: Civil Transactions 
 
and 
 
 Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., Purchasing Agent (or her successor) 
 Travis County Purchasing 
 P. O. Box 1748 
 Austin, Texas 78767 
 
 
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 Performing Agency: 
 Jane Zuber 
 Director for Office of Sponsored Research Services 
 Texas AgriLife Contracts & Grants 
 400 Harvey Mitchell Parkway South 
 Suite 300 
 College Station, Texas 77845-7775 
 
and 
 
 Texas AgriLife Extension Service - Wildlife Services 
 1600B Smith Road 
 Austin, Texas 78721 
 
 Notice given in any other manner shall be deemed effective only if and when actually received by 
 the Party to be notified. Either party may change its address for notice by written notice to the 
 other party as herein provided. 
 
10.12.  AMENDMENTS. Any change to the terms of this Agreement shall be made in writing and 
 signed by both Parties. Requests for changes by Performing Agency will be submitted to the 
 Purchasing Agent, with a copy to the County Executive. 
 
10.13. INSURANCE. Performing Agency shall have standard insurance sufficient to cover the needs of 
 the Performing Agency pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. 
 
10.14.  CLAIMS NOTIFICATION. Performing Agency will give written notice to Receiving Agency 
 of any claim or other action made or brought by any person, firm, corporation or other entity 
 against Performing Agency or Receiving Agency related to services and activities provided under 
 this Agreement. 
 
10.15  FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Party shall be financially liable to the other Party for delays or 
 failures to perform where such failure is caused by force majeure (i.e., those causes generally 
 recognized under Texas law as constituting impossible conditions). 
 
 THE UNDERSIGNED do hereby certify that: (1) the services specified above are necessary and 
 essential and are properly within the statutory functions and programs of the affected agencies of 
 state and/or local government; (2) the proposed arrangements serve the interest of efficient and 
 economical administration of those affected agencies; and (3) the services, supplies or materials 
 contracted for are not required by Section 21 of Article XVI of the Constitution to be supplied 
 under contract by the lowest responsible bidder. 
 
 THE RECEIVING AGENCY further certifies that it has the authority to enter into this 
 Agreement by virtue of the authority granted in TEXAS HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, 
 Chapter 825.004, Appropriations by Local Governments, and other applicable statutes. 
 
 THE PERFORMING AGENCY further certifies that is has the authority to enter into this 
 Agreement by virtue of the authority granted in the Texas Education Code, Section 88.01. 
 
 THE PARTIES mutually bind themselves to the faithful performance of this Agreement, 
 effective as of the first day of September 2011. 
 
  
 
 
 
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



RECOMMENDED 
 
 Texas AgriLife Extension Service - Wildlife Services 
 
 BY: __________________________________ Date: _____________ 
  Michael J. Bodenchuk 
  Title: Director 
 
 PERFORMING AGENCY RECEIVING AGENCY RECEIVING AGENCY 
  
 Texas AgriLife Extension Service Travis County  Travis County 
 
 
 BY: __________________________________  By:  ___________________________ 
  Ed Smith 
 Title:   Director, Texas AgriLife Extension Service and Samuel T. Biscoe,  
  Associate Chancellor for Agriculture and  Travis County Judge 
  Life Sciences 
 
 Date:____________     Date:_____________ 
  

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ATTACHMENT A 
 

CONTRACT NO. 13-WS-01 
 

WORK PLAN 
 

DATED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012 
 
Introduction 
 
Texas Wildlife Services (TWS) program personnel report that conflicts between people and coyotes and 
other damage causing wildlife are increasing in urban areas across the State of Texas. While the program 
implemented under this Agreement will emphasize activities related to the coyote population, services and 
activities related to other damage causing wildlife will also be provided as feasible. References to services 
related to coyotes under this Agreement also include like services related to other damage causing wildlife. 
In recent years, TWS biologists assigned to Austin and central Texas have responded to a growing number 
of complaints related to coyote threats to human health and safety and coyote attacks on pets. In the past, 
WS biologists in Austin and Travis County have responded to most of these complaints by providing 
technical assistance or educational materials. Today, the problem has reached a point where technical 
assistance no longer meets the needs of the public. The TWS Program recognizes a need to conduct a 
comprehensive Coyote/ Damage Causing Damage Management (CDM) program in Travis County and the 
City of Austin and recommends the course of action outlined in this work plan. 
 
Several counties which adjoin Travis County currently have coyote management programs in place. 
Blanco, Burnet, Hays, and Williamson counties currently fund coyote management programs. Historically, 
these programs have been directed at livestock depredation problems. However, in recent years, the Texas 
Wildlife Services Program has reported an increase in coyote complaints from residential areas in the 
aforementioned counties and a significant part of the service provided by the Texas Wildlife Services 
Program has been directed at managing problems in urban and suburban areas of the counties. 
 
The proposed program for Travis County and the City of Austin differs somewhat from the current 
programs in surrounding counties in that highest priority will be given to addressing coyote problems in 
residential and urban areas of the county. Secondary emphasis will be given to coyote management in 
outlying areas of the City of Austin and Travis County. 
 
Area of Jurisdiction. 
 
This Agreement shall be performed only within the unincorporated areas of Travis County and the City of 
Austin. Participation in this Agreement by other incorporated municipalities within Travis County will be 
handled by amendment to this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.12. 
 
For the Agreement Term beginning September 1, 2012, and terminating August 31, 2013, as provided in this 
paragraph,  the Area of Jurisdiction and all references to the City of Austin and Travis County, collectively or 
singularly, related to the provision of services will include the City of Rollingwood.  Actual provision of services 
will be subject to completion and execution of the appropriate interlocal agreement(s) between Travis County, the 
City of Austin and/or the City of Rollingwood.  Receiving Agency will provide Performing Agency a copy of the 
executed agreement(s) upon execution.  Actual provision of services to the City of Rollingwood will not begin until 
such agreement(s) are delivered to Performing Agency.   
 
Purpose of Objectives 
 
The Texas AgriLife Extension Service - Wildlife Services Unit in conjunction with USDA-APHIS-WS 
Program (WS) will continue an operational and technical assistance based CDM program in the City of 
Austin and Travis County, Texas. The overall objective of this Agreement is to fund and conduct a fullservice 
integrated CDM program. The primary goal of the operational program will be to reduce human 
health and safety threats and concerns and reduce injuries to and loss of pets caused by coyotes and other 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



damage causing wildlife in Travis County and the City of Austin. The secondary goal will be to reduce 
damage to property and other resources caused by coyotes and other damage causing wildlife. An annual 
work plan and financial plan are included herein. 
 
 
Objectives 
 
 A.  To continue and conduct an operational CDM program to minimize conflicts between people 
  and coyotes and other damage causing wildlife. 
 
 B.  To cooperate with Travis County, the City of Austin and Extension for the purpose of 
  developing a public education program designed to minimize conflicts between people and 
  coyotes and other damage causing wildlife. The educational effort will include development 
  and dissemination of information related to modification of environmental conditions and/or 
  cultural practices which influence coyote activity and activity of other damage causing 
  wildlife. 
 
 C.  To monitor coyote activity and activity of other damage causing wildlife while evaluating the 
 effectiveness of CDM program efforts. 
 
Goals 
 
To minimize the following coyote/damage causing wildlife related problems in Travis County and the City 
of Austin: coyote threats to human health and safety, coyote attacks on pets, and other conflicts that may 
arise between people and coyotes and other damage causing wildlife. 
 
Plan of Action 
 
WS has assigned a full-time wildlife biologist to Travis County, for the purpose of continuing and 
conducting a CDM program. WS will also maintain an existing wildlife biologist position in Travis County 
to augment the CDM program. The existing position will support direct control and educational programs 
in cooperation with Travis County and the City of Austin. WS personnel assigned to Travis County will 
remain under the supervision of WS. CDM activities will be confined to the unincorporated areas of Travis 
County and the City of Austin. WS provides managerial, technical, and administrative program support. 
WS adheres to all local and state laws and regulations as well as USDA/APHIS/WS policies and guidelines 
when conducting WDM operations. Safety will be a priority. 
 
CDM methods for controlling coyotes and other damage causing wildlife will include all legal methods 
such as, but not limited to, leghold traps, snares, shooting, calling, chemical control and hand removal. 
Only WS or other designated personnel will remove captured animals. WS will be responsible for 
application and maintenance of CDM equipment. 
 
WS will inform City, County and Extension personnel of WDM activities by attending meetings and 
providing mutually agreed upon reports. The WS District Office in College Station, Texas (979/845-6201) 
will monitor the program. 
 
Services and activities to be provided by Performing Agency will include the following: 
 
 1.  Provide educational services for areas registering complaints or making requests for such 
  services through Receiving Agency. 
 
 2.  Evaluate and make recommendations for modification of citizen activities related to complaints 
 and requests. 
 
 3.  Cooperate with City and County in developing and distributing educational and other 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 informational materials designed to decrease the occurrence of problems related to damagecausing 
 wildlife. 
 
 4.  Provide services as allowed by law related to all damage-causing wildlife, with the initial 
  emphasis on problems related to the coyote population. 
 
 5.  Where necessary and in instances where other options do not result in a resolution of the wildlife 
 problem, provide for the extermination of animals determined to be a danger to the community. 
 
 6.  Respond in a timely and effective manner to all complaints related to damage-causing wildlife 
 within the jurisdiction of the Performing Agency utilizing methods which include public 
 education, wildlife behavior modification, and, where necessary, elimination of damage-causing 
 wildlife. 
 
City/County Cooperative Effort 
 
Performing Agency acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is based upon the cooperative effort to 
be entered into between Receiving Agency and the City of Austin (City), pursuant to the terms of a separate 
agreement between Receiving Agency and City (City/County Agreement). Continued performance of the 
Agreement by Receiving Agency is conditioned upon the performance by City of certain obligations 
pursuant to the City/County Agreement. Section 5.03 notwithstanding, Receiving Agency may terminate 
this Agreement with 30 days notice upon the failure of City to perform according to the terms of the 
City/County Agreement, including payment by City to County of funds set forth under that City/County 
Agreement. 
 
Functions related to this Agreement to be provided by City include the following: 
 1.  Payment by City to Receiving Agency of $10,000 
 
 2.  Provision of the following in-kind services: 
 
  - Coyote and other damage causing wildlife related calls will be handled through the Town Lake 
 Animal Center (TLAC) Animal Control Office and 311 Call Center. The requests for service 
 will be forwarded to the Wildlife Biologist for handling when necessary. 
 
  - City Animal Services will continue to provide education and information to citizens in those 
  cases where additional services are not warranted and will assist the Wildlife Biologist with 
  education efforts in the neighborhoods including direct customer service, neighborhood 
  meetings and material distribution. 
 
  - City Animal Services will continue to maintain the database of complaints by geographic area 
  to track problem neighborhoods and provide information to the Wildlife Biologist for 
  proactive efforts of coyote population management and the management of other damage 
  causing wildlife populations. 
 
  - City Animal Control will handle transport of bodies for any euthanized animals as well as 
  handle disposal of the bodies. 
 
  - City Animal Control will provide the rabies quarantine/testing and reporting support required 
  for any suspect animals. 
 
  - City Animal Control will provide any coordination support requested by the Wildlife Biologist 
  while conducting activities, including serving as a central point of contact for the Wildlife 
  Biologist to notify the City of the location of traps, harvesting sweeps, etc. 
 
  - Provide the necessary City authorization to access City-owned property to implement the 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



  wildlife management program described in this Agreement. 
 
  - Transport trapped coyote(s) requiring euthanasia when requested by TWS. 
 
  - Euthanize coyote(s) when instructed by TWS to do so. 

ATTACHMENT B 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. 13-WS-01 
 

DATED: SEPTEMBER 1, 2012 
 

BUDGET 
 
 
Salary and Benefits 
 One full-time wildlife biologist   $ 49,813.00 
 
Supplies           2,787.00 
 

TOTAL      $ 52,600.00 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jayne Rybak, 854-9853 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Approve Contract Award for Records Storage Boxes, IFB No. 1208-
002-JR, to the low bidder, Paige Company. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.  This contract will provide Records Storage Boxes to 
Records Management & Communication Resources. 

IFB No. 1208-002-JR was issued on August 6, 2012.  A total of twenty-
five (25) vendors were solicited and two (2) bids were received.  RMCR 
recommends award to the low bidder, Paige Company. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve (12) months $10,230 has 
been spent against this requirement. 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount:  Estimated Quantity-as need requirements 
Contract Type:  Annual 
Contract Period: October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 25 Responses Received: 2 
HUB Information: 1 % HUB Subcontractor: N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: N/A 
  Comments: Requisitions are processed at time of requirement. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 23



 

 

 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
RECORDS MANAGEMENT & COMMUNICATION RESOURCES 
314 West 11th Street , Suite 110   PO Box 1748   Austin, TX 78767   Tel: (512) 854-9575 Fax: 854-4560 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Jayne Rybak, Purchasing Agent Assistant II, CTP 

 

FROM: Tom Ashburn, Support Services Manager 

   

DATE: September 6, 2012 

 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Award, Bid # 1208-002-JR RECORDS STORAGE BOXES  

 

 

RMCR has reviewed the bids and recommends award to the low bidder, Paige Company. The funding 

for this procurement is budgeted in Fund Center 1570100129, Commitment Item 510230. Thank you for 

your assistance in this matter.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Bid #1208-002-JR - RECORDS STORAGE BOXES
 

Creation Date  Aug 6, 2012 End Date Aug 27, 2012 10:00:00 AM CDT

Start Date Aug 6, 2012 2:36:04 PM CDT Awarded Date  Not Yet Awarded

 1208-002-JR--01-01   RECORDS STORAGE BOXES

 Supplier Unit Price  Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

Paige Company  First Offer - $1.10   11000 / each $12,100.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: one dollar and ten cents each
Total Amount Text: twelve thousand one hundred dollars total
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: exceeds minimum standard. Has triple 
walls at handles and double wall on sides and bootom   

The Educational Outback  First Offer - $7.36   11000 / each $80,960.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: seven dollars thirty six
Total Amount Text: eighty thousand Nine hundred sixty
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: bankers box   

 1208-002-JR--01-02   LIDS

 Supplier Unit Price  Qty/Unit Total Price  Attch.  Docs

Paige Company  First Offer - $0.73   11000 / each $8,030.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: seventy three cents each
Total Amount Text: eight thousand thirty dollars total
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes: Fits Paige #806 box only   

The Educational Outback  First Offer - $0.74   11000 / each $8,140.00    Y

Product Code: 
Unit Amount Text: seventy four cents
Total Amount Text: eight thousand one hundred forty
Agency Notes:

Supplier Product Code: 
Supplier Notes:  

Supplier Totals

 Paige Company $20,130.00    (2/2 items) 

Bid Contact James Mikedes 
jmikedes@paigecompany.com
Ph 201-461-7800   

Address 1 Paul Kohner Place
Elmwood Park, NJ 07407 

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

 The Educational Outback $89,100.00    (2/2 items) 

Bid Contact Reba Coutermarsh 
educationaloutback@yahoo.com
Ph 907-374-6818   

Address 360 Old Chena Pump Road
Fairbanks, AK 99709 

Qualifications  DBE   MBE   SB   WBE   

Agency Notes: Supplier Notes:

**

Travis County Bid 1208-002-JR

Sep 11, 2012 2:24:08 PM CDT BidSync, LLC p. 2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch, 46663; Marvin Brice 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 5 to Contract No. 
4400000795, (H.T.E. # PS100110DW), Austin/Travis County Reentry 
Round Table, to provide professional program development for 
formerly incarcerated persons in the community. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This agreement is for the provision of program development for formerly 
incarcerated persons residing in the Austin and Travis County 
community. The Reentry Roundtable will work with County Departments, 
the City of Austin and the private business sector and recommend 
evidence-based practices that might be implemented in order to 
increase the number of former offenders hired by these entities.  By 
aligning County government resources with a community coalition, the 
overall goal of this partnership is to address and improve offender 
reentry in Travis County through stakeholder participation in an 
inclusive, community planning process. 

This Modification No. 5 modifies the FY2012 deliverables and increases 
the FY2012 not-to-exceed amount by $6,000.00. In addition, the 
contract term is extended until September 30, 2013, incorporating 
FY2013 deliverables and establishing a contract period not-to-exceed 
amount of $35,000.00. 

Modification No. 4 revised the FY2012 deliverables and did not impact 
the FY2012 not-to-exceed amount of $30,000.00. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 24



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification No. 3 extended the contract term until September 30, 2012 
and incorporated deliverables for FY2012 in the not-to-exceed amount 
of $30,000.00. 

Modification No. 2 transitioned this contract to a Fiscal Year contract by 
incorporating deliverables for FY2011 in the not-to-exceed amount of 
$30,000, and extending the contract term until September 30, 2011.   

Modification No. 1 revised Deliverable #2 to extend the deadline for 
completion.      

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $30,000.00 has 
been spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $30,000.00   
Contract Type: Professional Services Agreement 
Contract Period: April 13, 2010 – December 30, 2010  

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   $6,000.00 FY2012 one time funding 
  $35,000.00 FY2013 not-to-exceed 
Modification Type:    Bilateral 
Modification Period:  October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  
  Funding Account(s):  011-5500-557-6099 
  Comments:  Renewal period funded with FY 2013 funds. 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000795 (R.T.E. PAGE 1 OF 3 PAGES
PS10011ODW) —AUSTIN/
TRAVIS COUNTY EENTRY
ROUND TABLE

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: David Waich DATE PREPARED:700 LAVACA ST# 800 TEL NO: (512) 854-9700 September 4, 2012AUSTIN, ‘DC 78701 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINALAustin Community Foundation
CONTRACT:Al32OlOSandra Eames, Ed.D, Chair

P.O. Box 5159
Austin, Texas 78762-3456

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 04113/10 - 12/31/10 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: 10/01/11 - 09/30/12

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:
Oiiginal Contiuct Amount: S 30.000 Cun’ent Modified Amount $13 1.000

DESCRiPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretoforemodified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

1. Pursuant to section 6.0 AMENDMENTS/MODIFICATIONS, this contract is hereby modified as follows:
A. “ATTACHMENT B, Deliverables for FY20 12” is hereby modified to include the forming of an Exoffenders Council with the purpose ofhaving successful reentrants to develop local policy and guidance tothe conmiunity for reentry issues, to train ex-offenders for speaking engagements in public, and for

testifying in Texas State Legislative on local reentry matters. The Council will consist often plusmembers diverse in former offense, race, and special needs. The amount to be paid for these services is$6,000.00

B, Effective October 1, 2012, this agreement is hereby modified to delete “ATrACHMENT B, Deliverablesfor FY2012, Travis County Austin/Travis County Reentry Round Table Memorandum of Understanding,”dated February 2012, in its entirety and replace it with “AUACHMBNT B, FY2OI 3 Deliverables for theAustin/Travis County Reentry Round Table” dated August 24,2012, attached hereto, and made a parthere of, which details the fiscal year 2013 deliverables.
C. The Deliverables for FY2013 will be funded at the not-to-exceed amount of $35,000.00.

Note to Vendor:

(Xl Complete and eD)you a! theilgasture block section below for all copies and return all signed coplesto Travis Comity.I DO NOT execute and return to Traouwty. Retahi for your records.
‘ ,‘

LEGAL BUSINE4AME: ftL4.i-lJ/A75&664 C DBA

BY: ..lJ_)/J,/4) J C CORPORATION
SIGNATURE -

BY: (cLJFLJQ[1L IZeiE’
PRHr ‘NAME

- -

1ILt, cii El
fl’S DULY AUflOPJD AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS “
DATE:

BY:[
CYD V. RIMES, C.P.M., CPPO TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
DATE:

BY:________________________________________________SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

C OTHER

DATE:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



• ATTACHMENT B
AUGUST 24, 2012 4400000795 Modificaflon 5

Page 2 of 3

FYZO13 Deflverables for the AUstlnlTmvk Re.nv Roundtabl.

The A(TCRRT will educate, facilitate and advocate
for best practices to ensure Travis County criminal
justice professionals learn measure and practice
outcomes to deliver sustainable program
efficiencies.

The AfCRRT will provide awareness and
education to professionals, former offenders,
families and the public at large with reentry
resource brochures, materials and contact
Information

The A/TCRRT will update the community on
reentry Initiatives and news related to reentry and
reintegration.

The A/CRRT will conduct outreach and awareness
to private enterprise employers advocating the
hiring or persons with criminal backgrounds.

Deliverable: This deliverable will be to provide a
training to no less than 30 to 35 correctIons staff
which will focus on evidence based practices
targeting former offenders. Completion of the
evidence based tralnings will constitute 15% of the
contract. Payment will be made after the
successful completion of the training.
Deliverable: The deliverable for this Initiative will
be for the A/TCRRT to participate in four (4)
community resource fairs, seminars, and/or other
reentry forums. Completion of this
awareness/education Initiative will constitute 20%
of the contract. One-fourth(1/4t1) of payment will
be made after the successful completion of each
event.

Deliverable: The A/TCRRT will write and publish a
quarterly electronic newsletter that will update
the community on reentry Initiatives and news
related to reentry and reintegration. The
newsletter will not focus solely on A/TCRRT
committee activities but will Indude local, state
and national events, trends, legislative news, grant
funding opportunities and other noteworthy
Information relating to reentry as appropriate. The
newsletter will be c-mailed to all of the A/TCRRr
stakeholders and placed on the
reentryroundtabie.net website on the same day.
This deliverable will constItute 20% of the contract
and will be paid quarterly upon completion of each
newsletter.
Deliverable k The A/TCRRT will create an
Employment Committee comprising of no less
than eight to ten public and private employment
specialists, employers and other stakeholders by
November 2012. This deliverable will constitute
10% of the contract and will be paid upon
submission of a roster of the team members to
Criminal Justice Planning.

Deliverable B: The A/TCRRT Employment
Committee consisting of no less than eight to ten
standing member will advocate hiring former
offenders through outreach and awareness
presentations to three (3) community private
employers, business coalitions, employment

1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ATtACHMENT B
AUGUST 24,2012 4400000795 ModificationS

Page 3 of 3

SSSSS

SSS_S

. conferences and/or other employment related
forums. This deliverable shall constitute 15% of the

: contract and wIll be paid 5% upon completion of
each of the three presentations.

The A,frCRRT will provide on-going facilitation, Deliverable k This deliverable will assist the
training and support to the newlyforrned A/TCRRT Council In devebplng a FY2013 Action Plan. This
Ex-Offenders’ Council. will constitute 10% of the contract and will be paid

upon completion of the Action Plan.

Deliverable B: This deliverable will be to facilitate
regular meetings of the Council to Implement the

. objectives set out in their FY2013 Action Plan. It
. shall constItute 10% of the contract and will be

paid quarterly.

1

55

555

S<SS
S

555

S

SS S
S

S

S

555

S
.

55
S S S S

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  David Walch, 46663, Marvin Brice CPPB 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Modification No. 3 to Contract No. 
4400000596, (H.T.E. # PS000246JW) New Encounters Residential 
Treatment Center, Inc., for the provision of Residential Treatment 
Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This agreement is for the provision of residential treatment services for 
juvenile offenders within Travis County’s Juvenile Probation Department.  
Travis County has approximately 34 active Residential Treatment Service 
Contracts within different counties throughout Texas.  These agreements 
are used on an as needed basis, according to the specific needs of the 
youths being placed.  Travis County pays the daily cost set by the State of 
Texas Juvenile Justice Department in accordance with the facility type and 
level of service provided.   

This Modification No. 3 updates this contract to reflect the Prison Rape 
Elimination Act contract language now required by the Texas Juvenile 
Justice Department for all Title IV-E facilities.   

Modification 2 updated Sections 4.1 and Section 7.17 to correct audit 
findings identified by State audit.  

Modification 1 increased the Level of Care rates as defined by the State 
and included modifications to Section 3.19 pertaining to Medicaid eligible 
children and Section 4.1 for Title IV-E Federal Foster Care Reimbursement 
eligibility. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 25



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: As needed contract    
Contract Type: Professional Services Agreement  
Contract Period: July 1, 2000 – September 20, 2000   

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount:   N/A As needed contract 
Modification Type:    Bilateral 
Modification Period:  September 25, 2012 – until terminated 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in H.T.E.:  
  Funding Account(s):   001-4543-593-6205 
  Comments: Funds will be verified on an as needed basis through 

Shopping carts processed against the contract. 
 
 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 4400000596 (H.T.E.# PS000246JW) Residential
Treatment Services PAGE 1 OF 6 PAGES

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING OFFICE PURCHASING AGENT ASST: David Waich , DATE PREPARED:700 LAVACA ST. STE 800 TEL NO: (512) 854-9700
AUSTIN, TX 78701 FAX NO: (512) 854-9185

August 27, 2012
ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINALNew Encounters Residential Treatment 3 CONTRACT:

June 20, 2000Center, Inc.
4121 F.M. 637
Corsicana, TX 75110
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: 07/20/2000 - 9/30/2000 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: 10/01/2000 - Until Terminated

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:
Original Contract Amount: $NA Current Modified Amount $ NA

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: The above referenced contract is modified to reflect the changes asset forth below:
A. In accordance with Section 7.6 Amendments of the current contract, the following Sections of the contract aremodified as follows:

3.17.1 CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws, rules, ordinances, regulations andstandards applicable to the provision of services described herein and the performance of all obligations undertakenpursuant to this Contract, including the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 (PREA), which establishes a zero-tolerancestandard against sexual assault of incarcerated persons, including juveniles, and addresses the detection, elimination,prevention, and reporting of sexual assault in facilities housing adult and juvenile offenders.

Under PREA, CONTRACTOR must make available to the CPO all incident-based and aggregated data reports for everyallegation of sexual abuse at its facility or facilities, and all such data may be requested by the Department of Justice fromthe previous calendar year no later than June 30. [PREA §115.387(e) and (f)]

3.17.4 CONTRACTOR shall maintain full compliance with the Levels of Care as defmed by the Texas Juvenile JusticeDepartment, including the requirements of Contracted Components of Care referenced in Attachment “C.”

B. All references to “Texas Juvenile Probation Commission” (TJPC) are amended to the “Texas Juvenile JusticeDepartment”.

C. “Attachment C, Contracted Components of Care” is hereby incorporated into this agreement.

Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in fullforce and effect.

Note to Vendor:

IXI Complete and execute) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed ce ounty
. II DO NOT execute andr to Travis County Retain for your records.

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:fl / FA 0 DBA

7 V IJ #0 0 CORPORATIONBY: .. f’Iia-{X
SIGNATURE

0 OThER
BY: /

DATEPRINT NAME

TITLE: t.)fLtC4lL
lT DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT -

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS
DATE:

BY:_____________________________________________
CYLIV. GRIMES, C.P.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

BY:

DATE:

SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4400000596
I-IT.E No. PS000246JW Modificatton 3, Page 2 of 6

ATTACHMENT “C”
CONTRACTED COMPONENTS OF CARE

THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENT INCLUDES REQUIREMENTS FOR THE
RESIDENTIAL FACILITY OR CHILD PLACING AGENCY (CONTRACTOR) THAT
PROVIDES 24-HOUR CARE TO IV-E ELIGIBLE CHILDREN UNDER THE
JURISDICTiON OF A TEXAS JUVENILE JUSTICE AGENCY.

DAILY LWING SKILLS
The Contractor shall teach each childbasic living and social skills such that they are able to appropriately
care for themselves and function in the community.

ASSESSMENT, SERVICE PLANNING AND COORDINATION
A) Diagnostic Assessment. The Contractor shall ensure completion of a diagnostic assessment on each

child within 30 days ofadmission. The assessment must address the child’s strengths and needs in
the following areas: physical, psychological, behavioral, family, social and educational.

B) Service PIannng a•d Coordination.
1. The Contractor shall develop, coordinate and implement a service plan that addresses the

services that will be provided to meet each child’s specific needs.
ii. The Contractor shall develop a service plan in accordance with the requirements contained in

TJPC-FED-29-04 Section 500 (Casework and Support Services) and Section 501 (Service
Plans).

iii. The Contractor shall ensure that the service plan incorporates and is consistent with:
a. Permanency goals identified in the juvenile probation department residential case plan;
b. Behavioral goals established by the juvenile probation depwtment
c. Components of the child’s Individual Education Plan (IEP) and the Individual Transition

Plan (ITP) that are both developed by the school’s Admission, Review, and Dismissal
(ARI)) committee, if appropriate; and

d. Components of the CPS transition plan for youth ages 16-22 which includes Preparation
for Adult Living (PAL), Education and Training Vouchers (ETV) and other related
services and support for youth who are currently in foster care or transitioning out of care.
Additional Information is located at
http//www.dfs.state.x.us/Child_ProtcctionftransitiUvinn/default.aso.

iv. The Contractor shall ensure that the service plan includes services to assist a child to transition
to a new living arrangement or to new provider services, ifapplicable.

ROUTINE 24-HOUR CIHLDCARE
A) Food.

I. The Contractor shall provide food in accordance with requirements of DFPS Child Care
Licensing Minimum Standards.

ii. The Contractor shall ensure that each child receives fresh fruits, vegetables and dairy products
at least once a day.

iii. The Contractor shall ensure that children have input into meal planning.

B) Clothing and Perioal Items.
i. The Contractor shall maintain an inventory of the child’s clothing and personal items that are of

substantial and/or sentimental value by:
a. Completing an inventory ofclothing and personal items at admission, as additional

clothing and personal items are purchased or provided, and at discharge for a planned
discharge and within thirty (30) days after an unplanned discharge;

FY2OI I Pagel ofS TJPC.FED.OI-I 1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4400000596
H.T.E No. PS000246JW Mothfication 3, Page 3 of 6

CONTRACTED COMPONENTS OF CARE
b. Ensuring that the child (when age and developmentally able) and the Contractor’s staffsign and date the clothing and personal item inventory, except when the clothing andpersonal item inventory is completed after an unplanned discharge;
c. Sending the clothing and personal item inventory with the probation officer or otherdepartment designee at discharge for planned discharges; and
d. Providing the juvenile probation department with the clothing and personal item inventorywithin thirty (30) days after an unplanned discharge.

ii. The Contractor shall provide each child with appropriate clothing that at a minimum is:b. In sufficient quantity to ensure an adequate amount of the followiur t-shirts, underabirts,underwear, bias, socb, shoes, pants, shirts, skirts, blouses, coats/jackets, sweaters,pajamas, shorts, and other clothing necessary for a child to participate in daily activities;c. Gender and age-appropriate;
d. Proportionate to the child’s size;
e. In good condition, and is not worn-out with holes or tears (not intended by themanufacturer to be part of the item ofclothing); and
f. Clean and washed on a regular basis.

iii. The Contractor shall allow children to label their clothes with their name or initials.
iv. The Contractor shall provide each child with appropriate items necessary to meet their hygieneand personal grooming needs by;

a. Making grooming products available so that each child is able to maintain good hygiene andgrooming practices;
b. Ensuring that grooming products meet each child’s ethnic hygiene and individual hair careneeds;
c. Ensuring sufficient hot water is available for daily baths or showers; and
d. Providing training/education as necessary to ensure each child understands the concepts ofpersonalhygicneandgtoorningandwbattheyneedrodoonadailybasistoachieveandmaintain good hygiene and grooming.

C) Room, Board, and Furnishings.
i. The Contractor shall provide each child with a bed, sheets, towels, blankets, bedspreads, pillows,mattresses and other furnishings necessary to meet the child’s needs. The Contractor shall ensurethat the items be kept clean and in good repair.
ii. The Contractor shall ensure that children have personal storage space for their clothing andpossessions. The Contractor shall provide children, who are able to look after their own needs,with individual storage space in their bedrooms for clothing and possessions.
iii. The Contractor shall pro’,ide behavioral, gender and age appropriate living arrangements for eachchild, with the exception of sibling groups, where appropriate, in accordance with DFPS ChildCare Licensing Minimum Standards.

DISCIPLINE AND CRISIS MANAGEMENT
A) Discipline.

1. The Contractor shall use appropriate authority and discipline practices as necessary to set limitsfor behavior and help each child develop the capacity for self-control; and
ii. The Contractor shall develop and implement discipline and emergency behavior interventionpolicies that axe consistent with DFPS Child Care Licensing Minimum Standards at:http:/Iwww.dfps.state.tx.uslChild

and the Texas Administrative Code, including but not limited to, the following:
a. The Contractor shall not use, give permission to use, or threaten to use physical disciplinewith any child.

FY20 I I P.ge 2 of S TWC-FEDOI4I

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4400000596
H.T.E No. PS000246JW Modification 3, Page 4 of 6

CONTRACTED COMPONENTS OF CARE
b. The Contractor shall not threaten the child with loss ofvisits with family or siblings as apunishment or deterrent to behavior.
c. The Contractor shall not threaten the child with loss ofplacement as a punishment ordeteneui to behavior.

B) De-Escalitlon and Cdds Management.
i. The Contractor shall ensure that all de-escalation techniques are exhausted before utilizing morerestrictive and intrusive behavior management or emergency behavior intervention.
ii. The Contractor shall utilize developmentally and age appropriate emergency behaviorintervention techniques, as described in DFPS Child Care Licensing Minimum Standards toresolve emergencies.
iii. The Contractor shall manage the facility and milieu in a manner that minimies disruptionduring a crisis.

EDUCATIONAL AND VOCATIONAL ACTIVITIES
A) Educational Activities.

i. The Contractor shall ensure that each school-aged child placed with the Contractor pursuant tothis Contract attends an educational program accredited by the Texas Education Agency(“TEA”). The Contractor may request an exception to this requirement from the juvenileprobation department. The ChiefJuvenile Probation Officer, or his/her designee may approvethe exception request, and such approval must be in writing.
ii. Not later than the third (3’’) calendar day after the date a child is placed in a residential facility,the Contractor shall notify the school district in which the facility is located.
iii. The Contractor shall maintain and update an education portfolio for each child in the

Contractor’s care. The contents of the education portfolio must include, if appropriate:a. School enrollment documents - birth certificate, Social Security card, immunizations, andwithdrawal notice from the last school;
b. Special Education documents - Admission, Review & Dismissal (ARD) team meeting notes,Individual Education Plan (IEP). Section 504 documents, foil individual evaluation and/orother diagnostic assessments;
c. Report cards, progress reports, and/or IEP progress reports;
d. Transcripts;
e. Standardized test result - TAKSISDAAILDAA;
f. Referrals, notices or other correspondence;
g. Pictures;
b. Miscellaneous - anything school related not previously listed.

iv. The Contractor shall make the education portfolio readily available to the juvenile probationdepartment on any visit with the child or otherwise, if requested.
v. The Contractor shall document that the report card and progress reports are discussed with eachchild.
vi. The Contractor shall provide the child’s education portfolio to the juvenile probation departmentat the time a child is discharged from the Contractor’s care regardless ofwhether the dischargeis a planned or an unplanned discharge. The Contractor must ensure the following:

a. The most current educational documents and records are in each child’s education portfolio;and
b. The child’s education portfolio includes the child’s current school withdrawal paperwork.vii. The Contractor shall minimize disruptions to a child’s education by scheduling therapy and
other appointments outside school hours, whenever possible.

B) Vocational Activities. The Contractor shall provide vocational training, support services, activitiesand skills training (including job readiness), apprenticeships and vocational training opportunitiessuch that each child:

FY20)! Pigc3otS TIPC-FED-0!-lI

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4400000596
H.T.E No. PS000246JW Modification 3, Page 5 of 6

CONTRACTED COMPONENTS OF CARE

i. Has access to appropriate vocational activities and community cducation programs;
ii. Receives the assistance needed to maximize the benefit of these activities; and
iii Is provided transportation to vocational activities.

ROUTINE RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES
A) The Contractor shall provide recreational activities such as indoor, outdoor, school, community and

religious or spiritual activities for children served under this Contract that are age-appropriate, varied,
and are of interest to the child.

B) The Contractor shall ensure that recreational activities are, at a minimum, supervised in accordance
with DFPS Child Care Licensing Minimum Standards and service level requirements contained in the
Levels ofCare Descriptions (T3PC-FED-28-04).

C) The Contractor shall intervene, as necessary, to reduce the risk and occurrence ofany and all injuries.
D) The Contractor shall ensure that children have input into the types ofrecreational activities in which

they wish to participate.

TRAVEL
A) The Contractor shall provide or armege afi travel necessary to ensure a child’s access to all necessary

medical, mental and vision care for each child, including behavioral healthcare services, recreational,
school and school activities, family visits, court hearings, Preparation for Adult Living (PAL)
activities, permanency conferences, transition plan meetings, fhmily group conferences, circles of
support conferences, and any other services necessary to fulfill the tasks on a child’s service plan.

B) A Contractor who is licensed as a CPA shall arrange and facilitate sibling visits when siblings are at
different placements within the same CPA unless the sibling visits arc:
i. Prohibited by court order;
ii. Contrary to the best interest of the children as reflected in any of the service plans of the

siblings; or
iii. Discouraged by a mental health professional treating any of the siblings.

CULTURAL COMPETENCE
The Contractor shall provide the contracted components ofcare with a high level of individual and
organizational cultural competence as described below:
A) Individual Cultural Competence - The knowledge, skill or attribute one has relative to cultures other

than his/her own, that is observable in the consistent patterns of an individual’s behavior interaction
and work related activities over time, which contributes to the ability to effectively meet the needs of
children and families receiving services.

B) Organizational Cultural Competence - A set ofvalues, behaviors, attitudes and practices within a
system, organization, program or among individuals, which enables staffand volunteers to work
effectively with children and families from other cultures. Furthermore, it refers to the staff’s ability
to honor and respect the beliefs, language, interpersonal styles and behaviors of individuals and
families receiving services.

SY2OIt Pagc4ofS TJPC-FED.01-11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



4400000596
H.T.E No. PS000246JW Modification 3, Page 6 of 6

CONTRACTED COMPONENTS OF CARE
CONTRACTOR PARTICIPATION
A) The Contractor shall participate in conferences required by the juvenile probation department whichinclude but are not limited to, medical, school, case plaiming, permanency planning, transitionplanning, and legal staffings.
B) The Contractor shall participate in Preparation for Adult Living (PAL) activities, consistent with thechild service or transition plan.
C) The Contractor shell participate in any other meetings required by the juvenile probation departmentor a court having jurisdiction over the child and necessary to ensure that the Contractor is complyingwith a child’s service plan.

MAINTAINING CONNECTiONS
A) The Contractor shall make a good faith effort to ensure that children are able to preserve desired andappropriate connections to his or her own cultural identity and community, including

religious/spiritual, femily, school, and appropriate organizations through on-site or off-site means.
B) The Contractor shall document all good faith efforts to maintain the child’s connections.

PROVIDING TESTIMONY
A) The Contractor shall ensure that Contractor’s employees and subcontractors appear and testify injudicial proceedings, depositions and administrative hearings relating to a child, at the request of thejuvenile probation department.
B) The Contractor shall, to the extent possible, notify, and/or assist the juvenile probation department inlocating, past employees or subcontractors when past employees or subcontractors arc needed toappear and testify in accordance with this subsection. The Contractor is responsible for the costassociated with the requirements of this subsection.

LEAST RESTRICTIVE SETTING
The Contractor shall provide all services in a manner that safeguards the health, welfare and safety of thechildren in the least restrictive setting possible.

FY2OI) TJPCFED.O141

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 
ID # 7157 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  Approve Memorandum of Understanding Contract 
No. 4400001130 for The National Forum for Black Public Administrators to 
Provide Assistance with the PRIDE 2012 Conference. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The National Forum for Black Public Administrators (NFBPA) is a 
professional membership organization dedicated to the advancement of 
leadership in the public sector. Nationally, the membership is represented 
by managers and executives in virtually all disciplines among local, State 
and Federal governments.  

On October 25, 2012 the NFBPA will host the PRIDE 2012 Conference. 
The conference is designed to explore and provide a series of workshops 
and forums for the development and enhancement of public 
administrators, showcase cutting-edge strategies from leading state and 
regional and professional speakers, innovative sessions on healthy living, 
wellness, leadership, education and team building. The Event will serve to 
further the development of local workforce and employment opportunities, 
constituting a public purpose. 

HHS & VS is requesting Travis County assist NFBPA with the PRIDE 
2012 Conference in the total amount of $7,500.00, which will include: 
Printing of conference brochures and other conference-related materials. 
The amount for printing costs will not to exceed $2,500; and Sponsorship 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 26



 
ID # 7157 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

of 100 youth from Travis County's Summer Youth Employment Based 
Learning Program will not exceed $5,000. 

The youth will participate in Public Administrators Day, which is 
specifically designed for youth participants.  

 

 Contract Expenditures: Not Applicable 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $7,500.00   
Contract Type: Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract Period: September 25, 2012 – October 27, 2012  

 Contract Modification Information: Not Applicable 

Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: Not Applicable 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  
HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP:  
  Funding Account(s):  
  Comments: Cost center 1580010001, GL 512050, BA 4000000801 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text



 
ID # 7157 
 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text

akerc
Typewritten Text



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract No. 4400001130 

Page 1 of 6 
 

Memorandum of Understanding 
Between Travis County and 

The National Forum for Black Public Administrators Through 
Central Texas Chapter of the National Forum for Black Public Administrators 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into by and between Travis County ("County") 
and the National Forum for Black Public Administrators through the Central Texas Chapter of the National 
Forum for Black Public Administrators ("NFBPA"). 
 

RECITALS 
 
County has the authority to provide for the care of indigents and other qualified recipients (TEX. LOC. 
GOV'T. CODE, Section 81.027, and other statutes); and County has the authority to provide for public health 
education and information services (TEX. HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Chapters 121 and 122, and other 
statutes); and provision of the above services constitutes a public purpose. 
 
Travis County Health, Human Services and Veterans' Services has the authority to perform all public health 
functions that County can perform through TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ANN., Section 121.032. 
 
Commissioners Court of County may exempt personal and professional services and other qualified services 
from complying with the competitive procurement process under TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN., § 262 et seq. and hereby issues such an order of exemption for the services provided under the terms of 
this Contract. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor will provide personal and professional services for the care 
of indigents and other qualified recipients and/or for public health education and information, thus providing 
services which will further the achievement of a public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these agreements, covenants, and payments, the amount and 
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, County and Contractor agree to the terms and conditions stated in this 
Contract. 
 
1.0 GENERAL TERMS 
 
 1.1 MOU Term.  This MOU will take effect September 25, 2012, upon execution by both 
Parties, and will continue through October 27, 2012 (MOU Term"), unless earlier terminated in compliance 
with the terms of this MOU.  NFBPA agrees that no officer, agent, employee or representative of County 
has any authority to change the terms of this MOU unless expressly granted that authority by the 
Commissioners Court under a specific provision of this MOU or by separate action by the Commissioners 
Court.   
 
 1.2 NFBPA Purpose.  NFBPA through its Central Texas Chapter is a coalition of committed 
public servants from a diverse range of organizations and agencies that include local and regional 
government, public commissions, private business, academic institutions, students and area non-profits.  It's 
purpose includes strengthening the capacity of managers in a multitude of disciplines through focused, 
state-of-the-art training, in-depth professional development opportunities, mentoring and a powerful  
network of Black public leadership. 
 
 1.3 Event Purpose.  The conference is designed to explore and provide a series of workshops 
and forums for the development and enhancement of public administrators, showcase cutting-edge 
strategies from leading state and regional and professional speakers, innovative sessions on healthy living, 
wellness, leadership, education and team building.  The Event will serve to further the development of local 
workforce and employment opportunities, constituting a public purpose.  
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract No. 4400001130 

Page 2 of 6 
 
2.0 NFBPA PERFORMANCE.  Pursuant to the terms of this MOU, it is agreed that NFBPA will, 
among other things: 
 
 2.1 Regional Leadership Meeting.   Conduct a regional leadership meeting at the Omni 
Hotel at Southpark on October 25, 2012, addressing the topic of "Pride 2012:  Commitment to Health, 
Education and Leadership" ("Event").  
 
 2.2 Programs.  Provide real time opportunities for leaders in public sector organizations to 
learn and share regarding cutting edge initiatives and programs that will benefit their communities and 
encourage healthy living, wellness, leadership, education and team building. 
 
 2.3 County Recognition.  Recognize County as a $ 7,500.00 level sponsor of the Event in 
the Event Program Book, Excellence in Education Luncheon booklet and on Event signage. 
 
 2.4 County Benefits.  Provide County benefits in the form of: 
 
  2.4.1 County Recognition:  County designation as a Gold Sponsor, with 
 acknowledgement on marketing materials and pre-event promotional activities; recognition as a 
 sponsor in the Event Program Book and on event signage. 
  2.4.2 Invitation to represent County at the head table or dais at County sponsored 
 event(s). 
  2.4.3 Priority seating at meal functions. 
  2.4.4 Booth and exhibit space for exhibit with priority premium placement during the 
 conference to at the conference to promote County programs and services. 
 
  2.4.5 Four Event registrations. 
  2.4.6 Two tickets to the NFBPA Central Texas concert event. 
  2.4.7 Name/logo on Event promotional materials and pre- and post-conference 
 recognition on local NFBPA Website.     
  2.4.8 Special event signage indicating sponsorship 
  2.4.9 Five tickets to the annual theme event. 
  2.4.10 One table of 10 to the Marks of Excellence Luncheon 
  2.4.11 Ten tickets to the NFBPA Central Texas CEO Roundtable Forum 
 
 The above will be provided to County at no charge. 

 
2.5 County Ad.  Provide County with a full-page black and white ad in the Event Program 

Book (premium placement) and full-page black and white ad (premium placement) in the 2012 Educational 
Excellence Program Book. 

 
2.6 Tutorial Services.  Provide academic support and tutorial services to 100 participating 

students from the Work-Based Learning/Summer Youth Employment Program and Neighborhood 
Conference Committee Program as set forth in Section 3.0. 

 
2.7 Participant Event Experiences.  Provide experiences for the Participants to include the 

following: 
 

A.   Two concurrent workshops that serve to enhance skills and abilities related to health, 
wellness, and leadership skills, personal growth and success and ethics. 

 
B.  CEO Forum of leading experts in the fields of health and education. 
 
C.  Two general sessions that provide a forum for the exploration of solutions to critical 

challenges facing governments of all levels. 
 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract No. 4400001130 

Page 3 of 6 
 

D.  Participation in Health Fair that will provide health screenings and provide 
information about the disproportionate prevalence and impact of asthma, diabetes and heart 
disease among minorities.  

 
E.  Public Administration Day designed to provide 100 high school students with career 

exploration and site tours of a variety of City and County facilities and professions. 
 
 2.8 W-9 Taxpayer Identification Form.  NFBPA shall provide the County Purchasing Agent 
with an Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 
that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules and regulations, and a statement 
of entity status in a form satisfactory to the County Auditor.  NFBPA understands that this W-9 Form must be 
provided to the County Purchasing Agent before any County Funds are payable.  If there are any changes in 
the W-9 form during the term of this MOU, NFBPA will immediately provide the County Purchasing Agent 
with a new and correct W-9 form   Failure to provide such form within the time required may result in delay 
of payment, suspension or termination of the MOU, or other action as deemed necessary by County.     
 
3.0 COUNTY PERFORMANCE.  Pursuant to the terms of this MOU, it is agreed that County will, 
among other things: 
 
 3.1 Printing Services.  Provide in-kind services in the form of printing in an amount 
necessary to print the following with content provided by NFBPA: 
 

3.1.1 Education Excellence Booklet based on the following specifications and in-kind 
contribution price quotes: 

 
 A.  Paper @ $.025 ea sheet X 4800  $120.00 
 B.  Clicks for printing @ $.07 ea X 9600 $672.00 
 C.  Labor @ $20 per hr.   $100.00 
 D.  Overhead @ 20% of labor  $  20.00 
 E.  Bindery labor @ $20.00 per hr.  $  40.00 
 F.  Estimated In-Kind Total   $952.00 
 
3.1.2 Conference Event Booklet based on the following specifications and in-kind 

contribution price quotes: 
  
 A.  Cover @ $0.06 per sheet X 600  $  36.00 
 B.  Paper @ $.025 per sheet X 3000 $  75.00 
 C.  Clicks @ $.07 ea X 7200  $504.00 
 D.  Labor @ $20 per hr   $  60.00 
 E.  Overhead @ 20% of labor  $  12.00 
 E.  Bindery labor @ $20.00 per hr.  $  40.00 
 F.  Estimated In-Kind Total   $727.00  
 
3.1.3 Estimated In-Kind Total:     $1,679.00 

         
3.1.4 Total Costs. In no event shall printing costs exceed Two Thousand, Five 

Hundred Dollars ($ 2,500.00). 
 

3.2 Scholarships.  Provide scholarship funding in an amount not to exceed Five Thousand, 
Dollars ($5,000.00) to provide sponsorship for one hundred (100) youth ($50.00 per youth) for attendance 
at the Event.  These youth participants will be selected by County from participants in the Travis County 
Summer Youth Employment Program.  One hundred (100) youth ("Participants") will be provided a day of 
learning about Public Administration on Thursday, October 25, 2012, designated as "Public Administration 
Day."  Students will also participate in the Health Fair with the appropriate written approval from 
authorized parent or guardian. 

 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract No. 4400001130 

Page 4 of 6 
 

3.3 Payment.  NFBPA will invoice County for an amount not to exceed Five Thousand 
Dollars ($5,000.00) using the invoice attached to this MOU as Exhibit 1.  County will pay NFBPA within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete and correct invoice (including documentation as required under 
Section 2.8), as determined by County. 
 
4.0 NOTICE 
 
 4.1   Requirements.  Except as otherwise specifically noted in this MOU, any notice required 
or permitted shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given immediately if delivered 
in person to the address set forth in this section, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the 
United States Mail, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed 
to the Party at the address specified as follows: 
 
 4.2 County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this MOU shall be: 
  
  Sherri Fleming, Executive Manager, TCHHSVS 
  100 N. IH 35, Suite 3700 
  Austin, Texas  78701   
 
 With copies to (registered or certified mail not required): 
 
  Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent 
  P.O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
and 
  Honorable David Escamilla, Travis County Attorney (or his successor in office) 
  P. O. Box 1748  
  Austin, Texas  78767 
  ATTN:  Civil Transactions 
 
 4.3 NFBPA Address.  The address of NFBPA for all purposes under this MOU shall be: 

 
 Central Texas Chapter of the National Forum for Black Public Administrators 
 Anthony Snipes, Conference Chair 

  C/O City of Austin  
  Austin City Manager's Office 
  P. O. Box 1088 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
  

And/or 
 
  National Forum for Black Public Administrators 
  777 North Capitol Street NE, Suite 807 
  Washington, DC  20002 
 
5.0 GENERAL TERMS 

 
5.1 Compliance.  The Parties agree to comply with the Constitutions of the United States and 

Texas and with all applicable federal, state, and local orders, laws, regulations, rules, policies and 
certifications governing any activities undertaken during the performance of this MOU and governing the 
Parties' general conduct of business.   

 
 5.2 County Limitation.  It is understood and agreed that, in no event shall any provision of this 
MOU or any agreement entered into under the terms of this MOU be interpreted to obligate the County 
beyond the funds approved by the Commissioners Court for this MOU for any County Fiscal Year/budget 
period. 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract No. 4400001130 

Page 5 of 6 
 
 5.3 Financial.   
 

 5.3.1  Financial Records.   NFBPA must maintain records which adequately identify the 
source and application of funds provided for those services provided under this MOU.  These records 
must contain information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, un-obligated balances, assets, 
liabilities, outlays or expenditures and income related to MOU funds. 

 
 5.3.2  Copies.  Upon request by County, NFBPA shall provide a copy of  its most recent 
report of the most recent financial audit and the auditor's opinion and management letters, or 
financial review, to County through TCHHSVS.   

 
  5.3.3  County Audit.  County reserves the right to conduct an annual financial, compliance, 

and/or performance audit of the MOU.  NFBPA agrees to permit County or its authorized 
representative, to audit  NFBPA 's records and to obtain any documents, materials, or information 
necessary to facilitate such audit, and shall take whatever action is appropriate to facilitate the 
performance of any audits conducted pursuant to this Section 5.2 that County may reasonably require 
of NFBPA.   

 
 5.4 Immunity or Defense.  It is expressly understood and agreed by the Parties that, neither the 
execution of this MOU, nor any conduct of any representative of either Party relating to this MOU, shall be 
considered to waive, nor shall it be deemed to have waived, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be 
available to that Party against claims arising in the exercise of its governmental powers and functions, nor 
shall it be considered a waiver of sovereign immunity to suit. 
  
 5.5 Assignment.  No  Party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this MOU without 
the prior written approval of the other Party.  It is acknowledged by NFBPA that no officer, agent, employee 
or representative of County has any authority to assign any part of this MOU unless expressly granted that 
authority by the Commissioners Court. 
  
 5.6   Binding Agreement.  This MOU shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, 
administrators, and legal representatives of the Parties to this MOU. 
 
AGREED TO this  _______ day of  __________,  2011. 
 
  
CENTRAL TEXAS CHAPTER OF THE   TRAVIS COUNTY 
NATIONAL FOROUM FOR  
BLACK PUBLIC ADMINISTRATORS 
 
 
BY:___________________________________  BY:________________________________ 
Printed Name: __________________________  Printed Name:  Samuel T. Biscoe 
Title: _________________________________  Travis County Judge 
Date:_____________     Date:_____________ 

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Memorandum of Understanding 
Contract No. 4400001130 

Page 6 of 6 
 

EXHIBIT 1 
 

INVOICE FORM 
 
 

NATIONAL FORUM FOR BLACK PUBLIC ADMINISTRATORS  INVOICE 
 
777 North Capital Street, NE Suite 807 
Washington, DC  20002 
 
BILL TO 
Travis County Health & Human Services 
Sherri Fleming, Executive Manager 
100 N. IH 35 
Austin, TX  78701 
 
 

P.O. NO. CHAPTER CHAPTER CODE ID 
    

DESCRIPTION QTY RATE CLASS AMOUNT
Supporter of the Public Administration Day 
with the City of Austin for Symposium 
2012 to be held on October 25, 2012.  
County support will allow up to 100 of the 
County's Summer Youth Program 
participants to:  1) participate in a 
designated session; 2) Participate in a job 
shadowing experience at County and City 
offices throughout Austin; 3) Attend the 
Event Luncheon; and 4) Participate in 
Health screenings by Seton Family of 
Hospitals and the City of Austin, if 
approved in writing by parents. 

100 $50.00 Other 
Contract 

$5,000.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$5,000.00 
 
 

AMOUNT DUE 

    
 

$5,000.00 

 
County will provide additional in-kind services in the form of printing as set forth in the MOU in 
an amount not to exceed $2,500, with a total cost to County not to exceed $7,500.00. 
 
NFBPA is a membership organization exempt from taxation under the 5013(c) Code of the 
Internal Revenue Service.  Contributions to NFBPA are deductible as charitable contributions for 
federal income tax purposes to the extent provided by law.  For questions, call 202-408-9300 ext. 
103 or email mdiagne@nfbpa.org. 
 
The Parties understand and agree that the receipt of funds under this MOU is a purchase of 
service by County as set forth in this MOU, and not a contribution to NFBPA.   

DRAFT

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following for Stop Loss 
Insurance Coverage: 
 
(A) Reject proposals received for RFP No. P120214-CW, Stop Loss 

Insurance. 
 
(B) Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 1) to 

Contract No. 4400000211 (HTE Contract No. 12T00054EC), to 
Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada, for Stop Loss 
Insurance Coverage. 

 
(C) Increase the Individual Stop Loss deductible from $225,000 to 

$250.000. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

A.  RFP No. P120214-CW was issued on July 9, 2012.  A total of 
twenty-eight (28) vendors were solicited and six (6) proposals were 
received.  The RFP gives HRMD the opportunity to evaluate coverage 
and receive updated market pricing for Individual Stop Loss Insurance.  
After careful consideration by the evaluation committee it is the 
recommendation of HRMD that all proposals be rejected. The primary 
reason, the best and final offers from all proposers were too high 
compared to the renewal amount provided by the incumbent.  Proposers 
have been notified. 

B.  This contract provides stop loss insurance coverage for Travis 
County.  Sun Life has been the County’s Stop Loss carrier for the health 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 27



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

plan since November 1, 2011.  Travis County was able to negotiate a 
significant reduction from the original Sun Life renewal.  These 
negotiations along with a proposed increase to the Individual Stop Loss 
deductible would represent a 6% reduction in stop loss rates for 
FY2013. The renewal rates shown in Attachment 1 reflect the negotiated 
rates.  The Stop Loss rates will decrease by approximately 6% from 
$42.70 to $40.13 (-$2.57) PEPM (per employee per month) for all three 
plans. 

C.  The Individual Stop Loss deductible will increase by $25,000 from 
$225,000 to $250,000 for Fiscal Year 2013.  The Stop Loss contract with 
Sun Life will change to a Paid Claims basis. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve (12) months 
approximately $2,569,174 has been spent against this requirement. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: Not Applicable 
Modification Type: Bilateral 
Modification Period: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 28 Responses Received: 6 
HUB Information: N/A % HUB Subcontractor: N/A 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: Not Applicable 
  Comments: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Human Resources Management

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 • P.O. Box 1748 • Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165/ FAX(512) 854-6677

Backup Memorandum

DATE: August 27, 2012

TO: Members of the Commissioners

FROM: Diane Poirot- HRMD Director
John Rabb, Benefits Managefr

Subject: Recommend Rejection of Proposals for RFP # P120213-CW Stop Loss Insurance

Proposed Motion

Rejection of Proposals for RFP # P120213-CW Stop Loss Insurance

S urnmary

September 2012, Travis County Human Resources Management Department (HRMD) and
Purchasing worked together to create, document, and issue a REP to find a company to issue
Stop Loss Insurance Coverage for the Travis County Health Plan. The REP gives HRMD the
opportunity to evaluate coverage and receive updated market pricing for Individual Stop Loss
Insurance.

Travis County received several bids for this solicitation, and after careful consideration by the
evaluation committee it is our recommendation that all bids are rejected. The primary reason,
the best and final offers from all proposers were too high compared to the renewal amount
provided by the incumbent.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Human ResourcesM1anagement

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 • P.O. Box 1748 • Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-6677

Backup Memorandum

DATE: September 13, 2012

TO: Members of the Commissioners Court

FROM: Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office
Diane Poirot, Director, Human Rpurces Management Department
John Rabb, Benefits Managej’/
Cindy Purinton, Benefits Adminifrator (transition)
Shannon Steele, Benefits Administrator ‘(Y5

Subject: Sun Life Financial — Fiscal Year 2013 Stop Loss Insurance Rates

Proposed Motion

A. Consider and take appropriate action to renew Sun Life as the Stop Loss carrier for the
Travis County Employee Benefit Plan and to approve renewal rates as shown below for
Fiscal Year 2013

B. Consider and take appropriate action to increase the Individual Stop Loss deductible
from $225,000 to $250,000.

Summary

Sun Life has been the County’s Stop Loss carrier for the health plan since November 1, 2011.
Travis County was able to negotiate a significant reduction from the original Sun Life renewal.
These negotiations along with a proposed increase to the Individual Stop Loss deductible would
represent a 6% reduction in stop loss rates for FY2013. The renewal rates shown in Attachment
I reflect the negotiated rates.

Staff Riãmendation:
A. Staff recommends approval of Sun Life as the Stop Loss carrier and recommends

approval of the Sun Life renewal rates in Fiscal Year 2013.
B. Staff reOommends approval of the increase of the Individual Stop Loss deductible for

Fiscal Year 2013.

The following bulleted items are the important points or changes for the plan renewal with Sun
Life.

• The Stop Loss rates will decrease by approximately 6% from $42.70 to $40.13 (-$2.57)
PEPM (per employee per month) for all three plans.

09/14/12 agenda backup Sun Life renewa1-i’13-draft sins 1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



• The Individual Stop Loss deductible will increase by $25,000 from $225,000 to $250,000
for Fiscal Year 2013.

• The Stop Loss contract with Sun Life will change to a Paid Claims basis.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact

The monthly fixed costs of the plan will decrease 6% due to negotiations and an increase in the
Stop Loss deductible.

Current Fiscal Year 2012 Fiscal Year 2013
Average Monthly Cost $214,098 $201,221
Average Annual Cost $2,569,174 $2,414,650

-6%

Authorizations

X Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)
X Human Resources Management Department (854-9165)
X Purchasing Office (854-9700)
X County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)
X County Auditor’s Office (854-9125)

Page #
Attachment I Sun Life renewal quote sheet 3

09/14/12 agenda backup Sun Life renewal-fyl3-draft srns 2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ATTACHMENT I

Renewal Proposal For
Travis County

Group Policy Number — 220525
SPECIFIC STOP LOSS - Effective October 1, 2012

Benefits Covered: Medical & PDP Medical & PDP Medical & PDP
Current Plan

Renewal Alternatives
Total Enrolled Employees 5,014 Option 1 Option 2
Specific Deductible $225,000 $250,000 $275,000
Current Rates:
Composite $42.70
Est. Current Annual Premium $2,569,174
Renewal Rates:
Composite $46.44 $40.13 $35.16
Est. Annual Renewal Premium $2,794,238 $2,414,650 $2,115,781
Renewal Rate Action 9% -6% -18%
Please Select Renewal Option:

09/14/12 agenda backup Sun Life renewal-1,’13-draft sms 3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 12T00054EC, Stop Loss Insurance Coverage      PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES 

                                                                     (SAP # 4400000211) 
 
ISSUED BY: 
 
PURCHASING OFFICE 
700 LAVACA STREET 
8TH FLOOR 
AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 
 
CW Bruner 
TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 
FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 
 
September 13, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO:                                1000010262 
Sun Life Assurance Company of 
Canada 
One Sun Life Executive Park 
Wellesley Hills, Massachusetts 02481 

MODIFICATION NO.:

 

1 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT:  

 

October 25, 2011 

 
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  November 1, 2011 – October 1, 2012 
 

 
CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2012 - September 30, 2013 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $__N/A_________  Current Modified Amount $_______N/A_______  
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 

 This modification number one to the Agreement Collateral to Stop Loss Policy to be Issued to Travis County, Texas  
by Sun Life assurance Company of Canada, Wellesley Hills, Massachusetts is made by the following parties:  
Sun Life assurance Company of Canada, (“Our”, “Us”, and “We” in this Amendment) and Travis County, Texas (“You” or 
“Your” in this Amendment”). 
 RECITALS 
 You and We entered into a contract for stop loss coverage for a self funded health coverage for county employees, 
retirees, and their dependents that began October 1, 2011.  
 The Changes provision of the Agreement Collateral allows Us and You to amend the Agreement Collateral in 
writing signed by both Us and You.  

AGREEMENT TO AMEND CONTRACT 
You and We agree to amend the Agreement Collateral as follows: 
 

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION 
1.1 Pursuant to the Term and Extension of Policy Period provision of the Agreement Collateral, as amended 

herein, You exercise Your option to extend this policy period for an additional one year option period from October 1, 2012 
through September 30, 2013. 
 

2.0 MODIFICATION TO AGREEMENT COLLATERAL  
             2.1 Pursuant to the Changes provision of the Agreement Collateral, the Policy provision of the Agreement 
Collateral is deleted and the following is inserted in its place: 

 
Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and sign your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        
 
     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 
 
     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 
 
TITLE:            
            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 12T00054EC  PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES 

Policy to be issued to Travis County, Texas, by Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada, Wellesley Hills, 
Massachusetts for the first year of this Agreement Collateral is based on the Sample Only Policy attached to 
this Collateral Agreement and  the quotation for 17/11 Specific Stop Loss Coverage for the three Travis County 
healthcare plan options with a Specific Deductible of $225,000 with a three month terminal liability coverage 
attached to this Collateral Agreement and all other provisions indicated in this Collateral Agreement and  its 
attachments.    

 

Policy issued to Travis County, Texas, by Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada, Wellesley Hills, 
Massachusetts for the first year of this Agreement Collateral is amended for the first option period so that the 
Specific Stop Loss Coverage for the six Travis County healthcare plan options (three for employees and three 
for retirees) is on a Paid Claims Basis with an Unlimited Specific Lifetime Maximum with a Specific 
Deductible of $250,000 and all other provisions indicated in this Collateral Agreement and  its attachments.   

 

3.0 MODIFICATION TO POLICY  
 

3.1 Pursuant to the Changes provision of the Agreement Collateral, the following Schedule of 
Benefits, Specific Benefit is added to the Policy for the first option period: 
 

Schedule of Benefits 
Specific Benefit 

 

Original Specific Benefit Effective Date  November 1, 2011 

Benefit Specifications 

Policy Year October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013  

Reimbursement Percentage 100% of Eligible Expenses 

Covered Benefits Medical, including Prescription Drugs 

Specific Benefit Deductible $250,000.00 

Specific Benefit Lifetime Maximum 
Eligible Expenses Unlimited  

Specific Benefit Claims Basis 29/12 (6 Month Run-in) 
Eligible Expenses include only those expenses Incurred 
after November 1, 2011 during a Policy Year, or within 
6 months prior to the first Policy year and Paid during a 
Policy Year  

Covered Units Single Employee, Employee and Family 
Retirees Covered 

Specific Benefit Premium Rate $40.13 per Single Employee, Employee and Family per 
month 

Premium Due Date The Policy Effective Date and the first day of each 
succeeding month 

4.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT  
 

4.1 You and we hereby incorporate this amendment into the Agreement Collateral as 
amended by this Modification One. You and we hereby ratify all of the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement as amended. 
 

5.0 EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

5.1 The changes stated in this amendment are effective October 1, 2012. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 4) to Contract No. 
4400000168 (HTE Contract No. 11T00204OJ), Falcon Insurance 
Agency, Inc., for aviation insurance coverage. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract provides aviation insurance coverage for the Travis County 
Emergency Services helicopters. 

This Modification No. 4 will extend the contract for an additional twelve 
(12) months, from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. 

Modification No. 3 was previously issued to amend the quarterly 
reporting of claims for Loss Reports by the carrier to annual reporting 
and upon request.  StarFlight has such an extremely low volume of 
claims that quarterly reporting by the carrier is unnecessary.  Annual 
reporting is more than sufficient for the volume of claims incurred by 
StarFlight. 

Modification No. 2 was previously issued to make an administrative 
change to correct the model number of one of the scheduled aircraft.  It 
was approved by the Purchasing Agent on December 7, 2011.   

Modification No. 1 was previously issued to correct the amount of 
personal injury liability from Chartis Aerospace Insurance Services, Inc. 
(“Chartis”). This amount was listed as $50,000,000 in the original 
contract. However, due to treaty restrictions, Chartis is not permitted to 
provide coverage greater than $25,000,000. This level of coverage is 
acceptable to the County. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 28



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve (12) months, $208,116 
has been spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $218,520.00   
Modification Type: Bilateral    
Modification Period: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 
 

 Funding Information: 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 300000168 
  Comments: 

 
 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 11T002040J, Aviation Insurance Covera2e PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES

(SAP # 4400000168)

ISSUED BY: PURCHASING AGENT ASST: DATE PREPARED:
PURCHASING OFFICE CW Bruner
700 LAVACA STREET TEL. NO: (512) 854-9760 August 17, 2012
8 FLOOR FAX NO: (512) 854-4211
AUST[N, TX 78701

ISSUED TO: 1000001396 MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF

Falcon Insurance Agency, Inc. ORIGINAL CONTRACT:

Attn.: Donn Gauger 4
Vice President and Account Executive September 27, 2011

5316 Highway 290 W., Suite 440
Austin, Texas 78735
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1.2011 — September 30. CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1. 2012— September 30. 2013
2012

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $208.1 16 Current Modified Amount $218,520

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

RECITALS

On September 27, 2011 as a result of RFP # Ri 10204-OJ, Commissioners Court of County entered into a contract with Contractor for
aviation insurance for the two 2005 EuroCopter EC-145, 6 seats and one 2009 EuroCopter EC- 145, 6 seats.

The contract provides for redetermination of premium payable for an option period in 2.2. In compliance with this section, the
Contractor provided notice of the change at least 120 days before the contract ends on September 30, 2011; the increase requested is 5% which
does not exceed 25% of the premium for the current contract term and that is determined by Chartis’ cost of reinsurance; the insurance
market conditions; the loss ratio of Travis County EMS; and Chartis’ Underwriting loss ratio for this class of business.

AGREEMENT

The parties agree to change the terms and conditions stated in this contract as follows:

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION

1.01 County exercises its first option under the contract between Travis County and Falcon Insurance Agency, Inc. for Aviation
Insurance Coverage commencing October 1, 2012, with the redetermination ofpremium shown in 2.0 of this amendment.

2.0 TOTAL PREMIUMS PAYABLE

2.1 Paragraph 2.1 is deleted and the following 2.1 is added in its place:

Note to Vendor:
X I Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I 1 DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

LEGALBUSINESSN : Falcon Insurance Agency, Inc.
EJDBA

—- CORPORATION
BY:_________________________________________________

SIGNATURE D OTHER

BY: Donn Gauger
PRINT NAME

DATE:

TITLE: Vice President/Account Executive August 20, 2012
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:___________________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, CP.M., CPPO, TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 11 TOO2O4OJ, AVIATION 1NSURANCE COVERAGE PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGEs

2.1 The annual premium for each of the aircraft shall be as follows for each of the aircraft:

2.1.1 For the initial contract term from October 1, 2011 to September 30, 2012:

Two 2005 EuroCopter EC-145, 6 seats and one 2009 EuroCopter EC-145. 6 seats:

$ 7,300,000 Insured Hull Value $62,050. each
$50,000,000 CSL Liability 4,238. each
Hull War Risk 2,613. each
War Risk Liability 471. each

$25,000 each person and each occurrence Medical Payments, including crew
Miscellaneous Expansion Coverages —as listed in Attachment A
including Bambi Bucket use and rescue hoist

2.1.2 For the first option period term from October 1, 2012 to September 30, 2013 term and all subsequent
option terms for each of the aircraft unless redetermined in compliance with 2.2 for the subsequent option terms:

Two 2005 EuroCopter EC-145, 6 seats and one 2009 EuroCopter EC-145, 6 seats:

$ 7,300,000 Insured Hull Value $66,347. each
$50,000,000 CSL Liability 6,493. each

Included in these coverages are:

Hull War Risk
War Risk Liability
$25,000 each person and each occurrenceMedical Payments, including crew
Miscellaneous Expansion Coverages —as listed in Attachment A
including Bambi Bucket use and rescue hoist

3.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT

County and Contractor hereby incorporate the Contract into this amendment Except for the changes made in Modifications 1, 2, and 3,
County and Contractor hereby rati1i all of the terms and conditions of the Contract.

4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE

This amendment is effective on the date on which it is approved by the Travis County Commissioners Court.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Human Resources Management Department

700 Lavaca s• 4d Floor • P.O. Box 1748 • Austin, Texas 78767 S (512) 854-91651 FAX(512) 854-4203

Memorandum

May 31, 2012

To: Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent

From: Dan Mansour, Risk & Benefits Manager, HRMD’
William Paterson, Risk/Safety Specialist Sr.4

Re: Aviation Insurance Renewal Review

After a review of the renewal proposal from Falcon Insurance Agency, Inc. it is the
recommendation of Risk Management that we exercise the renewal option as provided for in the
contract. Risk Management does not recommend the purchasing of the Terrorism coverage.

The commodity code is # 962, the sub-commodity code is # 004, and the premium due for the
renewal period is $ 218,520 and will be paid from line item # 525-114-0522-4408.

If you have any questions please call me at 854-9650. Thank you.

CC: Leslie Browder, County Executive Planning and Budget
Diane Poirot, Director, HRMD
C.W Bruner/Purchasing

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 2) to Contract No. 
4400001092 (HTE Contract No. 10T00123OJ), Union Security 
Insurance Company, for dental services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 This contract provides DHMO, MAC and PPO dental service plans for 
Travis County employees.  There are no County funds expended on this 
contract. Funds are 100% paid by the employees. 

This Modification No. 2 will extend the contract for an additional twelve 
(12) months, from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. 

Modification No. 1 was previously issued to extend the contract for 
twelve additional months from October 1, 2011 through September 30, 
2012. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve months, $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 
Modification Amount: Not Applicable   
Modification Type: Bilateral    
Modification Period: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 
 

 Funding Information: 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP:  
  Comments: 100% paid by Travis County employees. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 29



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 10T001230J1Dental Services PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES

(SAP_#_4400001092)
ISSUED BY: PURCHASING AGENT ASST: DATE PREPARED:

PURCHASING OFFICE CW Bruner August 14, 2012
700 LAVACA STREET TEL. NO: (512) 854-9760
8” FLOOR FAX NO: (512) 854-4211

AUSTIN, TX 78701

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL

Union Security Insurance Company CONTRACT:

United Dental Care of Texas, Inc. 2
3595 Graiidview Parkway, Suite 650 July 20, 2010
Birmingham, Alabama 35243

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1.2010 - September 30,2011 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1.2012- September 30, 2013

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $ N/A Cunent Modified Amount $ N/A

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

Contractor and County entered into a contract to allow county employees, retirees, and their dependents to purchase
group dental benefits. In 2010, County issued an RFP P100123-OJ and Company submitted the best negotiated
response which resulted in a contract for a one year term that began October 1, 2010, (“Agreement”) and the option to
extend the Agreement for four (4) additional one year periods.

Agreement to Amend Agreement

Company and County agree to amend the Agreement as follows:

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION

1.01 Pursuant to 2.02, 9.0, 10.0 and 11.0 of the Agreement, Travis County exercises its second option to
extend this Agreement from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013 and to provide the United Dental Care
of Texas, Inc Dental Health Maintenance Organization Plan (DHMO) with no waiting period; (ii) the Union
Security Insurance Company Freedom Preferred Dental Solutions including the Lifetime of Smiles Program and a
waiver of the preventive maximum with a maximum benefit of $1,000 for lifetime orthodontia and $1,500
annually for other dental services (“MAC Plan”), and (iii) the Union Security Insurance Company, Freedom
Preferred Dental Solutions including the Lifetime of Smiles Program and a waiver of the preventive maximum
with a maximum benefit of $1,000 for lifetime orthodontia and $2,000 annually for other dental services (“PPO
Plan”). ;r

Note to

[Xi ion o block all copies and return all signed copies to Travis

LEGALBUSNA:(JCIttlA/3Ua(at ‘ fJn;kd DBA

BY: cRf,)J7l .41 J_. t. /(A L421/”._ 1CORPORATION

SIGN

BY: jiii-o- 0 D&’c3jI
PRINT NAME

TJTT. S-i \J1 ri ii±

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:______________________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASINGAGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:_____________________________________________________________________
SAMUEL T BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT

C OTHER

DATE:

cj_,10

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 1OTOO123OJ PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES

2.0 RATE CHANGES

2.01 Pursuant to 2.02 and 9.0, the monthly rates applicable to the DHIVIO Plan for the
second option period of the Agreement are as follows:

TIER OF COVERAGE SECOND OPTION—FY 2013
Employee only $11.70
Employee +1 adult $18.70
Employee +1 child $18.70
Employee +2 or more children $25.08
Employee +1 adult + 1 child $25.08
Employee +family $29.34

2.02 Pursuant to 2.02 and 10.0, the monthly rates applicable to the MAC Plan for the
second option period of the Agreement are as follows:

TIER OF COVERAGE SECOND OPTION—FY 2013
Employee only $20.61
Employee + 1 adult $39.21
Employee +1 child $39.21
Employee +2 or more children $64.58
Employee +1 adult + 1 child $64.58
Employee +family $83.18

2.02 Pursuant to 2.02 and 11.0, the monthly rates applicable to the PPO Plan for the first
second period of the Agreement are as follows:

TIER OF COVERAGE SECOND OPTION—FY 2013
Employee only $33.16
Employee +1 adult $66.32
Employee +1 child $66.32
Employee +2 or more children $103.73
Employee +1 adult + 1 child $103.73
Employee +family $136.89

3.0 iNCORPORATION OF CONTRACT

3.01 Contractor and County hereby incorporate this amendment into the Agreement.
Contractor and County hereby ratify all of the terms and condition of the Agreement as amended
in Modification 2.

4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE

4.01 The changes stated in this amendment are effective on October 1, 2012.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Human Resources Management
I.,

1010 Lavaca Street, Suite 200 • P.O. Box 1748 • Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-3128

May 31, 2012

To: C.W. Bruner, CTP, Purchasing Agent Asst.Ill

From: Cindy Purinton, Benefit Adminis rator
John Rabb- Benefit Manage4j....

Subject: Assurant Dental I OTOOI 230J

Vendor services related to the above contract have been performed as per the in
force contract, and the County will exercise the renewal contract option available
for FY2013 on all three dental plans.

There is a 4% increase to the PPO and MAC plan rates. The DHMO Plan has no
increase in rates. There is no County funding involved, dental is 100% employee
paid

This contract is funded from line item 898-0000-205-2410

If you have any questions please contact Cindy Purinton or John Rabb, at 854-
9165.

Cc: Diane Blankenship, Director, HRMD

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



*
ASS U RANT

Employee
Benefits

TRAVIS COUNTY FY 2013 DENTAL PLAN OPTIONS - EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2012
Assurañt Employee Assurant Employee Assurant Employee
Benefits DHMO 189 Benefits Preferred-MAC Benefits Freedom

Plan Preferred-PPO Plan

COST PER MONTH (High Option)

Employee Only $11.70 $20.61 $33.16
Employee + I Adult $18.70 $39.21 $66.32
Employee + I Child $18.70 $39.21 $66.32
Employee + 2 or more children $25.08 $64.58 $103.73
Employee + I Adult + I Child $25.08 $64.58 $103.73
Employee + Family $29.34 $83.18 $136.89

Dental coverage is optional, and 100% employee, paid with no County Contributions
PLAN COMPARISONS

Assurant Employee Assurant Employee Assurant Employee
Benefits DHMO 189 Benefits Preferred-MAC Benefits Freedom

Plan Preferred-PPO Plan
TYPE OF SERVICE (High Option)

. Provider fees are subject Provider based onProvider based on fee
to Maximum Allowable Usual & Customaryschedule

Charae Rates
Calendar Year Deductible per
person $0 $50 $50
Calendar Year Deductible per
family $0 $150 $150
Calendar Year Maximum No Maximum $1,500 $2,000
Preventative Services 100% no co-pay 100% no deductible 100% no deductible
Routine oral exams, routine x-rays are preventative Bitewing x-rays Benefits paid Bitewing x-rays Benefits
cleanings, fluoride treatment (frequency limitations for Type I Preventative paid for Type I
(frequency limitations may apply) Services will not be applied Preventative Services
apply) to the Calendar yearly will not be applied to

Maximum the Calendar yearly
Maximum

Restorative Services Various co-pay amounts 80% after deductible 80% after deductible
(Type II Basic) Fillings, all other based on what service is
x-rays, simple extractions performed

Major Services Various co-pay amounts 50% after deductible 50% after deductible
Crowns, bridgework, dentures, based on what service is
oral surgery, extractions, performed
endodontics (root canals, etc.), Implants are not
periodontics (treatment of covered on DHMO
gums), implants

Orthodontic Services Employee co-pay 50% 50%
(braces) amounts $0 deductible $0 deductible

$300 Bracketing,
$2,000 child,
$2,200 adult

Orthodontic Maximum No Maximum - $1,000 $1,000
Assurant Employee Benefits is the brand name for dental insurance underwritten by Ufllofl security tnaurance
Company and DHMO dental provided by United Dental Care of Texas, Inc.
Plans contain limitations, exclusions, and restrictions.
This document provides only a brief summary of the dental plans. For complete details, please refer to the dental
plan documents that are provided to the Travis County employees and retirees during open enrollment. For additional
information or questions please contact Asaurant Employee Benefits.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



*
ASSURANT

Em p oy cc
Ben efts

Fant Emj1Bts Assurant Employee Assurant Employee
DHMO 189 Benefits Preferred-MAC Benefits Freedom

Plan Preferred-PPO Plan (High
Option)

DHMO- You must select a plan MAC-Plan allows employee An Access plan allows
Dentist to receive services. Except to have access to the DHA® employees to have access to
for certain specialty dental services, PPO providers and take Dental Health Alliance®, L.L.C.
all services must be performed by advantage of their fee (DHA®) providers and take
this selected plan dentist. When discounts. Dentists advantage of their fee discounts.
you enroll for benefits, treatments participating in the DHA® Dentists participating in the
you receive from your selected plan networks have agreed to DHA® networks have agreed to
Dentist will be provided at reduced discount their usual fees. discount their usual fees by up
fees called co-payments. DHA® dentists will not to 20% for employees and their

balance bill patients the dependents.
difference between what they
usually charge and the
agreed upon discount.

Treatment is available from Benefits are paid at the
dentists who do not negotiated fee level for in
participate in DHA®, but their network providers. Benefits for
fees are subject to a services from out-of-network
Maximum Allowable Charge providers will be paid at the 90®
(MAC). A MAC is the most percentile of the amount
we will pay per procedure to charged by the majority of
non-participating dentists. In dentists in the area.
addition to any deductible
and coinsurance amounts,
the patient is also
responsible for fees in
excess of the MAC.

The allowable amount for
non-participating dentists is
based on 45% off the 80th

percentile of usual and
customary. This means that
at least 8 out of 10 charges
in a given geographical area
are at or below what is
considered usual and
customary.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AS S U R A N T 2323 Grand Boulevard
Employee Kansas City, MO 64108-2670
B enef its www.assurant.com

May 23, 2012

Ms. Cindy Purinton Re: Travis County
Travis County Policy/Plan: 5451628
P0 Box 1748 Plan Type: Dental
Austin, TX 78767 Anniversary Date: 10/01/2012

Rate Effective Date: 10/01/2012
Enrollment Period: 07/15/2012 - 08/15/2012

Dear Ms. Purinton,

Thank you for your business and for choosing Assurant Employee Benefits. We are committed to
helping you realize the best value for your benefit dollars. In some studies, researchers have
observed that people with gum disease (when compared to people without gum disease) were more
likely to develop heart disease or have difficulty controlling blood sugar according to the National
Institute of Dental and Craniofacial Research website January, 2010. Preventive dental health today
may be the key to healthcare cost savings tomorrow.

Although recognizing the value of dental benefits is an important first step, choosing a dental plan is
equally important. All dental plans, products and services are not the same. Assurant Employee
Benefits is a leader in dental benefits and was honored in 2008 by Celent as a Model Carrier for the
establishment of our online claims management system that enables us to better serve claimants.

A thorough review of your plan(s) has been completed. For your convenience, the table(s) below

shows the monthly rate or fee changes effective October 1, 2012.

Plan(s) Current Renewal

High Dental
Freedom - Preferred Plan
Access

Employee $31.88 $33.16

Employee + Spouse $63.76 $66.32

Employee + One child $63.76 $66.32

Employee + Two or more children $99.74 $103.73

Employee + One adult + One child $99.74 $103.73

Employee + One adult + Two or more $131.62 $136.89
children

Vision (VSP) Employee Included Included

Assurant Employee Benefits is the brand name used for insurance products underwritten and issued by
Union Security Insurance Company. Assurant Employee Benefits is the brand name used for prepaid
dental products administered by Union Security Insurance Company and provided by United Dental
Care of Texas, Inc.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



The rate change shown above to your High Dental plan reflects the projected dental industry cost

inflation for the coming year. This projection includes an increase in service fees, changes in benefit

utilization, and advances in technology. The factors used in our calculations are comparable with

factors used by other insurers.

Plan(s) Current Renewal

Low Dental

Freedom - Preferred Plan

Access MAC

Employee $19.82 $20.61

Employee + Spouse $37.70 $39.21

Employee + One child $37.67 $39.21

Employee + Two or more children $62.10 $64.58

Employee + One adult + One child $62.10 $64.58

Employee + One adult + Two or more $79.98 $83.18
children

Vision (VSP) Employee Included Included

The rate change shown above to your Low Dental plan reflects the projected dental industry cost

inflation for the coming year. This projection includes an increase in service fees, changes in benefit

utilization, and advances in technology. The factors used in our calculations are comparable with

factors used by other insurers.

Plan(s) Current Renewal

DHMO/Prepaid Dental

TX DHMO Dental Plan

189 (High) Ortho

Employee $11.70 $11.70

Employee + Spouse $18.70 $18.70

Employee+Onechild $18.70 $18.70

Employee + Two or more children $25.08 $25.08

Employee + One adult + One child $25.08 $25.08

Employee + One adult + Two or more $29.34 $29.34
children

Vision (VSP) Employee Included Included

We are pleased to remind you that the current fee(s) for your Texas DHMO Dental plan are

guaranteed until October 1, 2013. The fee(s) will be guaranteed unless an amendment to the plan

changes our liability prior to that date.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Should you have any questions regarding your renewal, please contact the account management

team in the sales office at or e-mail. This team is dedicated to servicing your account and employee

benefit needs.

They will be happy to assist you with

• Recommending plan options for you and your employees.

• Your annual enrollment meeting.
• Streamlining your administration with our online tools.

• Adding additional employee benefits.

Assurant Employee Benefits offers the strength and stability you can count on. We are part of

Assurant, Inc., a Fortune 500 company. We specialize in small to mid-sized businesses, offering both

employer and employee-paid plans. We offer disability, life, dental and vision plans tailored to meet

your needs.

Again, thank you for your business.

Sincerely,

Financial Ratings

L Union Security Insurance Company

A.M. Best

Craig Bunshaw A- (Excellent)

Renewal Underwriter Moody’s

Assurant Employee Benefits A3 (Good)

816.474.2607 Standard & Poor’s
Craig.Bunshaw@Assurarit.com A- (Strong)

11/18/2010

cc: Group Sales Office

26498400 20120411 13:031I

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AS S U RANT 2323 Grand Boulevard
Employee Kansas City, MO 64108-2670
Benefits

Thank you for choosing Assurant Employee Benefits. We know insurance has historically
been a paper-intensive industry. We’re trying to change that. In an effort to be more mindful
of our environmental impact and eliminate unnecessary paper from your mailbox, renewal
packets will now only be supplied when re-enrollment meetings are conducted. Should you
still require renewal packets, you may request them by contacting the sales office at or e-mail.

Ms. Cindy Purinton
Travis County
P0 Box 1748
Austin, TX 78767

Policyholder Mailer

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 4) to Contract No. 
4400000044 (HTE Contract No. 09T00207OJ), WageWorks, Inc., for 
Administration of the Flexible Spending Plan. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract provides for the Administration of the Flexible Spending 
Account for Travis County and its eligible employees who enroll for 
these services. The Commissioners Court approved the contract on 
September 8, 2009. 

This Modification No. 4 will extend the contract for an additional twelve 
(12) months, from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. 

Modification No. 3 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for an additional twelve months, through September 30, 2012. 

Modification No. 2 was previously issued to provide for an assignment of 
contract to WageWorks, Inc. from Fringe Benefits Management 
Company. 

Modification No. 1 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for twelve months, through September 30, 2011. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve months, $47,579.91 has 
been spent against this contract.   

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: N/A   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 30



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification Type: Bilateral  
Modification Period: October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: Not Applicable 
  Comments:  

 
 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: 09T00207OJ, Administration of the Flexible Spending Plan  PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES 

                                                     (SAP # 4400000044) 
 
ISSUED BY: 
 
PURCHASING OFFICE 
700 LAVACA STREET 
8TH FLOOR 
AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 
 
CW Bruner 
TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 
FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 
 
August 13, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO:                       1000009394 
Wageworks, Inc. 
Attn: Barbara L. Gonzales, CEBS 
1100 Park Place, 4th Floor 
San Mateo, California 94403 

MODIFICATION NO.: 
 

4 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT:  

 

September 8, 2009 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2009 – September 30, 
2010 

CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $__N/A_________  Current Modified Amount $_______N/A_______  
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 This amendment number four to Wageworks, Inc. (“Wageworks”) Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is 
made by the following parties:  
 Wageworks, Inc. (“Wageworks”) and Travis County, Texas (“County”). 
 

RECITALS 
 County and Wageworks entered into a contract for administrative services for County’s Flexible Spending 
Plan for county employees and their dependents that began October 1, 2009.  
 Section 11 of the Agreement with Wageworks allows County and Wageworks to amend this agreement if 
the amendment is in writing and signed by both parties. 
 Section 2.02 of the Agreement with Wageworks grants County the option to extend this agreement for 
three additional one year periods, with all terms and conditions remaining unchanged except the Agreement 
Period and rate changes in compliance with Section 7.02.  
 

AGREEMENT  

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION 
 
 1.1 Pursuant to Section 2.02 Term of Agreement of the Agreement, as amended herein, County 
exercises its second option to extend this Agreement for the one year period from October 1, 2012 through 
September 30, 2013. 
 
Note to Vendor:  

[XX] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        
 
     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 
 
     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 
 
TITLE:            
            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 09T00207OJ, Flexible Spending Plan ASA       PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES 
 
2.0 RATES FOR THIRD OPTION PERIOD 
 

2.1 Pursuant to Section 7.01 and 7.03 Rates for Administration FSA, HRA and QTB 
of the Agreement, the rates applicable for this option period from October 1, 2012 to 
October 1, 2013 are as follows: 

 
  FSA only     $4.03 per participant per month 
  QTB only     $4.03 per participant per month 
  FSA and HRA (dual administration)  $4.03 per participant per month 
  FSA, HRA and QTB (triple administration) $7.82 per participant per month 
  FSA, and QTB (dual administration)  $7.82 per participant per month 
  HRA and QTB (dual administration)  $7.82 per participant per month 
 
3.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT  
 

3.1 County and Wageworks hereby incorporate this amendment into the Wageworks, 
Inc. Services Agreement, County and Wageworks hereby ratify all of the terms and 
conditions of the Agreement as amended.  

 
4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

4.1 The changes in this amendment are effective October 1, 2012. 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Human Resources Management

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 • P.O. Box 1748 • Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 I FAX(512) 854-6677

June 25, 2012

TO: C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent Assistant

FROM: Cindy Purinton, Benefit Admini
John Rabb, Benefit Manager

SUBJECT: Contract # 09T002070J
Flexible Spending Account- FBMC
Qualified Transportation Benefit- FBMC

Vendor services related to the above contract have been performed to the
County’s satisfaction. Please initiate the extension of their contract to the next
option period. You received the renewal information under separate cover.
There will be a 2% increase in fee schedule after negotiation.

This contract is funded from line item 001-1140-522-4701

If you have any questions, please contact Cindy Purinton at 854-9626

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Fringe Benefits Management Company
A Division of WageWorks

3101 Sessions Road PHONE: 850-425-6200 www.myF8MC.com
Tallahassee, FL 32303 TOLL-FREE 800-847-8286

FAX: 850-425-6220

Travis County Purchasing Office
ATTN: C.W. Bruner
314 W. 11th Room 400
Austin, TX 78701

RE: Contract 09T002070J, Administration Of the Flexible Spending Plan UPDATED 6/1/2012

Dear Sir:

In accordance with renewal terms as outlined in paragraph 2.02 of the above contract, we hereby
request an extension in this contract for the Plan Year October 1, 2012, through September 30, 2013. A
small increase in the fees is permitted, due to the CPI increase, paragraph 7.02.

Accordingly, we request a 2% increase in our fee schedule.

There are two price levels:
$3.95 which applies to FSA only, QTB only, or FSA and HRA combined
$7.67 which applies to FSA and QTB, HRA and QTB, or all three — FSA, HRA, QTB

The requested values for these levels during the 10/1/2012 — 9/30/2013 period are as follows:
$3.95 x .0249 = $O.079, rounded to $0.08 This will give a new value of $4.03 for that price level.
$7.67 x .0249 = $O.1534, rounded to $0.15. This will give a new value of $7.82 for the second price
level.

Since our administrative services began, participation has increased substantially. The number of
medical spending accounts has increased from 600 to 1,052, and the number of dependent care
accounts has had a similar increase.
Travis County is a valued client, and we look forward to serving you in the future. If you have any
questions, please contact me at 800.872.0345, ext. 2598.

Yours truly,

9fJILt4A.
Gordon B Sherard, Jr., CFCI, CFP®
Senior Account Manager, Client Services
Direct: 800.425.6200 x2598 I Mobile: 850.688.3122 Fax: 850.425.6220
Email: gordon.sherard@wageworks.com

Fringe Benefits C
Management Company
7. i).’Xoo jI ,a’:IIY,’ulkL

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 11) to Contract No. 
4400000007 (HTE Contract No. 02T00038OJ), UNUM Life Insurance 
Company, for Basic Life and Accidental Death and Dismemberment 
insurance. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 This contract provides the Basic Life and Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment (AD&D) to Travis County employees. The basic term 
life insurance and AD&D is paid for by the County. The amount of the 
basic term life insurance is $50,000, which was approved by the 
Commissioners Court on May 8, 2007. 

This Modification No. 11 will extend the contract for an additional twelve 
(12) months, from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013.  The 
monthly rates for active employees are: $0.14 per $1,000 of coverage 
for basic term life and $0.025 per $1,000 of coverage for AD&D. 

Modification No. 10 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
through September 30, 2012. The contract extension is permitted 
pursuant to Paragraph 2.01 of the contract, entitled “Term of 
Agreement.” The monthly rates for active employees are: $.14 per 
$1,000 of coverage for basic term life, and $.025 per $1,000 of coverage 
for AD&D. 

Modification No. 9 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
through September 30, 2011. The monthly rates for active employees 
were: $.12 per $1,000 of coverage for basic term life, and $.025 per 
$1,000 of coverage for AD&D. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 31



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

Modification No. 8 amended the contract to provide a new one-year 
term, through September 30, 2010, and the option to extend the contract 
for six additional one-year periods. 

Modification No. 7 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2009. 

Modification No. 6 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2008. 

Modification No. 5 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2007 

Modification No. 4 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2006. 

Modification No. 3 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2005. 

Modification No. 2 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2004. 

Modification No. 1 extended the contract for an additional twelve 
months, through September 30, 2003. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve months, $440,363.75 
has been spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: Not applicable  
Modification Type: Bilateral   
Modification Period: October 1, 2012 - September 30, 2013  

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: Not Applicable 
  Comments:  

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 02T00038OJ, Basic LIFE and AD&D      PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES

                                                                     (SAP # 4400000007) 
 
ISSUED BY: 
 
PURCHASING OFFICE 
700 LAVACA STREET 
8TH FLOOR 
AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 
 
CW Bruner 
TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 
FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 
 
August 14, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO:                       1000002897 
UNUM LIFE INSURANCE 
COMPANY OF AMERICA 
2211 CONGRESS ST., M-382 
PORTLAND, MAINE 04122 

MODIFICATION NO.:

 

11 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 
CONTRACT:  

 

November 6, 2001 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2001-September 30, 2002 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2012 – September 30, 2013

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $__N/A_________  Current Modified Amount $_______N/A_______  
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 This Modification No. 11 is made by the following parties: UNUM Life Insurance Company of America, a 
Maine corporation (“Company”) and Travis County, Texas (“County”).   
RECITALS: 
 County and Company entered into a contract to provide basic life and accidental death & dismemberment 
coverage to employees began October 1, 2001 and ended September 30, 2005 (“Initial Contract”).  
  County issued RFP P050091-OJ in 2005 and Company submitted the best negotiated response.  This 
response was the basis of the First Novation of the Initial Contract in Modification 4.  The First Novation 
extended the Initial Contract for a one-year term and granted County novation options to extend the Initial 
Contract for three additional one-year periods, all of which were exercised by County.   
 County issued RFP P090315-OJ in 2009 and Company submitted the best negotiated response.  This 
response is the basis of this Second Novation of the Initial Contract.  The Second Novation extends the Initial 
Contract for another one-year term and grants County six additional renewal options to extend the Second 
Novation for six additional one-year periods.  During these six renewal options, all terms and conditions remain 
unchanged except for the term of the Agreement and the rates which are stated in this Modification No. 11.   

 
AGREEMENT TO AMEND CONTRACT  

 
1.0  CHANGE IN TERM 

 1.01 Pursuant to section 2.012, County exercises its third of six options to extend the Second Novation 
from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013. 

Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and sign your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        
 
     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 
 
     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 
 
TITLE:            
            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT 

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
BY:            
      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 02T00038OJ    PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES 
 
 
 
2.0   RATES FOR FIRST OPTION OF SECOND NOVATION  
 

The monthly rates applicable to Basic Life and AD&D coverage for active employees for 
the third option exercised under the second novation of this agreement for each type of 
coverage are as follows: 

 

TYPE AND LEVEL 
OF COVERAGE 

RATE APPLICATION  Third Option of Second 
Novation Agreement FY13

Basic Term Life  Per $1,000 of Coverage $.14 

Basic AD&D  Per $1,000 of Coverage $.025 

 
3.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT AND EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

3.01 Company and County hereby incorporate this amendment into the Initial Contract 
as amended in Modification 4 and Modification 8. Company and County hereby ratify all of the 
terms and conditions of the Initial Contract as amended.  
 

3.02 The changes to the Initial Contract and rates stated in this Modification 11 are 
effective on October 1, 2012. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



March 16, 2012 
 
TO:  Bonnie Floyd- Purchasing Agent  
 
 
FROM: Cindy Purinton, Benefit Administrator  
  John Rabb-HRMD 
 
SUBJECT: Contract # 02T000380J 

Basic Life AD&D contract- FY13 
 
 
Vendor services related to the above contract have been performed to the 
County’s satisfaction. Please initiate the extension of their contract to the next 
option period. The renewal information is shown below. 
This County funded contract is funded from liability account: 898-0000-205-26-20 
 
If you have any questions, please contact John Rabb at 8542742 or Cindy 
Purinton at 854-9626. 
 
Fund account number 
Basic Life- Per $1 000 of $.14             898-000-205-26-20 coverage Paid by County 
Basic AD&D- Per $1,000 of $.025       898-000-205-26-20 coverage Paid by County 

 

HRMD 

Human Resources Management 
Department 

1010 Lavaca Street, Suite 200 P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-3128 • • • 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve twenty four-month extension (Modification No. 6) to Contract 
No. 4400001100 (HTE Contract No. 06T00061OJ), Life Insurance Co. of 
North America, Supplemental Employee Life and AD&D Coverage; 
Dependent Life Coverage; Employee Spouse Life Coverage; Retiree 
and Retiree Spouse Life Coverage; Stand-alone Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment Coverage; Short Term Disability and Long Term 
Disability coverage for Travis County Employees, Retirees, and 
Dependents. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This contract provides for the provision of optional Supplemental 
Employee Life and AD&D Coverage; Dependent Life Coverage; 
Employee Spouse Life Coverage; Retiree and Retiree Spouse Life 
Coverage; Stand-alone Accidental Death and Dismemberment 
Coverage; Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability coverage for 
county employees, retirees and dependents; all beginning October 1, 
2011.  The product is completely optional and fully paid by employees.  
The Commissioners Court approved the initial contract award on 
November 1, 2005. 

Pursuant to the Request for Proposals Number P110149-OJ, this 
Modification No. 6 is issued as the extension and expansion of that 
Collateral Agreement which is collateral to and amends Policy 
Numbered OK 960892 for Voluntary Accidental Death or 
Dismemberment Coverage, which was issued to Travis County, Texas 
by Life Insurance Company of America and extends the Collateral 
Agreement to Policies Numbered FLX 964188, FLX 964189, OK 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 32



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

965800, VDT 960952, and VDT 960953 all to be issued to Travis 
County, Texas by Life Insurance Company of America and to be 
effective October 1, 2011.  It amends the paragraph entitled TERM OF 
AGREEMENT of Agreement Collateral to Policy by giving the County a 
new two year term and the option to extend the policy for two additional 
one year periods.  The policies to which the Agreement Collateral is 
extended provide the following coverage: Employee and Dependent Life 
Coverage; Retiree and Dependent Life Coverage; Accidental Death or 
Dismemberment Coverage associated with Employee and Dependent 
Life Coverage; and Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability for 
county employees that begins October 1, 2011. 

Modification No. 5 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for an additional twelve (12) months, through September 30, 2011.  The 
rates, which have been the same for the past five (5) years, will remain 
unchanged for this period also. 

Modification No. 4 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for an additional twelve (12) months, through September 30, 2010.  It 
was approved by the Commissioners Court on July 28, 2009.  

Modification No. 3 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for an additional twelve (12) months, through September 30, 2009.  It 
was approved by the Commissioners Court on September 30, 2008.  

Modification No. 2 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for an additional twelve (12) months, through September 30, 2008.  It 
was approved by the Commissioners Court on July 31, 2007.  

Modification No. 1 was previously issued to extend the contract period 
for an additional twelve (12) months, through September 30, 2007.  It 
was approved by the Commissioners Court on September 5, 2006. 

There are no County funds expended on this contract.  Funds are 100% 
paid by the County employees. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this requirement. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: Not Applicable 
Modification Type: Bilateral 
Modification Period: October 1, 2011 – September 30, 2013 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 Funding Information: 

  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 
  Comments: No County funds.  This is 100% paid by County 

employees. 
 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: O6T00061OJ, Voluntary Benefit Coverage (CIGNA) PAGE 1 OF 12 PAGES

ISSUED BY: PURCHASiNG AGENT ASST: DATE PREPARED:

PURCHASING OFFICE CW Bruner August 24, 2012
700 LAVACA STREET, 8FLOOR TEL. NO: (512) 854-9760
AUSTiN, TX 78701 FAX NO: (512) 854-4211

ISSUED TO: MODIFICATION NO.: EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL
CONTRACT:Life Insurance Co. of North America

Attn: David T. Evans 6 November 1, 2005
1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, PA 191 92-223 5
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1.2005— September 30.2007 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES: October 1,2011—October 1.2013

FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:

Original Contract Amount: $ N/A Current Modified Amount $ N/A

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES: Except as provided herein, all tems, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore
modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.

This amendment number six to Collateral Agreement With Life Insurance Company of North America for Voluntary
Accidental Death or Dismemberment Coverage is made by the following parties:
Life Insurance Company of North America, a Pennsylvania corporation (“Company”) and Travis County, Texas (“County”).

RECITALS

County and Company entered into a contract for Voluntary Accidental Death or Dismemberment Coverage for
county employees that began October 1, 2005 and extended annually since then.

In March, 2011, County distributed a Request for Proposals (RFP # P1101 49-OJ) to qualified companies to provide
group employee benefits, such as long term disability, and life and accidental death and dismemberment insurance.
Company provided the best negotiated offer for coverages and services.

This modification 6 is the first novation of that Collateral Agreement which is collateral to and amends Policy
Numbered OK 960892 for Voluntary Accidental Death or Dismemberment Coverage, which is issued to Travis County,
Texas by Life Insurance Company of America and extends the Collateral Agreement to Policies Numbered FLX 964188,
FLX 964189, OK 965800, VDT 960952, and VDT 960953 all issued to Travis County, Texas by Life Insurance Company
of America. It amends the paragraph entitled TERM OF AGREEMENT of Agreement Collateral to Policy by giving the
County a new two year term and the option toextend the policy for two additional one year periods. The policies to which
the Agreement Collateral is extended provide the following coverage: Employee and Dependent Life Coverage; Retiree and
Dependent Life Coverage; Accidental Death or Dismemberment Coverage associated with Employee and Dependent Life
Coverage; and Short Term Disability and Long Term Disability for county employees that begins October 1, 2011.

Note to Vendor:

IX J Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County.

I I DO NOT execute and return to Travis County. Retain for your records.

0 DBA
LIFE INSURANCE CO. OF NORTH AMERICA

BY:______________

OORATION

SIGNAJRE JI
Jeffrey PlYgh DATE:

TITLE: (IVl d (wnlwi5 0 g Cct n S j2 (@ &-t-o (
ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGE’TT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:____________________________________________
CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT

TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DATE:

BY:________________________________________________
SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # O6t00061OJ, VOLUNTARYBENEFITCOVERAGE PAGE 2 OF 12 PAGES

AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT COLLATERAL TO POLICIES

1.01 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, the following defmitions are deleted: 1.02
Administrative Staff and 1.03 Agent, 1.07 Insurance Contract and the following is inserted in place of
1.07:

1.07 “Insurance Contract” and “Insurance Contracts” means one or more of the following
contracts of insurance:

1.07.1 Policy Numbered OK 960892 for Voluntary Accidental Death or
Dismemberment Coverage issued to County by Company effective October 1, 2005.

1.07.2 Policy Numbered FLX 964188 for Active full-time Employee and
Dependent Voluntary Life Coverage issued to County by Company effective October 1,
2011.

1.07.3 Policy Numbered FLX 964189 for Retiree and Dependent Voluntary Life
Coverage issued to County by Company effective October 1, 2011.

1.07.4 Policy Numbered OK 965800 for Accidental Death or Dismemberment
Coverage, which is issued to County by Company effective October 1, 2011 and the
coverage level for which is limited by County in the enrollment process to the coverage
level selected by the insured for Active fulJ-time Emp1Qycc pd cpcndeit Voluntary Life
Coverage.

1.07.5 Policy Numbered VDT 960952 for Voluntary Short Term Disability
Coverage issued to County by Company effective October 1, 2011.

1.07.6 Policy Numbered VDT 960953 for Voluntary Long Term Disability
Coverage issued to County by Company effective October 1, 2011.

1.02 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 2.0 TERM OF AGREEMENT is deleted and the
following is inserted in its place:

2.01 The initial Agreement Collateral commenced at 12:01 a. m. on October 1, 2005 and
ended at 12:01 a. m. on October 1, 2006. County exercised its options to extend the Agreement
Collateral and the Policy for 5 additional one year periods. The First Novation of the Agreement
Collateral and incorporation of the additional policies described in this modification commences at
12:01 a. m. on October 1, 2011 and ends at 12:01 a. m. on October 1, 2013 (“Agreement Period”).

2.02 County has the option to extend the Agreement Collateral and all Policies associated
with it for 2 additional one year periods. (“Annual Option Periods”) and 3 additional one month
periods (“Monthly Option Periods”). During each Option Period, all terms and conditions remained
unchanged except the term of the Agreement Collateral and Policies being extended. The options,
if exercised, must be executed by County no sooner than ninety days before the expiration of this
agreement or any extension and no later than the fmal day of the agreement term. Failure by
County to exercise either option to extend shall be deemed to be County’s notice according to the
terms of the affected Policy of County’s intention to terminate the Policy for which the option has
not been exercised and that the Policy must expire at the end of the then current Policy term.
Failure by County to exercise an option to extend any of the Policies associated with this
Agreement means that this Agreement must also expire at the end of the then current agreement
period.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t0006 1OJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE 3 OF 12 PAGES

1.03 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 5.03 is deleted and the following is inserted in its
place:

5.03 Company must provide County with a copy of the certificate booklets, and claim forms
for all services and coverages in an electronic format for both the annual open enrollment and “new
employee” enrollment throughout the year. Company must send a representative to attend each
annual open enrollment and each weekly new employee orientation.

1.04 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 6.0 INSURANCE COVERAGE AND BENEFITS is
deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

6.0 INSURANCE COVERAGE AND BENEFITS

6.01 During the agreement period and effective October 1, 2011, Company must provide

6.01.1 the services described in this Agreement and in Attachments 2 and G-1 for
County and its employees and retirees, as applicable, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this agreement; in compliance with the assurances, certifications, and all other
statements made by Company in Attachments 2 and G- 1; and

6.01.2 the coverage for County employees and retirees, as applicable, who enroll, in
a timely manner as agreed upon by Company and County, for one or more of the coverages
described in the Insurance Contracts and this agreement in the manner established by
County; in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Insurance Contract and this
Agreement; in compliance with the assurances, certifications, and all other statements made
by Company in Attachments 2 and G- 1.

6.02 If Company does not provide the Account Management and Customer Services in
compliance with Attachment G-2 Table of Services-Performance Measures, Company shall pay
County the penalty indicated in the table for the service that is not in compliance. Company shall
evaluate this management and these services for compliance with the standards semi-annually. The
amount at risk is 2% of the total premium on all six policies and the maximum PG dollars at risk are
$20,000 per year.

6.03 Company shall provide County specific enrollment communication and support
including County brochures and applications.

6.04 Company shall provide County with specimen copies of (i) standard letter
templates commonly used in adjudicating claims; and (ii) any materials intended for use in
marketing or communicating the insurance benefits. No such materials described in (ii) shall be
used without County’s approval.

6.05 For Policy Number OK 960892, Company shall assist in the administration by
responding to employee questions and providing beneficiaries with information for claims, upon
request.

6.06 For Policy Number OK 965800, Policy Number FLX 964188, and Policy Number FLX
964189, Company shall assist in the administration by responding to employee questions and
providing beneficiaries with information for claims, upon request.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t0006 1 OJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFiT COVERAGE PAGE 4 OF 12 PAGES

6.07 In Policy Number VDT 960952 under Termination of Insurance on page 4, in the
sentence “Any period of Disability, regardless of cause, that begins when the Employee is
eligible under another group disability coverage provided by any employer, will not be covered.”
the word “eligible” means that the Employee is within an eligible class and has become insured
and is eligible to file a claim for benefits unless the Employee is no longer employed by Travis
County and in that case, the former employee need only eligible to enroll in the new employer’s
disability coverage but the former employee would be able to file a claim under this policy if the
former employee has a successive period of disability.

6.08 For Policy Number VDT 960952 and Policy Number VDT 960953, Company shall
provide Disability Program Support Services as shown in Attachment G-3 and the administration of
these policies shall be as outlined in the CIGNA Administrative Services Overview for employer-
administered plans, also as shown in Attachment G-3

6.09 Company shall provide County employees, retirees and the dependents of both who
are enrolled in the following coverages with the following SERVICES:

SERVICE AD&D (all)
Life

STD LTD
Employee/Retiree Dependent

Healthy Rewards ® X X X X X

Will Preparation X X X X X

ClGNAssurance ® X X X

CIGNA Identity Theft Program X X X

CIGNA Secure Travel ® X

6.10 The SERVICES include the following additional services:

6.10.1 Healthy Rewards ® offers discounts on a range of heather and wellness
related services and products, including discounts on Weight Watchers and smoking
cessation programs, chiropractic care, anti-cavity products, power toothbrushes, fitness club
memberships, hearing and vision care, massage therapy, acupuncture, pharmacy vitamins
and other products.

6.10.2 Will Preparation provides access to a website that has an interactive tool that
helps covered employees and their covered spouses create a will and other legal documents
and other valuable financial educational materials.

6.10.3 CiGNAssurance ® provides comprehensive beneficiary services including
financial, bereavement and legal counseling and setting-up interest bearing accounts for
balances of $5,000 or more.

6.10.4 CIGNA Identity Theft Program provides Identity Theft Resolution services
for all types of identity theft and includes access to personal case managers who will work
with employees and their covered family members to resolved identity theft issues with
support available 24 hours a day, seven days a week as described more fully in Attachment
G-6.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t0006lOJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGES OF 12 PAGES

6.10.5 CIGNA Secure Travel ® offers travel assistance on trips more than 100
miles from home, including medical evacuation and repatriation with no maximum limits as
described more fully in Attachment G-5.

6.11 Company must provide detailed reports on the experience each of the coverages at
least quarterly.

1.05 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 7.0 RATES FOR COVERAGE is amended to add the
following after 7.01:

7.02 Company must give County notice of the rates applicable to Voluntary Short Term
Disability Coverage for third option period no later than the March 1, 2014. Any change in these
rates must be calculated based on the following formula:

Where:

Loss Ratio Reserves for claims incurred but not paid plus Paid Claims all policies, 10-1-2011 to 1-31-2014
Premiums paid for all policies, 10-1-2011 to 1-31-2014

the increase in the composite rate shall not exceed the following percentage increases based on the
following loss ratios:

Loss Ratio Maximum Increase
Less than 80% 0%
Between 80-90% 10%
Between 90-95% 20%
Over 95% 30%

Md the composite rate must be based on the following experience rated formula:

7.06.1 Incurred Claims from October 1, 2011 to January 31, 2014 are
divided by Paid Premiums from October 1, 2011 to January 31, 2014 to determine the Loss
Ratio.

7.06.3 The Loss Ratio is divided by Permissible Loss Ratio and then
multiplied by the in force rate to detenriine the Experience Rate.

7.06.4 The Experience Rate is multiplied by the credibility factor to
determine the portion of the composite rate determined by Travis County experience.

7.06.5 The Company manual rate is multiplied by [1 minus the credibility
factor] to determine the portion of the composite rate determined by the overall experience of
the Company.

7.06.6 The portion of the composite rate determined by Travis County experience
as determined in step 7.06.4 is added to the portion of the composite rate determined by the
overall experience of the Company as determined in 7.06.5 to determine the composite rate
payable.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t00061OJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE 6 OF 12 PAGES

7.08 Company must give County notice of the rates applicable to any coverage for any
additional option period no later than the March 1, of the calendar year in which the rates are to
become effective.

1.06 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 10.0 iNDEMNIFICATION AND CLAIMS
NOTIFICATION is deleted and the following is inserted in its place:

10.0 INDEMNIFICATION

10.01 Company, in its capacity as insurer of benefits under the Policies, shall be directly
and solely responsible for the payment of benefit claims asserted under the Policies. Company
agrees to assume responsibility for the defense, settlement and payment of such claims, whether
they are asserted against the County, its employee benefit plans, or their respective officials,
employees or agents. This obligation shall not include any liability or damages resulting from the
acts or omissions of the County, its employee benefit plans, or their respective officials,
employees or agents.

1.07 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 18.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT is deleted and the
following is inserted in its place:

18.0 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

18.01 All oral and written agreements between the parties to this agreement
relating to the subject matter of this agreement that were made prior to the execution of this
agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this agreement.

18.02 The attachments numbered and named below are made a part of this
agreement, and constitute promised performances by Company and County. If there is any conflict
between this document and the attachments to it, the conflict must be resolved to give effect to the
contents of the attachments and to disregard the conflicting portions of this document.

18.03 The Voluntary Personal Protection Optional AD&D Attachments include
the following:

Attachment 1, Group Accident Policy (Policy number 0K960892) Draft
Policy

Attachment 2, Portions of Cigna’s Response to Request for Proposals

Attachment 3, CIGNA Secure Travel® Emergency Travel Assistance
Services by Worldwide Assistance Services, Inc.
Corporate Service Agreement

Attachment 4, Affidavit and Proposer Certification Form (4 pages)

AttachmentS, Amendment (3 pages)

18.04 The General Attachments that apply to more than one Insurance Contract,
are attached to this Modification 6, and include:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t00061OJ, VOLUNTARYBENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE7OF 12 PAGES

Attachment G-l, Portions of Company’s Response to Request for
Proposals: -pages 1-3 Executive Summary; page 14 of 63
through page 43 of 63, except for top half of page 1, the
answer to question 1 on page 14; the answer to question 7
on page 21; reference to EOI on page 38 and the answer
to 6.6 and the 8 reference to EOI in question 7.2 on page
40.

Attachment G-2, Table of Service-Performance Measures
Attachment G-3, Disability Program Support Services and CIGNA

Administrative Overview
Attachment G-4, Agreement Concerning Designation of Beneficiaries

Using Electronic Systems

Attachment G-5, ERISA Coverage Worksheet

Attachment G-6, CIGNA Secure Travel® Emergency Travel Assistance
Services by Europ Assistance USA, Inc.

Attachment G-7, CIGNA Identity Theft Program

18.05 The new Insurance Contract Attachments are attached to this Modification 6 and
include the following:

Attachment IC-i, Group Accidental Death or Dismemberment Policy
limited by level of Employee Life Coverage (Policy
number OK 965800) Policy

Attachment IC-2, Group Active full-time Employee and Dependent
Voluntary Life Policy (Policy number FLX 964188)
Policy

Attachment IC-3, Group Retiree and Dependent Voluntary Life Policy
(Policy number FLX 964189) Policy

Attachment IC-4, Group Voluntary Short Term Disability Policy (Policy
number VDT 960952) Policy

Attachment IC-5, Group Voluntary Long Term Disability Policy (Policy
number VDT 960953) Policy

18.06 The Audit Attachment is attached to this Modification 6 and is as follows:

Attachment A-i, Claim Audit Agreement (2 pages)

18.07 The Ethics Attachment is attached to this Modification 6 and is as follows:

Attachment E-1, Affidavit and Proposer Certification Form (4 pages)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t0006 1 OJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFiT COVERAGE PAGE 8 OF 12 PAGES

1.08 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, 19.02 is deleted and the following is inserted in its
place:

19.02 The address of County for all purposes under this agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes (or her successor in office)
Purchasing Agent
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767-1748

With copy to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Honorable David A. Escamilla (or his successor in office)
Travis County Attorney
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767-1748

1.09 Pursuant to 13.01 of the Agreement Collateral, the following sections 22.0
RETIREE/SURVTV1NG SPOUSE ADMTMSTRATION AND RATES through 34. CONFLICT OF
INTEREST QUESTIONAIRE inclusive are added at the end of2 1.08:

22.0 RETiREE/SURVIVING SPOUSE ADMINISTRATION AND RATES

22.01 Administrative Services for retirees and their surviving spouses who elect life insurance
coverage shall consist of the following:

22.01.1 Company shall produce an annual billing to the Retiree directly to their residence
or other address identified to Company by County.

22.01.2 Company shall accept payments of premiums as made directly from them and
maintain accounting records of the payments.

22.01.3 Company shall send a late flotice to their address if premiums not been paid within
30 days of the stated due date.

22.01.4 Company shall send a second notice will be sent to their address if premiums have
not been paid within 60 days of the stated due date.

22.01.5 Company shall provide the Travis County Benefit Manager with reports,
identif’ing Retirees described in 22.01.3. County shall, on Company’s behalf, contact such
Retirees to remind them of their premium payment deadline and to advise Company of any
circumstances affecting payment of premiums. County acknowledges that, in performing this
function, Company shall be required to disclose to it certain individually identifiable personal
information which is subject to protection under insurance privacy laws. County acknowledges
that such information is to be treated confidentially, and used solely for the purpose of
performing the functions identified herein. County shall assume responsibility for any liability
resulting from breach of this provision by County.

22.01.6 Notice will be sent to Retirees at their address notifying them of life insurance
termination for non-payment following the end of the Policy’s grace period for individual

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t0006IOJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE 9 OF 12 PAGES

premium payments. Prior to sending such notices, Company shall contact County to discuss the
result of County’s contacts made pursuant to paragraph 22.01.5.

22.01.7 Company shall provide an assigned 800 number available to retirees and
surviving spouses with billing questions.

22.02 The administration of County retiree benefit premiums for life coverage for the first year,
first option year and second option years of this agreement shall be included in the premium for the coverage.

23.0 FOB POINT

23.01 Delivery of all products, reports or services under this contract shall be Free on
Board (FOB) to final destination at the address shown below.

Human Resources Management Department
Attn: Mr. Dan Mansour, Risk and Benefits Manager
700 Lavaca Street, 4th Floor
Austin, Texas 78701

24.0 DISPUTES AND APPEALS

24.D1 The Purchasing Agent acts as the County representative in the issuance and
administration of this contract in relation to disputes. Any document, notice, or correspondence
not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County person, in relation to
disputes is void unless otherwise stated in this contract. If the Company does not agree with any
document, notice, or correspondence issued by the Purchasing Agent, or other authorized County
person, the Company must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent within ten (10)
calendar days after receipt of the document, notice, or correspondence, outlining the exact point
of disagreement in detail. If the matter is not resolved to the Company’s satisfaction, Company
may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the Commissioners Court, through the Purchasing
Agent, if the Notice is submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the unsatisfactory
reply. Company then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court.

25.0 COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

25.01 The Company warrants that, except as disclosed, no persons or selling agency has
been retained to solicit this contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage,
brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established commercial
selling agencies maintained by the Company to secure business. For breach or violation of this
warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this contract without liability, or in its
discretion, as applicable, to add to or deduct from the contract price for consideration, or
otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee.

26.0 COUNTY ACCESS

26.01 Company shall maintain and make available all books, documents, and other evidence
pertinent to the costs and expenses of this contract for inspection, audit or reproduction by any
authorized representative of County to the extent this detail will properly reflect these costs and
expense. These include all costs; both direct and indirect costs, cost of labor, material,
equipment, supplies, and services, and all other costs and expenses of whatever nature for which

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t00061OJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE 10 OF 12 PAGES

reimbursement is claimed under this contract. All required records shall be maintained until an
audit is completed and all required questions arising there from are resolved, or 3 years after
completion of the contract term, whichever occurs first; however, the records shall be retained
beyond the third year if an audit is in progress or the findings of a completed audit have not been
resolved satisfactorily. If County decides to audit Company, County and Company shall enter into
a Claim Audit Agreement in the form attached to this agreement.

27.0 MONITORING

27.01 County reserves the right to perform periodic on-site monitoring of Company’s
compliance with the terms of this contract, and of the adequacy and timeliness of Company’s
performance under this contract. After each monitoring visit, County shall provide Company
with a written report of the monitor’s findings. If the report notes deficiencies in Company’s
performances under the, terms of this contract, it shall include requirements and deadlines for the
correction of those deficiencies by Company. Company shall take action specified in the
monitoring report prior to the deadlines specified.

28.0 GRATUITIES

28.01 County may terminate this contract if it is found that gratuities of any kind
including entertainment, or gifts were offered or given by Compafly or any agent or
representative of Company to any County Official or- employee, with a view toward securing
favorable treatment with respect of this contract. If this contract is terminated by the County
pursuant to this provision, County shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies,
to recover from the Company at least three times the cost incurred by Company in providing the
gratuities.

29.0 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

29.01 During the period of this contract, Company shall maintain at its expense,
insurance with limits not less than those prescribed below. With respect to required insurance,
Company shall:

29.0 1.1 Provide County a waiver of subrogation under Company’s Worker’s
Compensation and Commercial General Liability insurance policies.

29.01.2 Endeavor to provide County with a thirty (30) calendar days advance
written notice of cancellation in instances where policies are cancelled and not replaced
with similar insurance programs.

29.01.3 Provide the County Purchasing Agent at the address shown on Page 1 of
this contract, a Certificate of Insurance evidencing required coverage within ten (10)
calendar days after receipt of Notice of Award and within ten (10) days of each renewal.
Also, please assure your certificate contains the contract number as indicated on the
Contract Award form when issued by Travis County.

29.0 1.4 Submit an original certificate of insurance reflecting coverage as follows:

Management Liability (Directors and Officers, Fiduciary) $15,000,000.00
(aggregate limit available is not less than the stated amount)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t00061OJ, VOLUNTARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE 11 OF 12 PAGES

Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) $5,000,000.00
(aggregate limit available is not less than the stated amount)

Fidelity (Crime) Bond $20,000,000.00
(aggregate limit available is not less than the stated amount)

Network Liability (Privacy) $10,000,000.00
(aggregate limit available is not less than the stated amount)

Worker’s Compensatiorr Statutory

Employers Liability:
Accidental Bodily Injury (Each injury) $100,000.00
By Disease $100,000.00
Aggregate for disease $5,000,000.00

Commercial General Liability (Including Contractual Liability):
Personal Injury, Bodily Injury, Property Damage.
(Combined Single Limit) $2,000,000.00

Security and Privacy Liability Coverage:
Intangible Property Loss of Personal Data Information andJor do not address
perils.

29.02 Coverage may be layered as assigned by Company but the aggregate limit
available shall not be less than the stated amounts. Policies for these coverage’s except
Professional liability must be issued by an insurance company that is authorized to do business in
Texas and has an A M Best rating of at least A.

30.0 COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

30.01 Company must comply with all Federal and State laws and regulations,
City and County ordinances, orders, and regulations, relating in any way to this contract.

31.0 DISBURSEMENTS PROHIBITED BY LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE, § 154.045

31.01 In 31.0, “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising
from written contracts with the County.

31.02 If notice of Debt has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer
evidencing the Debt of Company to the state, County or a salary fund, a check or warrant may not
be drawn on a County fund in favor of the Company, or an agent or assignee of Company until
the County Treasurer notifies Company in writing that the Debt is outstanding and the Debt is
paid.

31.03 County may apply any funds County owes Company to the outstanding balance
of Debt for which notice is made under section 32.02 if the notice includes a statement that the
amount owed by the County to Company may be applied to reduce the outstanding Debt.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT # 06t0006 1 OJ, VOLU1TARY BENEFIT COVERAGE PAGE 12 OF 12 PAGES

32.0 CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY

32.01 Company certifies that at the time of submission of its offer, it was not on the
Federal Government’s list of suspended, ineligible, or debarred contractors and that Company has
not been placed on this list between the time of that its offer was submitted and the time of
execution of this contract. If Company is placed on the list during the term of this contract,
Company shall notify the Travis County Purchasing Agent. False certification or failure to notify
may result in terminating this contract for default.

33.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

33.01 If required under Chapter 176 Texas Local Government Code, Company shall
file an updated, completed questionnaire with the Travis County Clerk not later than the seventh
(7th) business day after the date of any event that would make a statement in the questionnaire
filed previously incomplete or inaccurate. As between County and Company, Company shall be
solely responsible for the preparation of its Conflict of Interest Questionnaire, the accuracy and
completeness of the content contained therein and ensuring compliance with all applicable
requirements of Chapter 176, Local Government Code.

2.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT

2.01 County and Company incorporate this amendment into the Agreement with Life Insurance
Company of America for Voluntary Accidental Death or Dismemberment Coverage. County and
Company ratify all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

3.0 EFFECTIVE DATE

3.01 The changes in this modification are effective October 1, 2011.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Group Disability, Life and Accident Implementation Welcome Package

Welcome to CIGNA Group Insurance! This package contains a group of forms and documents necessary for the
implementation of your CIGNA Group Insurance Disability, Life and/or Accident insurance benefits. We’ve included a
chart that provides a description of each document and clarifies your action required. To assure operational readiness and
accurate set-up of your benefit plan(s) please complete this application by signing in the space provided.

Applicant (Full Legal Name): County of Travis

Address: 314 W. 11th St., Room 400 City: Austin State: TX Zip Code: 78701

Taxpayer ID No.: 74-6000192

We acknowledge receipt of this Implementation Welcome Package. We confirm the accuracy of the proposal as described in the
policies attached to Modification 6 of Contract #06T0006 1 OJ from the underwriting company(ies) named below and hereby
accept the terms and conditions of that proposal and any attachments or modifications made to the proposal.

Oma Claunch is the producer identified on the attached Authorization of Payment of Commission and Service Fees
(Exhibit)

We acknowledge receipt of the Privacy Notice.

We understand that the following insurance policies may be issued to the Group Insurance Trust for Employers in the
Public Administration Industry.

REQUESTED INSURANCE REQUESTED
EFFECTIVE DATE

COVERAGE: Group Term Life - Employee 10/1/2011

UNDERWRITING COMPANY: Life Insurance Company of North America
COVERAGE: Group Term Life - Retiree 10/1/2011

UNDERWRITING COMPANY: Life Insurance Company of North America
COVERAGE: Group Voluntary Accident 10/1/2011

UNDERWRITING COMPANY: Life Insurance Company of North America
COVERAGE: Group Voluntary Short-Term Disability 10/1/2011

UNDERWRITING COMPANY: Life Insurance Company of North America
COVERAGE: Group Voluntary Long-Term Disabifity 10/1/2011

UNDERWRITING COMPANY: Life Insurance Company of North America

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



We hereby adopt the above-named trust as co-settlor and subscribe to that trust for the purpose of participating in these
policies, which shall only cover our eligible employees, and, retirees and dependents. We confirm the appointment of
Wilmington Trust Company as Trustee, and of Life Insurance Company of North America (“LINA”) as trust
administrator. We appoint LENA, in its capacity as trust administrator, to represent us in dealings with the Trustee related
to the insurance trust. We understand that, in the event the policy(ies) are terminated for any reason, we will cease to be a
participant in the insurance trust. We understand that no benefits are provided by the trust other than the benefits
described in the insurance policy(ies).

Travis County, Texas

By: Samuel T. Biscoe. County Judge Date:
(Signature and Title of Applicant’s Authorized Representative)

Austin.TX
(City and State)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



a
CIGNA Group Insurance
Lfr M.ri&rn )ibUty

Disclosure of Payment of Commissions and Service Fees

Oma Claunch is the broker/consultant of record in connection with the policy.

We acknowledge that the insurance company will pay commissions to the broker/consultant at the following rates:

Product Policy Numbers
Life FLX-964 188, FLX-964 189
Accident OK-965800
STD VDT-960952
LTD VDT-960953

Product Percentage
Life — Voluntary Case Specific 05%
Effective Date: 10/1/2011
Accident — Voluntary Case Specific 05%
Effective Date: 10/1/20 1 1
STD — Voluntary Case Specific 05%
Effective Date: 10/1/2011
LTD — Voluntary Case Specific 05%
Effective Date: 10/1/2011

We understand and acknowledge that CIGNA Group Insurance companies may have entered into, or may enter into, an
agreement with the broker/consultant, under which the insurance company compensates the broker/consultant for
providing marketplace intelligence and other services intended to enhance the effectiveness of the insurance company’s
business. This additional compensation is contingent on meeting new business and persistency goals.

The following describes the compensation available under the program under which the broker is eligible to participate.
Terms of the program are subject to change.

• New Business. Payments made are a percentage of total annualized premium, based on number of new cases sold
and annualized premium for those eligible cases, and range from 1.5% to 4% of the amount of expected first year
annualized premium (which is the maximum rate payable, if at least $10,000,000 in premium, is sold) depending
on the specific program the broker is eligible to participate in. Brokers must write at least $200,000 of new
business premium or sell three new cases to qualify.

• New Premium Added to Inforce Policies. Payments made are a percentage of total annualized premiums
attributable to acquisitions requiring underwriting by the insurance company, and amendments to increase
benefits or add eligible classes, and is calculated at 1.5% of the amount of expected first year annualized premium
depending on the specific program the broker is eligible to participate in. Brokers must write at least $200,000 of
new business premium or sell three new cases to qualify.

• Persistency. Persistency measures the number of policies (weighted by premium) which were in force at the
beginning of the year which are still in force at the end of the year. Payments made are a percentage of total
earned premium, and range from 0% to 2% of total aggregate premium for those eligible cases (which is the
maximum rate payable, if persistency is 95% or greater) depending on the specific program the broker is eligible

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



to participate in. Brokers must have a book of business of at least $250,000 at the start of the year, and write at
least $200,000 of new business premium or sell three new cases, to qualify.

Cross-Sell. Payments made are a percentage of total annualized premium for business sold to an existing CIGNA
Healthcare or CIGNA International Expatriate Benefits customer OR sold along with a new CIGNA Healthcare
medical product or new CIGNA International Expatriate Benefits product to the same customer, and range from
1% to 1.5% of the amount of expected first year annualized premium (which is the maximum rate payable, if at
least $1,000,000 in premium, is sold). Brokers must write at least $50,000 of new business premium to a cross-
sell customer to qualify. In addition, your policies may be used to establish eligibility in the cross-sell programs of
CIGNA Healthcare and/or CIGNA International Expatriate Benefits.

This compensation is funded from the insurance company’s overhead and is based on the broker’s overall book of
business with the insurance company. Any such payments are separate from commissions and, if applicable, will be
included in ERISA Form 5500, Schedule A information provided by the insurance company.

We also understand that the insurance company may invite the broker to participate in events sponsored by the insurance
company for the same purposes.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CIGNA
A Business ofCaring.

Important Privacy Notice — Please Read

As a customer of a CIGNA company’, we want to assure you that we recognize our obligation to keep our customers’ protected
information secure and confidential. This notice explains our privacy practices and it should answer questions about how we protect
personal information. We will continue to safeguard the privacy of the information provided to us. Thank you for giving us the
opportunity to serve you. (If you are an Employer or Group Sponsor, please make this information available for review by your
employees or members as appropriate.)

This notice applies to insurance products underwritten, or administered by, the Life Insurance Company of North America and
CIGNA Life Insurance Company of New York, Life and Disability products underwritten by Connecticut General Life Insurance
Company, and insurance products underwritten by Insurance Company of North America administered by the CIGNA companies.
Information is the key to our ability to provide you with best in class service. Regardless of whether you are a customer, applicant,
insured, or former insured, we are committed to protecting and maintaining the privacy of any information in our possession.

COLLECTION AND USE OF INFORMATION
We may collect protected information about our customers for use in the processing and evaluation of applications or eligibility for
insurance, investigating a claim for benefits, and in developing financial plans. This information will be used by authorized company
personnel solely for these purposes, and it may be integrated into our databases for statistical and audit purposes. Protected
information means any non-public, personally identifiable information including financial information, employment related
information and medical information. Unless permitted by law, we will only collect information from sources other than our
customers with authorization.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
We do not disclose any protected information about our customers or former customers to anyone except as permitted by law. We do
not sell customer lists or other protected information. With some exceptions, we will not disclose protected information without
written authorization. There are circumstances when we will disclose protected information related to medical underwriting or a claim
investigation or other activities relating to your insurance plan without authorization to third parties or affiliates assisting us with these
activities, as permitted by law. We will also disclose protected information to third parties without authorization as required by law,
such as in the case of subpoenas and mandated governmental disclosures.

PROTECTING YOUR INFORMATION
We have internal policies to maintain the privacy of our customers’ protected information. These include but are not limited to
policies related to the transmission, storage and disposal of paper and electronic information; the prevention of unauthorized access
and damage to systems, including damage due to environmental hazards; and assigning and terminating user IDs.

“CIGNA” is a registered trademark licensed for the use of insurance company subsidiaries of CIGNA Corporation. All products and
services are provided by insurance company subsidiaries and not the corporation itself. As used herein, “CIGNA” refers to these
subsidiaries, which include the Life Insurance Company of North America, CIGNA Life Insurance Company of New York and
Connecticut General Life Insurance Company.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment G- 1 Portions of Company’s Response
ExEcuTIvE OVERVIEW to Request for Proposals

PREPARED FOR TRAVIS COUNTY

Working Together to Make a Difference

Your account management team will work closely with you to create a service plan that
outlines all implementation, enrollment, and communications goals. We concentrate on
providing consultative plan designs that emphasize health and wellness and affordable
coverages to support your budgetary goals. From case installation to contract renewals, your
account management team will work on your behalf to deliver seamless service.

When it comes to providing coverages and programs that protect individuals and their families,
we believe education is key. Your account management team will work with you to develop a
communications plan. This plan focuses on educating individuals on the advantages of services
that are available to help keep them at their healthiest, all year long.

We can also offer any of the following administrative services: beneficiary administration,
conversion/portability notice distribution, and/or online evidence of insurability.

Value-Added Programs and Services that Make a Difference to Your Employees

We want to be there for you all the time — not just when your employees need us. We
automatically include the following programs with your coverage:
• CIGNA Healthy Rewards® — discounts of up to 60% on health and wellness products

and services, such as weight management, nutrition, fitness and smoking cessation and
more

• CIGNA’s Identity Theft Program — provides access to personal case managers who
give step-by-step assistance and guidance to individuals who have had their identity
stolen

• CIGNAVs Will Preparation Program — online forms, tools and advice to build state-
specific customized wills, powers of attorney and other legal documents

• ClGNAssurance ProgramSM for Life and Accident Coverage*
— family bereavement

counseling with certified specialists, fmancial information and legal consultation services
*Cergain services are not available through CIGNA Life Insurance Company ofNew York.

CIGNA Group Insurance Page 1 © 2011 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ExEcuTIvE OVERVIEW

PREPARED FOR TRAVIS COUNTY

Individual Customer Services — online life and disability insurance calculators are
available to help determine needs, and individuals on disability have access to
myCIGNA.com, where claim status, payment, and claim manager contact information is
available

• CIGNA’s Life AssistanceSM_ Offered with every long-term disability program (optional
with Life Insurance), provides assessment and referrals to services and experts to help
cope with the stress that often accompanies a disability or illness

• CIGNA Secure Travel®
— Available with Personal Accident, provides emergency

medical, financial, legal, and communications assistance to covered individuals who
travel domestically and internationally.

Voluntary Services to Help You Do More with Less

CIGNA’s voluntary offerings allow you to make coverages available to employees to
purchase on their own. It’s no secret that businesses are under pressure to decrease operating
costs. We can help you do that. We offer several administrative options so that you can focus
on your business, while we take care of your benefits programs.

If you offer at least one voluntary product, we provide the support you need. We offer
communications to your employees, including our education portal, CIGNA Trusted Advisor.
Enrollment and beneficiary administration (online or paper) is available to ease
administrative. Online evidence of insurability and individual call center support is also
available. Eligibility management and list billing capabilities (online, electronic, or paper)
can help you better manage these programs. Distribution of conversion/portability notice is
also included.

While we have the capabilities to offer the full range of administration, we understand that
some customers may want to maintain some aspects of these activities. That’s why our
administrative services also are offered as stand-alone options.

Disability Claim Management Focuses on Return-to-Work

CIGNA’s claim management process offers faster and smarter claim decisions. This helps
individuals maintain their sense of security, so they can focus on recovery and return-to-
work.

• Quicker Claim Decisions — During intake, an automated voice response system records
the individual’s permission to access medical records, making the process easier and
faster.

• Dedicated Claims Teams — Our claim managers handle each claim individually to
ensure that a successful return to work is made whenever possible.

• Re-EmpJoyment Solutions — Vocational rehabilitation counselors dedicated 100 percent
to helping people get back to work, or fmd a newjob that suits their personal situation.

• Social Security Advocacy — We help qualified individuals work through the complicated
application process for Social Security Disability Insurance.

• Reporting — Secure, onime reports, available to employers and mdividuals, give instant
access to claim status, benefits and payment.

CIGNA Group Insurance Page 2 © 2011 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ExEcuTIvE OvERvIEw

PREPARED FOR TRAvIs COUNTY

Accident Protection for Employees and Families

We offer personal and business travel accident, so your employees can feel safe — both home
and away.

• Trained Accident Specialists — Specialized training at Duquesne University’s Institute
of Forensic Science and Law ensures more accurate claim decisions in a shorter
timeframe.

• Specialized Benefits and Coverage — Flexible contracts allow for industry-specific
customization. For example, subject to state requirements, we can offer options, such as
FIIV and Hepatitis C benefits for hospital workers.

• CIGNA Business Travel Accident MedicaFM
— Covers medical care costs for

individuals traveling on company business outside of their country of primary residence.
• War Risk Coverage — Protection for individuals who travel on business to war risk areas

outside of the Unites States.

Term Life Benefits Tailored to Meet Your Needs

Dealing with the death of a loved one is painful enough. We want to take some of that burden
away. That’s why we offer families bereavement counseling and fmancial and legal advice
services through our ClGNAssurance® program*. Life claim specialists process and pay
claims within 10 business days of receipt of all information and are a single point-of-contact
for the employer and the beneficiary.
*Certain services are not available through CIGNA Lfe lirsurance Company ofNew York.

• Transition Protection — Our takeover provision ensures individuals maintain coverage
when transitioning carriers.

• Innovative Approach to Waiver of Premium (WOP) — removes administrative burden
and confusion typically experienced with WOP. We cover all disabled individuals from
day one — without premium payment — as they satisfy the elimination period. Individuals
remain covered even when the policy is cancelled. And, when we provide both Life and
long-term disability coverage, the WOP process is managed at the same time, by one
team. The need for redundant paperwork is eliminated.

• Optional Coverage — To help protect employees’ sense of security and peace of mind,
we offer two accelerated pay-out programs:

- Critical illness provision allows individuals to receive a portion of their life insurance
proceeds if diagnosed with one of six specified diseases.

- Terminal illness provision allows individuals with 12 months or less to live to
withdraw a portion of their life insurance coverage.

We Focus On You, So You Can Focus On Your Business

We look forward to this opportunity with Travis County.We continually look for new ways
to help you better manage employee benefit costs and improve workforce productivity.
Allow us to be experts in tailoring and providing benefits and services that work for you and
your employees, so you can focus on what you do best — your business.

CIGNA Group Insurance Page 3 © 2011 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

2.0 SUPPLEMENTAL LIFE, AD&D, LONG AND SHORT TERM DISABILITY
(PACKAGE 1)

2.1 The current Supplemental Life and AD&D coverage is offered in $25,000
increments up to a maximum of $250,000 or four times an employee
annual salary (rounded up to nearest multiple of $25,000. The maximum
does not include the basic life $50,000).

CIGNA is matching the above benefits.

2.2 New Hires may select any amount (within the above guidelines) when
they do their initial enrollment. At open enrollment each subsequent year
an employee may increase their coverage by one $25,000 increment with
no underwriting. There is a reduction schedule on the supplemental life
and AD&D for active employees. See attachments for the current census,
volume and rates and reduction schedule and plan summaries that
include the reduction schedule.

CIGNA is matching the above benefits.

Copyright 2011 Page 14 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs
RFP P110149-OJ

2.3 A full time active employee is eligible for coverage if they work a
minimum of 20 hours a week in a benefited position. This is guarantee
issue for active employees.

CIGNA is matching the above benefits.

3.0 DEPENDENT LIFE AND SPOUSE LIFE (PACKAGE 1)

3.1 An active employee may choose optional life coverage for their
dependents (legal spouse and children up to age 26). See attached rates
for dependent and spouse optional life.

CIGNA is matching the above benefits with the exception to the child age
which will be 25.

3.2 Currently, it is not necessary to purchase employee life coverage in order
to purchase dependent life coverage. This is guarantee issue. No AD&D
coverage on dependents.

Confirmed.

3.3 The base benefit for this coverage is currently:

3.3.1 Basic Dependent Life currently has one inclusive rate of
$1.54/month for the following types of coverage.

3.3.1.1 $10,000 spouse

3.3.1.2 Child $5,000 (6 months to age 26)

3.3.1.3 Infant $1,000 (14 days to 6 months)

CIGNA is matching the above benefits.

- Travis County
Part 1- General Requirements

Copyright 2011 Page 15 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

3.4 Additional Optional Spouse Life is currently age rated on age of spouse
October 1st of each year.

3.4.1 $10,000

3.4.2 $20,000

CIGNA is matching the above benefits.

4.0 RETIREE LIFE (PACKAGE 1)

4.1 The current retiree and retiree spouse voluntary life product is divided
into coverage for ages 70 or less, and, coverage for ages 71 and over.
There are separate benefits and rates for these two categories. Spouse
must be covered at the time of retirement to be eligible for coverage.

CIGNA is matching the above benefits. - -

4.2 The rate is currently determined by the age of the retiree not the spouse.

Confirmed.

4.3 No reduction schedule exists on retiree life products, other than the
reduction at the time change of category to the over 71 applies.

Confirmed.

4.4 The benefits are currently as follows:

Copyright 2011 Page 16 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs
R1?P P110149-OJ

Travis County
Part 1- Genera] Requirements

4.4.1 Age 70 or less: Retire!

Basic Benefit $15,000 guarantee issue, with an optional buy up option of
$10,000 that requires underwriting based on an evidence of insurability
form, submitted directly by the retiree.

4.4.2 Age 70 or less: Retiree Spouse

Basic Benefit is $7,500 guarantee issue, with an optional buy-up option of
$5,000 that requires underwriting based on an evidence of insurability
form submitted directly by the retiree.

4.4.3 Age 71 or over: Retiree

Basic Benefit $5,000 no buy-up option currently available.

4.4.4 Age 7lor over: Retiree Spouse

Basic Benefit $2,500 no buy-up option currently available.

NOTE: Basic coverage amount decreases and optional buy-up amounts
terminate at age 71.

CIGNA is matching the above benefits.

4.5 NOTE: The County is interested in increasing the coverage amount, or
implementing a buy-up option for Age 71 and over retirees. Please
respond with a buy-up option for this age group and the pricing.

We are not providing a buy up optio this’etjree group at

5.0 REDUCTION SCHEDULE FOR ACTIVE’S LIFE

5.1 The Proposer must indicate the reduction schedule that applies to active
working employees, if any. The Reduction Schedule must not apply to
the retiree and retiree spouse coverage.

Confirmed.

Copyright 2011 Page 17 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

5.2 In the current policy, the reduction schedule for active employees is:

When you reach age 70 Benefit reduces to 65%
When you reach age 75 Benefit reduces to 45%
When you reach age 80 Benefit reduces to 30%
When you reach age 85 Benefit reduces to 15%

CIGNA is matching the above reduction schedule.

6.0 ADDITIONAL BENEFITS FOR ALL LIFE

6.1 Also included in the County’s current supplemental life and AD&D
coverage are the following benefits:

• Accelerated Benefit

• Conversion

• Work Life Assistance Program

• Repatriation Benefit

• Seatbelt and airbag benefit

• Education Benefit

Proposer must indicate if these coverages are included in the proposal
and provide details. (See attachment #1 for Plan details).

Accelerated Benefit

CIGNA offers an employer-selected feature called terminal illness. This
feature helps insureds cope with medical costs and household expenses during
a terminal illness. This benefit pays the lower of 80% of the in-force death
benefit, or $250,000 to any insured that is diagnosed with a terminal illness
and is expected to live twelve months or less.

Terminal illness can be included in any employer or employee paid group
term life insurance plan. The terminal illness benefit takes effect on the later
of the date the group life policy takes effect, or the date the benefit is added.
Pre-existing condition limitations do not apply, and all insureds (employees
and spouses) are eligible regardless of age. Benefits are payable only once and
reduce the death benefit. Payment of this benefit also terminates automatic
coverage increases, if such a provision applies.

Conversion

All of CIGNA’s standard group life insurance products include a conversion
privilege.

Conversion allows an insured employee to elect individual whole life
coverage should their group coverage end for any reason except failure to pay

Copyright 2011 Page 18 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P1 10149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

premiums. The amount converted cannot be greater than the amount in force
under the group contract. Premiums depend on the insured’s age at the time of
issuance.

If the policy is terminated, amended to terminate a particular class of
employees, or if the employer cancels participation in the policy, conversion
is available only to employees who have been covered under the group policy
for at least three years. In that event, the amount that can be converted is
limited to the amount of group coverage in force or $10,000, whichever is
less. Certain parameters may vary by state. CIGNA will administer the
conversion process in accordance with all applicable state regulations.

Individuals must apply for conversion within 31 days of the date their group
coverage ends. If an insured dies during this 31 day period, his or her
beneficiaries will receive a benefit equal to that which could have been
converted, even if the employee did not apply for conversion.

Benefit options or riders other than pure life insurance, such as waiver of
premium or accidental death and dismemberment (AD&D), are not available
under the converted policy.

Repatriation

as a valuable benefit available
and is included at

program comprehensive
protection when traveling iuu tiiles or more from your home, including
domestic travel, as well as coverage anywhere in the world. CIGNA Secure
Travel® features include:

Emergency Medical Services

A key strength to our program is that CIGNA does not place coverage limits
on these services.

• Medical Evacuation - If the covered individual experiences a medical
emergency while traveling, we will provide transportation to the nearest
hospital or medical facility where appropriate care can be given.

• Travel Arrangements - We will arrange and pay for the return of
dependents or traveling companions, as well as roundtrip transportation
for a family member or loved one to be at the insured’s bedside.

• Repatriation - In the event of a fatality, we will arrange for and cover the
cost of transporting the remains back to family members.

• Medical Referrals - We will put covered the individual in contact with
local physicians, dentists, and medical treatment centers in the event of an
accident or illness while traveling. We will also arrange for the first
$5,000 of medical payments with confirmation of reimbursement.

.-CIGNA’s

Copyright 2011 Page 19 of63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

Prescription Services — We will provide assistance with refilling a
prescription that has been lost, stolen, or depleted.

Emergency Travel Services

• cash advances

• assistance with travel arrangements

• emergency message relay

• assistance with lost or stolen items

• legal referrals
• translation and interpretation assistance

Pre-trip Planning

• immunization requirements

• visa and passport requirements
• foreign exchange rates
• embassy/consular referrals

weather conditions
• cultural information

Seatbelt and Airbag Benefit

Covered Person dies directly and independently of all other causes from a
Covered Accident while wearing a seatbelt and riding in a private passenger
automobile.

If seatbelt benefit is payable, an additional benefit is provided if Covered
Person was also positioned in a seat protected by a properly —functioning and
properly deployed Supplemental Restraint System Airbag.

Seatbelt: Additional 10% of the principal sum to a maximum of $10,000.

7.0 CONVERSION FOR ALL LIFE

Proposer must include details of the conversion provision in the policy. Please
specify the procedures involved in applying for conversion, and the
responsibilities of the employer.

As previous stated, all of CIGNA’s standard group life insurance products include a
conversion privilege.

Conversion allows an insured employee to elect individual whole life coverage
should their group coverage end for any reason except failure to pay premiums. The
amount converted cannot be greater than the amount in force under the group
contract. Premiums depend on the insured’s age at the time of issuance.

Copyright 2011 Page 20 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

If the policy is terminated, amended to terminate a particular class of employees, or if
the employer cancels participation in the policy, conversion is available only to
employees who have been covered under the group policy for at least three years. In
that event, the amount that can be converted is limited to the amount of group
coverage in force or $10,000, whichever is less. Certain parameters may vary by
state. CIGNA will administer the conversion process in accordance with all
applicable state regulations.

Individuals must apply for conversion within 31 days of the date their group coverage
ends. If an insured dies during this 31 day period, his or her beneficiaries will receive
a benefit equal to that which could have been converted, even if the employee did not
apply for conversion.

Benefit options or riders other than pure life insurance, such as waiver of premium or
accidental death and dismemberment (AD&D), are not available under the converted
policy.

Employer Responsibilities

The employer is responsible for informing their employees of conversion privileges.
We provide the employer with a supply of ‘Notice of Right to Convert’ materials,
intended to be included in employee exit packages.

When your plan is fully administered by CIGNA, we can send conversion notices to
eligible employees who are no longer employed or have had an employment status
change that results in loss of eligibility for coverage.

8.0 WAWER OF PREMIUM PROVISION FOR LIFE

The current policy does not include a waiver of premium provision for the term
life and the AD&D.

CIGNA is offenng 12 month continuation similar

9.0 EMPLOYEE SHORT TERM DISABILITY (PACKAGE 1) The current short
term disability coverage is shown in Part II Specific Requirements as it relates to
eligibility, guaranteed issuance, weekly benefit amount, definition of disability,
elimination period, benefit duration and pre-existing exclusion. See exclusions
and other information on STD in attached plan highlights.

9.1 TAXATION: Benefits are not taxable, as this benefit is paid with post tax
dollars.

CIGNA has matched the above package.

Copyright 2011 Page 21 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RI?? P1 10149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

10.0 EMPLOYEE LONG TERM DISABILITY (PACKAGE 1) The current long
term disability coverage is shown in Part II Specific Requirements as it relates to
eligibility, guaranteed issuance, weekly benefit amount, definition of disability,
elimination period, benefit duration and pre-existing exclusion. See exclusions
and other information on LTD in attached plan highlights.

10.1 TAXATION: Benefits are not taxable, as this benefit is paid with post tax
dollars.

CIGNA has matched the above package.

10.2 Various other benefits are included in the current LTD coverage.
Proposer must indicate if these coverages are included in the proposal
and provide details. (See attachment #1 for Plan details). These other
benefits include:

10.2.1 Disability Plus- 20% of monthly earnings to a maximum benefit of
the lesser of the LTD plan maximum monthly benefit OR $5,000.

The Disability Plus benefit has been matched.

10.2.2 Partial disability- where the employee can return to work part
time and still receive a partial -benefit.

We treat partial disabilities the same way we treat residual disabilities.
Residually disabled individuals are those who are able to return to
work for compensation while meeting the pian’s definition of
disability. Claimants receive benefits designed to encourage return to
work, without jeopardizing benefits, should their efforts prove
unsuccessful. Under CIGNA’s plan, claimants are able to receive full
disability benefits until income from all sources reaches 100 percent of
indexed basic monthly earnings for the first two years.

By providing partial or residual earnings to offset a portion of the LTD
benefits being paid, our results show 20 percent of our LTD claimants
return to work in some capacity, versus the industry average of only 7
percent.

10.2.3 Survivor benefit- lump sum benefit equal to 3 months of gross
disability payments.

We are matching the inforce survivor benefit.

Copyright 2011 Page 22 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

10.2.4 Rehabilitation and Return to work Assistance- assists the
employee in returning to work with a custom plan designed
specifically for that employee.

Our vocational rehabilitation counselors manage rehabilitation services
and retum-towork planning, working in conjunction with the claim
manager and nurse case manager to determine if physical therapy or
other treatment methods may be utilized to improve functional
capacity. The vocational rehabilitation counselor also determines
which rehabilitation services are appropriate given the employee’s
medical restrictions and overall progress.

Partnering with the employee’s supervisor and the treating physician, a
return-to-work plan is developed that can include a return to the same
job, a modified job, or a different job with the current employer using
transferable skills. When these options are not available, the vocational
rehabilitation counselor examines job prospects with another employer
in either the same job, modified job, or a new job using transferable
skills, or may recommend self-employment. Retraining may include
on-the-job training, a vocational-technical course,, or a formal
educational program.

The vocational rehabilitation counselor uses a number of tools to
establish a dynamic rehabilitation plan, which changes according to
the employee’s ongoing progress and needs. Tools utilized include:
vocational analyses, labor market surveys and functional capacity
evaluations and independent medical examinations (IMEs).

On more complex claims, we may use:

• CIGNA behavioral health for employee assistance programs,
psychiatric modalities, and evaluation of treatment plans

Additional services that may be provided include:

• vocational assessment, testing, counseling or job placement,
provided by private vocational rehabilitation counselors

• résumé development, job search skills training, and techniques for
conducting effective interviews provided by executive recruiters
and business consultants

• additional funding for education, equipment, or supplies provided
by state agencies or state vocational rehabilitation programs

• coordination with the workers’ compensation carrier if the
employee was injured on the job

Copyright 2011 Page 23 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P1 10149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

10.2.5 If the employee is participating in the Rehabilitation and Return
to Work program, the Insurer pays an additional 10% of the
employee’s gross disability payment to a maximum of $1,000/mo.
In addition the Insurer makes monthly payments for 3 months
following the date disability ends, and the employee is not able to
find employment.

We are quoting are standard return to work provision which is not
specific to benefits.

10.2.6 Dependent care expense benefit- if the employee is participating in
the “rehabilitation and return to work program” the Insurer pays
a dependent care expense benefit when the employee is disabled,
and:

10.2.6.1 Incurs expenses to provide care to a child under 15;

10.2.6.2 And/or starts incurring expenses to provide care to a
child age 15 or older, or a family member
who needs personal care assistance.

We are matching the inforce benefit.

11.0 EMPLOYEE AND FAMILY AD&D (SEPARATE FROM AND IN ADDITION
TO ABOVE COVERAGE (PACKAGE 2)

The current employee and family AD&D coverage is shown in Part II Specific
Requirements as it relates.

CIGNA is matching the above package.

12.0 PROPOSER QUESTIONNAIRE: Please respond to all the questions listed
below. Submit with your proposal.

1. Please indicate the full name of your company and the current AM best
rating.

The Life Insurance Company of North America (LINA), a CIGNA company.
LINA currently has an AM Best rating of “A”.

Copyright 2011 Page 24 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
REP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

2. Please indicate the name and title of the key persons that will be
responsible for handling this account. Please provide a short summary of
their experience in this field and what their responsibilities would be in
the management of this account.

Pre-Sale

Jonathan Shecdy, Sales Representative, will be your contact during the sales
process. Jonathan is located in our Houston sales office and joined CIGNA
in 2007. He is a graduate of the Southwest Texas State University with a
Bachelors degree in Business with a major in Finance. Prior to joining
CIGNA Jonathan worked with MetLife and Sun Life and brings with him five
years of industry experience.

Post- Sale

We assign your designated account management team to the account at the
point we are named a finalist. This enables us to effectively manage caseloads
and ensures our customers receive the high quality service they deserve. We
will be pleased to provide you with the names of these individuals and a
detailed biography at that point in time.

Your account is assigned to a specialized implementation coordinator, an
account manager who serves as your field-based consultative resource, and an
account service representative who provides your day-to-day support.

Working in conjunction with your sales representative and account
management team, your implementation coordinator takes the lead to ensure
the products and services you have purchased are accurate, consistent with
your contract, and set up on time. Your implementation coordinator:

• develops the implementation schedule and clarifies roles/responsibilities
and processes

• discusses the employee communications strategy and confirms the
eligibility process

• verifies that the set-up tasks are completed and delivers the policy,
certificates, and enrollment materials

As the implementation of your account nears completion, your account
manager assumes primary responsibility for your CIGNA relationship and
works with you throughout the year to make sure your plan runs smoothly.
Your account manager also closely coordinates with your account service
representative to make any necessary adjustments and helps with benefit plan
set-up as needed.

Your account service representative is the point person for day-to-day
activities such as inquires about billing, reporting, and our online tools. You
can reach your account service representative by phone, voicemail, or email
and receive immediate assistance when you need it.

Copyright 2011 Page 25 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

Experience

Account Manager

All CIGNA account managers are experts on our products, the financial
impact of benefits for your company, and the level of service you and your
employees need. All our account managers have their bachelor’s degree or a
minimum of five years experience in a similar role, and are life and health
agent licensed professionals.

We provide new account managers with structured, on-the-job experience that
takes place in our field sales office and includes role-play; self-study; manager
coaching and feedback; and job shadowing of experienced account managers.

Account Service Representative

CIGNA’s account service representatives (ASR) have all earned college
degrees or possess equivalent experience. Our initial on-site training program
lasts approximately 12 weeks and provides the ASR with a thorough
understanding of CIGNA policies and procedures; customer service
expectations; and metrics and other position-related information. ASRs fully
support the client’s designated account manager and are trained on the client’s
benefit programs to ensure the highest level of quality customer service.

Implementation Manager

Our implementation coordinators have the following credentials:

• college degrees or equivalent work experience
• exemplary customer service skills
• excellent written and verbal communication skills to effectively

communicate with clients, brokers and internal business partners;
• thorough knowledge of contract language for life, accident, and disability

insurance products
• understanding of CIGNA’s administrative processes and claim procedures
• understanding of CIGNA’s internal functional areas

CIGNA’s implementation coordinators have an average of 10 years of
experience working with accounts varying in size, complexity, and service
requirements.

3. Please indicate where the staff in question 2 is located.

Jonathan Sheedy is located in our Houston, TX sales office. You’re
designated account manager and implementation coordinator will be
regionally located to Travis County, while you’re designated account service
representative is located in Bethlehem, PA.

Copyright 2011 Page 26 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

4. Will you have a local representative on the team for Travis County?

Yes, you’re designated account manager and implementation coordinator will
be regionally located to Travis County.

5. Would the local representative be available every Monday to attend the
County new employee orientation, and present the policy information?

Yes, Oma and Linda Claunch will be available every Monday to attend the
County new employee orientation and present the policy information. If Oma
or Linda Claunch are unable to attend these meetings, either Arbye Curtis,
your Account Manager, or Jonathan Sheedy, your Sales Representative will be
there to fill in during these times.

6. Do you anticipate being involved in an acquisition or merger in the next
12 months?

Proprietary and confidentiality concerns preclude any comment on planned
activity, if any. However, CIGNA would take steps to ensure the continued,
uninteniipted service to the individuals we serve should a merger, acquisition,
or reorganization occur.

7. Please provide 4 references of entities that are similar to Travis County in
size and that you provide coverage similar in nature to what is being
requested. Please include contact information including a name and a
phone number.

Copyright 2011 Page 27 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

8. What customer service capability do you have?

The employer and their employees will receive quality customer service at the
following locations:

National Intake Center

CIGNA’s national intake center is located at our CIGNA Pointe service center
in Piano, Texas, and has extended hours of operation from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00
p.m. (CST) Monday through Friday to readily accommodate various
geographical client and employee locations.

Experienced claim intake specialists handle all life, AD&D, and disability
insurance claims whether submitted telephonically, by fax, Internet, email, or
regular mail.

Disability

During a telephonic disability insurance claim submission (our preferred
method of intake), the intake specialist conducts an in-depth interview with
the claimant to gather important information to help expedite the claim
process. The intake specialist also answers basic questions, explains the next
steps in the claim process, and sets a preliminary return-to-work date.

Life and AD&D

When the claim is submitted telephonically by the employer the intake
specialist conducts an interview to gather critical claim information including:
• employee demographics, including names, date of birth, Social Security

number (SSN), and home mailing address
• date of hire
• last day worked
• effective date of insurance
• amount ofbasic life insurance
• date of death
• beneficiary information, including name, date of birth, Social Security

number (SSN), and home mailing address

At the conclusion of the interview, we let the employer know the claim
specialist will contact them if additional information is needed.

If the life or AD&D claim is filed telephonically by someone other than the
employer (such as a spouse, family member, or funeral home staff), we refer
him/her to our Pittsburgh claims office to file their claim.

Copyright 2011 Page 28 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

Customer Service in the CIGNA Claim Office

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, Life and AD&D Claim Office

The employee, beneficiary, or employer can contact the claim office to obtain
claim-related information once a claim has been filed. Our life and AD&D
insurance claim office is available, toll-free, between the hours of 8:00 am.
and 5:00 p.m. (EST) Monday through Friday. Our claim form includes our
800 number and the extension of the assigned claim specialist is provided on
correspondence sent after claim receipt.

Piano, Texas, Regional Disability Claim Office

Our CIGNA Pointe service center in Piano, Texas, is open from 9:00 a.m. to
6:00 p.m. (EST) Monday through Friday. The designated disability claim
manager responds to employee and employer questions on employer’s benefit
plan design and plan coverage as well as benefit questions including STD
claim status questions:

• when benefits checks will be issued
a check amount
• length of the benefit period
• confirmation of receipt of information

The claim manager also responds to more complex STD and LTD inquiries.

Additional Customer Service

Primary Account Management

Each of our clients is assigned to an account manager who is regionally
located and is a product, plan design, and financial expert. Your account
manager is focused on meeting your strategic and financial program
objectives and works with you to review plan status, provide plan
enhancement suggestions, and implement requested plan changes.

Day-to-Day Account Management

Additional client customer service is provided at our Lehigh Valley Service
Center located in Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, with hours of operation from 8:00
a.m. to 8:00 p.m. (EST) Monday through Friday. This service center is staffed
with CIGNA account service representatives who support your account
manager and are dedicated to providing you with professional account service
and immediate responses to inquiries regarding:

• premium remittance and administration
• plan forms and materials
• disability benefit tax reporting
• claims process inquiries

Copyright 2011 Page 29 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

• application and medical underwriting processing
• policies and contracts

Every CIGNA account service representative is fully trained on CIGNA’s life,
AD&D, and disability insurance products and services. Our customer service
professionals have a thorough understanding of your employee benefit plans
and act as an extension of your human resources/benefit administrator
resources.

9. How will County HRMD staff access customer service at the time of filing
a claim or in case of an issue?

As detailed above, Travis County can contact the claim office to obtain claim-
related information once a claim has been filed.

CIGNA provides your account manager with a blackberry device which has
both phone and email capabilities. Your account manager will provide you
with his or her cellular phone number and email address at the initial
implementation meeting.

10. Is claim status etc. available to County staff online? Reporting?

Disability

CIGNA offers single log-on access to comprehensive online claim reporting
tools to help our customers make informed decisions. Through these tools
employers are able to evaluate results and identify actionable strategies to
reduce incidence, durations, and the impact to their bottom line. Available at
ClGNAaccess.com:

Disability Operational Reports

• on-demand, online access to claim information when employers want it,
how they want it

• includes claim status reports, claim intake reports, an individual claimant
information search tool, and an ad hoc report builder

• Provides access to historical reports and information
• features sort and filter tools to create a custom reusable view of the reports

Disability Analytical Reports

• on-demand access to the employer’s STD and LTD claims experience
• includes normative data based on CIGNA’s book of business, which

enables employers to compare the employer’s experience against our data
to see how their program is running compared to companies with similar
plan designs

• includes up to four years of claim experience with year over year
comparisons, for quick identification of trends

Copyright 2011 Page 30 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

Life & AD&D

Online claim status reports are currently unavailable; however your
designated account manager can provide reports on demand.

11. Please explain the claim filing procedure for a life claim.

The initial notification of life and accident claims can be submitted
telephonically, via the internet, by mail or fax.

During the internet or telephonic claim intake process the
employer/administrator provides eligibility and beneficiary information and
supporting documentation, such as:

• a certified copy of the death certificate

• a physician’s statement (for other losses)

• original enrollment card or benefit election form

• all absolute assignment forms

• all change of beneficiary forms

• any applicable estate papers

• any applicable accident reports or medical records

If all necessary information is not provided, the claim office will generate an
acknowledgement packet to send to the beneficiary or insured. The
beneficiary or insured will complete their portion of the claim form and will
send the information back to our Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, claim office,
including the appropriate supporting documentation.

If no additional information is needed, the claim office will begin their review
and notify the insured or beneficiary of the claim decision.

12. What is your average turn around time for payment of a life claim?

We strive to provide the best service in the industry and the highest level of
customer satisfaction. We have consistently met or surpassed our goals. Our
standard for claim processing turnaround time is to approve or deny benefits
on 95 percent of all jclaims withness days of receiving all
required information

In 2010, 99 percent of life claims decisions were made within 10 days of
receiving all required information.

13. Is assignment of benefits available so that part of a beneficiary’s payment
can be assigned, for example to a funeral home? What is the procedure
for that process?

Our beneficiary payment method is as follows:

Copyright 2011 Page 31 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs
RFP P110149-OJ

Travis County
Part 1- General Requirements

. Through our comprehensive CIGNAssurance’ beneficiary program, life and
personal accident benefit payments over $5,000 are automatically deposited
into an interest bearing account with check writing privileges that is cleared
through State Street Bank.

A book of drafts is provided to the beneficiary, who is able to write an
unlimited number of drafts, at any time, until the account is cleared. Interest is
compounded daily, credited monthly and begins to accrue when the claim is
paid. The account earns competitive interest comparable to a money market
checking account. Statements are provided on a quarterly basis. Additionally,
there are no maintenance charges or penalties for withdrawals.

Beneficiary settlements of less than $5,000 are paid in a lump sum.

The beneficiary is able to use this settlement for any reason including funeral
costs.

14. Please provide a sample of forms that are required at the time of claim.

Sample claim forms have been-provided on CD attached withinyour proposal
binder.

15. Can claims be submitted by fax, or online, or must they be mailed.
Specify if life, disability or AD&D.

Yes. We offer a variety of claim reporting options for all claims at no
additional cost to our customers. They include:

toll-free telephone (preferred)
• web-based, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week access via CIGNA.com

(preferred)
• ernail

• paper (mail or fax)

16. Do you require originals or accept copies or faxes of death certificates?

We will process the claim with a faxed copy of the death certificate, so long as
there are no fraud indicators. We will request a certified copy from the
beneficiary for completion of our records.

17. Please provide detailed procedures required of employer for remitting
payment, filing a claim, and any other required duties of employer.

Disability

In a self-administered plan, the employer distributes materials, communicates
the process for filing a claim, and assists us in verifying eligibility, either

Copyright 2011 Page 32 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RH’ P110149-OJ Part 1- General Requirements

through an employer verification form, or through an eligibility file feed.
When we are notified of a claim, and a file feed is not in place, we may ask
for additional information regarding employment status and history, salary
history, premium contribution and history, physical demands of the job/job
description, and any supplementary enrollment forms or beneficiary
designations. When an employee has reached a level of functional capacity
that allows them to return to work, we will coordinate this effort with the
employer.

To help Travis County communicate with employees on disability, CIGNA
provides our Manager’s Disability ToolkitsM. This easy-to-use, web-based tool
provides a practical guide to managing each phase of a disability absence from
the initial report through return to work and every step in between. A link is
emailed to your designated contact at intake and provides consistency during
the claim management process. The toolkit provides many features including
but not limited to:

• communication do’s and don’ts
• sample scripts for speaking with the employee
• what to expect from your CIGNA disability claim manager
• information on FMLA
• suggestions for return-to-work

Life & AD&D

Although we will perform the majority of the administration requirements,
there are a limited number of administrative duties required of the employer.
Responsibilities include taking the deduction and remitting of premiums to
CIGNA; providing employees’ current employment status and updated salary
information; and providing eligibility data to support enrollment, beneficiary
administration, and portability/conversion notice distribution.

Our rates include all charges and costs associated with the implementation,
communication, enrollment, and ongoing administration of your program.

Copyright 2011 Page 33 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part II- Specific Requirements

NOTE: PARTS 11,111, AND IV, ALONG WITH THE CONTRACTOR’S PROPOSAL,
AND ANY DEVIATION TO WHICH TRAVIS COUNTY HAS AGREED, IN
WRITING WILL BECOME THE CONTRACT.

State insurance laws require that the policy of insurance be written on state insurance
department approved forms and contain the entire contract. If awarded the business, we will
issue policies on state approved forms that reflect the substantive terms stated in our
proposal. While provisions of our proposal will be reflected, where appropriate, in the policy
or in other related agreements, we cannot agree to incorporate our proposal in its entirety into
the contract.

1.0 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

1.1 Travis County is seeking proposals to provide the following optional
coverage’s available on a 100% voluntary basis, all to be effective
October 1, 2011:

1.1.1 Supplemental Term Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment
(AD&D) for the employees of Travis County,

1.1.2 Dependent Life and additional Spouse life Insurance for the
employees of Travis County (legal spouse and children up to age
26)

1.1.3 Retiree Life Insurance for the Retirees of Travis County

1.1.4 Short Term Disability

1.1.5 Long Term Disability

1.1.6 Employee and dependant AD&D

Confirmed.

2.0 SUPPLEMENTAL LIFE AND AD&D FOR ACTWE EMPLOYEES AND
THEIR DEPENDENTS, AND RETIREES AN]) THEIR DEPENDENTS

ACTWE EMPLOYEES

Copyright 2011 Page 34 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part II- Specific Requirements

2.1 Supplemental Life and AD&D coverage must be offered in at least
$25,000 increments up to at least a maximum of $250,000 or four times an
employee annual salary (rounded up to nearest multiple of $25,000.

The above benefits have been matched.

2.2 AD&D must be in a matching amount to the life amounts chosen.

Confirmed.

2.3 New Hires must have the ability to select any amount (within the above
guidelines) at their initial enrollment. At open enrollment each
subsequent year an employee must be able to increase their coverage by
one $25,000 increment with no underwriting. There cannot be a
reduction schedule on the supplemental life and AD&D for active
employees.

During approved enrollment periods, we require evidence of insurability
(EOI) only for amounts that exceed the guaranteed issue amount. We require
EOI for all coverage amounts requested outside of initial enrollment period, or
within 31 days of becoming eligible for coverage, if eligibility does not
coincide with an enrollment period.

2.4 A full time active employee must be eligible for coverage if the employee
works a minimum of 20 hours a week in a benefited position.

Confirmed.

3.0 DEPENDENT LIFE AND SPOUSE LIFE

3.1 An active employee must be able to choose optional life coverage for their
dependents (legal spouse and children up to age 26).

Confirmed.

3.2 Supplemental employee life coverage must not be required to purchase
dependent life coverage. No AD&D coverage applies on dependents.

Confirmed.

Copyright 2011 Page 35 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part II- Specific Requirements

3.3 The base benefit for this coverage must be at least:

3.3.1 Basic Dependent Life

3.3.1.1 $10,000 spouse

3.3.1.2 Child $5,000 (6 months to age 26)

3.3.1.3 Infant $1,000 (14 days to 6 months)

The above benefits have been matched.

3.4 Additional Optional Spouse Life must be at least available in the
following amounts.

3.4.1 $10,000

3.4.2 $20,000

The above benefits have been matched.

3.5 Spouses that are also current active County employees must not be
eligible to be covered as dependents

Noted.

4.0 RETIREE LIFE

4.1 The retiree and retiree spouse voluntary life coverage may be is divided
into coverage for ages 70 or less, and coverage for ages 71 and over with
separate benefits and age based rates determined by the age of the retiree
for these two categories.

The above benefits have been matched.

4.2 Spouse must be covered at the time of retirement to be eligible for
coverage.

Confirmed.

Copyright 2011 Page 36 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part II- Specific Requfrements

4.3 There must not be a reduction schedule on retiree life coverage, other
than reducing to the over 71 amount at that age.

Confirmed.

4.4 The benefits must be at least:

4.4.1 Age 70 or less: Retiree

Basic Benefit $15,000 guarantee issue, with a buy up option of
$10,000 that requires underwriting based on an evidence of
insurability form, submitted directly by the retiree.

The above benefit has been matched.

4.4.2 Age 70 or less: Retiree Spouse

Basic Benefit is $7,500 guarantee issue, with a buy-up option of
$5,000 that requires underwriting based on an evidence of
insurability form submitted directly by the retiree.

The above benefit has been matched.

4.4.3 Age 71 or over: Retiree

Basic Benefit $5,000.

The above benefit has been matched.

4.4.4 Age 7lor over: Retiree Spouse

Basic Benefit $2,500

The above benefit has been matched.

Copyright 2011 Page 37 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part U- Specific Requirements

5.0 PORTABILITY

_____ ____

5.1 The supplemental life, AD&D and dependent life coverage for actives
must have a portability feature, available at the time of termination or
retirement with the right to increase coverage and add dependents at any
time with evidence of insurability in accordance with company policy.
Experience of personnel taking portable coverage must not be included in
the Travis County experience.

Confirmed.

5.2 Acceptance of portability coverage by Contractor must be acknowledged
to Insured at time of application, not at time of claim.

Confirmed.

6.0 EMPLOYEE SHORT TERM DISABILITY: The short term disability coverage
must include at least the following or equivalent features.:

6.1 ELIGIBILITY: Active employee working a minimum of 20 hours per
week

Confirmed.

6.1 GUARANTEED ISSUANCE: New employees/new hires must elect
coverage within their initial eligibility period. If they do not elect
coverage within this period, they can only elect coverage during annual
open enrollment or within 31 days of a qualifying family change in status.
No medical underwriting is required.

Duiing an approved open enrollment period, applications for disability
insurance coverage are not medically underwritten and evidence of
insurability (EOI) is not required.

6.3 WEEKLY BENEFITS AMOUNT: 60% of your weekly earnings to a
maximum of $1500/week.

The above benefit has been matched.

Copyright 2011 Page 38 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part H- Specific Requirements

6.4 DEFINITION OF DISABiLITY:

6.4.1 Disability occurs when a carrier determines that the employee:

6.4.1.1 is limited from performing the material and
substantial duties of his or her regular occupation due to
sickness or injury; and

6.4.1.2 has a 20% or more loss in weekly earnings due to that
sickness or injury.

We consider an employee disabled if, solely because of injury or sickness, he
or she is unable to perform all the material duties of his or her regular
occupation and, solely due to injury or sickness, he or she is unable to earn
more than 80% percent of his or her indexed covered eammgs from working
in his or her regular occupation.

6.4.2 The loss of a professional or occupational license or certification
does not, in itself, constitute disability.

Confirmed.

6.4.3 Employee may be required to be examined by a physician, other
medical practitioner and/or vocational expert of insurer’s choice.
Insurer pays for this examination.

Confirmed.

6.4.4 Insurer can require an examination as often as it is reasonable to
do so.

Confirmed.

6.4.5 Insurer may also require employee to be interviewed by its
authorized Representative.

Confirmed.

6.4.6 This definition of disability that allows an employee to try to
partially return to work after the elimination period.

Confirmed.

Copyright 2011 Page 39 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part II- Specific Requirements

6.5 ELIMINATION PERIOD: Fourteen (14) day elimination period
due to disability. Benefits begin the day after the elimination period is
completed.

Confinned.

6.6 BENEFIT DURATION: Up to a 13 week benefit period.

6.7 PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS EXCLUSION: 3/12

Confirmed.

7.0 EMPLOYEE LONG TERM DISABILITY The long term disability coverage
must include at least the following or equivalent features:

7.1 ELIGIBILITY: Active employee working a minimum of 2ê hours per
week.

Confirmed.

7.2 GUARANTEE ISSUE: New employees/new hires must elect coverage
within their initial eligibility period. If coverage is not elected within this
period, coverage can only be elected during annual open enrollment or
within 31 days of a qualifying family change in status. No medical
underwriting is required.

During an approved open enrollment period, applications for disability
insurance coverage are not medically underwritten and evidence of
insurability (EOI) is not required.

7.3 WEEKLY BENEFITS AMOUNT: 60% of monthly earnings to a
maximum of $6,000.

The above benefit has been matched.

Copyright 2011 Page 40 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part 11-Specific Requirements

7.4 DEFINITION OF DISABILITY:

7.4.1 The employee is disabled when an Insurer determines that the
employee:

7.4.1.1 is limited from performing the material and substantial
duties of your regular occupation due to your sickness or
injury; and

7.4.1.2 has a 20% or more loss in your indexed monthly earnings
due to the same sickness or injury.

7.4.1.3 After 24 months of payments, the employee is disabled
when Insurer determines that due to the same sickness or
injury, the employee is unable to perform the duties of any
gainful occupation for which the employee is reasonably
fitted by education, training or experience.

After disability benefits have been payable for 24 months an employee
is disabled if solely due to injury or sickness he or she is unable to
perform all the material duties of any occupation for which he or she
may reasonably become qualified based on education, training or
experience; and solely due to injury or sickness, unable to earn more
than 80 percent ofhis or her indexed covered earnings.

7.4.2 The loss of a professional or occupational license or certification
does not, in itself, constitute disability.

Confirmed.

7.4.3 Insurer may require the employee to be examined by a physician,
other medical practitioner and/or vocational expert of its choice.
Insurer pays for this examination. Carrier can require an
examination as often as it is reasonable to do so.

Confirmed.

7.4.4 Carrier may also require you to be interviewed by an authorized
carrier Representative.

Confirmed.

Copyright 2011 Page 41 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs Travis County
RFP P110149-OJ Part II- Specific Requirements

7.5 ELIMINATION PERIOD: 90 day elimination period from date of
disability or when employee’s short term disability payments end, if any.
Benefits begin the day after the elimination period is completed.

Confirmed.

7.6 BENEFIT DURATION: Based on the age when disability occurs.
Payable for the period during which you continue to meet the definition
of disability up to the social security normal retirement age. If your
disability occurs at or after age 62, benefits would be paid for a reduced
period of time.

Confirmed.

7.7 PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS EXCLUSION: 6/12/24

Confirmed.

EMPLOYEE AN]) FAMILY AD&D

8.1 The employee and family AD&D coverage must be separate from and in
addition to the life and AD&D coverage described in 2.0 through 5.0
above and available to active employees working 20 or more hours a
week. Employees can cover themselves or self and family.

Confirmed.

8.2 Coverage must be available in amounts from $25,000 up to$500,000 in
units of $25,000 up to a maximum of lOx annual salary.

Confirmed.

8.3 Family member’s coverage must be a percentage of the benefit amount
selected. A reduction schedule is acceptable on this policy.

Confirmed.

8.4 Dependents age 70 or more need not be eligible, and if a covered
dependent reaches age 70, coverage may end for that dependent.

Confirmed.

Copyright 2011 Page 42 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



0

Improve Health and Productivity -Lower Costs
RFP P110149-OJ

Confirmed.

Travis County
Part LI- Specific Requirements

8.5 Dependent children must be eligible up to age 26.

Confirmed.

8.6 The full amount of Employee benefit must be determined by type of loss.

Confirmed.

8.7 The full amount of Spouse benefit must be 50% of full employee amount
if there are one or more dependents. If there are no dependent children,
the full amount of the Spouse benefit must be 60% of the full employee
amount with a maximum of $300,000.

Confirmed.

8.8 The full amount of Child benefit must be 10% of full employee amount if
there is a spouse; if there is no spouse, the full amount of Child

- benefit must be 15% with a maximum of $25,000.

Copyright 2011 Page 43 of 63 CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



A
tta

ch
m

en
t G

-2
T

ab
le

of
S

er
vi

ce
o
rm

a
n
c
e

M
ea

su
re

s
T

ab
le

of
Se

rv
ic

es
—

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

M
ea

su
re

s
C

li
en

t
N

am
e:

T
ra

vi
s

C
ou

nt
y

P
ol

ic
y

N
um

be
r:

A
cc

ou
nt

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

S
ta

nd
ar

d
B

as
is

of
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t

E
va

lu
at

io
n

M
et

ho
d

E
va

lu
at

io
n

Pe
ri

od
Pe

na
lty

A
m

ou
nt

C
IG

N
A

gu
ar

an
te

es
th

at
th

e
C

us
to

m
er

S
pe

ci
fi

c
C

om
pl

et
io

n
of

th
e

5%
of

th
e

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

at
ri

sk
ac

co
un

t
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s
S

ta
nd

ar
d

A
nn

ua
l

[S
em

i-
C

IG
N

A
pr

ov
id

es
in

co
nn

ec
tio

n
A

nn
ua

l,
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

]
T

he
to

ta
l

am
ou

nt
pa

ya
bl

e
du

ri
ng

w
ith

th
e

Pl
an

w
ill

be
A

cc
ou

nt
M

an
ag

em
en

t
th

e
T

er
m

of
th

is
A

gr
ee

m
en

t
fo

r
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y.
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
Su

rv
ey

,
fa

ilu
re

to
m

ee
t

A
cc

ou
nt

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
w

ill
in

cl
ud

e:
I

M
an

ag
em

en
t

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

A
sc

or
e

of
Sa

tis
fi

ed
’,

or
st

an
da

rd
s

sh
al

l
no

t e
xc

ee
d

a.
A

ck
no

w
le

dg
e

al
l t

el
ep

ho
ne

le
-

be
tte

r,
as

m
ea

su
re

d
y

$1
,0

00
.

m
ai

ls
fr

om
th

e
Pl

an
w

ith
in

on
e

an
av

er
ag

e
of

th
e

bu
si

ne
ss

da
y

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

a
de

si
gn

at
ed

m
em

be
rs

of
cl

ea
r

ex
pe

ct
at

io
n

fo
r

tim
el

y
th

e
C

lie
nt

’s
st

af
f

is
re

so
lu

tio
n

of
th

e
re

qu
es

t
co

ns
id

er
ed

cu
st

om
er

b.
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
(v

er
ba

l
&

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n.

w
ri

tte
n)

as
w

el
l

as
fa

ce
to

fa
ce

m
ee

tin
gs

w
ith

Pl
an

ar
e

re
gu

la
r

as
de

fi
ne

d
by

th
e

pl
an

an
d

A
cc

ou
nt

M
an

ag
er

c.
A

cc
ou

nt
M

an
ag

er
is

co
ns

ul
ta

tiv
e

an
d

so
lu

tio
ns

or
ie

nt
ed

ut
ili

zi
ng

kn
ow

le
dg

e
of

C
IG

N
A

’s
pr

od
uc

ts
&

se
rv

ic
es

to
co

m
pl

em
en

tt
he

Pl
an

d.
C

on
ce

rn
s

w
ith

th
e

Pl
an

ar
e

id
en

tif
ie

d
an

d
ad

dr
es

se
d

in
a

tim
el

y
m

an
ne

r.
e.

E
xp

er
t

kn
ow

le
dg

e
of

th
e

Pl
an

in
cl

ud
in

g
sp

ec
if

ic
pr

og
ra

m
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
.

P
ag

e
1

of
11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



T
ab

le
of

S
er

v
ic

e
o
rm

an
ce

M
ea

su
re

s
.

C
li

en
t

N
am

e:
T

ra
v
is

C
o
u
n
ty

P
o

li
cy

N
um

be
r:

A
cc

ou
nt

M
an

ag
em

en
t-

C
on

ti
nu

ed
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
S

ta
nd

ar
d

B
as

is
of

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t
E

va
lu

at
lo

nM
et

hó
d

I
E

và
lu

at
lo

nP
er

io
d

P
en

al
ty

A
m

ou
nt

5%
of

th
e

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

at
ris

k
R

en
ew

al
M

an
ag

em
en

t
Pr

ov
id

e
th

e
Pl

an
w

ith
re

ne
w

al
T

he
to

ta
l

am
ou

nt
pa

ya
bl

e
du

ri
ng

no
tic

e
[1

20
,

15
0,

or
18

0]
da

ys
th

e
T

er
m

of
th

is
A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

be
fo

re
ea

ch
ra

te
gu

ar
an

te
e

fa
ilu

re
to

m
ee

t
R

en
ew

al
te

rm
in

at
io

n
da

te
.

C
om

pl
et

e
M

an
ag

em
en

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

re
ne

w
al

pa
ck

ag
e

ju
st

if
yi

ng
th

e
st

an
da

rd
s

sh
al

l
no

te
xc

ee
d

pr
op

os
ed

re
ne

w
al

ac
tio

n
w

ill
be

$1
,0

00
.

pr
es

en
te

d
at

th
at

tim
e.

C
u
st

o
m

er
S

er
vi

ce
—

In
cl

ud
es

D
is

ab
il

it
y,

L
if

e
&

FM
LA

P
ro

d
u
ct

s
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
S

ta
nd

ar
d

B
as

is
of

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t
E

va
lu

at
io

n
M

et
ho

d
E

va
lu

at
io

n
Pe

ri
od

Pe
na

lty
A

m
ou

nt
A

ve
ra

ge
S

pe
ed

to
A

ns
w

er
:

N
et

w
or

k
Le

ve
l

ba
se

d
on

A
ve

ra
ge

S
pe

ed
of

A
ns

w
er

.
C

al
ls

wi
ll

be
an

sw
er

ed
in

30
al

l
ca

lls
re

ce
iv

ed
in

th
e

5%
of

th
e

ov
er

al
l

PG
do

lla
rs

at
se

co
nd

s
or

le
ss

,
ba

se
d

on
an

In
ta

ke
C

en
te

r
du

ri
ng

th
e

ris
k.

an
nu

al
av

er
ag

e
an

d
bo

ok
of

te
rm

of
th

e
ag

re
em

en
t.

bu
si

ne
ss

.
T

he
to

ta
l

am
ou

nt
pa

ya
bl

e
.

du
ri

ng
th

e
T

er
m

of
th

is
A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

fa
ilu

re
to

m
ee

t
th

is
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
st

an
da

rd
sh

al
l

no
t

ex
ce

ed
$1

,0
00

.
A

ba
nd

on
m

en
t

R
at

e:
N

et
w

or
k

L
ev

el
ba

se
d

on
A

ba
nd

on
m

en
t

ra
te

A
ba

nd
on

m
en

t
R

at
e:

A
ba

nd
on

m
en

t
R

at
e

w
ill

be
3.

5%
al

l
ca

lls
re

ce
iv

ed
in

th
e

re
fl

ec
ts

th
os

e
ca

ll
er

s
5%

of
th

e
ov

er
al

l
PG

do
lla

rs
at

or
le

ss
(b

as
ed

on
an

an
nu

al
In

ta
ke

C
en

te
r

du
ri

ng
th

e
th

at
di

sc
on

ne
ct

th
ei

r
ca

ll
ri

sk
.

av
er

ag
e)

,
te

rm
of

th
e

ag
re

em
en

t.
pr

io
r t

o
be

in
g

co
nn

ec
te

d
to

a
re

pr
es

en
ta

ti
ve

.

T
he

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

pa
ya

bl
e

.
du

ri
ng

th
e

T
er

m
of

th
is

A
gr

ee
m

en
tf

or
fa

ilu
re

to
m

ee
t

th
is

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

st
an

da
rd

sh
al

l
.

no
t

ex
ce

ed
$1

,0
00

.
N

ot
es

—
C

us
to

m
er

S
er

vi
ce

i
A

ny
ca

ll
th

at
ab

an
do

ns
in

30
se

co
nd

s
or

le
ss

(A
SA

S
ta

nd
ar

d)
w

ill
no

t
be

co
un

te
d

as
an

ab
an

do
ne

d
ca

ll
si

nc
e

th
e

ca
ll

er
di

d
no

tg
iv

e
us

th
e

op
po

rt
un

ity
to

an
sw

er
th

e
ca

ll
w

ith
in

ou
r

st
an

da
rd

.

P
ag

e
2

of
11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



T
ab

le
of

S
er

vi
ce

or
m

an
ce

M
ea

su
re

s

C
li

en
t

N
am

e:
T

ra
vi

s
C

ou
nt

y
P

ol
ic

y
N

um
be

r:

C
u

st
o

m
er

S
er

vi
ce

—
I
n
c
l
u
d
e
s

D
is

a
b
il

it
y
,

L
if

e
&

F
M

L
A

P
r
o

d
u

c
t
s

-
C

o
n
t
i
n
u
e
d

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

S
ta

n
d
ar

d
B

as
is

of
E

va
lu

at
io

n
M

et
ho

d
E

va
lu

at
io

n
P

er
io

d
P

en
al

ty
A

m
ou

nt
M

ea
su

re
m

en
t

D
is

ab
il

it
y

C
u
st

o
m

er
S

pe
ci

fi
c

ST
D

D
ec

is
io

n
T

im
e

W
ill

be
ba

se
d

on
a

D
ec

is
io

n
tim

e
w

ill
be

10
%

of
th

e
ov

er
al

l
PG

do
ll

ar
s

Fo
r

al
l

ST
D

cl
ai

m
s

re
ce

iv
ed

fo
r

th
e

re
po

rt
of

al
l

cl
ai

m
s

m
ea

su
re

d
as

ti
m

e
fr

om
th

e
at

ri
sk

.
P

ol
ic

y/
P

la
nh

ol
de

r
du

ri
ng

th
e

te
rm

p
ro

ce
ss

ed
fo

r
th

e
da

te
of

in
iti

al
su

bm
is

si
on

of
of

th
e

ag
re

em
en

t,
in

iti
al

de
ci

si
on

s
cu

st
o

m
er

du
ri

ng
th

e
cl

ai
m

(t
el

ep
ho

ne
ca

ll,
pa

pe
r

T
he

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

pa
ya

bl
e

w
ill

be
re

nd
er

ed
w

ith
in

th
e

te
rm

of
th

e
fo

rm
,

fa
x

or
e-

m
ai

l)
,

to
th

e
du

ri
ng

th
e

T
er

m
of

th
is

fo
llo

w
in

g
st

an
da

rd
s’

:
ag

re
em

en
t2

da
te

of
ap

pr
ov

al
!

de
ni

al
of

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

fo
r

fa
ilu

re
to

m
ee

t
.

50
%

w
ith

in
5

bu
si

ne
ss

cl
ai

m
,

th
is

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

st
an

da
rd

da
ys

of
re

ce
ip

t
of

cl
ai

m
,

sh
al

l
no

t
ex

ce
ed

$2
,0

00
.

•
80

%
w

ith
in

10
bu

si
ne

ss
da

ys
of

re
ce

ip
t

of
cl

ai
m

.

ST
D

P
a
y

m
e
n

t
A

c
c
u
r
a
c
y

F
ie

ld
C

la
im

O
ff

ic
e

W
ill

be
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

as
th

e
to

ta
l

5%
of

th
e

ov
er

al
l

PG
do

ll
ar

s
Fo

r
al

l
ST

D
cl

ai
m

s
re

ce
iv

ed
in

th
e

le
ve

l
b
as

ed
on

ra
nd

om
co

rr
ec

t
do

ll
ar

s
m

in
us

th
e

to
ta

l
at

ri
sk

.
Fi

el
d

C
la

im
O

ff
ic

e
se

rv
ic

in
g

th
e

au
di

t
of

al
l

S
T

D
fi

le
s

do
ll

ar
s

th
at

w
er

e
pa

id
P

ol
ic

y/
P

la
nh

ol
de

r
du

ri
ng

th
e

te
rm

p
ro

ce
ss

ed
in

th
e

cl
ai

m
in

co
rr

ec
tly

,
in

cl
ud

in
g

T
he

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

pa
ya

bl
e

of
th

e
ag

re
em

en
t,

95
%

of
cl

ai
m

of
fi

ce
du

ri
ng

th
e

te
rm

.
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
an

d
un

de
r

du
ri

ng
th

e
T

er
m

of
th

is
do

ll
ar

s
w

ill
be

pa
id

co
rr

ec
tl

y.
pa

ym
en

ts
,

di
vi

de
d

by
th

e
A

gr
ee

m
en

t
fo

r
fa

ilu
re

to
m

ee
t

to
ta

l
co

rr
ec

t
do

ll
ar

s.
th

is
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
st

an
da

rd
sh

al
l

no
t

ex
ce

ed
$1

,0
00

.

ST
D

C
od

in
g

A
c
c
u
r
a
c
y

F
ie

ld
C

la
im

O
ff

ic
e

W
ill

be
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

by
di

vi
di

ng
5%

of
th

e
ov

er
al

l
PG

do
ll

ar
s

Fo
r

al
l

ST
D

cl
ai

m
s

re
ce

iv
ed

in
th

e
le

ve
l

b
as

ed
on

ra
nd

om
th

e
to

ta
l

co
rr

ec
t

co
di

ng
it

em
s

at
ri

sk
.

Fi
el

d
C

la
im

O
ff

ic
e

se
rv

ic
in

g
th

e
au

di
t

of
al

l
S

T
D

fi
le

s
by

th
e

to
ta

l
nu

m
be

r
of

co
di

ng
P

ol
ic

y/
P

la
nh

ol
de

r
du

ri
ng

th
e

te
rm

p
ro

ce
ss

ed
in

th
e

cl
ai

m
it

em
s

au
di

te
d.

T
he

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

pa
ya

bl
e

of
th

e
ag

re
em

en
t,

co
di

ng
w

ill
be

of
fi

ce
du

ri
ng

th
e

te
rm

.
du

ri
ng

th
e

T
er

m
of

th
is

95
%

co
rr

ec
t.

A
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
fa

ilu
re

to
m

ee
t

th
is

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

st
an

da
rd

sh
al

l
no

t
ex

ce
ed

$1
,0

00
.

P
ag

e
3

of
11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



T
a
b

le
o

f
S

e
i
c
e
’
i
o
r
m

a
n
c
e

M
e
a
s
u

r
e
s

C
li

e
n
t

N
a
m

e
:

T
r
a
v
is

C
o
u
n
ty

C
u
st

o
m

er
S

er
v

ic
e

—
In

cl
ud

es
D

is
ab

il
it

y.
L

if
e

&
FM

LA
P

ro
d

u
ct

s
-

C
o
n
ti

n
u
ed

P
o

li
c
y

N
u

m
b

e
r
:

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

B
a
s
is

o
f

E
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

M
e
th

o
d

E
v

a
lu

a
ti

o
n

P
e
ri

o
d

P
e
n
a
lt

y
A

m
o

u
n

t
M

e
a
s
u

re
m

e
n

t

•
LT

D
D

ec
is

io
n

T
im

e
C

u
st

o
m

er
S

pe
ci

fi
c.

D
at

e
of

de
ci

si
on

w
ill

be
10

%
of

th
e

ov
er

al
l

PG
do

ll
ar

s
Fo

r
al

l
LT

D
cl

ai
m

s
re

ce
iv

ed
fo

r
th

e
W

ill
be

ba
se

d
on

a
co

ns
id

er
ed

th
e

d
at

e
th

e
at

ri
sk

.
Po

lic
y/

Pl
an

ho
ld

er
in

iti
al

de
ci

si
on

s
re

po
rt

of
al

l
cl

ai
m

s
de

ci
si

on
is

re
ac

he
d

an
d

wi
ll

be
re

nd
er

ed
w

ith
in

th
e

pr
oc

es
se

d
fo

r
th

e
d

o
cu

m
en

te
d

5.
T

he
to

ta
l

am
ou

nt
pa

ya
bl

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

st
an

d
ar

d
s

3:
cu

st
om

er
du

ri
ng

th
e

du
ri

ng
th

e
T

em
i

of
th

is
te

rm
of

th
e

ag
re

em
en

t.
4

A
gr

ee
m

en
tf

or
fa

ilu
re

to
m

ee
t

.
90

%
as

of
th

e
LT

D
B

en
ef

it
th

is
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
st

an
da

rd
St

ar
t

D
at

e
sh

al
l

no
t

ex
ce

ed
$2

,0
00

.

LT
D

O
ff

se
t M

an
ag

em
en

t
(S

oc
ia

l
C

us
to

m
er

S
pe

ci
fi

c.
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
w

ill
be

10
%

of
th

e
ov

er
al

l
PG

do
lla

rs
S

ec
ur

it
y)

W
ill

be
ba

se
d

on
a

ev
al

ua
te

d
by

sy
st

em
at

ris
k.

Fo
r

LT
D

cl
ai

m
s

re
ce

iv
ed

fo
rt

he
re

po
rt

of
al

lc
la

im
s

ge
ne

ra
te

d
re

po
rt

an
d

Po
Ii

cy
/P

ia
nh

ol
de

r,
95

%
of

al
l

pr
oc

es
se

d
fo

r
th

e
va

lid
at

io
n.

T
he

to
ta

l
am

ou
nt

pa
ya

bl
e

cl
ai

m
an

ts
w

ho
m

ee
t

ou
r

re
fe

rr
al

cu
st

om
er

du
ri

ng
th

e
du

ri
ng

th
e

T
er

m
of

th
is

cr
ite

ri
a

w
ill

be
of

fe
re

d
as

si
st

an
ce

te
rm

of
th

e
ag

re
em

en
t.

A
gr

ee
m

en
t

fo
r

fa
ilu

re
to

m
ee

t
w

ith
th

ei
r

in
iti

al
So

ci
al

Se
cu

ri
ty

th
is

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

st
an

da
rd

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

w
ith

in
30

da
ys

of
th

ei
r

sh
al

l
no

t
ex

ce
ed

$2
,0

00
.

Lo
ng

T
er

m
D

is
ab

ili
ty

cl
ai

m
ap

p
ro

v
al

6. L
TD

P
ay

m
en

tA
cc

u
ra

cy
F

ie
ld

C
la

im
O

ff
ic

e
W

ill
be

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
as

th
e

to
ta

l
5%

of
th

e
ov

er
al

l
PG

do
lla

rs
Fo

r
al

l
LT

D
cl

ai
m

s
re

ce
iv

ed
in

th
e

le
ve

l
ba

se
d

on
ra

nd
om

co
rr

ec
t

do
ll

ar
s

m
in

us
th

e
to

ta
l

at
ri

sk
.

Fi
el

d
C

la
im

O
ff

ic
e

du
ri

ng
th

e
te

rm
au

di
t

of
al

l
LT

D
fil

es
do

lla
rs

th
at

w
er

e
pa

id
of

th
e

ag
re

em
en

t,
95

%
of

cl
ai

m
pr

oc
es

se
d

in
th

e
cl

ai
m

in
co

rr
ec

tly
,

in
cl

ud
in

g
T

he
to

ta
l

am
ou

nt
pa

ya
bl

e
do

lla
rs

w
ill

be
pa

id
co

rr
ec

tly
.

of
fi

ce
du

ri
ng

th
e

te
rm

.
ov

er
pa

ym
en

ts
an

d
un

de
r

du
ri

ng
th

e
T

er
m

of
th

is
pa

ym
en

ts
,

di
vi

de
d

by
th

e
A

gr
ee

m
en

tf
or

fa
ilu

re
to

m
ee

t
to

ta
l

co
rr

ec
t

do
lla

rs
.

th
is

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

st
an

da
rd

sh
al

l
no

t
ex

ce
ed

$1
,0

00
.

P
ag

e
4

of
11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



T
ab

le
of

S
er

vi
ce

P
’?

Io
rm

an
ce

M
ea

su
re

s

C
li

en
t

N
am

e:
T

ra
vi

s
C

ou
nt

y
P

ol
ic

y
N

um
be

r:

C
u

st
o

m
er

S
e,

v
ic

e
—

In
cl

u
d
es

D
is

ab
il

it
y,

L
if

e
&

FM
L

A
P

ro
d

u
ct

s
-

C
o
n
ti

n
u
ed

N
ot

es
—

D
is

ab
il

it
y

1C
la

ir
ns

w
he

re
em

pl
oy

er
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
is

no
tp

ro
vi

de
d

w
ith

in
5

bu
si

ne
ss

da
ys

fr
om

re
ce

ip
t

of
cl

ai
m

w
ill

be
ex

cl
ud

ed
fr

om
E

va
lu

at
io

n
of

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.
2T

h
is

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t
is

on
ly

m
ea

su
re

d
an

d
ev

al
ua

te
d

if
a

va
lid

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
fe

ed
is

In
pl

ac
e.

F
or

st
at

is
ti

ca
l p

ur
po

se
s,

th
is

pe
na

lt
y

w
ill

no
tb

e
pa

id
un

le
ss

cl
ai

m
vo

lu
m

e
ex

ce
ed

s
th

re
sh

ol
d

of
50

cl
ai

m
s.

3L
T

D
de

ci
si

on
tim

e
st

an
da

rd
w

ill
no

ta
pp

ly
if

C
IG

N
A

ha
s

no
tr

ec
ei

ve
d

th
e

as
so

ci
at

ed
ST

D
cl

ai
m

w
ith

in
60

da
ys

of
th

e
LT

D
B

en
ef

it
St

ar
t

D
at

e.
4T

h
is

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t i
s

on
ly

m
ea

su
re

d
an

d
ev

al
ua

te
d

if
a

va
lid

el
ig

ib
ili

ty
fe

ed
is

in
pl

ac
e.

F
or

st
at

is
ti

ca
l p

ur
po

se
s,

th
is

pe
na

lt
y

w
ill

no
tb

e
pa

id
un

le
ss

cl
ai

m
vo

lu
m

e
ex

ce
ed

s
th

re
sh

ol
d

of
50

cl
ai

m
s.

5P
ay

m
en

t
or

le
tt

er
co

m
m

un
ic

at
in

g
ad

ve
rs

e
de

ci
si

on
w

ill
be

re
le

as
ed

w
ith

in
48

ho
ur

s
of

de
ci

si
on

.
°Q

ua
lif

ie
d

C
la

im
an

ts
w

ill
be

th
os

e
w

ho
m

ee
t

al
lo

f t
he

fo
llo

w
in

g
cr

ite
ri

a:
I

-
A

s
of

th
e

da
te

of
ap

pr
ov

al
,

ar
e

no
te

xp
ec

te
d

to
re

tu
rn

to
w

or
k

w
ith

in
9

m
on

th
s

fr
om

th
e

on
se

t
of

di
sa

bi
lit

y.
2
-

A
re

no
t

w
ith

in
6

m
on

th
s

of
So

ci
al

Se
cu

ri
ty

fu
ll

re
ti

re
m

en
ta

ge
as

of
th

e
B

en
ef

it
S

ta
rt

D
at

e.
3

-A
re

no
t m

ak
in

g
cl

ai
m

fo
r

di
sa

bi
lit

y
ba

se
d

on
a

di
ag

no
si

s
of

pr
eg

na
nc

y.
4

-
A

s
of

th
e

B
en

ef
it

S
ta

rt
D

at
e,

ar
e

no
te

ar
ni

ng
gr

ea
te

r
th

an
th

e
S

oc
ia

lS
ec

ur
ity

ea
rn

in
gs

th
re

sh
ol

d
($

10
00

/m
on

th
in

20
10

).

P
ag

e
5

of
11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment G-3
DISABILITY PROGRAM SUPPORT SERVICES FROM CIGNA

CIGNA’s unique disability management model focuses on early identification and intervention, coupled with
coordinated case management and extensive return-to-work support. CIGNA’s disability plans have several

competitive services at no cost and depending on workforce needs and budget requirements; employers can also

choose to include valuable optional services.

InsUred STD ASO] - Comments
STD IStandard Services Provided at No

Additional Cost -

Flexible Claim Notification offers nulsiple methods to rqion c.Jms madesooner claims are reporrev4 the sooner eiqJ.yees return
to work

Insured
lTD

Intake - telephonic with voice ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 Verbal authorization enables
authorization, mail, web, and quicker access to medical info
email and faster claim decisions

Expert Claims Management: develops coordinated return-so-work effom to help employees return to work quickly and safely
Medical/nurse case management

- ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 1

Vocational Rehabilitation ‘4 ‘4 ‘j ‘4 ‘4 Rehabilitation counselors
Services develop personalized plans for

individuals and recommend
assistive equipment, as needed

Social Security assessment & ‘4 J More than 98% of CIGNA’s
assistance services LTD claims are awarded SSDI

benefits before the first 36
months of coverage has ended

Overpayment recovery services J -4 ‘1

Comprehensive Tax-Related Services & Re orts: rdleve admJnislrative burden, save time andfree u,FWiirem
Preparation ofW2 statements for ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
taxable disability benefit plans
Employee FICA withholding & ‘4 ‘4 -.4 The employer self reports &
depositing self-pays employer FICA
Employer FICA Match Optional ‘4 Optional - requires an added
(insurance) cost

Comprehensive Claim Reportin : helps employers make In ónned decisions and manage costs
Online disability claim summary ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 Available to clients with 200
and trend reports or more employees

Online client administrative ‘4 -J ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
reporting system (CARS)
CIGNA Express® ‘4 ‘4 ‘J ‘4 ‘4 Requires 5,000+ employees
Consultative reporting package ‘1 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 Requires 10,000+ employees
myCIGNAcom online employee -.1 -.4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
tool
Expert Client Support Services: simplify administration and help with overallplan management
Client welcome package ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
Account management and ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
implementation services
CIGNA’s ADA Helpline ‘4 ‘1 -4 ‘4 ‘4 Expert ADA

assistance/support
Online billing and payment ‘4 -4 ‘4 ‘4 4
Managers & Physicians ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
Disability ToolkitsSM

8

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



StandardServices PrdditNh
Additional Cost

Value-Added Programs: help er

iIisured
STD

STD ASO; ST...
*fCheck Durpi
Cuttine. :

loyees andt eir families maintain their hEalth and well-b dna

:.comrnenti

— fl — —

CIGNA’s Healthy Rewards® -4 ‘4 ‘4 -4 Employee discounts of up to
60% on health/wellness
services

CIGNA’s Will Preparation -4 ‘4 1) ‘4 .4 Employees save money by
creating legal documents
online

CIGNA’s Disabdity & Healthcare Connect® (For clients with C1GNAdlubimy and CIGNA health care): helps improve
and maintain employee health, prevent and reduce costly medical and losHhne LVeMI$

Early intervention based .4 .4 .4 .4 .4 Employees have at least a 5%
medical condition - and up to 37% - greater

likelihood of returning to work
as a result of CiGNA’s
integrated clinical activities

Disability & medical case ‘4 .4 4 .4 .4
management coordination

Claim referrals to EAP, health ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 .4 ‘4
advocacy and disease

management

Integrated activities report ‘1 4 ‘4 4 ‘4
Optional Services Offeredaflj Insure TP Insuri
Additional Cost STO Inanclal ‘ ‘

9 —

Comprehensive FMLA/Leave Of Absence Administration (available to clients who have both - J and Li ,: helps
Improve disability outcomes, Mack, manage and r4uce eaW$e absencefor more effident and conqillanlteave administration
Single point of intake .1 ‘4 ‘4 .4 .4
Seamless integration with .4 ‘4 ‘4 -.1 ‘4
CIGNA’s industry-leading
disability management

capabiities

Customizable communications .4 .4 4 .4 .4
and real-time employer

notifications

Employer-dedicated leave 1 ‘4 ‘1 ‘4 1
managers and highly trained and
experienced staff

Clinical oversight of intermittent 1 J ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
and family-related health
absences

Integrated operational and .1 ‘4 4 1 .4
management summary reports

Robust EAP Portfolio: offers industry-leading e,nployee assistance programs which can help to reduce absences and improve
produdivity
CIGNA’s Life Assistance ‘1 AcCessing CIGNA’s EAP
ProgramSM I services helped improve the

I work productivity of 94% of
I those employees who had

[_ productivity issues
Full Service EAP 1 1
Comprehensive Tax-Rebted Services & Re orts: relieve administrative burden, save time andfree up resources
Employer FICA Reimbursement ‘4 ‘4 1 ‘4
Service

Employer FICA Match ‘4 I Standard on insured LTD
(insurance)

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Other Helpful Services: offers solutions to relieve administrative burdens
Health & Welfare deductions q
Complex Claims management Sold as an alternative to a

traditional insured or self

insured STD program;

requires CIGNA’s insured

LTD coverage

On-Site Disability Management J Available to clients with

10,000 or more employees

Return-to-Work Consulting q .4 J Available to clients with
Services 10,000 or more employees

Integrated disability ‘4 ‘4 ‘4 ‘4
management and workers?

compensation coordination

California Voluntary Plan Provides short term disability

and paid family leave

administrative services in lieu

of the California State

Disability Insurance (SDI) and
Paid Family Leave Insurance

plans provided by the state of

California

Notes

• Where indicated above, optional services require an additional purchase by the client. This includes the ER
FlCAMatchinsuranceofferingavailableoninsuredSTD;- —- -

CIGNA’s ADA Helpline is a free client resource staffed with trained professionals and provides access to other
extensive support. Clients can call the toll-free at 800.435.7030, Monday through Friday, 9:00 am to 5:00 pm
EST (excluding holidays)
Some Healthy Rewards® programs are not available in all states. A discount program is not insurance, and the
employee must pay entire discounted charge for any services accessed through the program;

• CIGNA’s Social Security award rate is for employees identified as likely eligible for SSDI benefits and referred
for SSDI claim application assistance;

• CIGNA’s Disability & Healthcare Connect® return-to-work results are based on CIGNA’s 2007 Integration
Value Study, analyzing claim results of 40 customers with a total of 300,000 employees;

• The employee productivity improvement results for CIGNA’s EAP Portfolio are based on a CIGNA 2009 EAP
participant satisfaction telephonic survey.

10•

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CIGNA ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES OVERVIEW

The following outlines services provided when Employer Administration or CIGNA Administration is elected. Please refer to the Proposal
Voluntary Administrative Summary for the program being offered with the product(s) shown on the Schedule of Benefits Summary.

Service
.. .

EMPLOYER. CIGNA Administered
.. Administered Plan

What you What CIGNA What you What CIGNA
.... . . . . will do :. will do will do* will do.:.

Employer Eligibility Informatlea
• Eligibility Feed (Full File Only) .4

Enrollment Event
• Initial .4 ‘1

Ongoing
• Changes&Adjustments .4 ‘1

Medical Underwriting Reporting to Employer
• Paper-Weekly .4 N/A

Online Reporting & Inquiry .4(2) N/A
Billing & Reconciliation

• Web based self-reporting of premium ‘I N/A
• Calculate Premium Payable 4
• List Billing (Itemized Deductions and Product) - Paper, N/A 1

Electronic File &_Web
Remittance

• Consumer-level vanance reporting N/A ‘I
• Policy Level Remittance .4 9

Customer Service
‘ Single 800 number N/A .4
‘ Plan Detail Information ‘I .4

Eligibility Verification
. .4 .4

• Confirmation of Coverage . ‘I .4
• Beneficiary Maintenance & Recordkeeping .4 .4(2) .4

Consumer Administrative Changes
• Address changes ‘1 9
• Dependent information updates .4 . .4
• Assignment Processing ‘4 ‘4

Claim Processing
• Verifi Claim Eligibility ‘1 ‘1
• Coordinate Waiver of Premium Claim ‘1 ‘4
• Update billing, based upon claim status ‘4 ‘4

Conversion/Portability Notices ‘4 .4(2) ‘4

* While CIGNA manages the administration ofyour voluntary program, your ongoing endorsement and support of the program is essential to
its success, specifically, in order to maximize both initial and ongoing employee participation. This support may come in the form of
distributing enrollment materials, sponsoring enrollment meetings, providing materials to both cunent employees prior to enrollment, and to
new employees to encourage their participation in the benefits program, as well as posting materials physically or electronically where your
employees can access them easily. In addition, on an ongoing basis, you will need to provide information to CIGNA that will ensure
accurate eligibility and billing.

(I) Eligibility feeds required if CIGNA providing portability and/or conversion service, beneficiary administration or online evidence of
insurability services.

FOr CIGNA to provide this service, you will be required to provide ongoing eligibility feeds.

13

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19192-2235

AMENDMENT

Policyholder: Trustee of the Group Insurance Trust for Employers in the the Public Administration Industry

Subscriber: Travis County Policy No.: OK 960892

This Amendment is attached to and made part of the Policy specified above. It is subject to all of the policy provisions that
do not conflict with its provisions.

Effective October 1, 2011, Subscriber and We hereby agree that the Policy is amended as follows:

1. The attached form, TL-007 152 (Modification of the Group Policy to Add Domestic Partner as an Eligible
Dependent for Accident Insurance), is added to the Policy. It replaces any Domestic Partner provisions that may
have been issued previously.

2. Effective October 1, 2011, the following rates will be in force for coverage under the Policy:

Premium Rate: Voluntary Insurance
Employee Rate: $0.02 per $1,000
Family Rate: $0.035 per $1,000

No change in rates will be made until 36 months after the effective date of this Amendment. However, the
Company reserves the right to change the rates at any time during a period for which the rates are guaranteed if the
conditions described in the Changes in Premium Rates provision under the Administrative Provisions section of
the Policy apply.

Except for the above, this Amendment does not change the Policy in any way.

Life Insurance Company of North America

Matthew G. Manders, President

Date: July 28, 201 l(revised April 20, 2012)

Amendment No. 03

GA-00-4000.00

1

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
a stock insurance company

Rider to Group Policy No. OK 960892
Effective Date ofRider: October 1, 2011

Eligible Classes to which this Rider applies: All Classes

MODIFICATION OF GROUP ACCIDENT POLICY
TO ADD DOMESTIC PARTNER AS AN ELIGIBLE DEPENDENT

FOR ACCIDENT INSURANCE

The provisions of the Policy are modified as follows:

1. A. All references to the tenn “Spouse” are replaced with “Spouse or Domestic Partner’, except for the following
references:
a. The defmition of “Spouse” remains unchanged.
b. Any reference to “lawful spouse”, “legal spouse”, “legal spouse” remains unchanged.
c. The reference to “spouse” in the last paragraph of the section titled, “Beneficiary” under the Claim

Provisions, remains unchanged.
d. The item regarding when a Spouse’s coverage will end in the paragraph titled, “Termination of Insurance”

under the Eligibility and Effective Date Provisions,iemains unchanged.

B. In the paragraph titled, “Termination of Insurance” under the Eligibility and Effective Date Provisions, the
following item regarding when a Domestic Partner’s coverage will end is added:

“6. with respect to a Domestic Partner, the date of the death of the covered Employee or the date such person
no longer qualifies as a Domestic Partner, unless such person elects to continue insurance. See
Continuance ofInsurance section.”

C. Under the General Definitions, item number in the last paragraph of the “Dependent Child(ren)” definition, is
changed to:

3. Stepchild who resides with the Employee, including a Domestic Partner’s child who resides with and is
financially dependent upon the Employee.

2. The following Domestic Partner definition is added to the General Definitions section of the Group Policy.

Domestic Partner means a person of the same or opposite sex who meets all of the following criteria:

a. Shares the covered Employee’s permanent residence;
b. Has resided with the covered Employee and is expected to continue to reside with the Employee;
c. Is fmancially interdependent with the covered Employee and shares the common necessities of life with

the Employee;
d Has signed a domestic partner declaration with the covered Employee, if the covered Employee resides in

a jurisdiction that provides for domestic partner declarations;
e. Has not signed a domestic partner declaration with any other person within the last 12 months, if the

Employee resides in a jurisdiction that provides for domestic partner declarations;
f. Is no less than 18 years of age;
g. Is not currently legally married to any other person; and
h. Is not a blood relative any closer than would prohibit legal marriage.

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



In addition to the above requirements, consent of either party to the Domestic Partner relationship must not have
been obtained by force, duress, or fraud, these have the same effects as on the validity of a marriage in Texas.

A covered Employee’s Domestic Partner is eligible for Accident Insurance Benefits under the Policy on the later of
the Employee’s eligibility date or the date the person becomes the covered Employee’s Domestic Partner and if all
the following conditions are met.
a. The covered Employee has not been married to any person within the last 31 days.
b. The Domestic Partner is the only person meeting the Policy’s definition of “Domestic Partner” with

respect to the covered Employee.
c. The covered Employee and Domestic Partner furnish a notarized affidavit or signed statement reflecting

these requirements, and an agreement to notit’ the Insurance Company if the requirements cease to be
met, on a form acceptable to the Insurance Company.

3. To obtain insurance for a Domestic Partner, a covered Employee must request coverage in writing and agree to
make any required premium contributions. Insurance will be effective for a Domestic Partner on the same date
specified for a Spouse in the section titled “Effective Date for Individuals” under the Eligibility and Effective Date
Provisions of the Policy.

The Principal Sum applicable to a Domestic Partner is the same Principal Sum applicable to a Spouse as shown in
the Schedule of Benefits.

Benefits for a covered Domestic Partner will be paid in accordance with the Claim Provisions of the Policy.

Except for the above, this Rider does not change the Group Policy to which it is attached.

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA

4
Matthew G. Manders, President

TL-007 152

3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment G-4

CIGNA Group Insurance
Life -Accident Disability

AGREEMENT
CONCERNiNG DESIGNATION OF BENEFICIARIES

USING ELECTRONiC SYSTEMS

Between X Life Insurance Company ofNorth America
Cl CIGNA Life Insurance Company ofNew York (“Company”)

And Travis County
(“Employer”)

Concerning FLX964188, FLX964189, 0K965800 and 0K960892
(“Policies”)

Effective October 1, 2011

WHEREAS, Company has issued the Policies, to insure certain employees of Employer; and

WHEREAS, such employees have the right under the terms of the Policies to designate a
beneficiary with respect to death proceeds; and

WHEREAS, Employer wishes to employ electronic systems, including web-based or telephone
interactive voice response systems, to obtain and maintain records of employees’ designation of
beneficiaries; and

WHEREAS, the Policies provide that such electronic systems may be used to obtain and maintain
records of employees’ designation ofbeneficiaries, with Company’s consent, or otherwise to
maintain records ofbeneficiary designations;

IN CONSIDERATION OF the promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows.

1. Employer may obtain and maintain beneficiary designations using a web-based system,
and/or an interactive voice response telephone system, subject to the requirements of this
Agreement. Company agrees to Employer’s use of such system(s) and agrees to recognize
beneficiaries made pursuant to the system(s) as valid beneficiaries under the Policies.
Company and Employer agree that beneficiary designations made under the Policies must be
designated using such system(s), or in writing signed by the employee.

1—

Copyright © 2006. Life Insurance Company of
North America, a CIGNA cempany

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



2. Employer shall maintain suitable safeguards to assure that only authorized persons are
pennitted to access any electronic system for the purpose of designating beneficiaries.
Employer represents and warrants that such system shall accept only designations made by
authorized persons; and that, if required by the terms of the policy, that such designations
will be deemed to be “in writing” and “signed,” in accordance with the Electronic Signatures
in Global and National Commerce Act (E-SIGN). Company assumes no responsibility for
the design or operation of such system.

3. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as preventing Company from exercising its
discretion, in good faith, to determine who is entitled to benefits under the terms of the
Policies and applicable law.

4. Employer shall maintain records of all beneficiary designations and shall provide such
records to Company upon request.

5. This Agreement shall be effective on the Effective Date stated above, even if signed prior or
subsequent thereto. This Agreement shall be applicable with respect to claims under the
Policies on account of deaths occurring on or after the Effective Date.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound, the parties have executed this
agreement.

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF
NORTH AMERICA

(“Employer”)

Date______________

________

By:
Title:

—2—.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment G-5

CIGNA Group Insurance
life. Accident. Disability

ERISA COVERAGE WORKSHEET

Use this worksheet to detennine whether a policy is issued in conjunction with ERISA. Where a policy is issued in
conjunction with ERISA, the following will apply:

1. The insurance company will serve as the employer’s named fiduciaiy for handling claims in accordance with
ERISA regulations. The “Appointment of Claim Fiduciary” is required.

2. Certificates of insurance will be prepared with ERISA Summary Plan Description wording included.

3. Information will be provided for the ERISA Annual Report, Form 5500, Schedule A.

4. aaim-related conspondence will comply with ERISA requirements, including notification of rights granted by
ERISA regulations.

Name of Policyholder: Travis County Effective Date:
Life Policy No(s): FLX-964188, FLX-964189 10/1/2011
Accident Policy No(s): OK-965800 10/1/2011
Disability Policy No(s): VDT-960953, VDT-960952 10/lt2Ol I

In general, any group insurance policy issued to an employer to insure employees, or to a labor union to insure union
members, is subject to ERISA. All policies will be considered to be subject to ERISA unless one of the following
exemptions applies.

El The policy is not issued to insure employees of an employer, or members of a labor union.

1] The policy is a statutory disability policy (e.g. Hawaii, New Jersey, New York).

The policyholder is a government employer (e.g. state, county, city, special services district, public school district,
public hospital, state college or university).

El The policyholder is a church group (religious organization, or hospital, school, or college operated by a religious
organization) which has not made an election under IRC Section 410(d) to be subject to ERISA.

El The plan is a short-term, uninsured salary continuance plan funded with general assets of the employer.

El The plan is voluntary, funded entirely with employee contributions, and is not enrolled or endorsed by the employer;
employer participation is limited to permitting the insurance company to conduct enrollments, and handling payroll
deductions.

El None of the above exemptions apply. The policy is issued as part of an ERISA-covered employee benefit plan. If
this is the case, then the Policyholder should sign the next page, “Appointment of Claim Fiduciary,” instead of this
page.

Implementation Coordinator Policyholder Representative

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment G-6

CIGNA Secure Travel®

EMERGENCY TRAVEL ASSISTANCE SERVICES

Servkesprovided by Europ Assistance USA, Inc.

Subscriber: Travis County

Membership No.:

The following is a description of the Emergency Travel Assistance Services (“Services”) provided by Europ Assistance
USA, Inc. (“EA”) through the CIGNA Secure Travel® program. The cost of these services is included within the
premium for the Policy identified above. Services will be provided only while the Policy is in force and while the master
agreement between EA and Life Insurance Company of North America (“Insurance Company”) is in effect. The
Insurance Company reserves the right to modify the scope or availability of services, or to terminate the master agreement
between EA and the Insurance Company, upon written notice to the Subscriber. Subscriber (“Subscriber”) is defined as a
company that has purchased the CIGNA Secure Travel Program for its employees.

Covered Members — Employees of the Subscriber insured under the Policy, including any dependents insured under the
Policy, shall be eligible for CIGNA Secure Travel® services, whenever traveling 100 miles or more from their permanent
residence (“Covered Members”). Service will also be available for pre-trip information just prior to a trip meeting the
above requirements.

Access To Services — To gain access to CIGNA Secure Travel® services, a Covered Member must contact EA.

Eligibility for Services- EA will verify eligibility via a roster provided by the Insurance Company. If the Subscriber is
not listed in the roster, EA will verify with the Insurance Company’s designated official that the Subscriber’s employees
are eligible for services. Once eligibility is verified, EA is authorized to provide services and the Covered Member shall
be responsible for all third party costs incurred by EA in providing authorized services, with the exception of those costs
incurred for the medical evacuation and repatriation services covered under the CIGNA Secure Travel program.

If contact is made outside of business hours, EA will render services but shall not be responsible for any claim, damage,
loss, cost, liability or expense which arises in whole or in part as a result of EA’s inability to contact the Insurance
Company’s designated company official for any reason beyond EA’s control.

24 flour Access — Covered Members will be able to reach EA’s multilingual coordination center in Washington, D.C.
toll-free by telephone, telex, and facsimile 24 hours a day, 365 days a year to confirm coverage and obtain access to the
following services.

L Informational Assistance

Prior to a trip, Covered Members can contact EA for up-to-date information on the following:

D Inoculation and Visa Information — Information concerning visa and inoculation requirements of the foreign
countries in which members are traveling.

Cl

C] Cultural Information — Information concerning cultural and special events, if available, in the areas to which
Covered Members are traveling.

C]

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



O Temperature and Weather Information — Weather forecasts and temperatures for major Cities around the world as
well as domestic and international ski reports for major ski areas.

I]

0 Embassy and Consular Referral — Addresses and telephone numbers of the nearest American Consulate and
Embassies, as appropriate.

0

0 Foreign Exchange Rates — Information on foreign exchange rates between the U.S. and most major Currencies.
These rates are updated on a daily basis. The rates may vary slightly from rates posted by local financial institutions
and are meant as general guidelines.

II. Emergency Medical Assistance

EA is responsible for providing the emergency medical assistance services described in this section. The Insurance
Company is responsible for the reimbursement of all costs associated with the following services to EA: emergency
medical transport, return of dependent children/ travel companion, visit of a family member/friend and repatriation
services.

Location of Medical Providers — Upon a Covered Member’s request, EA will provide the names, addresses and
telephone numbers of physicians, hospitals, dentists, and dental clinics in the area in which the Covered Member is
traveling. EA will also attempt to confirm the availability of the provider, ascertain required payments which a Covered
Member will be required to pay, and make an appointment for a Covered Member with the medical provider of the
Covered Member’s choice. Except as specifically provided in this agreement, expenses of medical care are not insured by
the Insurance Company.

Neither EA nor the Insurance Company guarantees the quality of the medical services provider or the medical facility and
the final selection of a local physician or medical facility is the Covered Member’s right and responsibility.

Medical Monitoring — When notified of a Covered Member’s medical emergency resulting from an accident or sickness,
EA’s multilingual staff will, whenever appropriate in the judgment of EA or a physician designated by EA, attempt to
contact the Covered Member and Covered Member’s local attending medical personnel in order to attempt to obtain a full
understanding of the Covered Member’s situation and to attempt to monitor the Covered Member’s condition.
EA will continue to monitor the Covered Member’s condition and will remain in communication with the Covered
Member’s family until the Covered Member’s medical problem is resolved or the Covered Member has returned home.

Emergency Medical Transport — In the event of a medical emergency, when a Covered Member requests, and a
physician designated by EA in consultation with a local attending physician determines that it is medically necessary for a
Covered Member to be transported under medical supervision to a different hospital or treatment facility or be repatriated
to his/her place of residence for treatment, EA will arrange for the medical evacuation or repatriation under proper
medical supervision.

As part of a medical evacuation, EA will also make all necessary arrangements for ground transportation to and from the
hospital, as well as pre-admission arrangements, where possible, at the receiving hospital.

All decisions as to the medical need for evacuation or repatriation, the means and timing of any evacuation, the medical
equipment and the medical personnel to be used and the final destination are medical decisions that will be made by EA’s
designated physicians in consultation with a local attending physician based on medical factors and their decisions shall
be conclusive in determining the need for such services. Costs of medical evacuation or repatriation are covered under the
CIGNA Secure Travel program, provided the foregoing requirements are met.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Return of Dependent Children — If any dependent children under the age of 16 traveling with a Covered Member are
left unattended by an adult because the Covered Member is hospitalized, EA will arrange for their transportation home.
Should transportation with an attendant be necessary, CA will arrange a qualified escort to accompany the children. The
cost of these services are covered under the CIGNA Secure Travel program.

Return of Traveling Companion — If a Covered Member’s traveling companion loses previously made travel
arrangements due to a delay caused by the Covered Member’s medical emergency, EA will help arrange for the traveling
companion’s return to the companion’s original destination. The ëosts of these services are covered under the CIGNA
Secure Travel program.

Visit of a Family Member or Friend — If a Covered Member is traveling alone and must be hospitalized for ten (10) or
more consecutive days, EA will arrange for a round-trip economy class transportation for a member of the Covered
Member’s immediate family, or a friend designated by the Covered Member, from the family member’s or friend’s home
to the place where the Covered Member is hospitalized. EA will also arrange for meals and accommodations (up to $100
per day for up to 7 days) for the family member or friend while they are visiting the hospitalized Covered Member. The
costs of these services are covered under the CIGNA Secure Travel program.

Emergency Medical Payments — When necessary to obtain needed medical services for a Covered Member, upon
request EA will advance up to $5,000.00 to cover on-site medical expenses, upon receipt of satisfactory guarantee of
reimbursement from the Covered Member. Except as specifically provided in this agreement, expenses of medical care
are not insured by the Insurance Company.

Repatriation Special Services — In the event a Covered Member dies, EA will arrange for all necessary government
authorization required by Jaw, including a container appropriate for transportation and arrange for the repatriation of the
remains to the Covered Member’s place of residence for burial. The costs of these services are covered under the CIGNA
Secure Travel program.

Replacement of Medication — If a Covered Member has an unexpected need for prescription medication or loses, forgets,
or runs out of prescription medication while traveling, CA will attempt to locate the medication or its equivalent and
attempt to arrange for the Covered Member to obtain it locally, where it is available; or, if not available locally, to have it
shipped to the Covered Member, at the Covered Member’s expense, subject to local laws. The Covered Member will be
provided with a cost estimate for the replacement medication and shipment costs, which shall be subject to Covered
Member’s approval. Except as specifically provided in this agreement, expenses of medical care are not insured by the
Insurance Company.

III. Travel and Communication Assistance

Telephone Interpretation Service — If a Covered Member needs help communicating in an emergency, EA will provide
telephonic interpretation services in all major languages. In emergency situations which require extensive translation, EA
will make referrals to local translators.

Transmission and Retention of Urgent Messages — In an emergency, EA will use its best efforts to transmit an urgent
message for a Covered Member to the Covered Member’s family, friends, or business associates. EA will also accept and
retain messages for Covered Members at the Worldwide Assistance North American Coordination Center for up to fifteen
(15) days.

Travel Arrangements — In the event of an emergency, EA will help Covered Members make emergency travel
arrangements, including airline, hotel, and car rental reservations. The Covered Member is responsible for payment for all
tickets, accommodations and rentals arranged.

Lost Lnggage, Documents and Personal Items — If a Covered Member’s luggage, personal items or travel documents
have been lost or stolen, EA will contact the appropriate authorities in order to locate the lost items and have them sent to

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



the Covered Member. If requested, EA will help a Covered Member secure replacement items from home. All shipping
and replacement costs are the responsibility of the Covered Member.

Legal Assistance/Bail — In an emergency, EA will attempt to help a Covered Member secure and post bail bonds
worldwide, where permitted by local law, from funds forwarded to EA from the Covered Member’s family or
representative, or with a satisfactory guarantee of reimbursement. EA will also use its best efforts to provide a Covered
Member with the names, addresses and telephone numbers of lawyers in the area in which the Covered Member is
traveling in case of a car accident, traffic violations, and other offenses. However, the selection of and the expenses
associated with a particular attorney are the responsibility of the Covered Member.

Emergency Cash Advance — In an emergency situation, and with the consent of the Covered Member, EA will advance
up to $250.00, upon satisfactory guarantee of reimbursement.

W. Limitations

The services described here are available in every country. Some countries, however, may present political and other
obstacles that may render assistance services difficult or impossible and services cannot always be guaranteed. Should a
Covered Member travel in any area in which there is a rebellion, riot. military uprising, war, labor disturbance or strike.
EA will endeavor to provide such services as EA believes it can safely perform under existing conditions.

The medical professionals or attorneys suggested or designated by EA who provide direct services pursuant to this
agreement are not employees or agents of EA and, therefore, neither EA nor the Insurance Company is not responsible or
liable for their negligence or other acts or omissions.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment G-7

Valuable help when it’s needed most:

• Review of credit information to determine
if an ID theft has occurred

• A CIGNA Identity Theft Resolution Kit is
provided to the employee

• An ID theft affidavit is furnished for use
with credit bureaus and creditors

a Help in reporting ID theft to credit-
reporting agencies

• Assistance with placing a fraud alert on
credit reports

a Canceling lost or stolen credit cards

Available with C IGNA AcCdeflt Cc verage

___________

• -.__

___ ____

Identity Theft Program

Defending employees against damages caused by identity theft

Identity theft, America’s fastestgrowing crime, victimizes almost 8.9 million
consumers each year.’ And it’s a silent crime, often taking a year or more for victims
to discover their identity has been stolen. As a result, victims can spend years
attempting to restore their credit. With this in mind, CIGNA has developed extensive
resolution services to help employers and employees deal with this difficult issue. Our
program provides access to personal case managers who give step-by-step assistance
and guidance to employees who have had their identity stolen.

Employees may

• Assistance with credit and charge card
replacement

Assistance with replacing lost or stolen
documents

• Access to free credit reports

• Education on how to identify and avoid
ID theft

• $1,000 cash advance to cover financial
shortages if needed2

B Emergency message relay

• Help with emergency travel arrangements
and translation services

spend, on average,

40 to 600 hours

to resolve their

identity theft

issues.

Based on

conservative

estimates, an

employer with

1,000 employees

making an average

of $40,000 per

year would save

$600,000 annually

if they could help

employees avoid

identity theft and

its related costs.’

it’s time to feel better

Identity theft can compromise employee and business productivity

American citizens and businesses spend more than 300 million hours each year resolving
identity theft issues. To an employer this may mean a savings of over $600 per employee due
to lost productivity.

In addition to its difficult financial effects, identity theft can have a negative effect on employee
productivity and morale. The financial hardship, emotional turmoil, and the process of resolving
credit issues rob employees — and organizations — of valuable time and productivity.

Our program covers all types of identfty theft
such as credit card fraud, or nancia1 or

medical identity theft.

CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CIGNA’S Identity Theft

Program can help

employers help their

employees resolve identity

theft issues, thereby

better managing at-work

productivity. Our personal

case managers offer one-

on-one advice and take

care of administrative tasks

necessary to rectify identity

theft issues employees may

experience. Our personal

case managers also take the

lead in making necessary

phone calls for employees. In

the end employees are not

only relieved of the burden

and personal stress caused

by identity theft, but they

also don’t spend valuable

work hours on the phone

canceling lost or stolen

credit cards.

Regardless of where or when employees come under the attack of identity theft,

CIGNA’s wide range of valuable services are available. Employees have access to
immediate, one-on-one assistance —24 hours a day, 365 days a year — in every

country in the world.3CIGNA’s Identity Theft Program is available to individuals

covered under a CIGNA accident plan, including family members who are

enrolled in ow Voluntary Accident coverage. And employers and employees

can access our online site for weekly tips and useful information to learn how to
reduce the risk of identity theft before it occurs.

ereTirr we ii he;
While reviewing her monthly credit card statement, Louise made a troubling discovery — three
charges from an unfamiliar Internet site were on her account. Fearing that someone was making
unauthorized purchases on her credit card, Louise immediately called CIGNA’S Identity Theft
Program. Brian, the identity theft case manager, handled Louise’s call. Louise’s primary concern
was getting the charges removed from her account and Brian knew they had to act fast to stop
additional fraudulent activity.

Brian gave Louise an identity theft affidavit to alert the proper authorities, credit bureaus, and
creditors. Brian also.

-

Walked her through the process of filling out and sending the signed affidavit to Louise’s bank
as her sworn statement that there were unauthorized charges posted on her account;

Called the credit card company on Louise’s behalf canceling her current card and requesting
that a new card be issued to prevent future fraud on the compromised account;

Assisted Louise with placing a fraud alert on her credit file with credit bureaus — giving Louise
the ability to receive a free copy of her credit report verifying that all the information was
accurate; and

Arranged for Louise to have access to a $1,000 cash advance to use while waiting for her new
credit card.

A CIGNA Identity Theft Resolution Kit containing useful information on how to reduce the risk of
being a future victim was also e-mailed to Louise’s home.

The bottom line — Louise was quickly provided with the tools, information and resources to help
her deal with fraudulent activity and avoid it in the future.

What can you do to help employees guard against identity theft?

Call your CIGNA sales representative today to learn more

about our Identity Theft Program.

‘Javelin Strategy and Research January, 2006; Privacy Rights Clearinghouse and the California Pubic Interest Research Group, 2005;
Assistance with U.S. bank aconunts only

This program does not include reimbursement of expenses for financial losses.

“CIGNA,”CIGNA Grnup Irisuranceand 1heTree of Life9ogo are registered service marks of CIGNA Intellectual Property, Inc., licensed for use by
CIGNA Corporation and its operating subsidiaries All products and services are provided exclusively by such operating subsidiaries and nor by
CIGNA Corporation. Such operating subsidiaries include Life Insurance Company oiNorth Amenca, CIGNA life Insurance Company of New York,
and Connecticut General tile Insurance Company.

8l1385a 11/08 ©2008CIGNA

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT NOTICE

Attachment IC-i Policy Number 0K965800
Life Limited Accidental Disability and Death

AVISO IMPORTAITE

To obtain infonnation or make a
complaint:

You may call Special Marketing
Division’s toll-free telephone
number fbr information or to
make a complaint at:

1400441-1832

You may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance to obtain information on
companies, coverages, rights or
complaints at

1-800-252-3439

You may write the
Texas Department of Insurance
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX #(512) 475-1 771

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES:
Should you have a dispute concerning
your premium or about a claim you
should contact the agent or company
first. If the dispute is not resolved,
you may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance.

ATTACH TillS NOTICE TO YOUR
POLICY: This notice is for
information only and does not
become a part or condition of
the attached document.

Liarne ala Ilnea gratuita de Ia Division
Especial de Marketing para obtener
información opresentar una
queja al:

1-800-441-1832

Puede comunicarse con ci Departaniento
de Seguros de Texas pain obtener
informaciOn sobre compafiuas,
coberturas, derechos o quejas ilaniando al

1-800-252-3439

También puede escribir al Texas Department
of Insurance (Departamento de Seguros de Texas)
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX #(512) 475-1771

CONFLICTOS POR PRIMAS 0 RECLAMACIONES:
En caso de tener us conflicto relacionado
con su prima 0 una reclamaciOn, debe
comunicarse primero con ci agents
o Ia compañfa. Si ci conflicto no se
resuelve, usted puede comunicarse con
ci Departainento de Segums de Texas.

UNA ESTE AVISO A SU POLIZA:
Este aviso es solo pars proposito
de informacion y no se convierte
en parte o condicion del documento
adjunto.

Pars solicitar información o
presentar usa queja

TL.004426

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER TUE ThXAS LIFE, ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service Insurance
Guaranty Association (the “Association”), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health insurance company
fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which are members of the Association are eligible for this
protection which is subject to the tenns, limitations, and conditions of the Association law. (The law is found in
the Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not cover your policy in full or in part due to statutory limitations.

ELIGIBILITY FOR PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a court
or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides coverage to
policyholders who are:

• Residents of Texas at that time (irrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy issue)
• Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:
1) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2) The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s state of

residence.

LIMITS OF PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance, and
$200,000 for other types of health insurance.

Life Insurance:
• Net cash sunender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life; or
• Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.

Individual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.

Group Annuities:
• Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $100,000 on any one life; or
• Present value ofunallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of the

number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:

$300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000 multiple
owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association for the
purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you are selecting an
insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 787 14-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
1601 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19192-2235
A Stock Insurance Company

GROUP ACCIDENT POLICY
POLICYhOLDER: Travis County

POLICY NUMBER: OK 965800

POLICY DESCRIPTION: Employee Accidental Death & Disability
Insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1,2011

POLICY ANNIVERSARY DATE: October 1

STATE OF ISSUE: Texas

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of insurance. This Policy goes into effect subject to its applicable terms and
conditions at 12:01 Ms.! on the Policy Effective Date shown above at the Policyholder’s address. The laws of the State of
Issue shown above govern this Policy.

We and the Policyholder agree to all of the terms of this Policy.

TILTS IS A GROUP ACCIDENT ONLY INSURANCE POLICY.
IT DOES NOT PAY BENEFITS FOR LOSS CAUSED BY SICKNESS.

THIS IS A LIMITED POLICY.
PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

‘1’2J -4.
Scott Kern, Corporate Secretary Matthew G. Manders, President

Countersigned________________________________
Where Required By Law

GA-00-1 000.00

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PAGE NUMBER

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS 2

GENERAL DEFINITIONS 5

ELIGIBILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE PROVISIONS 7

COMMON EXCLUSIONS 8

CONVERSION PRIVILEGE 9

CLAIM PROVISIONS 11

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 13

GENERAL PROVISIONS 14

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT COVERAGE 16

EXPOSURE AND DISAPPEARANCE COVERAGE 17

OWNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE 17

SEATBELT AND AIRBAG BENEFIT 18

SPECIAL EDUCATION BENEFIT 19

MODIFYING PROVISIONS AMENDMENT 20

GA-00- 1000.00

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

This Policy is intended to be read in its entirety. In order to understand all the conditions, exclusions and limitations
applicable to its benefits, please read all the policy provisions carefully.

The Schedule ofBenefits provides a brief outline of the coverage and benefits provided by this Policy. Please read
the Description ofCoverages and Benefits Section for full details.

Policy: Group policy identified as Policy Number: OK-965800 on the policy cover
page

Policyholder: Travis County

Effective Date of Policyholder Participation: October 1,2011

Covered Classes:

Class 1 All active, Full-time Employees of the Employer regularly working a minimum of 20 hours per week.

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS I

This Schedule ofBenefits shows maximums, benefit periods and any limitations applicable to benefits provided in
this Policy for each Covered Person unless otherwise indicated. Principal Sum, when referred to in this Schedule,
means the Employee’s Principal Sum in effect on the date of the Covered Accident causing the Covered Injury or
Covered Loss unless otherwise specified.

Eligibility Waiting Period
The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Employee must be in a Covered Class to be eligible for coverage.

For Employees hired on or before the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

For Employees hired after the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

Time Period for Loss:
Any Covered Loss must occur within: 365 days of the Covered Accident

Maximum Age for Insurance: None

VOLUNTARY ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFiTS

Employee Principal Sum: An amount equal to the Employee’s voluntary group life
insurance benefit in effect under Policy Number FLX964 188,
underwritten by Life Insurance Company ofNorth America.

Changes in the Covered Person’s amount of insurance resulting from a change in the Employee’s amount of
Annual Compensation take effect on August 31, subject to any Active Service requirement.

SCHEDULE OF COVERED LOSSES

Covered Loss
Loss ofLife
Loss ofTwo or More Hands or Feet
Loss of Sight ofBoth Eyes
Loss of One Hand or One Foot and Sight in One Eye
Loss of Speech and Hearing (in both ears)
Quadriplegia
Paraplegia
Hemiplegia
Uniplegia
Coma

Monthly Benefit
Number of Monthly Benefits
When Payable

Lump Sum Benefit
When Payable

Loss of One Hand or Foot
Loss of Sight in One Eye
Severance and Reattachment of One Hand or Foot
Loss of Speech
Loss of Hearing (in both ears)
Loss of all Four Fingers of the Same Hand
Loss of Thumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand
Loss of all the Toes of the Same Foot

Benefit
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
75% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
25% of the Principal Sum

1% of the Principal Sum
11
At the end of each month during which the Covered
Person remains comatose
100% of the Principal Sum
Beginning of the 12° month
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
25% of the Principal Sum
25% of the Principal Sum
20% of the Principal Sum

3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Age Reductions
A Covered Person’s Principal Sum will be reduced to the percentage of his Principal Sum in effect on the date
preceding the first reduction, as shown below.

Age Percentage of Benefit Amount
70butlessthan75 65%
75 but less than 79 45%
80 but less than 85 30%
85 or over 15%

ADDITIONAL ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT COVERAGES
Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefits are provided under the following coverages. Any benefits payable under
them are as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses and are not paid in addition to any other Accidental Death and
Dismemberment benefits.

EXPOSURE AND DISAPPEARANCE COVERAGE Principal Sum multiplied by the percentage applicable to the
Covered Loss, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses.

OWNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE Principal Sum multiplied by the percentage applicable to the
Covered Loss, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses.

ADDITIONAL ACCIDENT BENEFITS
Any benefits payable under these Additional Accide,U Benefits shown below are paid in addition to any other Accidental
Death and Dismemberment benefits payable.

SEATBELT AND AIRBAG BENEFIT
Seatbelt Benefit 10% of the Principal Sum subject to a Maximum Benefit of

$10,000
Airbag Benefit 5% of the Principal Sum subject to a Maximum Benefit of

$5,000
Default Benefit None

SPECIAL EDUCATION BENEFIT
Surviving Dependent Child Benefit 5% of the Principal Sum subject to a Maximum Benefit of

$5,000 per year.
Maximum Number of Annual Payments
For Each Surviving Dependent Child 4
Default Benefit $1,000

INITIAL PREMIUM RATES

Premium Rate: Voluntary Insurance
Employee Rate: $0.02 per $1,000

Mode ofPremium Payment: Monthly

Contributions: l’he cost of the coverage is paid by the Employee

Premium Due Dates: 30 days after delivering the Policy and after that the last day of each
succeeding month.

Premium rates are subject to change in accordance with the Changes in Premium Rates section contained in the
Administrative Provisions section of this Policy.

GA-00-l 100.00

4

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL DEFINITIONS

Please note that certain words used in this Policy have specific meanings. The words defined below and capitalized within
the text of this Policy have the meanings set forth below.

Active Service An Employee will be considered in Active Service with his employer on any day
that is either of the following:
1. one of the Employer’s scheduled work days on which the Employee is

performing his regular duties on a full-time basis, either at one of the
Employer’s usual places of business or at some other location to which the
Employer’s business requires the Employee to travel;

2. a scheduled holiday, vacation day or period of Employer-approved paid leave
of absence, other than sick leave, only if the Employee was in Active Service
on the preceding scheduled workday.

Age A Covered Person’s Age, for puiposes of initial premium calculations, is his Age
attained on the date coverage becomes effective for him under this Policy.
Thereafter, it is his Age attained on his last birthday.

Aircraft A vehicle which:
1. has a valid certificate of airworthiness; and
2. is being flown by a pilot with a valid license to operate the Aircraft.

Covered Accident A sudden, unforeseeable, external event that results, directly and independently of
all other causes, in a Covered Injury or Covered Loss and meets all of the
following conditions:
1. occurs while the Covered Person is insured under this Policy;
2. is not contributed to by disease, Sickness, mental or bodily infirmity;
3. is not otherwise excluded under the terms of this Policy.

Covered Injury Any bodily harm that results directly and independently of all other causes from a
Covered Accident.

Covered Loss A loss that is all of the following:
I. the result, directly and independently of all other causes, of a Covered

Accident;
2. one of the Covered Losses specified in the Schedule ofCovered Losses;
3. suffered by the Covered Person within the applicable time period specified in

the Schedule ofBenefits.

Covered Person An eligible person, as defined in the Schedule ofBenefits, for whom an enrollment
form has been accepted by the Policyholder and Us and required premium has been
paid when due and for whom coverage under this Policy remains in force.

Employee For eligibility purposes, an Employee of the Employer who is in one of the
Covered Classes.

Employer The Policyholder and any affiliates, subsidiaries or divisions shown in the Schedule
ofCovered Affiliates and which are covered under this Policy on the date of issue
or subsequently agreed to by Us.

Re, Ills, Rim Refers to any individual, male or female.

5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Hospital An institution that meets all of the following:
1. it is licensed as a Hospital pursuant to applicable law;
2. it is primarily and continuously engaged in providing medical care and

treatment to sick and injured persons;
3. it is managed under the supervision ofa staffof medical doctors;
4. it provides 24-hour nursing services by or under the supervision ofa graduate

registered nurse (RN.);
5. it has medical, diagnostic and treatment facilities, with major surgical facilities

on its premises, or available on a prearranged basis;
6. it charges for its services.

The term Hospital does not include a clinic, facility, or unit of a Hospital for:
1. rehabilitation, convalescent, custodial, educational or nursing care;
2. the aged, drug addicts or alcoholics;
3. a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospital unless

the Covered Person incurs an expense.

Inpatient A Covered Person who is confined for at least one full day’s Hospital room and
board. The requirement that a person be charged for room and board does not
apply to confinement in a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal
Government Hospital and in such case, the tenn ‘Inpatient’ shall mean a Covered
Person who is required to be confined for a period of at least a full day as
determined by the Hospital.

Nurse A person who is a licensed graduate Registered Nurse (RN.), a licensed practical
Nurse (L.P.N.) or a licensed vocational Nurse (L.V.N.) and is not:
1. employed or retained by the Policyholder
2. living in the Covered Person’s household; or
3. a parent, sibling, spouse or child of the Covered Person.

Outpatient A Covered Person who receives treatment, services and supplies while not an
Inpatient in a Hospital.

Physician A licensed health care provider practicing within the scope of his license and
rendering care and treatment to a Covered Person that is appropriate for the
condition and locality and who is not:
1. employed or retained by the Policyholder;
2. living in the Covered Person’s household
3. a parent, sibling, spouse or child of the Covered Person.

Prior Plan The plan of insurance providing similar benefits, sponsored by the Employer in
effect immediately prior to this Policy’s Effective Date.

Sickness A physical or mental illness.

Totally Disabled or Totally Disabled or Total Disability means either:
Total Disability 1. inability of the Covered Person who is currently employed to do any type of

work for which he is or may become qualified by reason of education, training
or experience; or

2. inability of the Covered Person who is not currently employed to perform all
of the activities of daily living including eating, transferring, dressing,
toileting, bathing, and continence, without human supervision or assistance.

We, Us, Our Life Insurance Company of North America.

GA-00-l 200.00

6

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ELIGIBILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE PROVISIONS

Policy Effective Date
We agree to provide Accident Insurance Benefits described in this Policy in consideration of the Policyholder’s application
and payment of the initial premium when due. Insurance coverage begins on the Policy Effective Date shown on this
Policy’s first page.

Eligibility
An Employee becomes eligible for insurance under this Policy on the date he meets all of the requirements of one of the
Covered Classes and completes any Eligibility Waiting Period, as shown in the Schedule ofBenefits.

Effective Date for Individuals
Insurance becomes effective for an eligible Employee who applies and agrees to make required contributions subject to the
Deferred Effective Date provision below:
1. New hires. Coverage is effective first of the month following 30 calendar days from the date of hire.
2. Life Status Change. Coverage will become effective first of the month following the date of the change.
3. Annual Enrollment. Coverage becomes effective on the Policy Anniversary Date.

DEFERRED EFFECTIVE DATE
Active Service
The effective date of insurance will be deferred for any Employee who is not in Active Service on the date coverage would
otherwise become effective. Coverage will become effective on the later of the date he returns to Active Service and the
date coverage would otherwise have become effective.

Effective Date of Changes
Any increase or decrease in the amount of insurance for the Covered Person resulting from:
1. a change in benefits provided by this Policy; or
2. a change in the Employee’s Covered Class will take effect on the date of such change.
Increases will take effect subject to any Active Service requirement.

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE
The insurance on a Covered Person will end on the last day of the month after the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date this Policy or insurance for a Covered Class is terminated;
2. the next premium due date after the date the Covered Person is no longer in a Covered Class or satisfies eligibility

requirements under this Policy;
3. the last day of the last period for which premium is paid;
4. the next premium due date after the Covered Person attains the maximum Age for insurance under this Policy.

Termination will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss or Covered Injury that is the result, directly and independently of all
other causes, of a Covered Accident that occurs while coverage was in effect.

Conthuintlon for Layoff, Medical Leave of Absence, Non-Medical Leave of Absence or Family Medical Leave
Insurance for an Employee may be continued until the earliest of the following dates if: (a) an Employee is on a temporary
layoff, an Employer-approved non-medical leave of absence, an Employer-approved medical leave of absence or an
Employer-approved family medical leave; and (b) required premium contributions are paid when due.
I. for an Employer-approved medical leave of absence: 12 months
2. for an Employer-approved non-medical leave of absence: 12 months
3. for an Employer-approved family medical leave: 12 weeks in a consecutive 12-month period.

GA-00-1300.00

7

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



COMMON EXCLUSIONS

In addition to any benefit-specific exclusions, benefits will not be paid for any Covered injury or Covered Loss which,
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, is caused by or results from any of the following unless coverage is specifically
provided for by name in the Description ofBenefits Section:

1. intentionally self-inflicted injury, suicide or any attempt thereat while sane or insane;
2. commission or attempt to commit a felony or an assault;
3. commission of or active participation in a riot or insurrection;
4. bungee jumping; parachuting; skydiving; parasailing; hang-gliding;
5. declared or undeclared war or act of war;
6. flight in, boarding or alighting from an Aircraft or any craft designed to fly above the Earth’s surface:

a. except as a passenger on a regularly scheduled commercial airline or as pilot or passenger in Employer
owned aircraft;

b. when the aircraft is being used for:
i. crop dusting, spraying or seeding, giving and receiving flying instruction, sky writing, sky

diving or hang-gliding, pipeline or power line inspection, aerial photography or exploration,
racing, endurance tests, stunt or acrobatic flying;

c. when the aircraft is designed for flight above or beyond the earth’s atmosphere;
d. when the aircraft is an ultra-light or glider;
e. when the aircraft is being used for the purpose ofparachuting or skydiving;
f. when the aircraft is being used by any military authority, except an Aircraft used by the Air Mobility

Command or its foreign equivalent;
7. Sickness, disease, bodily or mental infirmity, bacterial or viral infection or medical or surgical treatment thereof;

except for any bacterial infection resulting from an accidental external cut or wound or accidental ingestion of
contaminated food;

9. a Covered Accident that occurs while engaged in the activities of active duty service in the military, navy or air
force of any country or international organization. Covered Accidents that occur while engaged in Reserve or
National Guard training are not excluded until training extends beyond 31 days;

10. operating any type of vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug, narcotic or other intoxicant
including any prescribed drug for which the Covered Person has been provided a written warning against
operating a vehicle while taking it. Under the influence of alcohol, for purposes of this exclusion, means
intoxicated, as defined by the law of the state in which the Covered Accident occurred

11. voluntary ingestion of any narcotic, drug, poison, gas or fumes, unless prescribed or taken under the direction of a
Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage.

GA-00-l403.O0

8

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CONVERSION PRIVILEGE

If the Covered Person’s insurance or any portion of it ends for any of the following reasons:
a. employment or membership ends;
b. eligibility ends (except for age for the Employee);
the Covered Person may have Us issue converted accident insurance on an individual policy or an individual certificate
under a designated group policy. The Covered Person may apply for an amount of coverage that is:
a. in $1,000 increments;
b. not less than $25,000, regardless of the amount of insurance under the group policy; and
c. not more than the amount of insurance he had under the group policy, except as provided above, up to a maximum

amount of$250,000.

The Covered Person must be under age 70 to get a converted policy.

If the Covered Person’s insurance or any portion of it ends for non-payment ofpremium, he may not convert. If the
Covered Person’s insurance ends for a reason described in 2. below, conversion is subject to that section.

The converted policy or certificate will cover accidental death and dismemberment. The policy or certificate will not
contain disability or other additional benefits. The Covered Person need not show Us that he is insurable.

If the Covered Person has converted his group coverage and later becomes insured under the same group plan as
before, he may not convert a second time unless he provides, at his own expense, proof of insurability or proof the
prior converted policy is no longer in force.

The Covered Person must apply for the individual policy within 31 days after his coverage under this Group Policy
ends and pay the required premium, based on Our table of rates for such policies, his Age and class of risk. If the
Covered Person has assigned ownership of his group coverage, the owner/assignee must apply for the individual
policy.

If the Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss or dies during this 31-day period as the result of an accident that would
have been covered under this Group Policy, We will pay as a claim under this Group Policy the amount of insurance
that the Covered Person was entitled to convert. It does not matter whether the Covered Person applied for the
individual policy or certificate. If such policy or certificate is issued, it will be in exchange for any other benefits under
this Group Policy.

The individual policy or certificate will take effect on the day following the date coverage under the Group Policy
ended; or, if later, the date application is made.

Exclusions
The converted policy may exclude the hazards or conditions that apply to the Covered Person’s group coverage at the
time it ends. We will reduce payment under the converted policy by the amount of any benefits paid under the group
policy if both cover the same loss.

2. If the Covered Person’s insurance ends because this Group Policy is terminated or is amended to terminate insurance
for the Covered Person’s class, and he has been covered under this Group Policy or, any group accident insurance
issued to the Employer which the Group Policy replaced, for at least five years, the Covered Person may have Us issue
an individual policy or certificate of accident insurance subject to the same terms, conditions and limitations listed
above. However, the amount he may apply for will be limited to the lesser of the following:
a. coverage under this Group Policy less any amount ofgroup accident insurance for which he is eligible on the date

this Group Policy is terminated or for which he becama eligible within 31 days of such termination, or
b. $10,000.

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Extension of Conversion Period
If the Covered Person is eligible to convert and is not notified of this right at least 15 days prior to the end of the 31 day
conversion period, the conversion period will be extended. The Covered Person will have 15 days from the date notice is
given to apply for a converted policy or certificate. In no event will the conversion period be extended beyond 90 days.
Notice, for the purpose of this section, means written notice presented to the Covered Person by the Policyholder or mailed
to the Covered Person’s last known address as reported by the Policyholder.

If the Covered Person sustains a Covered Loss or dies during the extended conversion period, but more than 31 days after
his coverage under the Group Policy terminates, benefits will not be paid under the Group Policy. If the Covered Person’s
application for a converted policy or certificate is received by Us and the required premium is paid, benefits may be payable
under the converted policy or certificate.

GA-01-1505.00

l0

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim
Written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice of claim must be given to Us within 31 days after a Covered Loss occurs
or begins or as soon as reasonably possible. If written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice is not given in that time,
the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is shown that written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice was given
as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given to Us at Our home office in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. such other
place as We may designate for the purpose, or to Our authorized agent. Notice should include the Policyholder’s name and
policy number and the Covered Person’s name, address, policy and certificate number.

Claim Forms
We will send claim forms for filing proof of loss when We receive notice of a claim. If such forms are not sent within 15
days after We receive notice, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the time fixed in this Policy for
filing proof of loss, written or authorized electronic proof of the nature and extent of the loss for which the claim is made.

Claimant Cooperation Provision
Failure of a claimant to cooperate with Us in the administration of the claim may result in termination of the claim. Such
cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any information or documents needed to determine whether benefits
are payable or the actual benefit amount due.

Proof of Loss
Written or authorized electronic proof of loss satisfactory to Us must be given to Us at Our office, within 90 days of the
loss for which claim is made. If(a) benefits are payable as periodic payments and (b) each payment is contingent upon
continuing loss, then proof of loss must be submitted within 90 days after the termination of each period for which We are
liable. If written or authorized electronic notice is not given within that time, no claim will be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that such notice was given as soon as reasonably possible. In any case, written or authorized electronic proof must
be given not more than one year after the time it is otherwise required, except ifproof is not given solely due to the lack of
legal capacity.

Time of Payment of Claims
We will pay benefits due under this Policy for any loss other than a loss for which this Policy provides any periodic
payment immediately upon receipt of due written or authorized electronic proof of such loss. Subject to due written or
authorized electronic proof of loss, all accrued benefits for loss for which this Policy provides periodic payment will be
paid monthly unless otherwise specified in the benefits descriptions and any balance remaining unpaid at the termination of
liability will be paid immediately upon receipt ofproof satisfactory to Us.

Payment of Claims
All benefits will be paid in United States currency. Benefits for loss of life will be payable in accordance with the
Beneficiary provision and these Claim Provisions. All other proceeds payable under this Policy, unless otherwise stated,
will be payable to the covered Employee or to his estate.

If We are to pay benefits to the estate or to a person who is incapable of giving a valid release, We may pay $1,000 to a
relative by blood or marriage whom We believe is equitably entitled. Any payment made by Us in good faith pursuant to
this provision will fully discharge Us to the extent of such payment and release Us from liability for that amount.

Payment of Claims to Foreign Employees
The Policyholder may, in a fiduciary capacity, receive and hold any benefits payable to covered Employees whose place of
employment is other than the United States of America.

We will not be responsible for the application or disposition by the Policyholder of any such benefits paid. Our payments
to the Policyholder will constitute a full discharge of Our liability for those payments under this Policy.

Physical Examination and Autopsy
We, at Our own expense, have the right and opportunity to examine the Covered Person when and as often as We may
reasonably require while a claim is pending and to make an autopsy in case of death where it is not forbidden by law.

Ii:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover under this Policy less than 60 days after written or authorized
electronic proof of loss has been furnished as required by this Policy. No such action will be brought more than four years
after the time such written proofof loss must be furnished.

Beneficiary
The beneficiary is the person or persons the Employee names or changes on a form executed by him and satisfactory to Us.
This form may be in writing or by any electronic means agreed upon between Us and the Policyholder. Consent of the
beneficiary is not required to affect any changes, unless the beneficiary has been designated as an irrevocable beneficiary,
or to make any assignment of rights or benefits permitted by this Policy.

A beneficiary designation or change will become effective on the date the Employee executes it. However, We will not be
liable for any action taken or payment made before We record notice of the change at our home office.

If more than one person is named as beneficiary, the interests of each will be equal unless the Employee has specified
otherwise. The share of any beneficiary who does not survive the Covered Person will pass equally to any surviving
beneficiaries unless otherwise specified.

If there is no named beneficiary or surviving beneficiary, or if the Employee dies while benefits are payable to him, We
may make direct payment to the first surviving class of the following classes of persons:
I. pouse;
2. child or children;
3. motherorfather
4. sisters or brothers;
5. estate of the Covered Person.

Recovery of Overpayment
If benefits are overpaid, We have the right to recover the amount overpaid by either of the following methods.
1. A request for lump sum payment of the overpaid amount.
2. A reduction of any amounts payable under this Policy.

If there is an overpayment due when the Covered Person dies, We may recover the overpayment from the Covered Person’s
estate.

GA-00- 1600.00

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Premiums
All premium rates are expressed in, and all premiums are payable in, United States cunency. The premiums for this Policy
will be based on the rates set forth in the Schedule ofBenefits, the plan and amounts of insurance in effect. If a Covered
Person’s insurance amounts are reduced due to age, premium will be based on the amounts of insurance in force on the day
after the reduction took place.

Changes in Premium Rates
We may change the premium rates from time to time with at least 180 days advance written notice to the Policyholder but
only on the Policy Anniversary Date. No change in rates will be made until 48 months after the Policy Effective Date. An
increase in rates will not be made more often than once in a 12-month period and only on the Policy Anniversary Date.
However, We reserve the right to change rates at any time if any of the following events take place:
1. the terms of this Policy change;
2. the terms of the Policyholde?s participation change;
3. a division, subsidiary, affiliated company or eligible class is added or deleted from this Policy;
4. there is a change in the factors bearing on the risk assumed;
5. any federal or state law or regulation is amended to the extent it affects Our benefit obligation.

Payment of Premium
The first premium is due within 30 days ofdelivering the Policy. Thereafter, premiums are due on the Premium Due Datesagreed upon between Us and the Policyholder. If any premium is not paid when due, the Policyholder’s participation underthis Policy will be terminated as of the Premium Due Date on which premium was not paid.

Grace Period
A Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for payment of required premiums under this Policy. This Policy will be in forceduring the Policy Grace Period. The Policyholder is liable to Us for any unpaid premium for the time its participationunder this Policy was in force.

A Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for payment of required premiums under this Policy. A Covered Person’s
insurance under this Policy will remain in force during the Grace Period. We will reduce any benefits payable for anyclaims incurred during the grace period by the amount of premium due. If no such claims are incurred and premium is notpaid during the grace period, insurance will end on the last day of the period for which premiums were paid.

GA-0O-1701.00

13

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract; Changes
This Policy, including the endorsements, amendments and any attached papers constitutes the entire contract of insurance.
No change in this Policy will be valid until approved by one ofOur executive officers and endorsed on or attached to this
Policy. No agent of the Insurance Company or Employer has authority to change this Policy or to waive any of its
provisions.

Misstatement of Fact
If the Covered Person has misstated any fact, all amounts payable under this Policy will be such as the premium paid would
have purchased had such fact been correctly stated.

Certificates
Where required bylaw, We will provide a certificate of insurance for delivery to the Covered Person. Each certificate will
list the benefits, conditions and limits of this Policy. It will state to whom benefits will be paid.

30 Day Right To Examine Certificate
If a Covered Person does not like the Certificate for any reason, it may be returned to Us within 30 days after receipt. We
will return any premium that has been paid and the Certificate will be void as if it had never been issued.

Multiple Certificates
The Covered Person may have in force only one certificate at a time under this Policy. If at any time the Covered Person
has been issued more than one certificate, then only the largest shall be in effect. We will refimd premiums paid for the
others for any period of time that more than one certificate was issued.

Assignment
We will be bound by an assignment of a Covered Person’s insurance under this Policy only when the original assignment or
a certified copy of the assignment, signed by the Covered Person and any irrevocable beneficiary, is filed with Us. The
assignee may exercise all rights and receive all benefits assigned only while the assignment remains in effect and insurance
under this Policy and the Covered Person’s certificate remains in force.

Incontestabffity
1. Of This Policy or Participation Under This Policy
All statements made by the Policyholder to obtain this Policy or to participate under this Policy are considered
representations and not warranties. No statement will be used to deny or reduce benefits or be used as a defense to a claim,
or to deny the validity of this Policy or of participation under this Policy unless a copy of the instrument containing the
statement is, or has been, furnished to the Policyholder.

After two years from the Policy Effective Date, no such statement will cause this Policy to be contested except for fraud.

2. Of A Covered Person’s Insurance
All statements made by a Covered Person are considered representations and not warranties. No statement will be used to
deny or reduce benefits or be used as a defense to a claim, unless a copy of the instrument containing the statement is, or
has been, furnished to the claimant.

After two years from the Covered Person’s effective date of insurance, or from the effective date of increased benefits, no
such statement will cause insurance or the increased benefits to be contested except for fraud or lack of eligibility for
insurance.

In the event of death or incapacity, the beneficiary or representative shall be given a copy.

14

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Policy Termination
We may terminate coverage on or after the first anniversary of the policy effective date. Written notice must be given at
least 180 days prior to such termination. The Policyholder may terminate coverage on any premium due date. Written or
authorized electronic notice must be given at least 180 days prior to such premium due date.

Termination will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss that is the result, directly and independently of all other causes, of a
Covered Accident that occurs while coverage was in effect.

Reinstatement
This Policy may be reinstated if it lapsed for nonpayment ofpremium. Requirements for reinstatement are written
application of the Policyholder satisfactoiy to Us and payment of all overdue premiums. Any premium accepted in
connection with a reinstatement will be applied to a period for which premium was not previously paid.

Clerical Error
A Covered Person’s insurance will not be affected by error or delay by the Insurance Company or Employer in keeping
records of insurance under this Policy. If such error or delay is found, We will adjust the premium fairly.

Conformity with Statutes
Any provisions in conflict with the requirements of any state or federal law that apply to this Policy are automatically
changed to satisfy the minimum requirements of such laws.

Policy Changes
We may agree with the Policyholder to modify a plan ofbenefits without the Covered Person’s consent.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
This Policy is not in place of and does not affect any requirements for coverage under any Workers’ Compensation law.

Examination of the Policy
This Group Policy will be available for inspection at the Policyholder’s office during regular business hours.

Examination of Records
We will be permitted to examine all of the Policyholder’s records relating to this Group Policy. Examination may occur at
any reasonable time while the Group Policy is in force; or it may occur:
I. at any time for two years after the expiration of this Group Policy; or, if later,
2. upon the final adjustment and settlement of all Group Policy claims.

The Policyholder is acting as an agent of the Covered Person for transactions relating to this insurance. The actions of the
Policyholder will not be considered Our actions.

GA-00-l 800.00

15

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGES AND BENEFITS

This Description ofCoverages and Benefits Section describes the Accident Coverages and Benefits provided by this

Policy. Benefit amounts, benefit periods and any applicable aggregate and benefit maximums are shown in the

Schedule ofBenefit& Certain words capitalized in the text of these descriptions have special meanings within this

Policy and are defined in the General Definitions section and on the Policy cover page. Please read these and the

Common Exclusions sections in order to understand all of the terms, conditions and limitations applicable to these

coverages and benefits.

ACCIDENTAL DEATh AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS

Covered Loss We will pay the benefit for any one of the Covered Losses listed in the Schedule ofBenefits, if
the Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss resulting directly and independently of all other
causes from a Covered Accident within the applicable time period specified in the Schedule of
Benftts.

If the Covered Person sustains more than one Covered Loss as a result of the same Covered
Accident, benefits will be paid for the Covered Loss for which the largest available benefit is
payable. If the loss results in death, benefits will only be paid under the Loss of Life benefit
provision. Any Loss of Life benefit will be reduced by any paid or payable Accidental
Dismemberment benefit. However, if such Accidental Dismemberment benefit equals or
exceeds the Loss of Life benefit, no additional benefit will be paid.

Definitions Loss of a Hand or Foot means complete Severance through or above the wrist or ankle
joint.

Loss of Sight means the total, permanent loss of all vision in one eye which is
irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Speech means total and permanent loss of audible communication which is
irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Rearing means total and permanent loss of ability to hear any sound in both
ears which is irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of a Thumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand or Four Fingers of the Same
Band means complete Severance through or above the metacarpophalangeal joints of
the same hand (the joints between the fingers and the hand).

Loss of Toes means complete Severance through the metatarsaiphalangeal joint.

Paralysis or Paralyzed means total loss of use of a limb. A Physician must determine
the loss of use to be complete and irreversible.

Quadriplegia means total Paralysis ofboth upper and both lower limbs.

Hemiplegla means total Paralysis of the upper and lower limbs on one side of the body.

Paraplegia means total Paralysis ofboth lower limbs or both upper limbs.

Uniplegia means total Paralysis of one upper or one lower limb.

16

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Coma means a profound state ofunconsciousness which resulted directly and
independently from all other causes from a Covered Accident, and from which the
Covered Person is not likely to be aroused through powerful stimulation. This
condition must be diagnosed and treated regularly by a Physician. Coma does not mean
any state ofunconsciousness intentionally induced during the course of treatment of a
Covered Injury unless the state of unconsciousness results from the administration of
anesthesia in preparation for surgical treatment of that Covered Accident.

Severance means the complete and permanent separation and dismemberment of the
part from the body.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions section.
GA-00-2 100.00

ADDITIONAL ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT COVERAGES
Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefits are provided under the following coverages. Any benefits payable under
them are shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses and will not be paid in addition to any other Accidental Death and
Dismemberment benefits payable.

EXPOSURE AND DISAPPEARANCE COVERAGE
Benefits for Accidental Death and Dismemberment, as shown in the Schedule ofCoveredLosse$, will be payable if a
Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss which results directly and independently of all other causes from unavoidable
exposure to the elements following a Covered Accident.

If the Covered Person disappears and is not found within one year from the date of the wrecking, sinking or disappearance
of the conveyance in which the Covered Person was riding in the course of a trip which would otherwise be covered under
this Policy, it will be presumed that the Covered Person’s death resulted directly and independently of all other causes from
a Covered Accident.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this coverage are in the Common Exclusions Section.
GA-00-2202.00

OWNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE
Benefits for Accidental Death and Dismemberment, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses, will be payable if the
Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss that results directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident
that occurs during travel or flight in, including getting in or out of, any Aircraft that is owned, leased, operated or controlled
by the Policyholder or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. A record of eligible Aircraft will be maintained by the
Policyholder and available for review by Us at any time during normal business hours. An Aircraft substituted for an
eligible Aircraft will also be eligible if it has no greater seating capacity and the original Aircraft is withdrawn from normal
use due to breakdown, repair, servicing, loss or destruction.

GA-00-2205.0O

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADDITIONAL ACCIDENT BENEFITS
Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefits are provided under the following Additional Benefits. Any benefits
payable under them will be paid in addition to any other Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefit payable.

SEATBELT AND AIRBAG BENEFIT
We will pay the benefit shown in the Schedule ofBenefits, subject to the conditions and exclusions described below, when
the Covered Person dies directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident while wearing a seatbelt
and operating or riding as a passenger in an Automobile. An additional benefit is provided if the Covered Person was also
positioned in a seat protected by a properly-functioning and properly deployed Supplemental Restraint System (Airbag).

Verification ofproper use of the seatbelt at the time of the Covered Accident and that the Supplemental Restraint System
properly inflated upon impact must be a part of an official police report of the Covered Accident or be certified, in writing,
by the investigating officer(s) and submitted with the Covered Person’s claim to Us.

Definitions For purposes of this benefit:
Supplemental Restraint System means an airbag that inflates upon impact for added protection to the
head and chest areas.

Automobile means a self-propelled, private passenger motor vehicle with four or more wheels which is a
type both designed and required to be licensed for use on the highway of any state or country.
Automobile includes, but is not limited to, a sedan, station wagon, sport utility vehicle, or a motor vehicle
of the pickup, van, camper, or motor-home type. Automobile does not include a mobile home or any
motor vehicle which is used in mass or public transit.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section.
GA-O0-225 1.00

18

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SPECIAL EDUCATION BENEFIT
We will pay the benefit, up to the Maximum Benefit shown in the Schedule ofBenefits, for each qualifying Dependent
Child. The Covered Person’s death must result, directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident for
which an Accidental Death Benefit is payable under this Policy. This benefit is subject to the conditions and exclusions
described below.

A qualifying Dependent Child must:
1. a. be enrolled as a full-time student in an accredited school ofhigher learning beyond the 12th grade level on

the date of the covered Employee’s Covered Accident; or
b. be at the 12th grade level on the date of the covered Employee’s Covered Accident and then enroll as a lull

time student at an accredited school of higher learning within 365 days from the date of the Covered
Accident and continue his education as a full-time student.

2. continue his education as a full-time student in such accredited school of higher learning; and
3. incur expenses for tuition, lees, books, room and board, transportation and any other costs payable directly to, or

approved and certified by, such school.

Payments will be made to each qualifying Dependent Child or to the child’s legal guardian, if the child is a minor at the end
of each year for the number of years shown in the Schedule ofBenefits. We must receive proof satisfactory to Us of the
Dependent Child’s enrollment and attendance within 31 days of the end of each year. The first year for which a Special
Education Benefit is payable will begin on the first of the month following the date the covered Employee died, if the
surviving Dependent Child was enrolled on that date in an accredited school of higher learning beyond the 12th grade;
otherwise on the date he enrolls in such school. Each succeeding year for which benefits are payable will begin on the date
following the end of the preceding year.

If no Dependent Child qualifies for Special Education Benefits within 365 days of the covered Employee’s death, We will
pay the default benefit shown in the Schedule ofBenefits to the covered Employee’s beneficiary.

Definitions For the purposes of this benefit
Dependent Child(ren) An Employee’s unmarried child who meets the following requirements:
1. Achildfromlivebirthtol9yearsold,
2. A child who is 19 or more years old but less than 25 years old, enrolled in a school as a full-time

student and primarily supported by the Employee;
3. A child who is 19 or more years old, primarily supported by the Employee and incapable of self-

sustaining employment by reason of mental or physical handicap. Proof of the child’s condition
and dependence must be submitted to Us within 31 days after the date the child ceases to qualify
as a Dependent Child for the reasons listed above. During the next two years, We may, from
time to time, require proof of the continuation of such condition and dependence. After that, We
may require proof no more than once a year.

A child, for purposes of this provision, includes an Employee’s:
1. natural child;
2. adopted child, beginning with any waiting period pending finalization of the child’s adoption;
3. stepchild who resides with the Employee;
4. child for whom the Employee is legal guardian, as long as the child resides with the Employee

and depends on the Employee for financial support. Financial support means that the Employee
is eligible to claim the dependent for purposes of Federal and State income tax returns.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section.

GA-OO-2252a.OO

19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19192-2235

MODIFYING PROVISIONS AMENDMENT

Policyholder:Travis County Policy No.: OK 965800

Amendment Effective Date: October 1,2011

This amendment is attached to and made part of the Policy specified above and the Certificates issued under it. Its
provisions aie intended to conform this Policy to the laws of the state in which the insured resides.

The Policy and any Certificates delivered under the Group Policy are amended as follows:

Arkansas residents:

Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an “external”
event.

Missouri residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external”event..

2. Under the General Definitions section, the defmition of Totally Disabled or Total Disability means either:
a) the inability of the Covered Person who is currently employed to perform the material and substantial duties

of the Covered Person’s occupation for a period of at least twelve months. After the initial benefit period, total
disability shall mean the Covered Person’s inability to perform the material and substantial duties of any
occupation for which the Covered Person is qualified by education, training or experience; or

b) the inability of the Covered Person who is not currently employed to perform all of the activities of daily
living including eating, transferring, dressing, toileting, bathing, and continence, without human supervision
or assistance.

Montana residents:

Under the General Definitions section, the defmition ofSickness is replaced with the following:

Sickness A physical or mental illness including pregnancy

New Hampshire residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition ofCovered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

2. If applicable, the definition of Emergency Room Treatment is replaced with the following:

Emergency Room Treatment Emergency medical services and care given in a Hospital as an out or
inpatient, for a sudden, unexpected onset of a medical condition that manifests
itself by symptoms of sufficient severity that in the absence of immediate
medical attention could be expected to result in any of the following:
1. serious jeopardy to the covered Employee’s health;
2. serious impairment to bodily functions; or
3. serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or part.

20

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



3. The definition ofHospital is replaced with the following.

Hospital An institution that meets all of the following:
1. it is operated pursuant to applicable law;
2. it is primarily and continuously engaged in providing medical care and

treatment to sick and injured persons;
3. it is managed under the supervision of a staff of medical doctors;
4. it provides 24-hour nursing services by or under the supervision of a

graduate registered nurse (RN.);
5. it has medical, diagnostic and treatment facilities, with major surgical

facilities on its premises, or available on a prearranged basis;
6. it charges for its services.

Hospital shall include a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal
Government Hospital and the requirement that a patient must incur an expense
as an Inpatient shall be waived.

The term Hospital does not include a clinic, facility, or unit of a Hospital for:
1. rehabilitation, convalescent, custodial, educational or nursing care;
2. the aged, drug addicts or alcoholics;
3. a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospitals

unless the Covered Person incurs an expense.

North Carolina residents:

1. If eligibility for insurance is not based on employment status, aCovered Person is considered in Active Service if
confined at home under the care of a Physician for Sickness or Injury.

2. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

3. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Hospital is modified to include State tax-supported
institutions.

4. Under the Claim Provisions, the following changes are made.
a. ProofofLoss must be provided within 180 days of date of loss.
b. The amount payable to an equitably entitled individual may not exceed $3,000.

South Carolina residents:

I. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

2. Under the Claim Provisions, the following changes are made.
a. The Claimant Cooperation Provision does not apply.
b. The provision titled Physical Examination and Autopsy is replaced with the following:

Physical Examination and Autopsy
We, at Our own expense, have the right and opportunity to examine the Covered Person when and as often as
We may reasonably require while a claim is pending. If an autopsy is perfonned, it will be in the State of
South Carolina and during the period of contestability unless prohibited by law.

c. The provision titled Legal Actions is replaced with the following:
Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover under this Policy less than 60 days after written or
authorized electronic proof of loss has been furnished as required by this Policy. No such action will be
brought more than six years after the time such written proof of loss must be furnished.

3. Under the General Provisions, the following changes are made.
The Multiple Certjficates provision does not apply.

21

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



South Dakota residents:

Under the Common Exclusions section, the following changes are not permitte&
I. the Covered Person being legally intoxicated as determined according to the laws of the jurisdiction in which

the Covered Accident occurred;
2. the Covered Person being Intoxicated. “Intoxicated” means having a blood alcohol level of .08 or higher;

3. the Covered Person operating a motorized vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or drugs as defined

according to the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Accident occurred;
4. voluntary ingestion of any narcotic, drug, poison, gas or fumes, unless prescribed or taken under the direction

of a Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage;
5. occupational injuries for which benefits are not paid under the Workers’ Compensation Law or any similar

law;
6. operating any type of vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug ,narcotic or other intoxicant

including any prescribed drug for which the Covered Person has been provided a written warning against

operating a vehicle while taking it. Under the influence of alcohol, for purposes of this exclusion, means

intoxicated, as defined by the law of the state in which the Covered Accident occurred;

7. the Covered Person was driving a Private Passenger Automobile at the time of the Covered Accident that

resulted in the Covered Loss; and he was intoxicated, as that term is defined by the laws of the state in which

the Covered Accident occurred.

West Virginia residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition ofCovered Accident does not include reference to an

“external” event.

2. Under the General Definitions section, the definition ofHospital does not require that an institution be licensed as

a Hospital pursuant to applicable law, but does require that an institution operate pursuant to applicable law.

3. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Totally Disabled or Total Disability is replaced with the

following:
Totally DisabLed or Total Disability
Totally Disabled or Total Disability means either:
1. inability of the Covered Person who is currently employed to perform substantially aU of the material duties

of his job, or any other job for which he is or may become qualified by reason of education, training or

experience; or
2. inability of the Covered Person who is not currently employed to perform all of the activities of daily living

including eating, transferring, dressing, toileting, bathing, and continence, without human supervision or

assistance.

Signed for the
Life Insurance Company of North America

4i

Matthew G. Manders, President

GA-OO-3000.00

22

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
Philadelphia, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group Policy Number
OK 965800 issued by the LiFE iNSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERiCA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County; the other part is to be returned to the
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:__________________________________________ Date:

__________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Returned To Life Insurance Company ofNorth America)

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
Philadelphia, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group Policy Number
OK 965800 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County; the other part is to be returned to the
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:__________________________________________ Date:

__________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Retained By Travis County)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE TEXAS LIFE, ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers dedared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service Insurance
Guaranty Association (the “Association”), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health insurance company
fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which are members of the Association are eligible for this
protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the Association law. (The law is found in
the Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not cover your policy in full or in part due to statutory limitations.

ELIGIBILITY FOR PROTECTION BY TUE ASSOCIATION

When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a court
or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides coverage to
policyholders who are:

• Residents of Texas at that time (frrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy issue)
• Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:
1) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2) The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s state of

residence.

LIMITS OF PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance, and
$200,000 for other types of health insurance.

Life Insurance:
• Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life; or
• Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner ofmultiple non-group life policies.

Individual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.

Group Annuities:
• Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $100,000 on any one life; or
• Present value ofunallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of the

number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:

$300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000 multiple
owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association for the
purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you are selecting an
insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT NOTICE AVISO IMPORTANTE

To obtain information or make a
complaint:

You may call Special Marketing
Divisiontstoll-free telephone
number for information or to
make a complaint at:

1-800-441-1832

You may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance to obtain information on
companies, coverages, rights or
complaints at

1-800-252-3439

You may write the
Texas Department of Insurance
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX #(512) 475-1771

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES:
Should you have a dispute concerning
your premium or about a claim you
should contact the agent or company
first. If the dispute Is not resolved,
you may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance.

A1TACH THIS NOTICE TO YOUR
POLICY: This notice is for
information only and does not
become a part or condition of
the attached document.

Pam solicitar información o
presentar una queja:

Liame a Ia llnea gratuita de la Division
Especial de Marketing pam obtener
informaciOn o presentar una
queja al:

1-800-441-1832

Puede comunicarse con ci Departamento
de Seguros de Texas pam obtener
infonnaeiOn sabre compaflias,
coberturas, derechos o quejas llamando al

1400-252-3439

También puede escribir al Texas Department
of Insurance (Departamento de Seguros de Texas)
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9 104
FAX #(512) 475-1771

CONFLICEOS POR PRIMAS 0 RECLAMACIONES:
En caso de tener un conflicto relacionado
con su prima a una reclamaciOn, debe
comunicarse primero con el agente
o Ia compañia. Si ci conflicto no se
resuelve, usted puede comunicarse con
ci Departamcnto de Seguros de Texas.

UNA ESTE AVISO A SU POLIZA:
Este aviso es solo pam proposito
de informacion y no se convierte
en parte o condicion dcl documento
adjunto.

TL.004426

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
1601 Chestnut Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19192-2235
A Stock Insurance Company

GROUP ACCIDENT POLICY
POLICYHOLDER: Travis County

POLICY NUMBER: OK 965800

POLICY DESCRIPTION: Employee Accidental Death & Disability
Insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1,2011

POLICY ANNWERSAJIY DATE: October 1

STATE OF ISSUE: Texas

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of insurance. This Policy goes into effect subject to its applicable terms and
conditions at 12:01 AM on the Policy Effective Date shown above at the Policyholder’s address. The laws of the State of
Issue shown above govern this Policy.

We and the Policyholder agree to all of the terms of this Policy.

THIS IS A GROUP ACCIDENT ONLY INSURANCE POLICY.
IT DOES NOT PAY BENEFITS FOR LOSS CAUSED BY SICKNESS.

THIS IS A LIMITED POLICY.
PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

4. ,
Scott Kern, Corporate Secretaiy Matthew G. Manders, President

Countersigned__________________
Where Required By Law

GA-00-1 000.00

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION PAGE NUMBER

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS 2

GENERAL DEFINITIONS 5

ELIGIBILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE PROVISIONS 7

COMMON EXCLUSIONS 8

CONVERSION PRIVILEGE 9

CLAIM PROVISIONS 11

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 13

GENERAL PROVISIONS 14

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT COVERAGE 16

EXPOSURE AND DISAPPEARANCE COVERAGE 17

OWNED AIRCRAFT COVERAGE 17

SEATBELT AND AIRBAG BENEFIT 18

SPECIAL EDUCATION BENEFIT 19

MODIFYING PROVISIONS AMENDMENT 20

GA-00-1000.0O

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

This Policy is intended to be read in its entirety. In order to understand all the conditions exclusions and limitations
applicable to its benefits, please read all thepolicyprovisions carefully.

The Schedule ofBenefits provides a brief outline of the coverage and benefits provided by this Policy. Please read
the Desc4ption of Coverages and Benefits Section for full details.

Policy: Group policy identified as Policy Number: OK-965800 on the policy cover
page

Policyholder: Travis County

Effective Date of Policyholder Participation: October 1, 2011

Covered Classes:

Class I All active, Full-time Employees of the Employer regularly working a minimum of 20 hours per week.

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 1

This Schedule ofBenefiss shows maximums, benefit periods and any limitations applicable to benefits provided in
this Policy for each Covered Person unless otherwise indicated. Principal Sum, when referred to In this Schedule,
means the Employee’s Principal Sum in effect on the date of the Covered Accident causing the Covered Injury or
Covered Loss unless otherwise specified.

Eligibility Waiting Period
The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Employee must be in a Covered Class to be eligible for coverage.

For Employees hired on or before the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date ofhire.

For Employees hired after the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date ofhire.

Time Period for Loss:
Any Covered Loss must occur within: 365 days of the Covered Accident

Maximum Age for Insurance: None

VOLUNTARY ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS

Employee Principal Sum: An amount equal to the Employee’s voluntary group life
insurance benefit in effect under Policy Number F1X964 188,
underwritten by Life Insurance Company ofNorth America.

Changes in the Covered Person’s amount of insurance resulting from a change in the Employee’s amount of
Annual Compensation take effect on August 31, subject to any Active Service requirement.

SCHEDULE OF COVERED LOSSES

Covered Loss
Loss of Life
Loss of Two or More Hands or Feet
Loss of Sight of Both Eyes
Loss of One Hand or One Foot and Sight in One Eye
Loss of Speech and Hearing (in both ears)
Quadriplegia
Paraplegia
Hemiplegia
Uniplegia
Coma

Monthly Benefit
Number of Monthly Benefits
When Payable

Lump Sum Benefit
When Payable

Loss of One Hand or Foot
Loss of Sight in One Eye
Severance and Reattachment of One Hand or Foot
Loss of Speech
Loss of Hearing (in both ears)
Loss of all Four Fingers of the Same Hand
Loss ofThumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand
Loss of all the Toes of the Same Foot

Benefit
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
100% of the Principal Sum
75% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
25% of the Principal Sum

1% of the Principal Sum
11
At the end of each month during which the Covered
Person remains comatose
100% of the Principal Sum
Beginning of the l2 month
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
50% of the Principal Sum
25% of the Principal Sum
25% of the Principal Sum
20% of the Principal Sum

3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Age Reductions
A Covered Person’s Principal Sum will be reduced to the percentage of his Principal Sum in effect on the date
preceding the first reduction, as shown below.

Age Percentage of Benefit Amount
70 but less than 75 65%
75 but less than 79 45%
80 but less than 85 30%
85 or over 15%

ADDITIONAL ACCIDENTAL DEATU AND DISMEMBERMENT COVERAGES
Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefits are provided under the following coverages. Any benefits payable under
them are as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses and are not paid in addition to any other Accidental Death and
Dismemberment benefits.

EXPOSURE AND DISAPPEARANCE COVERAGE Principal Sum multiplied by the percentage applicable to the
Covered Loss, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses.

OWNED A1RCRAY COVERAGE Principal Sum multiplied by the percentage applicable to the
Covered Loss, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses.

ADDITIONAL ACCIDENT BENEFITS
Any benefits payable under these Additional Accident Benefits shown below are paid in addition to any other Accidental
Death and Dismemberment benefits payable.

SEATBELT AND AWBAG BENEFIT
Seatbelt Benefit 10% of the Principal Sum subject to a Maximum Benefit of

$10,000
Airbag Benefit 5% of the Principal Sum subject to a Maximum Benefit of

$5,000
Default Benefit None

SPECIAL EDUCATION BENEFIT
Surviving Dependent Child Benefit 5% of the Principal Sum subject to a Maximum Benefit of

$5,000 per year.
Maximum Number of Annual Payments
For Each Surviving Dependent Child 4
Default Benefit $1,000

INITIAL PREMIUM RATES

Premium Rate: Voluntary Insurance
Employee Rate: $0.02 per $1,000

Mode ofPremium Payment: Monthly

Contributions: The cost of the coverage is paid by the Employee

Premium Due Dates: 30 days after delivering the Policy and after that the last day of each
succeeding month.

Premium rates are subject to change in accordance with the Changes in Premium Rates section contained in the
Administrative Provisions section of this Policy.

GA-00-1 100.00

4

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL DEFINITIONS

Please note that certain words used in this Policy have specific meanings. The words defused below and capitalized within
the text of this Policy have the meanings set forth below.

Active Service An Employee will be considered in Active Service with his employer on any day
that is either of the following:
1. one of the Employer’s scheduled work days on which the Employee is

performing his regular duties on a fill-time basis, either at one of the
Employer’s usual places of business or at some other location to which the
Employer’s business requires the Employee to travel;

2. a scheduled holiday, vacation day or period of Employer-approved paid leave
of absence, other than sick leave, only if the Employee was in Active Service
on the preceding scheduled workday.

Age A Covered Person’s Age, for purposes of initial premium calculations, is his Age
attained on the date coverage becomes effective for him under this Policy.
Thereafter, it is his Age attained on his last birthday.

Aircraft A vehicle which:
1. has a valid certificate of airworthiness; and
2. is being flown by a pilot with a valid license to operate the Aircraft.

Covered Accident A sudden, unforeseeable, external event that results, directly and independently of
all other causes, in a Covered Injury or Covered Loss and meets all of the
following conditions:
1. occurs while the Covered Person is insured under this Policy;
2. is not contributed to by disease, Sickness, mental or bodily infirmity;
3. is not otherwise excluded under the terms of this Policy.

Covered Injury Any bodily harm that results directly and independently of all other causes from a
Covered Accident

Covered Loss A loss that is all of the following:
1. the result, directly and independently of all other causes, of a Covered

Accident;
2. one of the Covered Losses specified in the Schedule ofCovered Losses;
3. suffered by the Covered Person within the applicable time period specified in

the Schedule ofBenefits.

Covered Person An eligible person, as defined in the Schedule ofBenefits, for whom an enrollment
form has been accepted by the Policyholder and Us and required premium has been
paid when due and for whom coverage under this Policy remains in force.

Employee For eligibility purposes, an Employee of the Employer who is in one of the
Covered Classes.

Employer The Policyholder and any affiliates, subsidiaries or divisions shown in the Schedule
ofCovered Affiliates and which are covered under this Policy on the date of issue
or subsequently agreed to by Us.

He, His, Him Refers to any individual, male or female.

5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Hospital An institution that meets all of the following:
I. it is licensed as a Hospital pursuant to applicable law,
2. it is primarily and continuously engaged in providing medical care and

treatment to sick and injured persons;
3. it is managed under the supervision of a staff of medical doctors;
4. it provides 24-hour nursing services by or under the supervision of a graduate

registered nurse (RN.);
5. it has medical, diagnostic and treatment fucilities, with major surgical facilities

on its premises, or available on a prearranged basis;
6. it charges for its services.

The term Hospital does not include a clinic, fuciity, or unit of a Hospital for:
I. rehabilitation, convalescent, custodial, educational or nursing care;
2. the aged, drug addicts or alcoholics;
3. a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospital unless

the Covered Person incurs an expense.

Inpatient A Covered Person who is confined for at least one full day’s Hospital room and
board. The requirement that a person be charged for room and board does not
apply to confinement in a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal
Government Hospital and in such case, the term ‘Inpatient’ shall mean a Covered
Person who is required to be confmed for a period of at least a full day as
determined by the Hospital.

Nurse A person who is a licensed graduate Registered Nurse (RN.), a licensed practical
Nurse (L.P.N.) or a licensed vocational Nurse (LV.N.) and is not:
1. employed or retained by the Policyholder,
2. living in the Covered Person’s household; or
3. a parent, sibling, spouse or child of the Covered Person.

Outpatient A Covered Person who receives treatment, services and supplies while not an
Inpatient in a Hospital.

Physician A licensed health care provider practicing Within the scope ofhis license and
rendering care and treatment to a Covered Person that is appropriate for the
condition and locality and who is not:
1. employed or retained by the Policyholder;
2. living in the Covered Person’s household;
3. a parent, sibling, spouse or child of the Covered Person.

Prior Plan The plan of insurance providing similar benefits, sponsored by the Employer in
effect immediately prior to this Policy’s Effective Date.

Sickness A physical or mental illness.

Totally Disabled or Totally Disabled or Total Disability means either:
Total DIsability 1. inability of the Covered Person who is currently employed to do any type of

work for which he is or may become qualified by reason of education, training
or experience; or

2. inability of the Covered Person who is not currently employed to perform all
of the activities of daily living including eating, transferring, dressing,
toileting, bathing, and continence, without human supervision or assistance.

We, Us, Our Life Insurance Company of North America.

GA-00- 1200.00

6

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ELIGIBILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE PROVISIONS

Policy Effective Date
We agree to provide Accident Insurance Benefits described in this Policy in consideration of the Policyholder’s application
and payment of the initial premium when due. Insurance coverage begins on the Policy Effective Date shown on this
Policy’s first page.

Eligibility
An Employee becomes eligible for insurance under this Policy on the date he meets all of the requirements of one of the
Covered Classes and completes any Eligibility Waiting Period, as shown in the Schedule ofBenefizs.

Effective Date for Individuals
Insurance becomes effective for an eligible Employee who applies and agrees to make required contributions subject to the
Deferred Effective Date provision below
1. New hires. Coverage is effective first of the month following 30 calendar days from the date ofhire.
2. Life Status Change. Coverage will become effective first of the month following the date of the change.
3. Annual Enrollment. Coverage becomes effective on the Policy Anniversaiy Date.

DEFERRED EFFECTIVE DATE
Active Service
The effective date of insurance will be deferred for any Employee who is not in Active Service on the date coverage would
otherwise become effective. Coverage will become effective on the later of the date be returns to Active Service and the
date coverage would otherwise have become effective.

Effective Date of Changes
Any increase or decrease in the amount of insurance for the Covered Person resulting from:
1. a change in benefits provided by this Policy; or
2. a change in the Employee’s Covered Class will take effect on the date of such change.
Increases will take effect subject to any Active Service requirement.

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE
The insurance on a Covered Person will end on the last day of the month after the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date this Policy or insurance for a Covered Class is terminated;
2. the next premium due date after the date the Covered Person is no longer in a Covered Class or satisfies eligibility

requirements under this Policy;
3. the last day of the last period for which premium is paid;
4. the next premium due date after the Covered Person attains the maximum Age for insurance under this Policy.

Termination will not affect a claim for a Covered Loss or Covered Injury that is the result, directly and independently of all
other causes, of a Covered Accident that occurs while coverage was in effect.

Continuation for Layoff, Medical Leave of Absence, Non-Medical Leave of Absence or Family Medical Leave
Insurance for an Employee may be continued until the earliest of the following dates if: (a) an Employee is on a temporary
layoff, an Employer-approved non-medical leave of absence, an Employer-approved medical leave of absence or an
Employer-approved family medical leave; and (b) required premium contributions are paid when due.
1. for an Employer-approved medical leave of absence: 12 months
2. for an Employer-approved non-medical leave of absence: 12 months
3. for an Employer-approved family medical leave: 12 weeks in a consecutive 12-month period.

GA-00- 1300.00

7

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



COMMON EXCLUSIONS

In addition to any benefit-specific exclusions, benefits will not be paid for any Covered Injury or Covered Loss which,
directly or indirectly, in whole or in part,, is caused by or results from any of the following unless coverage is specifically
provided for by name in the Descr(plion ofBenefits Section:

1. intentionally self-inflicted injuzy, suicide or any attempt thereat while sane or insane;
2. commission or attempt to commit a felony or an assault;
3. commission of or active participation in a riot or insuuection;
4. bungee jumping; parachuting; skydiving; parasailing; hang-gliding;
5. declared or undeclared war or act of war,
6. flight in, boarding or alighting from an Aircraft or any craft designed to fly above the Earth’s surface:

a. except as a passenger on a regularly scheduled commercial airline or as pilot or passenger in Employer
owned aircraft;

b. when the aircraft is being used for:
i. crop dusting, spraying or seeding, giving and receiving flying instruction, sky writing, sky

diving or hang-gliding, pipeline or power line inspection, aerial photography or exploration,
racing, endurance tests, stunt or acrobatic flying

c. when the aircraft is designed for flight above or beyond the earth’s atmosphere;
d. when the aircraft is an ultra-light or glider;
e. when the aircraft is being used for the purpose of parachuting or skydiving;
f. when the aircraft is being used by any military authority, except an Aircraft used by the Air Mobility

Command or its foreign equivalent;
7. Sickness, disease, bodily or mental infirmity, bacterial or viral infection or medical or surgical treatment thereof,

except for any bacterial infection resulting from an accidental external cut or wound or accidental ingestion of
contaminated food;

9. a Covered Accident that occurs while engaged in the activities ofactive duty service in the military, navy or air
force of any country or international organization. Covered Accidents that occur while engaged in Reserve or
National Guard training are not excluded until training extends beyond 31 days;

10. operating any type of vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug, narcotic or other intoxicant
including any prescribed drug for which the Covered Person has been provided a written warning against
operating a vehicle while taking it. Under the influence of alcohol, for purposes of this exclusion, means
intoxicated, as defined by the law of the state in which the Covered Accident occurred;

11. voluntary ingestion ofany narcotic, drug, poison, gas or fumes, unless prescribed or taken under the direction of a
Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage.

GA-00- 1403.00

8

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CONVERSION PRIVILEGE

I. If the Covered Person’s insurance or any portion of it ends for any of the following reasons:
a. employment or membership ends;
b. eligibility ends (except for age for the Employee);
the Covered Person may have Us issue converted accident insurance on an individual policy or an individual certificate
under a designated group policy. The Covered Person may apply for an amount ofcoverage that is:
a. in $1,000 increments;
b. not less than $25,000, regardless of the amount of insurance under the group policy; and
c. not more than the amount of insurance he had under the group policy, except as provided above, up to a maximum

amount of $250,000.

The Covered Person must be under age 70 to get a converted policy.

If the Covered Person’s insurance or any portion of it ends for non-payment of premium, he may not convert. If the
Covered Person’s insurance ends for a reason described in 2. below, conversion is subject to that section.

The converted policy or certificate will cover accidental death and dismemberment. The policy or certificate will not
contain disability or other additional benefits. The Covered Person need not show Us that he is insurable.

If the Covered Person has converted his group coverage and later becomes insured under the same group plan as
before, he may not convert a second time unless he provides, at his own expense, proof of insurability or proof the
prior converted policy is no longer in force.

The Covered Person must apply for the individual policy within 31 days after his coverage under this Group Policy
ends and pay the required premium, based on Our table of rates for such policies, his Age and class of risk. If the
Covered Person has assigned ownership of his group coverage, the owner/assignee must apply for the individual
policy.

If the Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss or dies during this 31-day period as the result of an accident that would
have been covered under this Group Policy, We will pay as a claim under this Group Policy the amount of insurance
that the Covered Person was entitled to convert. It does not matter whether the Covered Person applied for the
individual policy or certificate. If such policy or certificate is issued, it will be in exchange for any other benefits under
this Group Policy.

The individual policy or certificate will take effect on the day following the date coverage under the Group Policy
ended; or, if later, the date application is made.

Excluskms
The converted policy may exclude the hazards or conditions that apply to the Covered Person’s group coverage at the
time it ends. We will reduce payment under the converted policy by the amount of any benefits paid under the group
policy if both cover the same loss.

2. If the Covered Person’s insurance ends because this Group Policy is terminated or is amended to terminate insurance
for the Covered Person’s class, and he has been covered under this Group Policy or, any group accident insurance
issued to the Employer which the Group Policy replaced, for at least five years, the Covered Person may have Us issue
an individual policy or certificate of accident insurance subject to the same terms, conditions and limitations listed
above. However, the amount he may apply for will be limited to the lesser of the following:
a. coverage under this Group Policy less any amount of group accident insurance for which he is eligible on the date

this Group Policy is terminated or for which he became eligible within 31 days of such termination, or
b. $10,000.

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Extension of Conversion Period
If the Covered Person is eligible to convert and is not notified of this right at least 15 days prior to the end of the 31 day
conversion period, the conversion period will be extended. The Covered Person will have 15 days from the date notice is
given to apply for a converted policy or certificate. In no event will the conversion period be extended beyond 90 days.
Notice, for the purpose of this section, means written notice presented to the Covered Person by the Policyholder or mailed
to the Covered Person’s last known address as reported by the Policyholder.

If the Covered Person sustains a Covered Loss or dies during the extended conversion period, but more than 31 days after
his coverage under the Group Policy terminates, benefits will not be paid under the Group Policy. If the Covered Person’s
application for a converted policy or certificate is received by Us and the required premium is paid, benefits may be payable
under the converted policy or certificate.

GA-Ol -1505.00

10

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim
Written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice of claim must be given to Us within 31 days after a Covered Loss occurs
or begins or as soon as reasonably possible. If written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice is not given in that time,
the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is shown that written or authorized electronic/telephonic notice was given
as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given to Us at Our home office in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, such other
place as We may designate for the purpose, or to Our authorized agent. Notice should include the Policyholder’s name and
policy number and the Covered Person’s name, address, policy and certificate number.

Claim Forms
We will send claim forms for filing proof of loss when We receive notice of a claim. If such forms are not sent within 15
days after We receive notice, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the time fixed in this Policy for
filing proof of loss, written or authorized electronic proof of the nature and extent of the loss for which the claim is made.

Claimant Cooperation Provision
Failure of a claimant to cooperate with Us in the administration of the claim may result in termination of the claim. Such
cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any information or documents needed to determine whether benefits
are payable or the actual benefit amount due.

Proof of Loss
Written or authorized electronic proof of loss satisfactory to Us must be given to Us at Our office, within 90 days of the
loss for which claim is made. If (a) benefits are payable as periodic payments and (b) each payment is contingent upon
continuing loss, then proofof loss must be submitted within 90 days after the termination of each period for which We are
liable. If written or authorized electronic notice is not given within that time, no claim will be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that such notice was given as soon as reasonably possible. In any case, written or authorized electronic proof must
be given not more than one year after the time it is otherwise required, except ifproof is not given solely due to the lack of
legal capacity.

Time of Payment of Claims
We will pay benefits due under this Policy for any loss other than a loss for which this Policy provides any periodic
payment immediately upon receipt of due written or authorized electronic proof of such loss. Subject to due written or
authorized electronic proof of loss, all accrued benefits for loss for which this Policy provides periodic payment will be
paid monthly unless otherwise specified in the benefits descriptions and any balance remaining unpaid at the termination of
liability will be paid immediately upon receipt of proof satisfactory to Us.

Payment of Claims
All benefits will be paid in United States currency. Benefits for loss of life will be payable in accordance with the
Beneficiary provision and these Claim Provisions. All other proceeds payable under this Policy, unless otherwise stated,
will be payable to the covered Employee or to his estate.

If We are to pay benefits to the estate or to a person who is incapable of giving a valid release, We may pay $1,000 to a
relative by blood or marriage whom We believe is equitably entitled. Any payment made by Us in good faith pursuant to
this provision willfully discharge Us to the extent of such payment and release Us from liability for that amount

Payment of Claims to Foreign Employees
The Policyholder may, in a fiduciary capacity, receive and hold any benefits payable to covered Employees whose place of
employment is other than the United States of America.

We will not be responsible for the application or disposition by the Policyholder of any such benefits paid. Our payments
to the Policyholder will constitute a full discharge of Our liability for those payments under this Policy.

Physical Examination and Autopsy
We, at Our own expense, have the right and opportunity to examine the Covered Person when and as often as We may
reasonably require while a claim is pending and to make an autopsy in case of death where it is not forbidden by law,

ii

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover under this Policy less than 60 days afterwritten or authorized
electronic proof of loss has been furnished as required by this Policy. No such action will be brought more than fbur years
after the time such written proof of loss must be furnished.

Beneficiary
The beneficiary is the person or persons the Employee names or changes on a form executed by him and satisfactory to Us.
This form may be in writing or by any electronic means agreed upon between Us and the Policyholder. Consent of the
beneficiary is not required to affect any changes, unless the beneficiary has been designated as an inevocable beneficiary,
or to make any assignment of rights or benefits permitted by this Policy.

A beneficiary designation or change will become effective on the date the Employee executes it. However, We will not be
liable for any action taken or payment made before We record notice of the change at our home office.

If more than one person is named as beneficiary, the interests of each will be equal unless the Employee has specified
otherwise. The share of any beneficiary who does not survive the Covered Person will pass equally to any surviving
beneficiaries unless otherwise specified.

If there is no named beneficiary or surviving beneficiary, or if the Employee dies while benefits are payable to him, We
may make direct payment to the first surviving class of the following classes ofpersons:
I. spouse;
2. child or children;
3. mother or father,
4. sisters or brothers;
5. estate of the Covered Person.

Recovery of Overpayment
If benefits are overpaid, We have the right to recover the amount overpaid by either of the following methods.
1. A request for lump sum payment of the overpaid amount.
2. A reduction of any amounts payable under this Policy.

If there is an overpayment due when the Covered Person dies, We may recover the overpayment from the Covered Person’s
estate.

GA-00- 1600.00

12

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Premiums
All premium rates are expressed in, and all premiums are payable in, United States currency. The premiums for this Policy
will be based on the rates set forth in the Schedule ofBenefits, the plan and amounts of insurance in effect. If a Covered
Person’s insurance amounts are reduced due to age, premium will be based on the amounts of insurance in frce on the day
after the reduction took place.

Changes in Premium Rates
We may change the premium rates from time to time with at least 180 days advance written notice to the Policyholder but
only on the Policy Anniversary Date. No change in rates will be made until 48 months after the Policy Effective Date. An
increase in rates will not be made more often than once in a 12-month period and only on the Policy Anniversary Date.
However, We reserve the right to change rates at any time if any of the following events take place:
1. the terms of this Policy change;
2. the terms of the Policyholder’s participation change;
3. a division, subsidiary, affiliated company or eligible class is added or deleted from this Policy;
4. there is a change in the factors bearing on the risk assumed;
5. any federal or state law or regulation is amended to the extent it affects Our benefit obligation.

Payment of Premium
The first premium is due within 30 days ofdelivering the Policy. Thereafter, premiums are due on the Premium Due Dates
agreed upon between Us and the Policyholder. If any premium is not paid when due, the Policyholder’s participation under
this Policy will be terminated as of the Premium Due Date on which premium was not paid.

Grace Period
A Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for payment of required premiums under this Policy. This Policy will be in force
during the Policy Grace Period. The Policyholder is liable to Us for any unpaid premium for the time its participation
under this Policy was in force.

A Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for payment of required premiums under this Policy. A Covered Person’s
insurance under this Policy will remain in force during the Grace Period. We will reduce any benefits payable for any
claims incurred during the grace period by the amount ofpremium due. If no such claims are incurred and premium is not
paid during the grace period, insurance will end on the last day of the period for which premiums were paid.

GA-00-1701.O0

13

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract; Changes
This Policy, including the endorsements, amendments and any attached papers constitutes the entire contract of insurance.
No change in this Policy will be valid until approved by one ofOur executive officers and endorsed on or attached to this
Policy. No agent of the Insurance Company or Employer has authority to change this Policy or to waive any of its
provisions.

Misstatement of Fact
If the Covered Person baa misstated any fact, all amounts payable under this Policy will be such as the premium paid would
have purchased had such fact been correctly stated.

Certificates
Where required bylaw, We will provide a certificate of insurance for delivery to the Covered Person. Each certificate will
list the benefits, conditions and limits of this Policy. It will state to whom benefits will be paid.

30 Day Right To Examine Certificate
If a Covered Person does not like the Certificate for any reason, it may be returned to Us within 30 days after receipt. We
will return any premium that has been paid and the Certificate will be void as if it had never been issued.

Multiple Certificates
The Covered Person may have in force only one certificate at a time under this Policy. If at any time the Covered Person
has been issued more than one certificate, then only the largest shall be in effect We will refund premiums paid for the
others for any period of time that more than one certificate was issued.

Assignment
We will be bound by an assignment of a Covered Person’s insurance under this Policy only when the original assignment or
a certified copy of the assignment, signed by the Covered Person and any irrevocable beneficiary, is filed with Us. The
assignee may exercise all rights and receive all benefits assigned only while the assignment remains in effect and insurance
under this Policy and the Covered Person’s certificate remains in force.

Incontestability
1. Of This Policy or Participation Under This Policy
All statements made by the Policyholder to obtain this Policy or to participate under this Policy are considered
representations and not warranties. No statement will be used to deny or reduce benefits or be used as a defense to a claim,
or to deny the validity of this Policy or ofparticipation under this Policy unless a copy of the instrument containing the
statement is, or has been, furnished to the Policyholder.

After two years from the Policy Effective Date, no such statement will cause this Policy to be contested except for fraud.

2. Of A Covered Person’s Insurance
All statements made by a Covered Person are considered representations and not warranties. No statement will be used to
deny or reduce benefits or be used as a defense to a claim, unless a copy of the instrument containing the statement is, or
has been, furnished to the claimant

After two years from the Covered Person’s effective date of insurance, or from the effective date of increased benefits, no
such statement will cause insurance or the increased benefits to be contested except for &aud or lack of eligibility for
insurance.

In the event of death or incapacity, the beneficiary or representative shall be given a copy.

14

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Policy Termination
We may terminate coverage on or after the first anniversary of the policy effective date. Written notice must be given at
least 180 days prior to such termination. -The Policyholder may terminate coverage on any premium due date. Written or
authorized electronic notice must be given at least 180 days prior to such premium due date.

Termination will not affect a claini for a Covered Loss that is the result, directly and independently of all other causes, of a
Covered Accident that occurs while coverage was in effect.

Reinstatement
This Policy may be reinstated if it lapsed for nonpayment ofpremium. Requirements for reinstatement are written
application of the Policyholder satisfactoiy to Us and payment of all overdue premiums. Any premium accepted in
connection with a reinstatement will be applied to a period for which premium was not previously paid.

Clerical Error
A Covered Person’s insurance will not be affected by error or delay by the Insurance Company or Employer in keeping
records of insurance under this Policy. If such error or delay is found, We will adjust the premium fairly.

Conformity with Statutes
Any provisions in conflict with the requirements of any state or federal law that apply to this Policy are automatically
changed to satisfy the minimum requirements of such laws.

Policy Changes
We may agree with the Policyholder to modify a plan ofbenefits without the Covered Person’s consent.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
This Policy is not in place of and does not affect any requirements for coverage under any Workers’ Compensation law.

Examination of the Policy
This Group Policy will be available for inspection at the Policyholder’s office during regular business hours.

Examination of Records
We will be permitted to examine all of the Policyholder’s records relating to this Group Policy. Examination may occur at
any reasonable time while the Group Policy is in force; or it may occur
1. at any time for two years after the expiration of this Group Policy; or, if later,
2. upon the final adjustment and settlement of all Group Policy claims.

The Policyholder is acting as an agent of the Covered Person for transactions relating to this insurance. The actions of the
Policyholder will not be considered Our actions.

GA-00-1 800.00

15

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DESCRIPTION OF COVERAGES AND BENEFITS

This Description ofCoverages and Benefits Section describes the Accident Coverages and Benefits provided by this
Policy. Benefit amounts, benefit periods and any applicable aggregate and benefit maximums are shown in the
Schedule ofBenefits. Certain words capitalized in the text of these descriptions have special meanings within this
Policy and are defined in the General Definitions section and on the Policy cover page. Please read these and the
Common Exclusions sections In order to understand all of the terms, conditions and limitations applicable to these
coverages and benefits.

ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT BENEFITS

Covered Loss We will pay the benefit for any one of the Covered Losses listed in the Schedule ofBenefits, if
the Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss resulting directly and independently of all other
causes from a Covered Accident within the applicable time period specified in the Schedule of
Benefits.

If the Covered Person sustains more than one Covered Loss as a result of the same Covered
Accident, benefits will be paid for the Covered Loss for which the largest available benefit is
payable. If the loss results in death, benefits will only be paid under the Loss of Life benefit
provision. Any Loss of Life benefit will be reduced by any paid or payable Accidental
Dismemberment benefit. However, if such Accidental Dismemberment benefit equals or
exceeds the Loss of Life benefit, no additional benefit will be paid.

Definitions Loss of a Hand or Foot means complete Severance through or above the wrist or ankle
joint. -

Loss of Sight means the total, permanent loss of all vision in one eye which is
irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Speech means total and permanent loss of audible communication which is
irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of Hearing means total and permanent loss of ability to hear any sound in both
ears which is irrecoverable by natural, surgical or artificial means.

Loss of a Thumb and Index Finger of the Same Hand or Four Fingers of the Same
Hand means complete Severance through or above the metacaipophalangeal joints of
the same hand (the joints between the fingers and the hand).

Loss of Toes means complete Severance through the metatarsaiphalangeal joint.

Paralysis or Paralyzed means total loss of use of a limb. A Physician must determine
the loss of use to be complete and irreversible.

Quadriplegia means total Paralysis of both upper and both lower limbs.

Hemiplegla means total Paralysis of the upper and lower limbs on one side of the body.

Paraplegia means total Paralysis ofboth lower limbs or both upper limbs.

Uniplegia means total Paralysis of one upper or one lower limb.

16

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Coma means a profound state of unconsciousness which resulted directly and
independently from all other causes from a Covered Accident, and from which the
Covered Person is not likely to be amused through powerful stimulation. This
condition must be diagnosed and treated regularly by a Physician. Coma does not mean
any state of unconsciousness intentionally induced during the course of treatment of a
Covered Injury unless the state ofunconsciousness results from the administration of
anesthesia in preparation for surgical treatment of that Covered Accident

Severance means the complete and pennanent separation and dismemberment of the
part from the body.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions section.
GA-00-2 100.00

ADDITIONAL ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND DISMEMBERMENT COVERAGES
Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefits are provided under the following coverages. Any benefits payable under
them are shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses and will not be paid in addition to any other Accidental Death and
Dismemberment benefits payable.

EXPOSURE AND DISAPPEARANCE COVERAGE
Benefits for Accidental Death and Dismemberment, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses, will be payable if a
Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss which results directly and independently of all other causes from unavoidable
exposure to the elements following a Covered Accident.

If the Covered Person disappears and is not found within one year from the date of the wrecking, sinking or disappearance
of the conveyance in which the Covered Person was riding in the course of a trip which would otherwise be covered under
this Policy, it will be presumed that the Covered Person’s death resulted directly and independently of all other causes from
a Covered Accident.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this coverage are in the Common Exclusions Section.
GA-00-2202.00

OWNED AJRCRAFT COVERAGE
Benefits for Accidental Death and Dismemberment, as shown in the Schedule ofCovered Losses, will be payable if the
Covered Person suffers a Covered Loss that results directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident
that occurs during travel or flight in, including getting in or out of, any Aircraft that is owned, leased, operated or controlled
by the Policyholder or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. A record of eligible Aircraft will be maintained by the
Policyholder and available for review by Us at any time during normal business hours. An Aircraft substituted for an
eligible Aircraft will also be eligible if it has no greater seating capacity and the original Aircraft is withdrawn from normal
use due to breakdown, repair, servicing, loss or destruction.

GA-00-2205.00

•17

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADDITIONAL ACCIDENT BENEFITS
Accidental Death and Dismemberment benefits are provided under the following Additional Benefits. Any benefits
payable under them will be paid in addition to any other Accidental Death and Dismembennent benefit payable.

SEATBELT AND AIRBAG BENEFIT
We will pay the benefit shown in the Schedule ofBenefits, subject to the conditIons and exclusions described below, when
the Covered Person dies directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident while wearing a seatbelt
and operating or riding as a passenger in an Automobile. An additional benefit is provided if the Covered Person was also
positioned in a seat protected by a properly-functioning and properly deployed Supplemental Restraint System (Airbag).

Verification of proper use of the seatbelt at the time of the Covered Accident and that the Supplemental Restraint System
properly inflated upon impact must be a part of an official police report of the Covered Accident or be certified, in writing,
by the investigating officer(s) and submitted with the Covered Person’s claim to Us.

Definitions For purposes of this benefit:
Supplemental Restraint System means an airbag that inflates upon impact for added protection to the
head and chest areas.

Automobile means a self-propelled, private passenger motor vehicle with four or more wheels which is a
type both designed and required to be licensed for use on the highway of any state or country.
Automobile includes, but is not limited to, a sedan, station wagon, sport utility vehicle, or a motor vehicle
of the pickup, van, camper, or motor-home type. Automobile does not include a mobile home or any
motor vehicle which is used in mass or public transit.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section.
GA-00-225 1.00

IS.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SPECIAL EDUCATION BENEFIT
We will pay the benefit, up to the Maximum Benefit shown in the Schedule ofBenefits, for each qualifying Dependent
Child. The Covered Person’s death must result, directly and independently of all other causes from a Covered Accident for
which an Accidental Death Benefit is payable under this Policy. This benefit is subject to the conditions and exclusions
described below.

A qualifying Dependent Child must:
I. a. be enrolled as a full-time student in an accredited school of higher learning beyond the 12th grade level on

the date of the covered Employee’s Covered Accident; or
b. be at the 12th grade level on the date of the covered Employee’s Covered Accident and then enroll as a full-

time student at an accredited school of higher learning within 365 days from the date of the Covered
Accident and continue his education as a full-time student.

2. continue his education as a full-time student in such accredited school of higher learning; and
3. incur expenses for tuition, fees, books, room and board, transportation and any other costs payable directly to, or

approved and certified by, such school.

Payments will be made to each qualifying Dependent Child or to the child’s legal guardian, if the child is a minor at the end
of each year for the number of years shown in the Schedule ofBenefits. We must receive proof satisfuctory to Us of the
Dependent Child’s enrollment and attendance within 31 days of the end ofeach year. The first year for which a Special
Education Benefit is payable will begin on the first of the month following the date the covered Employee died, if the
surviving Dependent Child was enrolled on that date in an accredited school of higher learning beyond the 12th grade;
otherwise on the date he enrolls in such schooL Each succeeding year for which benefits are payable will begin on the date
following the end of the preceding year.

If no Dependent Child qualifies for Special Education Benefits within 365 days of the covered Employee’s death, We will
pay the default benefit shown in the Schedule ofBenefits to the covered Employee’s beneficiary.

Definitions For the purposes of this benefit:
Dependent Child(ren) An Employee’s unmarried child who meets the following requirements:
1. Achildfromlivebirthto l9yearsold;
2. A child who is 19 or more years old but less than 25 years old, enrolled in a school as a full-time

student and primarily supported by the Employee;
3. A child who is 19 or more years old, primarily supported by the Employee and incapable of self-

sustaining employment by reason of mental or physical handicap. Proof of the child’s condition
and dependence must be submitted to Us within 31 days after the date the child ceases to qualify
as a Dependent Child for the reasons listed above. During the next two years, We may, from
time to time, require proof of the continuation of such condition and dependence. After that, We
may require proof no more than once a year.

A child, for purposes of this provision, includes an Employee’s:
1. natural child;
2. adopted child, beginning with any waiting period pending finalization of the child’s adoption;
3. stepchild who resides with the Employee;
4. child for whom the Employee is legal guardian, as long as the child resides with the Employee

and depends on the Employee for financial support. Financial support means that the Employee
is eligible to claim the dependent for purposes of Federal and State income tax returns.

Exclusions The exclusions that apply to this benefit are in the Common Exclusions Section.

GA-OO-2252a.OO

19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
1601 Chestnut Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19192-2235

MODIFYING PROVISIONS AMENDMENT

PolicyholderTravis County Policy No.: OK 965800

Amendment Effective Date: October 1, 2011

This amendment is attached to and made part of the Policy specified above and the Certificates issued under it. Its
provisions are intended to conform this Policy to the laws of the state in which the insured resides.

The Policy and any Certificates delivered under the Group Policy are amended as follows:

Arkansas residents:

Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an “external”
event.

Missouri residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

2. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Totally Disabled or Total Disability means either
a) the inability of the Covered Person who is currently employed to perform the material and substantial duties

of the Covered Person’s occupation for a period of at least twelve months. After the initial benefit period, total
disability shall mean the Covered Person’s inability to perform the material and substantial duties of any
occupation for which the Covered Person is qualified by education, training or experience; or

b) the inability of the Covered Person who is not currently employed to perform all of the activities of daily
living including eating, transferring, dressing, toileting, bathing, and continence, without human supervision
or assistance.

Montana residents:

Under the General Definitions section, the definition ofSickness is replaced with the following:

Sickness A physical or mental illness including pregnancy

New Hampshire residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

2. If applicable, the definition of Emergency Room Treatment is replaced with the following:

Emergency Room Treatment Emergency medical services and care given in a Hospital as an out or
inpatient, for a sudden, unexpected onset of a medical condition that manifests
itself by symptoms of sufficient severity that in the absence of immediate
medical attention could be expected to result in any of the following:
1. serious jeopardy to the covered Employee’s health;
2. serious impairment to bodily functions; or
3. serious dysfunction of any bodily organ or part.

20

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



3. The definition of Hospital is replaced with the following.

Hospital An institution that meets all of the following:
1. it is operated pursuant to applicable law;
2. it is primarily and continuously engaged in providing medical care and

treatment to sick and injured persons;
3. it is managed under the supervision ofa staffof medical doctors;
4. it provides 24-hour nursing services by or under the supervision of a

graduate registered nurse (RN.);
5. it has medical, diagnostic and treatment facilities, with major surgical

facilities on its premises, or available on a prearranged basis;
6. it charges for its services.

Hospital shall include a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal
Government Hospital and the requirement that a patient must incur an expense
as an Inpatient shall be waived.

The term Hospital does not include a clinic, facility, or unit of a Hospital for
1. rehabilitation, convalescent, custodial, educational or nursing care;
2. the aged, drug addicts or alcoholics;
3. a Veteran’s Administration Hospital or Federal Government Hospitals

unless the Covered Person incurs an expense.

North Carolina residents:

1. If eligibility for insurance is not based on employment status, a Covered Pemon is considered in Active Service if
confined at home under the care of a Physician for Sickness or Injury.

2. Under the General Definitions section, the defmition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

3. Under the General Definitions section, the definition ofHospital is modified to include State tax-supported
institutions.

4. Under the Claim Provisions, the following changes are made.
a. ProofofLoss must be provided within 180 days of date of loss.
b. The amount payable to an equitably entitled individual may not exceed $3,000.

South Carolina residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

2. Under the Claim Provisions, the following changes are made.
a. The Claimant Cooperation Provision does not apply.
b. The provision titled Physical Examination and Autopsy is replaced with the following:

Physical Examination and Autopsy
We, at Our own expense, have the right and opportunity to examine the Covered Person when and as often as
We may reasonably require while a claim is pending. If an autopsy is performed, it will be in the State of
South Carolina and during the period ofcontestahility unless prohibited by law.

c. The provision titled Legal Actions is replaced with the following:
Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover under this Policy less than 60 days after written or
authorized electronic proof of loss has been furnished as required by this Policy. No such action Will be
brought more than six years after the time such written proof of loss must be furnished.

3. Under the General Provisions, the following changes are made.
The Multiple Certflcares provision does not apply.

21

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



South Dakota residents:

Under the Common Exclusions section, the following changes are not permitted:
1. the Covered Person being legally intoxicated as determined according to the laws of the jurisdiction in which

the Covered Accident occurred;
2. the Covered Person being Intoxicated. “Intoxicated” means having a blood alcohol level of .08 or higher;
3. the Covered Person operating a motorized vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or drugs as defined

according to the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Accident occurred;
4. voluntary ingestion of any narcotic, drug, poison, gas or fumes, unless prescribed or taken under the direction

of a Physician and taken in accordance with the prescribed dosage;
5. occupational injuries for which benefits are not paid under the Workers’ Compensation Law or any similar

law;
6. operating any type of vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug , narcotic or other intoxicant

including any prescribed drug for which the Covered Person has been provided a written warning against
operating a vehicle while taking it. Under the influence of alcohol, for purposes of this exclusion, means
intoxicated, as defined by the law of the state in which the Covered Accident occurred;

7. the Covered Person was driving a Private Passenger Automobile at the time of the Covered Accident that
resulted in the Covered Loss; and he was intoxicated, as that term is defined by the laws of the state in which
the Covered Accident occurred.

West Virginia residents:

1. Under the General Definitions section, the definition of Covered Accident does not include reference to an
“external” event.

2. Under the Genera! Definitions section, the definition of Hospital does not require that an institution be licensed as
a Hospital pursuant to applicable law, but does require that an institution operate pursuant to applicable law.

3. Under the Genera! Definitions section, the definition of Totally Disabled or Total Disability is replaced with the
following:
Totally Disabled or Total Disability
Totally Disabled or Total Disability means either:
1. inability of the Covered Person who is currently employed to perform substantially all of the material duties

of his job, or any other job for which he is or may become qualified by reason of education, training or

experience; or
2. inability of the Covered Person who is not currently employed to perform all of the activities of daily living

including eating, transferring, dressing, toileting, bathing, and continence, without human supervision or
assistance.

Signed for the
Life Insurance Company of North America

‘24“
Matthew G. Manders, President

GA-00-3000.0O

22

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
Philadelphia, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group Policy Number
OK 965800 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County; the other part is to be returned to the
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:__________________________________________ Date:

__________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Returned To Life Insurance Company ofNorth America)

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
Philadelphia, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group Policy Number
OK 965800 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County; the other part is to be retwned to the
LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:__________________________________________ Date:

__________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Retained By Travis County)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment IC-2

IMPORTANT NOTICE

To obtain information or make a
complaint:

You may call the toll-free telephone
number for information or to make a
complaint at:

1-800-547-5515

You may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance to obtain information on
companies, coverages, rights or
complaints at:

1-800-252-3439

You may write the
Texas Department of Insurance
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX (512) 475-1771

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES:
Should you have a dispute concerning
your premium or about a claim you
should contact the agent or company
first. If the dispute is not resolved, you
may contact the Texas Department of
Insurance.

ATTACH THIS NOTICE TO YOUR
POLICY: This notice is for information
only and does not become a part or
condition of the attached document.

Group Active full-time Employee and Dependent
Voluntary Life Policy

AVISO IMPORTANTE

Para solicitar inforrnación o presentar
una queja:

Usted puede ilainar al numnero de
telefono gratis pam información o pare
someter una queja al:

1-800-547-5515

Puede comunicarse con ci Departamento
de Seguros de Texas pars obtener
informaciôn sobre companias,
coberturas, derechos o quejas Ilainando
al:

1-800-252-3439

También puede escribir a] Texas
Department of insurance (Departamento
de Seguros de Texas)
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 787 14-9104
FAX # (512)475-1771

CONFLICTOS POR PRIMAS 0
RECLAMACIONES: En caso de tener
un conflicto ilacionado con su prima o
una reclamación, debe comunicarse
primero con ci agente o Ia compañIa. Si
el conflicto no se rssuelve, usted puede
comunicarse con ci Departamento de
Seguros de Texas.

UNA ESTE AVISO A SU POLIZA:
Este aviso es solo para proposito de
inforniacion y no se convierte en parte 0

condicion del documento adjunto.
TI-OO442b

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE TEXAS LIFE, ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service
Insurance Guaranty Association (the “Association”), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health
insurance company fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which are members of the
Association are eligible for this protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the
Association law. (The law is found in the Texas Insurance C’ode, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not cover your policy in full or in part due to statutory
limitations.

ELIGIBILITY FOR PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a
court or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides
coverage to policyholders who are:
• Residents of Texas at that time (irrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy issue)
• Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:

1) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2) The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s

state of residence.

LIMITS OF PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance,
and $200,000 for other types of health insurance.

Life Insurance:
• Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life; or
• Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.
Individual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.
Group Annuities:
• Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of$l00,000 on any one life; or
• Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of

the number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:
• $300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000

multiple owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association
for the purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you
are selecting an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



NOTICE

Any accelerated benefits payable under the policy will reduce the death benefit payabJe for life
insurance. If you elect to accelerate your life insurance benefit, we will send you a statement
explaining the amount of your benefit, and what effect (if any) accelerating your life insurance
benefit will have on the death benefit face amount, specified amount, accumulation values, cash
values, loan amounts, future charges, or future premiums.

Benefits payable under the Accelerated Benefits provision may be taxable. If so, the Employee or
the Employee’s beneficiary may incur a tax obligation. As with all tax matters, an Employee should
consult with a personal tax advisor to assess the impact of this benefit. Accelerated Benefits are not
payable if life insurance coverage under the Policy is not in force.

Any accidental death benefits that you may have under the policy will not be affected by the
acceleration of life insurance benefits.

rl+-I)o478

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
1601 CHESTNUT STREET GROUP POLICY
PHILADELPHIA. PA 19192-2235
(800) 732-1603 TDD (800) 552-5744
A STOCK INSURANCE COMPANY

POLICYHOLDER: County of Travis

POLICY NUMBER: FLX-964188

POLICY DESCRIPTION: Employee Life Insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1,2011

POLICY ANNIVERSARY DATE: October 1

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of coverage. It is issued in Texas and shall be governed by
its laws. The Policy goes into effect on the Policy Effective Date, 12:01 a.ni. at the Policyholder’s
address.

In return for the required premium, the Insurance Company and the Policyholder have agreed to all the
terms of this Policy.

‘J 4
Scott Kern, Corporate Secretary Matthew G. Manders, President

TI -fl04700

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS I 2

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 2 6

ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE 8

ENROLLING FOR INSURANCE 8

EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE 9

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE 10

CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE 10

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 13

LIFE INSURANCE EXCLUSIONS 15

CLAIM PROVISIONS 15

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 18

SCHEDULE OF RATES 20

GENERAL PROVISIONS 22

DEFINITIONS 23

DOMESTIC PARTNER RIDER 25

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

Policy: Group Policy identified as Policy Number: FLX-964 188 on the Policy cover
page.

Premium Due Date: The last day of each month

Classes of Eligible Employees

On the pages following the definition of eligible employees there is a Schedule of Benefits for each Class
of Eligible Employees listed below. For an explanation of these benefits, please see the Description of
Benefits provision.

If an Employee is eligible under one Class of Eligible Employees and later becomes eligible under a
different Class of Eligible Employees, changes in his or her insurance due to the class change will be
effective on the first date the Employee is in Active Service on or after the date of the change in class.

Class I All active, Full-time Employees of the Employer regularly working a minimum of 20
hours per week.

Class 2 All Disabled Employees who were hired prior to October 1, 2011.

Terminally HI: Having an illness with a prognosis of 12 months or less live as diagnosed by a Physician.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 1

Eligibility Waiting Period

The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Employee must be in Active Service to be eligible

for coverage. It will be extended by the number of days the Employee is not in Active Service.

For Employees hired on or before the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the dale ofhire.

For Employees hired after the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Employee Benefits

Amount of Insurance Amount Employee elected in multiples of the Benefit Level

Benefit Level: $25,000

Maximum Amount of insurance or
Maximum Benefit: 4 times Annual Compensation, rounded to the next higher

$25,000, with a maximum of $250,000

Guaranteed Issue Amount means the amount of insurance Employee can elect without providing medical

evidence of insurability. This amount is limited by the Maximum Amount of Insurance or Maximum

Benefit.

Guaranteed issue Amount:
New Employee at hire: $250,000
Existing Employee at October 1, 2012:
an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefit in effect at enrollment plus
one Benefit Level ($25,000)

Age Based Reductions Life insurance Benefit for an Employee age 70 and over will
reduce to:
65% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 70
40% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 75
25% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 80
15% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 85

Continuation Options

For Layoff
Maximum Benefit Period: To the end of the month in which the layoff begins

For Non-Medical Adminisirative Leave of Absence
Maximum Benefit Period: 12 months

For Medical Leave of Absence
Maximum Benefit Period: 12 months

For Family Medical Leave
Maximum Benefit Period: 12 weeks

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



For Disability
Maximum Benefit Period: 12 months
Applicable Coverages: Life Insurance Benefits for the Employee, his or her Spouse and

Dependent Children, if any.

Portability Options
For Employees See the Former Employee and Spouse/Domestic Partner of a

Fanner Employee sections in this Schedule of Benefits for the
amounts of insurance an insured is eligible to continue under this
option.

Terminal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Annual Enrollment Period and Life Status Change
Benefit Levels and Guaranteed issue Amounts as shown above.

During an Annual Enrollment Period, or within 31 days of a Life Status Change, an Employee currently
insured under the Voluntary Life Insurance portion of this Policy may increase his or her Voluntary Life
Insurance Benefit by one Benefit Level, without satisfying the Insurability Requirement, and an
Employee who is eligible for the Voluntary Life Insurance portion of this Policy but who has not
previously enrolled may become insured under the Policy for an amount equal to one Benefit Level
without satisfying the Insurability Requirement.

Such increases will be effective on the Policy Anniversary following the Annual Enrollment Period or, for
increases following a Life Status Change, first of the month following the date of the Life Status Change
if the Employer or Insurance Company receives the completed request for a Benefit increases within 31
days of the Life Status Change.

An insured Employee may increase coverage, and an Employee who is eligible but has not enrolled, may
become insured for a Benefit in excess of amounts described above only if he or she satisfies the
Insurability Requirement. Any excess amounts will be effective on the later of the Policy Anniversary
following the Annual Enrollment Period or the date the Insurance Company agrees in writing to insure the
Employee.

A Spouse currently insured or who is eligible to be insured under the Voluntary Life Insurance portion of
this Policy may increase his or her Voluntary Life insurance Benefit in units of $10,000, to a Maximum
of $30,000, without satisfying the insurability Requirement. Such increases will be effective on the
Policy Anniversary following the Annual Enrollment Period or, for increases following a Life Status
Change, first of the month following the date of the Life Status Change if the Employer or Insurance
Company receives the completed request for a Benefit increase within 31 day of the Life Status Change.

Reduction in Benefit
An Employee may reduce Insurance Benefits at any time. A request for a Benefit reduction received
during an Annual Enrollment Period will become effective on the Policy Anniversary following the
Annual Enrollment Period. Any other Benefit reduction will be effective on the date the Insurance
Company or Employer receives the completed change form.

I

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Spouse or Domestic Partner and Dependent Child Benefits
Amount of Insurance Spouse $10,000

Guarantee Issue Amount: $10,000
Maximum Benefit: $10,000

Dependent Child $5,000 Per child

The Maximum Benefit for a Dependent Child who is 14 days or
less than 6 months old is $1,000.

All Dependent Child benefits are Guaranteed Issue.

Additional Spouse or Domestic Partner Benefits

Amount of Additional Insurance Units of $10,000
Guaranteed Issue Amount: $20,000

Maximum Benefit: $20,000

The Spouse or Domestic Partner and Child Benefits Unit must be elected to be able to elect additional
Spouse Benefits

Portability Options
For Spouse or Domestic Partner See the Former Spouse or Domestic Partner section in this

Schedule of Benefits for the amounts of insurance an Insured is
eligible to continue under this option.

Tenninal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Portability Options
For Dependent Children See the Former Dependent Child section in this Schedule of

Benefits for the amounts of insurance an Insured is eligible to
continue under this option.

Former Employee Benefits

Amount of Insurance An amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefit in force on the
date he or she no longer qualifies as an Employee, less any
amount of conversion insurance issued under the Conversion
Privilege for Life Insurance.

Terminal Illness Benefit I OO% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is detennined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally 111.

4

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Spouse or Domestic Partner of Former Employee Benefits

Amount of Insurance An amount equal to the Voluntary Life Insurance Benefits in
force on the date the Former Employee no longer qualifies as an
Employee.

Tenninal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insutance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is detennined by the insurance Company to be Terminally ill.

Former Spouse or Domestic Partner Benefits

Amount of Insurance An amount equal to the Voluntary Life Insurance Benefits in
force on the date the he or she no longer qualifies as a Spouse.

Tenninal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Former Dependent Child Benefits

Amount of insurance Units of $25,000
Guaranteed Issue Amount: $25,000
Maximum Benefit: $50,000

Maximum Benefit Period To Age 70

11-003’74

5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 2

Eligibility Waiting Period

The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Employee must be in Active Service to be eligible

for coverage. It will be extended by the number of days the Employee is not in Active Service.

For Employees hired on or before the Policy Effective Date:
Closed Class

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Employee Benefits

Amount of Insurance As on file with the Policyholder and the Insurance Company
Guaranteed Issue Amount: As on file with the Policyholder and the Insurance Company
Maximum Benefit: As on file with the Policyholder and the Insurance Company

Age Based Reductions Life Insurance Benefit for an Employee age 70 and over will
reduce to:
65% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 70
4Q% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 75
25% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 80
15% of the Life Insurance Benefit at age 85

Continuation Options

For Layoff This option does not apply to this class of Employee.
For Leave of Absence This option does not apply to this class of Employee.
For Family Medical Leave This option does not apply to this class of Employee.

For Disability This option does not apply to this class of Employee.

Terminal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Spouse or Domestic Partner Benefits

Amount of insurance As on file with the Policyholder and the Insurance Company

Guaranteed issue Amount: As on file with the Policyholder and the insurance Company

Maximum Benefit: As on file with the Policyholder and the Insurance Company

Terminal Illness Benefit 100% of Life insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Dependent Child Benefits

Amount of Insurance As on file with the Policyholder and the Insurance Company

All Dependent Child benefits are Guaranteed Issue.

Former Employee Benefits

This option does not apply to this class of Employee.

Spouse or Domestic Partner of Former Employee Benefits

This option does not apply to this class of Employee.

Former Spouse or Domestic Partner Benefits

This option does not apply to this class of Employee.

Former Dependent Child Benefits

This option does not apply to this class of Employee.

Tt.4)04774

7

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE

Classes of Eligible Persons
A person may be insured only once under the Policy as an Employee, Spouse or Dependent Child, even
though he or she may be eligible under more than one class.

Employee
An Employee in one of the Classes of Eligible Employees shown in the Schedule ofBenefits is eligible to
be insured on the Policy Effective Date or the day after he or she completes the applicable Eligibility
Waiting Period, if later. The Eligibility Waiting Period will not apply to an Employee, in Active Service
on the Policy Effective Date, who was covered under the Prior Plan and satisfied the Eligibility Waiting
Period, if any, of that plan. Credit will be given for any time that was satisfied.

If a person has previously converted his or her insurance under the Policy, he or she will not become
eligible until the converted policy is surrendered. This does not apply to any amount of insurance that
was previously converted under the Policy due to a reduction in the Employee’s Life Insurance Benefits
based on age or a change in class unless those conditions no longer affect the amount of coverage
available to the Employee.

Except as noted in the Reinstatement Provision, if an Employee terminates coverage and later wishes to
reapply, or if a former Employee is rehired, a new Eligibility Waiting Period must be satisfied. An
Employee is not required to satisfS’ a new Eligibility Waiting Period if insurance ends because he or she is
no longer in a Class of Eligible Employees, but continues to be employed by the Employer, and within
one year becomes a member of an eligible class.

Spouse
If an Insured is eligible to elect Spouse coverage, the Spouse is eligible to be insured on the date the
Employee is eligible or the date he or she becomes a Spouse of an Employee, if later.

For the purpose of eligibility, the Spouse must be the lawful Spouse of the Employee and not divorced
from, or widowed by the Employee.

Dependent Child
If an Insured is eligible to elect Dependent Child coverage, the Dependent Child is eligible to be insured
on the date the Insured is eligible or on the date the child qualifies as a Dependent Child, if later.

In no event will a Dependent Child be eligible to become insured more than once under the Policy.

11.4 4710,

ENROLLING FOR INSURANCE

Initial Open Enrollment
During the Initial Open Enrollment Period, an Employee, his or her eligible Spouse or Dependent Child
who were insured, or who were eligible to be insured, under the Prior Plan may become insured under the
Voluntary Life Insurance Plan provided by this Policy for a Benefit up to this Policy’s Guaranteed Issue
Amount, as shown in the Schedule of Benefits, without satisfying any Insurability Requirement.
Coverage will not become effective for an Employee, his or her eligible Spouse or Dependent Child if an
Employee is not in Active Service, due to Injury or Sickness, on the date his or her coverage would
otherwise become effective under this policy. Coverage will become effective on the date the Employee
returns to Active Service.

8’

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



If an Employee’s eligible dependent is (a) an inpatient in a hospital, hospice, rehabilitation or
convalescence center, or custodial care facility; or (b) confmed to his or her home under the care of a
Physician on the date insurance would otherwise be effective, coverage will be effective on the date the
dependent is no longer an inpatient in these facilities or confined at home. If such dependent was covered
by the Prior Plan immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date, this provision will not apply to the
amount of coverage in effect immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date, but will apply to any
increase in coverage.

An Employee or his or her eligible Spouse may become insured for an amount in excess of the
Guaranteed Issue Amount only if he or she satisfies the Insurability Requirement. Any excess amount
will be effective on the date the Insurance Company agrees in writing to insure that eligible person.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE

An Employee who is required to contribute to the cost of this insurance may elect insurance for himself or
herself and an eligible Spouse or Dependent Child only by authorizing payroll deduction in a form
approved by the Employer and the Insurance Company. The effective date of this insurance depends on
the date and amount of insurance elected.

Insurance becomes effective for an eligible Employee who applies and agrees to make required
contributions subject to the provision below:
1. New hires. Coverage is effective first of the month following 30 calendar days from the date of

hire.
2. Life Status Change. Coverage will become effective first of the month following the date of the

Life Status Change.
3. Annual Enrollment. Coverage becomes effective on the Policy Anniversary Date.

If enrollment information for Employee, Spouse or Dependent Child coverage is not received by either
the Employer or the Insurance Company less than 32 days after becoming eligible to elect coverage, this
insurance will be effective on the date the Insurance Company agrees in writing to insure that eligible
person. The Insurance Company will require the eligible Employee and Spouse to satisfy the Insurability
Requirement before it agrees to insure him or her.

If coverage for a Dependent Child is in force and another Dependent Child becomes eligible, coverage for
that child is effective on the date the child qualifies as a Dependent Child.

If an eligible Employee is not in Active Service on the date insurance would otherwise be effective, it will
be effective on the date he or she returns to Active Service.

If an eligible Spouse or Dependent Child is:
1. an inpatient in a hospital, hospice, rehabilitation or convalescence center, or custodial care

facility; or
2. confined to his or her home under the care of a Physician
on the date insurance would otherwise be eflèctive, it will be effective on the date he or she is no longer
an inpatient in these facilities or confined at home. If such Spouse or Dependent Child was covered by
the Prior Plan immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date, this provision will not apply to the amount
of coverage in effect immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date, but will apply to any increase in
coverage. This does not apply to a Dependent Child who is age 6 months or less.

ll.004712a lix)

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TERMINATION OF INSURANCE

An Insured’s coverage will end on the last day of the month after the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date the Employee is eligible for coverage under a plan intended to replace this coverage;
2. the date the Policy is terminated by the Insurance Company;
3. the date the Insured is no longer in an eligible class;
4. the date coinciding with the end of the last period for which premiums are paid;
5. the date an Employee is no longer in Active Service;
6. for an Employee. Spouse and Dependent Child, the date the Employer cancels participation under

the Policy;
7. for any insured Spouse and Dependent Child, the date coverage for the Employee ends.

flAIO4’I4 (IX)

CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE

If an Employee is no longer in Active Service, he or she may be eligible to continue insurance. The
following provisions explain the continuation options available under the Policy. Please see the Schedule
of Benefits to determine the applicability of these benefits on a class level.

Continuation for Layoff, Non-Medical Administrative Leave of Absence, Medical Leave of
Absence, Temporary Leave of Absence or Family Medical Leave
Insurance will continue for up to the Maximum Benefit Period shown in the Schedule of Benefits, if the
required premium is paid by the Employee directly to the Company.

Continuation for Disability
If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to Disability, Life Insurance Benefits as shown in the Schedule
of Benefits will continue until the earliest of the following dates.
I. The date the Employee is no longer Disabled.
2. The date the end of the Maximum Benefit Period for this benefit ends.
3. The day after the period for which premiums are paid by the Employee directly to the Company.

If the Employee dies during this period, the Insurance Company will pay the Life Insurance Benefit in
effect on the day before he or she became Disabled. However, the Life Insurance Benefit payable will be
subject to the provisions of the Policy that may reduce or terminate coverage on account of age,
retirement, acceleration or a change in eligible class.

Portability Options
For Employees

If an Employee’s coverage under the Policy ends for any of the following reasons:
a. tennination of employment; or
b. termination of membership in an eligible class under the Policy;
Life Insurance Benefits may be continued up to the Maximum Benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits
for this option.

The Employee must apply to the Insurance Company and pay the required premium. If the Employee
continues coverage, Spouse or Dependent Child coverage may also be continued by the Employee. The
Spouse or Dependent Child must be covered under the Policy on the date coverage would otherwise end.
The applicatioii must be submitted:
a. within 31 days of the Employee’s termination of employment or membership in an eligible class

under the Policy; or
b. during the time that the Employee has to exercise the Conversion Privilege.
Coverage under this option may not be elected at a later date.

l0

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



When applying for this option, the Employee must name a beneficiary. Any beneficiary named
previously under the Policy is no longer in effect. If there is no named or surviving beneficiary, Death
l3enefits will be paid to the first surviving class of the following living relatives:
a. spouse;
b. child or children;
c. mother or father;
d. brothers or sisters; or
e. the executors or administrators of the Insured’s estate.

When coverage is continued under this option, the Employee becomes a Fonner Employee. The Spouse
becomes a Spouse of a Former Employee. The Dependent Child becomes a Dependent Child of a Former
Employee.

If the Former Employee later acquires a Spouse or Dependent Child, he or she may elect coverage for
them. The Former Employee must apply to the Insurance Company and pay the required premium.
Coverage for the Spouse or Dependent Child will be effective on the date the insurance Company agrees
in writing to insure them. The insurance Company may require that the Spouse or Dependent Child
satisfy the Insurability Requirement before it agrees to insure him or her.

Coverage will end on the earliest of the following dates.
a. The date the insurance Company cancels coverage for all Former Employees.
b. The end of the period for which premiums are paid.
c. The date the Maximum Benefit Period shown in the Schedule of Benefits for this option ends.

Also, coverage for any Dependent Child will end on any of the dates listed above or when he or she no
longer qualifies as a Dependent Child, if earlier.

For Spouses

If a Spouse is:
a. legally separated, divorced; or
b. widowed
from an insured Employee or Former Employee, Life Insurance Benefits may be continued. Coverage
may be continued up to the Maximum Benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits for this option. The
Spouse must apply to the Insurance Company and pay the required premium.

A Spouse who continues coverage may also continue coverage for a Dependent Child. The Dependent
Child must be covered under the Policy on the date coverage would otherwise end. A Spouse must elect
to continue insurance under this option within 31 days aftercoverage ends. Coverage may not be elected
at a later date.

When applying for this option, a Spouse must name a beneficiary. Any beneficiary named previously
under the Policy is no longer in effect. If there is no named or surviving beneficiary, Death Benefits will
be paid to the first surviving class of the following living relatives:
a. spouse;
b. child or children;
c. mother or father;
d. brothers or sisters; or
e. the executors or administrators of the Spouse’s estate.

When coverage is continued under this option, the Spouse becomes a Former Spouse. A separate
certificate of insurance will be issued to the Former Spouse. Coverage will be effective on the date after
coverage as a Spouse ends if the required premium is paid.

II

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Coverage will end on the earliest of the following dates.
a. The date the Insurance Company cancels coverage for all Former Spouses.
b. The end of the period for which premiums are paid.
c. The date the Maximum Benefit Period shown in the Schedule of Benefits for this option ends.

Also, coverage for a Dependent Child will end on any of the dates listed above or when he or she no
longer qualifies as a Dependent Child, if earlier.

For Dependent Children

If a Dependent Child is insured under the Policy and is at least 19 years of age, Life Insurance Benefits
may be continued under this option. Coverage may be continued up to the Maximum Benefit shown in
the Schedule of Benefits for this option.

The Dependent Child must apply to the Insurance Company and pay the required premium. If a
Dependent Child does not elect to continue insurance within 31 days after reaching age 19; or the date he
or she no longer qualifies as a Dependent Child, if later, coverage under this option may not be elected at
a later date.

When applying for this option, a Dependent Child must name a beneficiary. Any beneficiary named
previously under the Policy is no longer in effect. If there is no named or surviving beneficiary, Death
Benefits will be paid to the first surviving class of the following living relatives:
a. spouse;
b. child or children;
c. mother or father;
d. brothers or sisters; or
e. the executors or administrators of the Dependent Child’s estate.

When a Dependent Child continues coverage under this option, he or she becomes a Former Dependent
Child. A separate certificate of insurance will be issued to the Former Dependent Child. Coverage for a
Former Dependent Child will be effective on the following dates.
a. For any Guaranteed Issue Amount, immediately following the date his or her coverage as a

Dependent Child ends, provided the Insurance Company receives the required premium.
b. For any amount of insurance that exceeds the Guaranteed Issue Amount, the date the Insurance

Company agrees in writing to insure him or her. The Insurance Company will require the Former
Dependent Child to satisf’ the Insurability Requirement before it agrees to insure him or her.

Coverage will end on the earliest of the following dates.
a. The date the Insurance Company cancels coverage for all Former Dependent Children.
1,. The end of the period for which premiums are paid.
c. The date the Former Dependent Child is age 70.
d. The date the Maximum Benefit Period shown in the Schedule of Benefits for this option ends.

1L-1)O47Iea(1Xj .ismc.difledhy 1t.O’Jfl

12

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DESCRIPTION OF BENEFITS

The following provisions explain the benefits available under the Policy. Please see the Schedule of
Benefits for the applicability of these benefits on a class level.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFiTS

Death Benefit
If an Insured dies, the Insurance Company will pay the Life Insurance Benefit in force for that Insured on
the date of his or her death.

•1 4-004730

Accelerated Benefits
Any benefits payable under this Accelerated Benefits provision will reduce the Death Benefit payable for
I.ife Insurance. Any automatic increases in Life Insurance Benefits will end when benefits are payable
under this provision.

Terminal Illness Benefit
The Insurance Company will pay a Terminal Illness Benefit to an Insured who has been determined by
the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

The Terminal Illness Benefit is payable only once in an Insured’s lifetime.

Determination of Terminal lllmws

For the purpose of determining the existence of a Terminal Illness, the Insurance Company will require
the Insured submit the following proof.
I. A written diagnosis and prognosis by two Physicians licensed to practice in the United States.
2. Supportive evidence satisfactory to the Insurance Company, including but not limited to

radiological, histological or laboratory reports documenting the Tenninal Illness.

The Insurance Company may require, at its expense, an examination of the Insured and a review of the
documented evidence by a Physician of its choice.

“Terminal Illness” means an illness for which a person has a prognosis of 12 months or less to live, as
diagnosed by a Physician.

11-0047414

Conversion Privilege for Life Insurance
Each Insured may convert all or any portion of his or her Life Insurance that would end under the Policy
due to:
I. termination of employment;
2. termination of membership in an eligible class under the Policy;
3. termination of the Policy.

The Insured may apply for any type of life insurance the Insurance Company offers to persons of the
same age in the amount applied for, except the Insured may not:
I. choose term insurance;
2. apply for an amount of insurance greater than the coverage amount terminating under the Policy

(also, the conversion policy will not provide accident, disability or other benefits); or
3. apply for more than $10,000 of insurance if the Policy is terminated or amended to terminate the

insurance for any class of Insureds, or the Employer cancels participation under the Policy.

Conversion in these cases is only permitted if the Insured has been covered by the Policy or any group
life insurance policy issued to the Employer which the Policy replaced for at least 3 years.

13

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



If the Insured becomes eligible for coverage under any group life policy within 31 days of termination of
coverage under this Policy, the Ensured may not convert an amount of insurance greater than the amount
of coverage terminating under the Policy less the amount for which he or she may be covered under the
other policy.

To apply for conversion insurance, the Insured must, within 31 days after coverage under the Policy ends:
I. submit an application to the Insurance Company: and
2. pay the required premium.

Evidence of insurability is not required.

Premium for the conversion insurance will be based on the age and class of risk of the Insured and the
type and amount of coverage issued.

If the Insured has assigned ownership of his group coverage, the owner/assignee must apply for the
individual policy.

Conversion insurance will become effective on the 31St day after the date coverage under the Policy ends
provided the application is received by the Insurance Company and the required premium has been paid.

If the Insured dies during the 31 -day conversion period, the Life Insurance benefits will be paid under the
Policy regardless of whether he or she applied for conversion insurance. If a conversion policy is issued,
it will be in exchange for any further benefits for that type and amount of insurance from this Policy.

E’.lension ofConversion Period
If an Insured is eligible for conversion insurance and is not notified of this right at least 15 days prior to
the end of the 31-day conversion period, the conversion period will be extended. The Insured will have
15 days from the date notice is given to apply for conversion insurance. In no event will the conversion
period be extended beyond 90 days. Notice, for the purpose of this section, means written notice
presented to the Insured by the Insurance Company or mailed to the Insured’s last known address as
reported by the Employer.

If the Insured dies during the extended conversion period, but more than 31 days after his or her coverage
under the Policy terminates, Life Insurance benefits:
I. will not be paid under the Policy; and
2. will be payable under the conversion insurance; provided:

a. the Insured’s application for conversion insurance has been received by the Insurance
Company; and

b. the required premium has been paid.

Prior C’onvcrsion Limitation
If an Insured is covered under a life insurance conversion policy previously issued by the Insurance
Company, he or she will not be eligible for this Conversion Privilege unless the prior coverage has ended.

ii .00q140

14

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE EXCLUSIONS

if an Insured commits suicide, while sane or insane, within 2 years from the date his or her insurance
under the Policy becomes effective, Life Insurance Benefits will be limited to a refund of the premiums
paid on the Insured’s behalf. The suicide exclusion applies from the effective date of any additional
benefits or increases in Life Insurance Benefits.

Except for any amount of benefits in excess of the Prior Plan’s benefits, this exclusion will not apply to
any person covered under the Prior Plan for more than two years. If a person was not insured for two
years under the Prior Plan, credit will be given for the time he or she was insured.

If a Dependent Child commits suicide and is survived by other Dependent Children covered under the
same certificate, no refund of premiums will be paid.

11-004752

CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim
Written notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
must be given to the Insurance Company within 31 days after a covered loss occurs or begins or as soon
as reasonably possible. If written notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized
by the Insurance Company, is not given in that time the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that notice was given as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given at our home office
in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania or to our agent. Notice should include the Employer’s name, the Policy
Number and the claimant’s name and address.

Written notice or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company
of a diagnosis of a Terminal Illness on which claim is based must be given to us within 60 days after the
diagnosis. Ifnotice is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is shown
that written notice or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company was given as soon as reasonably possible.

Claim Forms
When the Insurance Company receives notice of claim, the Insurance Company will send claim forms for
filing proof of loss. If claim forms are not sent within 15 days after notice is received by the insurance
Company, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the time required under the “Proof of
Loss” section, written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the
insurance Company, of the nature and extent of the loss.

Claimant Cooperation Provision
Failure of a claimant to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the administration of the claim may
result in termination of the claim. Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any
information or documents needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount
due.

Insurance Data
The Employer is required to cooperate with the lnsurance Company in the review of claims and
applications for coverage. Any information the Insurance Company provides in these areas is
confidential and may not be used or released by the Employer if not permitted by applicable privacy laws.

15

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Proof of Loss
Written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance

Company, must be given to the insurance Company within 90 days after the date of the loss for which a

claim is made. If written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by

the insurance Company, is not given in that 90 day period, the claim will not be invalidated nor reduced if

it is shown that it was given as soon as was reasonably possible. in any case, written proof of loss, or

proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, must be given not

more than one year after that 90 day period. If written proof of loss, or proof by any other

electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, is provided outside of these time

limits, the claim wifl be denied. These time limits will not apply while the person making the claim lacks

legal capacity.

Written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company.

of loss for Accelerated Benefits must be furnished 90 days after the date of diagnosis. This proof must

describe the occurrence, character and diagnosis for which claim is made.

In case of claim for any other loss, proof must be furnished within 90 days after the date of such loss.

if it is not reasonably possible to submit proof of loss within these time periods, the Insurance Company

will not deny or reduce any claim if proof is furnished as soon as reasonably possible. Proof must, in any

case, be furnished not more than a year later, except for lack of legal capacity.

Time of Payment
Benefits due under the Policy for a loss, other than a loss for which the Policy provides installment

payments, will be paid within 60 days of receipt of due written proof of such loss to the extent of that
payment.

Subject to the receipt of satisfactory written proof of loss, or proof by any electronic/telephonic mean

authorized by the Insurance Company all accrued benefits for loss for which the Policy provides

installments will be paid monthly; any balance remaining unpaid upon the termination of liability will be
paid immediately upon receipt of due written proof, or proofby any electronic/telephonic mean
authorized by the Insurance Company all, unless otherwise stated in the Description of Benefits.

To Whom Payable
Death Benefits will be paid to the Insured’s named beneficiary, if any, on file at the time of payment. lf
there is no named beneficiary or surviving beneficiary, Death Benefits will be paid to the fust surviving
class of the following living relatives: spouse; child or children; mother or father, brothers or sisters; or to
the executors or administrators of the Insured’s estate. The Insurance Company may reduce the amount
payable by any indebtedness due.

All benefits payable under the Accelerated Benefits section are payable to the Insured, if living. If the
Insured dies prior to the payment of an eligible claim for an Accelerated Benefit, benefits will be paid in
accordance with the provisions applicable to the payment of Life Insurance proceeds, unless the Insured
has directed us otherwise in writing. However, any payment made by us prior to notice of the Insured’s
death shall discharge us of any benefit that was paid.

All other benefits, unless otherwise stated in the Policy, will be payable to the Insured or the certificate
owner if other than the Insured.

Any other accrued benefits which are unpaid at the insured’s death may, at the Insurance Company’s
option, be paid either to the Insured’s beneficiary or to the executor or administrator of the Insured’s
estate.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



If the Insurance Company pays benefits to the executor or administrator of the Insured’s estate or to a

person who is incapable of giving a valid release, the Insurance Company may pay up to $1,000 to a

relative by blood or marriage whom it believes is equitably entitled. This good faith payment satisfies the

Insurance Company’s legal duty to the extent of that payment.

Change of Beneficiary
The Insured may change the beneficiary at any time by giving written notice to the Employer or the

Insurance Company. The beneficiary’s consent is not required for this or any other change which the

Insured may make unless the designation of beneficiary is irrevocable.

No change in beneficiary will take effect until the form is received by the Employer or the Insurance

Company. When this form is received, it will take effect as of the date of the form. If the Insured dies

before the form is received, the Insurance Company will not be liable for any payment that was made

before receipt of the form.

Physical Examination and Autopsy
The Insurance Company, at its expense, will have the right to examine any person for whom a claim is

pending as often as it may reasonably require. The Insurance Company may, at its expense, require an

autopsy unless prohibited by law.

Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover benefits under the Policy less than 60 days after

written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance

Company, has been furnished as required by the Policy. No such action shall be brought more than 4

years after the time satisfactory proof of loss is required to be furnished.

Time Limitations
If any time limit stated in the Policy for giving notice ofclaim or proof of loss, or for bringing any action

at law or in equity, is less than that permitted by the law of the state in which the Employee lives when

the Policy is issued, then the time limit provided in the Policy is extended to agree with the minimum

permitted by the law of that state.

Physician/Patient Relationship
The Insured will have the right to choose any Physician who is practicing legally. The Insurance

Company wiN in rio way disturb the Physician/patient relationship.

I L-004fl4a(JX)

17

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADMINiSTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Premiums
The premiums for this Policy will be based on the rates currently in force, the plan and the amount of

insurance in effect.

lithe Insured’s coverage amount is reduced due to acceleration ofhis or her Death Benefit, his or her

premium will be based on the amount of coverage he or she has in force on the day before the reduction

took place. If the Insured’s coverage amount is reduced due to his or her attained age, premium will be

based on the amount of coverage in force on the day after the reduction took place.

Changes in Premium Rates
The premium rates may be changed by the Insurance Company from time to time with at least 180 days

advance written notice but only on the Policy Anniversary Date. No change in rates will be made until 48

months after the Policy Effective Date. An increase in rates will not be made more often than once in a

12 month period, and only on the Policy Anniversary Date. However, the Insurance Company reserves

the right to change the rates even during a period for which the rate is guaranteed if any of the following

events take place.
1. The terms of the Policy change.
2. A division, subsidiary, affiliated company or eligible class is added or deleted from the Policy.

3. There is a change in the factors bearing on the risk assumed.
4. Any federal or state law or regulation is amended to the extent it affects the Insurance Company’s

benefit obligation.
5. The Insurance Company determines that the Employer has failed to promptly ftirnish any

necessary infonnation requested by the Insurance Company, or has failed to perform any other

obligations in relation to the Policy.

Reporting Requirements
The Employer must, upon request, give the Insurance Company any information required to determine

who is insured, the amount of insurance in force and any other information needed to administer the plan

of insurance.

Payment of Premium
The first premium is due within 30 days of delivering the Policy. After that, premiums will be due

monthly unless the Employer and the Insurance Company agree on some other method of premium

payment.

If any premium is not paid when due, the plan will be canceled as of the Premium Due Date, except as

provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

Notice of Cancellation
The Employer or the Insurance Company may cancel the Policy as of any Premium Due Date by giving

180 days advance written notice. If a premium is not paid when due, the Policy will automatically be

canceled as of the Premium Due Date, except as provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

Policy Grace Period
A Policy Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for the payment of the required premiums under this

Policy. This Policy will be in force during the Policy Grace Period. The Employer is liable to the

Insurance Company for any unpaid premium for the time this Policy was in force.

Is

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Grace Period for the Insured
If the required premium is not paid on the Premium Due Date, there is a 31 day grace period after each
premium due date after the first. If the required premium is not paid during the grace period, insurance
will end on the last day for which premium was paid.

If benefits are not paid during the Grace Period for the Insured, the Insurance Company will deduct any
overdue premium from the proceeds payable under the Policy.

Reinstatement of Insurance
Coverage may be reinstated without satisfying the Insurability Requirement, if an Employee’s insurance
ends because he or she is on an unpaid leave of absence or military service pursuant to the Uniformed
Services Employment Act of 1994 (USERRA) and he or she applies for Reinstatement within 31 days of
his return to Active Service.

After an Insured’s coverage has ceased, it may be reinstated at any date prior to five years after the date of
tennination if the following conditions are met:
1. The Policy is still in force.
2. The insured is eligible under the Policy.
3. A written request for reinstatement and a new enrollment form are sent to the Insurance

Company.
4. The required premium is paid.
5. The Insurability Requirement, if any. is satisfied.

1L-004720

19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF RATES

The following monthly rates apply to all Classes of Eligible Persons unless otherwise indicated.

FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Voluntary Life Insurance

Monthly Rates are based on units of $1,000

Under Age 20
Age 20-24
Age 25 —29
Age 30 - 34
Age 35 - 39
Age 40-44
Age 45-49
Age 50-54
Age 55 - 59

A change in rates due to a change in the Employee’s age will become effective on the Policy
Anniversary Date coinciding with or following the Employee’s birthday.

FOR SPOUSE OR DOMESTIC PARTNER
AND DEPENDENT CHILD BENEFITS: $1.54

Any increase in benefit amounts of $10,000 for Spouse or Domestic Partner will be subject to age banded
rates.

FOR ADDITIONAL SPOUSE OR DOMESTIC PARTNER BENEFITS

Voluntary Life Insurance

Monthly Rates are based on units of $1,000.

Under Age 20 $.04
Age 20 -24 $.04
Age 25 - 29 $.04
Age 30- 34 $.07
Age 35 - 39 $.07
Age4O-44 $.Il
Age45-49 $.l7
Age 50-54 $.29
Age55-59 $.41

Spouse rates are based on the Spouse’s date of birth. A change in rates due to a change in the Spouse’s
age will become effective on the Policy Anniversary Date coinciding with or following the Spouse’s
birthday.

$.04 Age 60 - 64 $.67
$.04 Age 65-69 $1.00
$.04 Age 70-74 $1.76
$.07 Age75-79 $1.76
$.07 Age8O-84 $1.76
$.11 Age85-89 $1.76
$.17 Age9O-94 $1.76
$.29 Age 95 and over $1.76
$.4 I

Age 60 - 64
Age 65 - 69
Age 70 - 74
Age 75 - 79
Age 80 - 84
Age 85-89
Age 90 - 94
Age 95 and over

$.67
$1.00
$1.76
$1.76
$1.76
$1.76
$1.76
$1.76

20.:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



RATES FOR PORTABLE COVERAGES
FOR FORMER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Monthly Rates are based on units of $1,000.

Under Age 20 $.153 Age 45 -49 $.384
Age2O-24 $.144 Age5O-54 $.726
Age25-29 $.153 Age 55-59 $l.347
Age3O-34 $177 Age6O-64 $2.461
Age 35 - 39 $19 Age 65 - 69 $4.065
Age 40-44 $.243

A change in rates due to a change in the Former Employee’s age will become effective on the Policy
Anniversary Date coinciding with or following the Former Employee’s birthday.

FOR FORMER SPOUSE OR DOMESTIC PARTNERS OR SPOUSE OR DOMESTIC PARTNERS OF FORMER
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Monthly Rates are based on units of $1,000.

Under Age 20 $. 153 Age 45 -49 $.384
Age 20 - 24 $.144 Age 50 - 54 $.726
Age25-29 $153 Age55-59 $1.347
Age3O-34 $.177 Age6O-64 $2.461
Age 35 - 39 $.19 Age 65 - 69 $4.065
Age 40-44 $.243

Spouse rates are based on the spouse’s date of birth. A change in rates due to a change in the Spouse’s
age will become effective on the Policy Anniversary Date coinciding with or following the Spouse’s
birthday.

FOR FORMER DEPENDENT CHILD BENEFITS

Rates are based on $25,000 per Month.

Under Age 20 $2.377 Age 45 -49 $9.777
Age 20-24 $2.77? Age 50-54 $16.377
Age 25 - 29 $2.977 Age 55 - 59 $23.477
Age 30 - 34 $3.600 Age 60 - 64 $38.250
Age 35 - 39 $4.177 Age 65 - 69 $54.07?
Age 40 -44 $6.200

Rates are based on $50,000 per Month

Under Age 20 $4.750 Age 45 -49 SI 9.550
Age 20- 24 55.550 Age 50 - 54 $32.750
Age 25 - 29 55.950 Age 55 - 59 546.950
Age 30 - 34 57.200 Age 60 - 64 $76500
Age35-39 $8.350 Age65-69 5108.150
Age4O-44 $12.400

A change in rates due to a change in the Former Dependent Child’s age will become effective on the
Policy Anniversary Date coinciding with or following the Former Dependent Child’s birthday.

II .O()471fl

21

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract
The entire contract will be macic up of the Policy, the application of the Employer, a copy of which is
attached to the Policy, and the applications, if any, of the Ensureds.

Incontestability
All statements made by the Employer or by an Insured are representations not warranties. No statement
will be used to deny or reduce benefits or as a defense to a claim, unless a copy of the instrument
containing the statement is signed by and has been furnished to the claimant. In the event of death or
legal incapacity, the beneficiary or representative must receive the copy.

After two years from an Insured’s effective date of insurance, or from the effective date of any added or
increased benefits, the validity of an Insured’s coverage will not be contested using such statements.

Misstatement of Age
If an Insured’s age has been misstated, the Insurance Company will adjust all benefits to the amounts that
would have been purchased for the correct age.

Policy Changes
No change in the Policy will be valid until approved by an executive officer of the Insurance Company.
This approval must be endorsed on, or attached to, the Policy. No agent of the Insurance Company or
Employer may change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
The Policy is not in lieu of and does not affect any requirements for insurance under any Workers’
Compensation insurance Law.

Certificates
An individual certificate of insurance will be delivered to the Employer for delivery to Insureds. Each
certificate will list the benefits, conditions and limits of the Policy. It will state to whom benefits will be
paid.

Assignment of Benefits
The Insurance Company will not be affected by the assignment of an Insured’s certificate until the
original assignment or a certified copy of the assignment is filed with the Insurance Company. The
Insurance Company will not be responsible for the validity or sufficiency of an assignment. An
assignment of benefits will operate so long as the assignment remains in force provided insurance under
the Policy is in effect. This insurance may not be levied on, attached, garnisheed, or otherwise taken for a
person’s debts. This prohibition does not apply where contrary to law.

Clerical Error
A person’s insurance will not be affected by error or delay by the Insurance Company or Employer in
keeping records of insurance under the Policy. If such an error is found, the premium will be adjusted
fairly.

Agency
The Employer and Plan Administrator are agents of the Employee for transactions relating to insurance
under the Policy. The Insurance Company is not liable for any of their acts or omissions.

ii M4LaiT()

22

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DEFINJTIONS

Please note, certain words used in this document have specific meanings. These terms will be capitalized
throughout this document. The definition of any word, if not defined in the text where it is used, may be
found either in this Definitions section or in the Schedule of Benefits or the Policy cover page.

Active Service
An Employee will be considered in Active Service with the Employer on a day which is one of the
Employer’s scheduled work days if either of the following conditions are met.
I. He or she is actively at work. This means the Employee is performing his or her regular

occupation for the Employer on a Full-time basis, either at one of the Employer’s usual places of
business or at some location to which the Employer’s business requires the Employee to travel.

2. The day is a scheduled holiday, vacation day or period of Employer approved paid leave of
absence, other than disability or sick leave after 7 days.

An Employee is considered in Active Service on a day which is not one of the Employer’s scheduled
work days only if he or she was in Active Service on the preceding scheduled work day.

Annual Compensation
An Employee’s amaual wage or salary as reported by the Employer for work performed for the Employer
as of the date the covered loss occurs. It does not include amounts received as bonuses, commissions,
overtime pay or other extra compensation.

Dependent Child
An Employee’s unmarried child who meets the following requirements.
1. A child 14 days of age;
2. A child who is 14 days but less than 26 years old primarily supported by the Employee;
3. A child who is 14 days or more years old, primarily supported by the Employee and incapable of

self-sustaining employment by reason of mental or physical handicap. Proof of the child’s
condition and dependence must be submitted to the Insurance Company within 31 days after the
date the child ceases to qualif’ as a Dependent for the reasons listed above. During the next two
years, the Insurance Company may, from time to time, require proof of the continuation of such
condition and dependence. After that, the Insurance Company may require proof no more than
once a year.

The term “child” means a child born to or legally adopted by the Employee. The tenn includes a child
during any waiting period prior to the finalization of the child’s adoption. It also means a stepchild,
including a Domestic Partner’s child, living with and financially dependent upon the Employee.

Disabled
An Employee is Disabled if, because of Injury or Sickness, he or she is unable to perform all the material
duties of any occupation for which he or she may reasonably become qualified based on education,
training or experience.

Employee
For eligibility purposes, an Employee is an employee of the Employer in one of the “Classes of Eligible
Employees.” Otherwise, Employee means an employee of the Employer who is insured under the Policy.

Employer
The Policyholder and any affiliates or subsidiaries covered under the Policy. The Employer is acting as
an agent of the Insured for transactions relating to this insurance. The actions of the Employer shall not
be considered the actions of the Insurance Company.

Full-time
Full-time means the number of hours set by the Employer as a regular work day for Employees in the
Employee’s eligibility class.

23.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Initial Open Enrollment Period
The period in the calendar year when an eligible Employee who was hired on or before the Policy
Effective Date may enroll for the first time for Insurance Benefits under this Policy. This penod must be
agreed upon by the Employer and the Insurance Company. Refer to Initial Open Enrollment under the
Enrolling for Insurance section of the Policy.

Injury
Any accidental loss or bodily harm which results directly and independently of all other causes from an
accident. V

Insurability Requirement
An eligible person will satisf’ the Insurability Requbement for an amount ofcoverage on the day the
Insurance Company agrees in writing to accept him or her as insured for that amount. To determine a
person’s acceptability for coverage, the Insurance Company will require evidence of good health and may
require it be provided at the Employee’s expense.

insurance Company
The Insurance Company underwriting the Policy is named on the Policy cover page.

Insured
A person who is eligible for insurance under the Policy, for whom insurance is elected, the required
premium is paid and coverage is in force under the Policy.

Life Status Change
A Life Status Change is an event recognized by the Employez’s Flexible Benefits Plan as qualif5’ing an
Employee to make changes in benefit selections at a time other than an Annual Enrollment Period.

If there is no Employer sponsored Flexible Benefits Plan, or if it is no longer in effect, the following
events are Life Status Changes.
I. Mamage
2. Divorce, annulment or legal separation
3. Birth or adoption of a child
4. Death of a spouse
5. Termination of a spouse’s employment
6. A change in the benefit plan available to the Employee’s spouse
7. A change in the Employee’s or his or her spouse’s employment status that affects either person’s

eligibility for benefits

Physician
Physician means a licensed doctor practicing within the scope of his or her license and rendering care and
treatment to an Insured that is appropriate for the condition and locality. The term does not include an
Employee, an Employee’s spouse, the immediate family (including parents, children, siblings or spouses
of any of the foregoing, whether the relationship derives from blood or marriage), of an Employee or
spouse, or a person living in an Employee’s household.

Prior Plan
The Prior Plan refers to the plan of insurance providing similar benefits sponsored by the Employer in
effect directly prior to the Policy Effective Date.

Sickness
Any physical or mental illness.

Spouse
The current lawful Spouse of an Employee.

ii .mj47lj fiX)

24

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
a stock insurance company

Rider to Group Policy No. FLX-964188
Effective Date of Rider: October 1, 2011

Eligible Classes to which this Rider applies: All Classes

MODIFICATION OF GROUP POLICY
TO ADD DOMESTIC PARTNER AS AN ELIGIBLE DEPENDENT

UNDER THE GROUP POLICY FOR TERM LIFE INSURANCE

The provisions of the Policy are modified as follows:

All references to the term “Spouse” are replaced by “Spouse or Domestic Partner”, except for the
following references:
a. The definition of “Spouse” remains unchanged.
b. Any reference to “lawflul spouse” or “legal spouse” remains unchanged.
c. Any reference to “Spouse” remains unchanged in the paragraph entitled “To Whom Payable”

under the Claims Provisions.
d. Any reference to “Spouse” in the “Life Status Change” definition remains unchanged.

2. The following Domestic Partner definition is added to the Definitions section of the Group
Policy.

Domestic Partner means: a person of the same or opposite sex, who meets all of the following
criteria:

a. shares the Employee’s permanent residence;
b. has resided with the Employee and is expected to continue to reside with the Employee.
c. is financially interdependent with the Employee and shares the common necessities of life

with the Employee;
d. has signed a domestic partner declaration with the Employee, if the Employee resides in a

jurisdiction that provides for domestic partner declarations;
e. has not signed a domestic partner declaration with any other person within the last 12 months,

if the Employee resides in a jurisdiction that provides for domestic partner declarations;
f. is no less than 18 years of age;
g. is not currently legally married to any other person and
h. is not a blood relative any closer than would prohibit legal marriage.

In addition to the above requirements, if consent of either party to the Domestic Partner
relationship was obtained by force, duress, or fraud, these have the same effects as on the validity
of a marriage in Texas.

25

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



An Employee’s Domestic Partner is eligible for Life Insurance Benefits under the Policy on the

later of the Employee’s or Former Employee’s eligibility date or the date the person becomes the

Employee’s or Former Employee’s Domestic Partner and if all the following conditions are met.

a. The Employee has not been married to any other person within the last 31 days.
b. The Domestic Partner is the only person meeting the Policy’s defmition of “Domestic

Partner” with respect to the Employee.
c. The Employee and Domestic Partner furnish a notarized affidavit or signed statement

reflecting these requirements, and an agreement to notif’ the Insurance Company if the

requirements cease to be met, on a form acceptable to the Insurance Company.

To obtain insurance for a Domestic Partner, an Employee must request coverage in writing and

agree to make any required premium contributions. Insurance will be effective for a Domestic

Partner on the same date specified for a Spouse in the Effective Date of Insurance Provision.

The amount of insurance that applies to a Domestic Partner is shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Death benefits with respect to any Domestic Partner will be payable to the beneficiary chosen by
the Domestic Partner, If no beneficiary is named, benefits are payable to the Employee or Former
Employee.

Except for the above, this Rider does not change tile Group Policy to which it is attached.

Life Insurance Company of North America

QY)OI4 4,
Matthew G. Manders, President

TL-007L52

26

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT CHANGES FOR STATE REQUIREMENTS

If an Employee resides in one of the following states, the provisions of the certificate are modified for

residents of the following states. The modifications listed apply only to residents of that state.

California Residents:

Conversion Privilege for Life Insurance
Insured Employees and Insured Spouses may convert to an individual policy of life insurance for an
amount not greater than the Conversion Amount shown below when the Policy ends, without regard
toy requirement that the person be insured under the policy for a specified period of time, if all of
the following apply.

a. The Insured became Totally Disabled while covered for the Life Benefit of the Policy.
Totally Disabled means the person is unable to perform all the material duties of any
occupation for which he or she may reasonably be qualified based on training, education and
experience.

b. The Insured remained Totally Disabled until the Policy ended while covered for the Life
Benefit of this Policy.

c. The Policy does not provide a Waiver of Premium, Extended Death Benefit Provision or
monthly payments to Totally Disabled Insureds for the Life Benefit.

d. The person meets all other conditions for converting the insurance.

Conversion Amount - Insured’s life insurance amount under the Policy on the date the Policy ends
minus the amount for which the Insured is insured under a group policy that provides life coverage to
employees of the Insured Employee’s Employer covered under this Policy. The dollar limit that
applies to the amount for conversion at Policy termination does not apply.

The requirement that the Insured be covered under the Policy for the stated number of years in order
to convert life insurance does not apply.

Georgia residents:

Special Terms Applicable to Previously Insured Employees Not in Active Service
If an Employee is not in Active Service on the Policy Effective Date, they are not covered under the
Policy. However, the Insurance Company agrees to provide a death benefit equal to the lesser of:
I. the amount due under this Policy (without regard to the Active Service provision), or
2. the amount that would have been due under the Prior Plan had it remained in force.
The benefit amount will be reduced by any amount paid by the Prior Plan, or that would have been
paid had this Policy not been issued and had timely filing of the claim been made under the Prior
Plan.

These special terms will end on the earliest of the following dates:
I. the date the Employee meets the Active Service requirements;
2. the date insurance terminates for one of the reasons stated in the Termination of Insurance

provision;
3. 12 months after the Policy Effective Date; or
4. the last day the Employee would have been covered under the Prior Plan if that plan was still

in force.

27

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Missouri residents:

Applicable to Voluntary Life Insurance Benefits
If an Insured commits suicide, while sane or insane, within 1 year from the date his or her insurance
under the Policy becomes effective, Voluntary Life Insurance Benefits will be limited to a refund of
the premiums paid on the Insured’s behalf. The suicide exclusion applies from the effective date of

any additional benefits or increases in Life Insurance Benefits.

Except for any amount of benefits in excess of the Prior Plan’s benefits, this exclusion will not apply
to any person covered under the Prior Plan for more than one year. If a person was not insured for
one year under the Prior Plan, credit will be given for the time he or she was insured.

If a Dependent Child commits suicide and is survived by other Dependent Children covered under the
same certificate, no refund of premiums will be paid.

North Dakota residents:

The Suicide exclusion, if any, is limited to one year from the effective date of insurance. The suicide
exclusion with respect to any increase in death benefits which results from an application of the
insured subsequent to the effective date, if any, is limited to one year from the effective date of the
increase.

28

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, County of Travis, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of
Group Policy Number FLX-9641 88 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH
AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by County of Travis; the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

County ofTravis

Signature and Title:

___________________________________________

Date:_________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Returned To LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA)

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, County of Travis, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of
Group Policy Number FLX-964188 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH
AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by County of Travis; the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

County of Travis

Signature and Title:

____________ ________________

Date:_________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Retained By County of Travis)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment JC-3

IMPORTANT NOTICE

To obtain information or make a
complaint:

You may call the toll-free telephone
number for information or to make a
complaint at:

1-800-547-5515

You may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance to obtain information on
companies, coverages, rights or
complaints at:

1-800-252-3439

You may write the
Texas Department of Insurance
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX # (512)475-1771

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES:
Should you have a dispute concerning
your premium or about a claim you
should contact the agent or company
first. If the dispute is not resolved, you
may contact the Texas Department of
Insurance.

A1TACH THIS NOTICE TO YOUR
POLICY: This notice is for information
only and does not become a part or
condition of the attached document.

Group Retiree and Dependent Voluntary Life Policy

AVISO IMPORTANTE

Pam solicitar información o presentar
una queja:

Usted puede llamar al numero de
telefono gratis pars inforniación o pare
someter una queja al:

1-800-547-5515

Puede comunicarse con ci Departamento
de Seguros de Texas pars obtener
información sobre compafilas,
coberturas, derechos o quejas liamando
al:

1-800-252-3439

También puede escribir al Texas
Department of Insurance (Departamento
de Segums de Texas)
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX #(512) 475-1771

CONFLICTOS POR PRJMAS 0
RECLAMACIONES: En caso de tener
tin conflicto relacionado con su prima o

una reclamación, debe comunicarse
primero con ci agente o Ia compaflIa. Si
el conflicto no se resuelve, usted puede
comunicarse con el Departarnento de
Segums de Texas.

UNA ESTE AVISO A SU POLIZA:
Este aviso es solo para proposito de
informacion y no se convierte en pane o
condicion del documento adjunto.

I L-004421,

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE TEXAS LIFE, ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service
insurance Guaranty Association (the “Association”), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health
insurance company fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which are members of the
Association are eligible for this protection which is subject to the tenns, limitations, and conditions of the
Association law. (The law is found in the Tevas Insurance C’ode, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not cover your policy in full or in part due to statutory
limitations.

ELIGIBILITY FOR PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed wider an order of liquidation by a
court or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides
coverage to policyholders who are:
• Residents of Texas at that time (irrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy issue)
• Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:

1) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2) The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s

state of residence.

LIMITS OF PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance,
and $200,000 for other types of health insurance.

Life Insurance:
• Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life; or
• Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.
Individual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.
Group Annuities:
• Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $100,000 on any one life; or
• Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of

the number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:
• $300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000

multiple owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association
for the purpose of sales, solicitation, or Inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you
are selecting an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



NOTICE

Any accelerated benefits payable under the policy will reduce the death benefit payable for life
insurance. If you elect to accelerate your life insurance benefit, we will send you a statement
explaining the amount of your benefit, and what effect (if any) accelerating your life insurance
benefit will have on the death benefit face amount, specified amount, accumulation values, cash
values, loan amounts, future charges, or future premiums.

Benefits payable under the Accelerated Benefits provision may be taxable. If so, the Retiree or the
Retiree’s beneficiary may Incur a tax obligation. As with all tax matters, a Retiree should consult
with a personal tax advisor to assess the impact of this benefit. Accelerated Benefits are not
payable if life insurance coverage under the Policy is not in force.

Any accidental death benefits that you may have under the policy will not be affected by the
acceleration of life insurance benefits.

1i.-DO47

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
1601 CHESTNUT STREET GROUP POLICY
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235
(800) 732-1603 TDD (800) 552-5744
A STOCK INSURANCE COMPANY

POLICYHOLDER: County of Travis

POLICY NUMBER: FLX-964189

POLICY DESCRIPTION: Retiree Life insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1,2011

POLICY ANNIVERSARY DATE: October 1

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of coverage. It is issued in Texas and shall be governed by
its laws. The Policy goes into effect on the Policy Effective Date, 12:01 a.rn. at the Policyholde?s
address.

In return for the required premium, the Insurance Company and the Policyholder have agreed to all the
terms of this Policy.

%za 4 4
Scott Kern, Corporate Secretary Matthew G. Manders, President

11-004700

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS I

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS I 2

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 2 4

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 3 6

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 4 7

ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE 7

EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE 8

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE 8

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 9

LIFE INSURANCE EXCLUSIONS 11

CLAIM PROVISIONS 11

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 14

SCHEDULE OF RATES 16

GENERAL PROVISIONS 17

DEFINITIONS 18

DOMESTIC PARTNER RIDER 19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

Policy: Group Policy identified as Policy Number: FLX-964 189 on the Policy cover
page

Premium Due Date: The last day of each month

Classes of Eligible Retirees

On the pages following the definition of eligible retirees there is a Schedule of Benefits for each Class of
Eligible Retirees listed below. For an explanation of these benefits, please see the Description of Benefits
provision.

If a Retiree is eligible under one Class of Eligible Retirees and later becomes eligible under a different
Class of Eligible Retirees, changes in his or her insurance due to the class change will be effective on the
first Anniversaiy Date afler the date of the change in class.

Class 1 All Retirees under the age of 71.

Class 2 All Retirees age 71 and over.

Class 3 All Surviving Spouses of Retirees who died when under the Age of 71.

Class 4 All Surviving Spouses of Retirees who died when age 71 and over.

Terminally UI: Having an illness with a prognosis of 12 months or less to live as diagnosed by a
Physician.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS I

Eligibility Waiting Period

The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Retiree must be a member of the class to be
eligible for coverage.

For Employees who retired on or before the Policy Effective Date: No Waiting Period.

For Employees who retire after the Policy Effective Date: No Waiting Period.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Retiree Benefits

Amount of Insurance
Option I $15,000
Option 2 $25 .000
Guaranteed Issue Amount: the greater of a) orb) below:

a) $15,000, or
b) an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefit in effect on

the termination date of the Prior Plan

Retiree*
A Retiree is a former employee of the Employer who is currently receiving benefits from the Texas
County and District Retirement System and in one of the “Classes of Eligible Retirees.” Otherwise,
Retiree means a former employee of the Employer who is insured under the Policy.

Terminal illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

An eligible Retiree may enroll for or increase his or her Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefits, at any
time, only if he or she satisfies the Insurability Requirement. Any amount the Insurance Company
approves is effective on the date the Insurance Company agrees in writing to insure the Retiree.

A Retiree may reduce Insurance Benefits at any time. The reduced amount will be effective on the date
the Employer or the Insurance Company receives the completed change form.

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Spouse or Domestic Partner Benefits

Amount of Insurance
Option I $7,500
Option 2 $12,500
Guaranteed Issue Amount: the greater of a) or b) below:

a) $7,500, or
b) an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefit in effect on

the termination date of the Prior Plan

Tenninal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Spouse*
The current lawful spouse of a Retiree. Client wants language that would state the Spouse if defined
throughout the policy.

*1)/ease note. certain words used in this document have speqflc meanings. These terms ivill he capitalized
throughout this docume,it. The definition ofany word, fnot defined in the text where it is used may be found either
in the Definitions section or in this Schedule ofBenefits or on the Policy coverpage.

11-004774

3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 2

Eligibility Waiting Period

The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Retiree must be a member of the class to be
eligible for coverage.

For Employees who retired on or before the Policy Effective Date: No Waiting Period.

For Employees who retire after the Policy Effective Date: No Waiting Period.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Retiree Benefits

Amount of Insurance An amount elected in units of $5,000
Minimum Benefit: $5,000
Guaranteed Issue Amount: the greater of a) orb) below:

a) $5,000, or
b) an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefit in effect on

the tennination date of the Prior Plan
Maximum Benefit: $20,000

Retiree*
A Retiree is a former employee of the Employer who is currently receiving benefits from the Texas
County and District Retirement System and in one of the “Classes of Eligible Retirees.” Otherwise,
Retiree means a former employee of the Employer who is insured under the Policy.

Terminal Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

An eligible Retiree may enroll for or increase his or her Voluntary Term Life Insurance Benefits, at any
time, only if he or she satisfies the Insurability Requirement. Any amount the Insurance Company
approves is effective on the date the Insurance Company agrees in writing to insure the Retiree.

An Retiree may reduce Insurance Benefits at any time. The reduced amount will be effective on the date
the Insurance Company receives the completed change form.

Spouse or Domestic Partner Benefits

Amount of Insurance $2,500
Guaranteed Issue Amount: the greater of a) orb) below:

a) $2,500, or
b) an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefit in effect on

the termination date of the Prior Plan
Maximum Benefit: $5,000

Terminal Illness Benefit l00% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Spouse*
The current lawful spouse of a Retiree.

note, certain words used in this document have specific meanings. These ernzs will be capitalized
thivughouf this document. The definition ofany word, ifnor defined in the test where it is iised, may be found either
in (lie Definitions section or in this Schedule ofBenefits or on (he Policy coverpage.

II.-Oft.r4

4,

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 3

Eligibility Waiting Period

The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Insured must be a member of the class to eligible
for coverage.

For Surviving Spouses who were widowed on or before the Policy Effective Date:
No waiting period.

For Surviving Spouses who were widowed after before the Policy Effective Date:
No waiting period.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Surviving Spouse

Amount of Insurance
Option I $ 7,500
Option 2 $12,500
Guaranteed Issue Amount the greater of a) or 1,) below:

a) $7,500, or
b) an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefits in effect on the

termination date of the Prior Plan

Terminally Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Surviving Spouse*
The former lawful spouse of a Retiree prior to the Retiree passing.

*P!euse note, certain wrds used in this document have specfflc meanings. These tenns will be capitalized
throughout this docwnent. The definition ofany word, ifnot defined in the text where it is used. may he found either
in the Definitions section or iii this Schedule ofBenefits or on the Policy coverpage.

5:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 4

Eligibility Waiting Period

The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Insured must be a member of the class to eligible
for coverage.

For Surviving Spouses who were widowed on or before the Policy Effective Date:
No waiting period.

For Surviving Spouses who were widowed after before the Policy Effective Date:
No waiting period.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Surviving Spouse

Amount of Insurance Amount elected by Insured in units of $2,500
Minimum Benefit $2,500
Guaranteed Issue Amount the greater of a) or b) below:

a) $2,500, or
b) an amount equal to the Life Insurance Benefits in effect on the

tennination date of the Prior Plan
Maximum Benefit: $5,000

Terminally Illness Benefit 100% of Life Insurance Benefits in force on the date the Insured
is determined by the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

Surviving Spouse*
The former lawful spouse of a Retiree prior to the Retiree passing.

*pç note, certain words used in this document have specffic meanings. The$e terms will be capitalized
throughout this documem’. The definition ofour word. fnot defined in the test where it is used may befouiid either
in the Deftnitions sectinil or in this Schedule ofBenefits or on the Policy coverpage.

6.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE

Classes of Eligible Persons
A person may be insured only once under the Policy as a Retiree, Spouse or Surviving Spouse even
though he or she may be eligible under more than one class.

Retiree
A Retiree in one of the Classes of Eligible Persons shown in the Schedule of Benefits is eligible to be
insured on the Policy Effective Date or the day after he or she completes the applicable Eligibility
Waiting Period, if later.

If a person has previously converted his or her insurance under this Policy, he or she will not become
eligible until the converted policy is surrendered. This does not apply to any amount of insurance that
was previously converted under the Policy due to a reduction in the Retiree’s Life Insurance Benefits
based on age or a change in class unless those conditions no longer affect the amount of coverage
available to the Retiree.

Except as noted in the Reinstatement Provision, if a Retiree terminates coverage and later wishes to
reapply, or if a Retiree is rehired, a new Eligibility Waiting Period must be satisfied. A Retiree is not
required to satisfy a new Eligibility Waiting Period if insurance ends because he or she is no longer in a
Class of Eligible Retirees, and within one year becomes a member of an eligible class.

Spouse
If an Insured is eligible to elect Spouse coverage, the Spouse is eligible to be insured on the date the
Retiree is eligible or the date he or she becomes a Spouse of a Retiree, if later.

For the purpose of eligibility the Spouse must be the lawful Spouse of the Retiree and not legally
divorced from, or widowed by the Retiree.

Surviving Spouse
If an Insured is eligible to elect Surviving Spouse coverage the Surviving Spouse is eligible to be insured
on the date the Retiree is deceased. For the purposes of eligibility as a Surviving Spouse, the Surviving
Spouse must have been the lawful Spouse of the deceased Retiree and not divorced from the Retiree at the
time of his or her death and covered as a Spouse under the Policy or the Prior Plan.

11-004710, lix)

7

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE

An Insured who is required to contribute to the cost of this insurance may elect insurance for himself or

herself and an eligible Spouse only by completing and submitting the enrollment form in a manner

approved by the Employer and the Insurance Company. The effective date of this insurance depends on

the date and amount of insurance elected.

If an individual elects coverage within 31 days after becoming eligible to enroll, or for any increases, the

Guaranteed Issue Amount will be effective on the latest of the following dates:
1. The Policy Effective Date.
2. The first of the month after the date of the event creating eligibility.
3. The date the Employer or Insurance Company receives the completed enrollment form.

If Retiree, Spouse or Surviving Spouse coverage is elected in an amount that exceeds the Guaranteed

Issue Amount or an enrollment form is received more than 31 days after becoming eligible to elect

coverage, this insurance will be effective on the date the Insurance Company agrees in writing to insure

that eligible person. The Insurance Company will require the eligible person to satisfy the Insurability

Requirement before it agrees to insure him or her.

If an eligible Retiree, Spouse or Surviving Spouse is:
1. an inpatient in a hospital, hospice, rehabilitation or convalescence center, or custodial care

facility; or
2. confined to his or her home under the care of a Physician
on the date insurance would otherwise be effective, it will be effective on the date he or she is no longer
an inpatient in these facilities or confined at home. If such Retiree or Spouse or Surviving Spouse was

covered by the Prior Plan immediately prior to the Policy Effective Date, this provision will not apply to
the amount of coverage in effect as of the Policy Effective Date, but will apply to any increase in
coverage.

11.004’ 12, (iXj

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE

An Insured’s coverage will end on the last day of the month after the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date the Insured is eligible for coverage under a plan intended to replace this coverage;
2. the date the Policy is terminated by the Insurance Company;
3. the date the Insured is no longer in an eligible class;
4. the date coinciding with the end of the last period for which premiums are paid;
S. the date the Employer cancels participation under the Policy; and
6. the date coverage for the Retiree ends, for any insured Spouse, unless coverage for the Retiree

ends as a result of his or her death.

1I..M04’ 14a (IXI

8

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DESCRIPTION OF BENEFITS

The following provisions explain the benefits available under the Policy. Please see the Schedule of
Benefits for the applicability of these benefits on a class level.

LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS

Death Benefit
If an Insured dies, the Insurance Company will pay the Life Insurance Benefit in force for that Insured on
the date of his or her death.

Accelerated Benefits
This policy provides Accelerated Benefits. Terminal Illness is a qualiing condition for payment of
Accelerated Benefits. Any benefits payable under the Terminal Illness Benefit provision will reduce the
Death Benefit payable for Life Insurance

Terminal Illness Benefit
The Insurance Company will pay a Terminal Illness Benefit to an Insured who has been determined by
the Insurance Company to be Terminally Ill.

The Terminal Illness Benefit is payable only once in an Insured’s lifetime.

Determination of Terminal IlIne.ss

For the purpose of determining the existence of a Terminal Illness, the Insurance Company will require
the Insured submit the following proof.
I. A written diagnosis and prognosis by two Physicians licensed to practice in the United States.
2. Supportive evidence satisfactory to the Insurance Company, including but not limited to

radiological, histological or laboratory reports documenting the Terminal Illness.

The Insurance Company may require, at its expense, an examination of the Insured and a review of the
documented evidence by a Physician of its choice.

“Terminal Illness” means an illness for which a person has a prognosis of 12 months or less to live, as
diagnosed by a Physician.

Il.-OO44

9.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Conversion Privilege for Life Insurance
Each Insured may convert all or any portion of his or her Life Insurance that would end under the Policy
due to:
I. termination of membership in an eligible class under the Policy;
2. termination of the Policy.

The Insured may apply for any type of life insurance the Insurance Company offers to persons of the
same age in the amount applied for, except the Insured may not:
1. choose term insurance;
2. apply for an amount of insurance greater than the coverage amount terminating under the Policy

(also, the conversion policy will not provide accident, disability or other benefits); or
3. apply for more than S 10,000 of insurance if the Policy is terminated or amended to terminate the

insurance for any class of Insureds, or the Employer cancels participation under the Policy.

Conversion in these cases is only permitted if the Insured has been covered by the Policy or, any group
life insurance policy issued to the Employer which the Policy replaced, for at least 3 years.

If the Insured becomes eligible for coverage under any group life policy within 31 days of termination of
coverage under this Policy, the Insured may not convert an amount of insurance greater than the amount
of coverage terminating under the Policy less the amount for which he or she may be covered under the
other policy.

To apply for conversion insurance, the Insured must, within 31 days after coverage under the Policy ends:
I. submit an application to the Insurance Company; and
2. pay the required premium.

Evidence of insurability is not required.

Premium for the conversion insurance will be based on the age and class of risk of the Insured and the
type and amount of coverage issued.

If the Insured has assigned ownership of his group coverage, the owner/assignee must apply for the
individual policy.

Conversion insurance will become effective on the 31st day after the date coverage under the Policy ends
provided the application is received by the Insurance Company and the required premium has been paid.

If the Insured dies during the 31-day conversion period, the Life Insurance benefits will be paid under the
Policy regardless of whether he or she applied for conversion insurance. If a conversion policy is issued,
it will be in exchange for any further benefits for that type and amount of insurance from this Policy.

Evk’nsion o[Conve,ion Period
If an Insured is eligible for conversion insurance and is not notified of this right at least 15 days prior to
the end of the 31-day conversion period, the conversion period will be extended. The Insured will have
15 days from the date notice is given to apply for conversion insurance. In no event will the conversion
period be extended beyond 90 days. Notice, for the purpose of this section, means written notice
presented to the Insured by the Employer or mailed to the Insured’s last known address as reported by the
Employer.

If the Insured dies during the extended conversion period, but more than 31 days after his or her coverage
under the Policy terminates, Life Insurance benefits:
1. will not be paid under the Policy; and
2. will be payable under the conversion insurance; provided:

a. the Insured’s application for conversion insurance has been received by the Insurance
Company; and

b. the required premium has been paid.
10

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Prior Conversion Limitation
If an Insured is covered under a life insurance conversion policy previously issued by the Insurance
Company, he or she will not be eligible for this Conversion Privilege unless the prior coverage has ended.

TL-00Q740

LIFE INSURANCE EXCLUSIONS

If an Insured commits suicide, while sane or insane, within 2 years from the date his or her insurance
under the Policy becomes effective, Life Insurance Benefits will be limited to a refund of the premiums
paid on the Insured’s behalf. The suicide exclusion applies from the effective date of any additional
benefits or increases in Life Insurance Benefits.

Except for any amount of benefits in excess of the Prior Plan’s benefits, this exclusion will not apply to
any person covered under the Prior Plan as a, Retiree, Spouse or Surviving Spouse for more than two
years. If a person was not insured for two years under the Prior Plan, credit will be given for the time he
or she was insured.

ri,-OO475

CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim
Written notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
must be given to the Insurance Company within 31 days after a covered loss occurs or begins or as soon
as reasonably possible. If written notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized
by the Insurance Company, is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that notice was given as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given at our home office
in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania or to our agent. Notice should include the Employei’s name, the Policy
Number and the claimant’s name and address.

Written notice or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company
of a diagnosis of a Terminal Illness on which claim is based must be given to us within 60 days after the
diagnosis. If notice is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is shown
that written notice or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company was given as soon as reasonably possible.

Claim Forms
When the Insurance Company receives notice of claim, the Insurance Company will send claim forms for
filing proof of loss. If claim forms are not sent within 15 days after notice is received by the Insurance
Company, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the time required under the “Proof of
Loss” section, written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the
Insurance Company, of the nature and extent of the loss.

Claimant Cooperation Provision
Failure of a claimant to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the administration of the claim may
result in termination of the claim. Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any
information or documents needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount
due.

Insurance Data
The Employer is required to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the review of claims and
applications for coverage. Any information the Insurance Company provides in these areas is
confidential and may not be used or released by the Employer if not permitted by applicable privacy laws.

II

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Proof of Loss
Written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company, must be given to the Insurance Company within 90 days after the date of the loss for which a
claim is made. If written proof of loss, or proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by
the Insurance Company, is not given in that 90 day period, the claim will not be invalidated nor reduced if
it is shown that it was given as soon as was reasonably possible. In any case, written proof of loss, or
proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, must be given not
more than one year after that 90 day period. If written proof of loss, or proofby any other
electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, is provided outside of these time
limits, the claim will be denied. These time limits will not apply while the person making the claim lacks
legal capacity.

Written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
of loss for Accelerated Benefits must be furnished after the date of diagnosis. This proof must describe
the occurrence, character and diagnosis for which claim is made.

In case of claim for any other loss, proof must be furnished within 90 days after the date of such loss.

If it is not reasonably possible to submit proof of loss within these time periods, the Insurance Company
will not deny or reduce any claim if proof is furnished as soon as reasonably possible. Proof must, in any
case, be furnished not more than a year later, except for lack of legal capacity.

Time of Payment
Benefits due under the Policy for a loss, other than a loss for which the Policy provides installment
payments, will be paid within 60 days of receipt of due written proof of such loss.

Subject to the receipt of satisfactory written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronicltelephonic
means authorized by the Insurance Company, all accrued benefits for loss for which the Policy provides
installments will be paid monthly; any balance remaining unpaid upon the termination of liability will be
paid immediately upon receipt of due written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means
authorized by the Insurance Company, unless otherwise stated in the Description of Benefits.

To Whom Payable
Death Benefits will be paid to the Insured’s named beneficiary, if any, on file at the time ofpayment. If
there is no named beneficiary or surviving beneficiary, Death Benefits will be paid to the first surviving
class of the following living relatives: spouse; child or children; mother or father, brothers or sisters; or to
the executors or administrators of the Insured’s estate. The Insurance Company may reduce the amount
payable by any indebtedness due.

All benefits payable under the Accelerated Benefits section are payable to the Insured, if living. If the
Insured dies prior to the payment of an eligible claim for an Accelerated Benefit, benefits will be paid in
accordance with the provisions applicable to the payment of Life Insurance proceeds, unless the Insured
has directed us otherwise in writing. However, any payment made by us prior to notice of the Insured’s
death shall discharge us of any benefit that was paid.

All other benefits, unless otherwise stated in the Policy, will be payable to the Insured or the certificate
owner if other than the Insured.

Any other accrued benefits which are unpaid at the Insured’s death may, at the Insurance Company’s
option, be paid either to the Insured’s beneficiary or to the executor or administrator of the Insured’s
estate.

If the Insurance Company pays benefits to the executor or administrator of the Insured’s estate or to a
person who is incapable of giving a valid release, the Insurance Company may pay up to $1,000 to a
relative by blood or marriage whom it believes is equitably entitled. This good faith payment satisfies the
Insurance Company’s legal duty to the extent of that payment.

12

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Change of Beneficiary
The Insured may change the beneficiary at any time by giving written notice to the Employer or the
Insurance Company. The beneficiary’s consent is not required for this or any other change which the
Insured may make unless the designation of beneficiary is irrevocable.

No change in beneficiary will take effect until the form is received by the Employer or the Insurance
Company. When this form is received, it will take effect as of the date of the form. if the Insured dies
before the form is received, the Insurance Company will not be liable for any payment that was made
before receipt of the form.

Physical Examination and Autopsy
The Insurance Company, at its expense, will have the right to examine any person for whom a claim is
pending as often as it may reasonably require. The Insurance Company may, at its expense, require an
autopsy unless prohibited by law.

Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover benefits under the Policy less than 60 days after
written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company, has been furnished as required by the Policy. No such action shall be brought more than 4
years after the time satisfactory proof of loss is required to be furnished.

Time Limitations
If any time limit stated in the Policy for giving notice of claim or proof of loss, or for bringing any action
at law or in equity, is less than that permitted by the law of the state in which the Insured lives when the
Policy is issued, then the time limit provided in the Policy is extended to agree with the minimum
permitted by the law of that state.

PhysicianlPatient Relationship
The Insured will have the right to choose any Physician who is practicing legally. The Insurance
Company will in no way disturb the Physician/patient relationship.

TL-003724a( IX)

13.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Premiums
The premiums for this Policy will be based on the rates currently in force, the plan and the amount of
insurance in effect.

If the Insured’s coverage amount is reduced due to acceleration of his or her Death Benefit, his or her
premium will be based on the amount of coverage he or she has in force on the day before the reduction
took place.

Changes in Premium Rates
The premium rates may be changed by the Insurance Company from time to time with at least 180 days
advance written notice but only on the Policy Anniversary Date. No change in rates will be made until 48
months after the Policy Effective Date. An increase in rates will not be made more often than once in a
12 month period and only on the Policy Anniversary Date. However, the Insurance Company reserves
the right to change the rates even during a period for which the rate is guaranteed if any of the following
events take place.
1. The terms of the Policy change;
2. A division, subsidiary, affiliated company or eligible class is added or deleted from the Policy.
3. There is a change in the factors bearing on the risk assumed;
4. Any federal or state law or regulation is amended to the extent it affects the Insurance Company’s

benefit obligation or
5. The Insurance Company determines that the Employer has failed to promptly furnish any

necessary information requested by the Insurance Company, or has failed to perform any other
obligations in relation to the Policy.

Reporting Requirements
The Employer must, upon request, give the Insurance Company any information required to determine
who is insured, the amount of insurance in force and any other information needed to administer the plan
of insurance.

Payment of Premium
The first premium is due within 30 days of delivering the Policy. After that, premiums will be due
monthly unless the Employer and the Insurance Company agree on some other method ofpremium
payment.

If any premium is not paid when due, the plan will be canceled as of the Premium Due Date, except as
provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

Notice of Cancellation
The Employer or the Insurance Company may cancel the Policy as of any Premium Due Date by giving
180 days advance written notice. If a premium is not paid when due, the Policy will automatically be
canceled as of the Premium Due Date, except as provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

Policy Grace Period
A Policy Grace Period of3l days will be granted for the payment of the required premiums under this
Policy. This Policy will be in force during the Policy Grace Period.

14

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Grace Period for the Insured
If the required premium is not paid on the Premium Due Date, there is a 31 day grace period after each
premium due date after the first. If the required premium is not paid during the grace period, insurance
will end on the last day for which premium was paid.

If benefits are paid during the Grace Period for the Insured, the Insurance Company will deduct any
overdue premium from the proceeds payable under the Policy.

Reinstatement of Insurance
After an Insured’s coverage has ceased, it may be reinstated at any date after the date of termination if the
following conditions are met:
1. The Policy is still in force.
2. The Insured is eligible under the Policy.
3. A written request for reinstatement and a new enrollment form are sent to the Insurance

Company.
4. The required premium is paid.
5. The Insurability Requirement, if any, is satisfied.

1 I.flQ472C)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF RATES

The following monthly rates apply to all Classes of Eligible Persons unless otherwise indicated.

FoR RETIREE BENEFITS

Voluntary Life Insurance For Class I Only
Option I $15,000 $2.08
Option 2 $25,000 $6.92

Voluntary Life Insurance For Class 2 Only
Basic Benefit Amount $5,000 $5.90

Increases in coverage Units of $5,000 $8.80 per unit

FOR SPOUSE, SURVIVING SPOUSE OR DOMESTIC PARTNER BENEFITS

Voluntary Life Insurance For Class I and Class 3 Only
Basic Benefit Amount of $7,500 $2.08
Basic Benefit Amount of $12,500 $6.92

Voluntary Life Insurance For Class 2 and Class 4 Only
Basic Benefit Amount of $2,500 $2.95

Increases in coverage Units of $2,500 $4.40 per unit

Spouse rates are based on the Retiree’s date of birth. A change in rates due to a change in the Retiree’s
age will become effective on the Policy Anniversary Date coinciding with or following the Retiree’s
birthday.

Surviving Spouse rates are based on the Former Retiree’s date of birth. A change in rates due to a
change in the Former Retiree’s age will become effective on the Policy Anniversary Date coinciding
with or following the Retiree’s birthday.

IL.-004718

16

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract
The entire contract will be made up of the Policy, the application of the Employer, a copy of which is
attached to the Policy, and the applications, if any, of the Insureds.

Incontestability
All statements made by the Employer or by an Insured are representations not warranties. No statement
will be used to deny or reduce benefits or as a defense to a claim, unless a copy of the instrument
containing the statement is signed by and has been fhrnished to the claimant. In the event of death or
legal incapacity, the beneficiary or representative must receive the copy.

After two years from an Insured’s effective date of insurance, or from the effective date of any added or
increased benefits, the validity of an Insured’s coverage will not be contested using such statements.

Misstatement of Age
If an Insured’s age has been misstated, the Insurance Company will adjust all benefits to the amounts that
would have been purchased for the correct age.

Policy Changes
No change in the Policy will be valid until approved by an executive officer of the Insurance Company.
This approval must be endorsed on, or attached to, the Policy. No agent of the Insurance Company or
Employer may change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

Certificates
An individual certificate of insurance will be delivered to the Employer for delivery to Insureds. Each
certificate will list the benefits, conditions and limits of the Policy. It will state to whom benefits will be
paid.

Assignment of Benefits
The Insurance Company will not be affected by the assignment of an Insured’s certificate until the
original assignment or a certified copy of the assignment is filed with the Insurance Company. The
Insurance Company will not be responsible for the validity or sufficiency of an assignment. An
assignment of benefits will operate so long as the assignment remains in force provided insurance under
the Policy is in effect. This insurance may not be levied on, attached, garnisheed, or otherwise taken for a
person’s debts. This prohibition does not apply where contrary to law.

Clerical Error
A person’s insurance will not be affected by error or delay by Insurance Company or Employer in keeping
records of insurance under the Policy. If such an error is found, the premium will be adjusted fairly.

Agency
The Employer is the agent of the Insured for transactions relating to insurance under the Policy. The
Insurance Company is not liable for any of their acts or omissions.

IL4J0472oa TX)

17

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DEFINITIONS

Please note, certain words used in this document have specific meanings. These terms will be capitalized
throughout this document. The definition of any word, if not defined in the text where it is used, may be
found either in this Definitions section or in the Schedule of Benefits or on the Policy cover page.

Employer
The Policyholder and any affiliates or subsidiaries covered under the Policy. The Employer is acting as
an agent of the Insured for transactions relating to this insurance. The actions of the Employer shall not
be considered the actions of the Insurance Company.

Insurability Requirement
Au eligible person will satisfy the Insurability Requirement for an amount of coverage on the day the
Insurance Company agrees in writing to accept him or her as insured for that amount To determine a
person’s acceptability for coverage, the Insurance Company will require evidence of good health and may
require it be provided at the Retiree’s expense.

Insurance Company
The Insurance Company underwriting the Policy is named on the Policy cover page.

Insured
A person who is eligible for insurance wider the Policy, for whom insurance is elected, the required
premium is paid and coverage is in force under the Policy.

Physician
Physician means a licensed doctor practicing within the scope of his or her license and rendering care and
treatment to an Insured that is appropriate for the condition and locality. The term does not include an
Insured, an Insured’s spouse, the immediate family (including parents, children, siblings or spouses of
any of the foregoing, whether the relationship derives from blood or marriage) of an Insured or Spouse, or
a person living in an Insured’s household.

Prior Plan
The Prior Plan refers to the plan of insurance providing similar benefits sponsored by the Employer in
effect directly prior to the Policy Effective Date and includes Retiree coverage.

TL-004708a ITX)

18

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Life Insurance Company of North America
a stock insurance company

Rider to Group Policy No. FLX-964 189
Effective Date of Rider: October 1, 2011

Eligible Classes to which this Rider applies: All Classes

MODIFICATION OF GROUP POLICY
TO ADD DOMESTIC PARTNER AS AN ELIGIBLE DEPENDENT

UNDER THE GROUP POLICY FOR TERM LiFE INSURANCE

The provisions of the Policy are modified as follows:

All references to the term “Spouse” are replaced by “Spouse, Surviving Spouse or Domestic
Partner”, except for the following references:
a. The definition of “Spouse” remains unchanged.
b. Any reference to “lawful spouse” or “legal spouse” remains unchanged.
c. Any reference to “Spouse” remains unchanged in the paragraph entitled “To Whom Payable”

under the Claims Provisions.
d. Any reference to “Spouse” in the “Life Status Change” definition remains unchanged.

2 The following Domestic Partner definition is added to the Definitions section of the Group
Policy.

Domestic Partner means: a person of the same or opposite sex, who meets all of the following
criteria:

a. shares the Retiree’s permanent residence;
b. has resided with the Retiree and is expected to continue to reside with the Retiree;
c. is financially interdependent with the Retiree and shares the common necessities of life with

the Retiree;
d. has signed a domestic partner declaration with the Retiree, if the Retiree resides in a

jurisdiction that provides for domestic partner declarations;
e. has not signed a domestic partner declaration with any other person within the last 12 months,

if the Retiree resides in a jurisdiction that provides for domestic partner declarations;
f. is no less than 18 years of age;
g. is not currently legally married to any other person and
h. is not a blood relative any closer than would prohibit legal mamage.

in addition to the above requirements, if consent of either party to the Domestic Partner
relationship was obtained by force, duress, or fraud, these have the same effects as on the validity
of a marriage in Texas.

19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



An Retiree’s Domestic Partner is eligible for Life Insurance Benefits under the Policy on the later
of the Retiree’s eligibility date or the date the person becomes the Retiree’s Domestic Partner and
if all the following conditions are met.
a. The Retiree has not been married to any other person within the last 31 days.
b. The Domestic Partner is the only person meeting the Policy’s definition of “Domestic

Partner” with respect to the Retiree.
c. The Retiree and Domestic Partner furnish a notarized affidavit or signed statement reflecting

these requirements, and an agreement to notilS’ the Insurance Company if the requirements
cease to be met, on a form acceptable to the Insurance Company.

To obtain insurance for a Domestic Partner, a Retiree must request coverage in writing and agree
to make any required premium contributions. Insurance will be effective for a Domestic Partner
on the same date specified for a Spouse in the Effective Date of Insurance Provision.

The amount of insurance that applies to a Domestic Partner is shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

Death benefits with respect to any Domestic Partner will be payable to the beneficiary chosen by
the Domestic Partner. If no beneficiary is named, benefits are payable to the Retiree.

Except for the above, this Rider does not change the Group Policy to which it is attached.

Life Insurance Company of North America

Matthew (3. Manders, President

Tt-0071 2

20

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT CHANGES FOR STATE REQUIREMENTS

if a Retiree resides in one of the following states, the provisions of the certificate are modified for
residents of the following states. The modifications listed apply only to residents of that state.

California Residents:

Conversion Privilege for Life Insurance
Insured Retirees and Insured Spouses may convert to an individual policy of life insurance for an
amount not greater than the Conversion Amount shown below when the Policy ends, without regard
to any requirement that the person be insured under the policy for a specified period of time, if all of
the following apply.

a. The Insured became Totally Disabled while covered for the Life Benefit of the Policy.
Totally Disabled means the person is unable to perform all the material duties of any
occupation for which he or she may reasonably be qualified based on training, education and
experience.

b. The insured remained Totally Disabled until the Policy ended while covered for the Life
Benefit of this Policy.

c. The Policy does not provide a Waiver of Premium, Extended Death Benefit Provision or
monthly payments to Totally Disabled Insureds for the Life Benefit.

d. The person meets all other conditions for converting the insurance.

Conversion Amount - Insured’s life insurance amount under the Policy on the date the Policy ends
minus the amount for which the Insured is insured under a group policy that provides life coverage to
retirees of the Insured Retiree’s Employer covered under this Policy. The dollar limit that applies to
the amount for conversion at Policy termination does not apply.

The requirement that the Insured be covered under the Policy for the stated number of years in order
to convert life insurance does not apply.

Minnesota residents:

The following “Continuation of Life Insurance” provision is applicable to Minnesota residents if the
Employer has a minimum of 25 Retirees who reside in Minnesota, the Minnesota Retirees represent at
least 25% of all covered Retirees under the Policy, and the Policy does not offer Portability.

Continuation Of Life Insurance — This provision shall not apply to the extent that the Policy provides
for the right of Retirees to continue insurance on a direct billed basis following termination of
employment (Portability).

This provision shall apply with respect to Retirees whose coverage under the Policy is terminated due to:
(1) voluntary or involuntary termination or layoff from employment, for any reason other than gross
misconduct; or (ii) reduction in hours such that the Retiree is not eligible for insurance under the Policy.
This provision shall only apply to Retirees who, on such date, are Minnesota residents.

For those Retirees subject to this provision, life insurance coverage may be continued under the Policy for
18 months or until the date that the Retiree becomes covered under another group policy, whichever is
shorter. Coverage provided under this provision will also end if the Policy is terminated.

21

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



The premium required for continued coverage shall be the premium under the Policy applicable to the
Retiree’s class and amount of coverage. The Employer may charge an additional amount, not to exceed
2% of such premium, for collecting premium contributions from former Retirees. The Employer shall
notifS’ the Retiree of the right to continue and the required premium contribution. The Retiree may elect
to continue within 60 days of termination by paying the required premium, and may continue coverage in
force by paying the required premium, without demand, on a monthly basis, as of the first of each month,
to the Employer. Coverage will end at the end of any month in which the Retiree has failed to pay
premium to the Employer.

If continued coverage remains in force at the end of the 18 month period, or on termination of the Policy,
the Retiree may choose any conversion right then available under the Policy.

In the event the Retiree dies during the 60 day right to elect period without having become insured under
another group policy, or dies while continued coverage is in force, the death benefit will be paid to the
beneficiary chosen by the Retiree under the terms of the Policy.

Continued coverage will include eligible dependents who were covered on the Retiree’s date of
termination, provided the dependent remains eligible as a dependent of the Retiree. In the event that the
dependent ceases to be eligible, the dependent may choose any conversion right then available under the
Policy.

Missouri residents:

Applicable to Voluntary Life Insurance Benefits
If an Insured commits suicide, while sane or insane, within I year from the date his or her insurance
under the Policy becomes effective, Voluntary Life Insurance Benefits will be limited to a refund of
the premiums paid on the Insured’s behalf. The suicide exclusion applies from the effective date of
any additional benefits or increases in Life Insurance Benefits.

Except for any amount of benefits in excess of the Prior Plan’s benefits, this exclusion will not apply
toy person covered under the Prior Plan for more than one year. If a person was not insured for
one year under the Prior Plan, credit will be given for the time he or she was insured.

If a Dependent Child commits suicide and is survived by other Dependent Children covered under the
same certificate, no refund of premiums will be paid.

North Dakota residents:

The Suicide exclusion, if any, is limited to one year from the effective date of insurance. The suicide
exclusion with respect to any increase in death benefits which results from an application of the
insured subsequent to the effective date, if any, is limited to one year from the effective date of the
increase.

22

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, County of Travis, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of
Group Policy Number FLX-9641 89 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH
AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by County ofTravis; the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

County of Travis

Signature and Title:

______________________ ______________

Date:________________________

(This Copy is To Be Returned To LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA)

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, County of Travis, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of
Group Policy Number FLX-964 189 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH
AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by County of Travis: the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

County of Travis

Signature and Title:

_______________________________________

Date:__________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Retained By County of Travis)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Policy Number VDT 960952
Short Term Disability

IMPORTANT NOTICE

To obtain information or make a
complaint:

You may call the toll-free telephone
number for information or to make a
complaint at

1-800-547-5515

You may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance to obtain infonnation on
companies, coverages, rights or
complaints at:

1400-252-3439

You may write the
Texas Department of Insurance
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX # (512) 475-1771

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES:
Should you have a dispute concerning
your premium or about a claim you
should contact the agent or company
first. If the dispute is not resolved, you
may contact the Texas Department of
Insurance.

ATTACH TI-uS NOTICE TO YOUR
POLICY: This notice is for information
only and does not become a part or
condition of the attached document.

AVISO IMPORTANTE

Para solicitar información o presentar
una queja:

Usted puede llamar al numero de
telefono gratis para informaciôn o pare
soineter una queja al:

1400-547-5515

Puede comunicarse con ci Departamento
de Seguros de Texas pam obtener
información sobre compafflas,
coberturas, derechos o quejas ilamando
al:

Tambi6n puede escribir al Texas
Department of Insuran e (Departamento
de Seguros de Texas)
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX # (512) 475-1771

CONFLICTOS P0K PRIMAS 0
RECLAMACIONES: En caso de tener
tin conflicto rciacionado con su prima o
una reclamación, debe comunicarse
primero con ci agente o la compailla. Si
ci conflicto no se resuelve, usted puede
comunicarse con ci Departamento de
Seguros de Texas.

UNA ESTE AVISO A SU POLIZA:
Este aviso es solo pam proposito de
informacion y no se convierte en parte o
condicion del documento adjunto.

Attachment IC-4

1400-252-3439

TL-0C4426

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER TUE TEXAS LIFE, ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service
Insurance Guaranty Association (the “Association”), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health
insurance company fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which are members of the
Association are eligible for this protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the
Association law. (The law is found in the Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not cover your policy in full or in part due to statutory
limitations.

ELIGIBILiTY FOR PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a
court or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance, the Association provides
coverage to policyholders who are:
• Residents of Texas at that time (irrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy issue)
• Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:

1) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2) The policyholder’s state of residence has a similiir guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s

state of residence.

LIMiTS OF PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance,
and $200,000 for other types ofhealth insurance.

Life Insurance:
• Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life, or
• Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.
Individual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.
Group Annuities:
• Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $100,000 on any one life; or
• Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of

the number of contracts.
Aggregate Limit:
• $300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000

multiple owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association
for the purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you
are selecting an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTh AMERJCA
1601 CHESTNUT STREEI GROUP POLICY
PHILADELPHIA, PA 191 92-2235
(800) 732-1603 TDD (800) 552-5744
A STOCK INSURANCE COMPANY

POLICYHOLDER: Travis County

POLICY NUMBER: VDT-960952

POLICY DESCRIPTION: Short Temi Disability Insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1, 2011

POLICY ANNIVERSARY DATE: October 1

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of coverage. it is issued in Texas and shall be governed by
its laws. The Policy goes into effect on the Policy Effective Date, 12:01 a.m. at the Policyholder’s
address.

In return for the required premium, the Insurance Company and the Policyholder have agreed to all the
terms of this Policy.

/1z 4
Scott Kern, Corporate Secretaiy Matthew G. Manders, President

Th-004700 WO v-2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TABLE OP CONTENTS

SCHEDULE OF BENEFiTS .1

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 1 2

ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE 4

EFFECTiVE DATE OF INSURANCE 4

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE 4

CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE 5

DESCRIPTION OF BENEFiTS 7

EXCLUSIONS 11

CLAIM PROVISIONS 11

ADMINISTRATiVE PROVISIONS 13

GENERAL PROVISIONS 14

DEFINITIONS 15

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS

Policy: Group policy identified as Policy Number: VDT-960952 on the policy cover
page

Premium Due Date: The last day of each month

Classes of Eligible Employees

Class I All active, Full-time Employees of the Employer regularly working a minimum of 20
hours per week.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 1

Eligibility Waiting Period

For Employees hired on or before the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

For Employees hired after the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

Definition of Disability/Disabled
The Employee is considered Disabled if, solely because of Tnjury or Sickness, he or she is:
1. unable to perform the material duties of his or her Regular Occupation; and
2. unable to earn 80% or more of his or her Covered Earnings from working in his or her ReguLar

Occupation.

The Insurance Company will require proof of earnings and continued Disability.

Definition of Covered Earnings
Covered Earnings means an Employee’s wage or salary as reported as of August 3l of each year by the
Employer for work performed for the Employer as in effect just prior to the date Disability begins.
Covered Earnings are determined initially on the date an Employee applies for coverage. A change in the
amount of Covered Earnings is effective on August 31st, if the Employer gives us written notice of the
change and the required premium is paid.

It does not include amounts received as bonus, commissions, overtime pay or other extra compensation.

Any increase in an Employee’s Covered Earnings will not be effective during a period of continuous
Disability.

Elimination Period
For Accident: 14 calendar days
For Sickness: 14 calendar days

Gross Disability Benefit The lesser of 60% of an Employee’s weekly Covered Earnings
rounded to the nearest dollar or the Maximum Disability Benefit.

Maximum Disability Benefit $1,500 per week

Minimum Disability Benefit $25 per week

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Disability Benefit Calculation
Disability Benefits means either the Minimum Disability Benefit or what remains of the Gross Disability
Benefit after the following disability benefit calculations are completed, whichever is larger.

The Weekly Benefit payable to the Employee for any week the Employee is Disabled is the Gross
Disability Benefit minus Other Income Benefits.

“Other Income Benefits” means any benefits listed in the Other Income Benefits provision that an
Employee receives on his or her own behalf.

Return to Work Incentive
An Employee may work for wage or profit while Disabled. In any week in which the Employee
works and a Disability Benefit is payable, the Return to Work Incentive Benefit Calculation
applies.

During any week the Employee has Disability Earnings, his or her benefits will be calculated as
follows:

1. Add the Employee’s Gross Disability Benefit and Disability Earnings.
2. Compare the sum from 1. to the Employee’s Covered Earnings.
3. If the sum from 1. exceeds 100% of the Employee’s Covered Earnings, then subtract the

Covered Earnings from the sum in I.
4. The Employee’s Gross Disability Benefit will be reduced by the difference from 3., as

well as by Other Income Benefits.
5. If the sum from 1. does not exceed 100% of the Employee’s Covered Earnings, the

Employee’s Gross Disability Benefit will be reduced by Other Income Benefits.

No Disability Benefits will be paid, and insurance will end if the Insurance Company determines
the Employee is able to work under a modified work arrangement and he or she refuses to do so
without Good Cause.

Maximum Benefit Period
For Accident: The date the 13th Disability Benefit is payable.
For Sickness: The date the 13th Disability Benefit is payable.

Initial Premium Rates

$.30 per $10 of Weekly Benefit

TL-004774

3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ELIGIBILiTY FOR INSURANCE

An Employee in one of the Classes of Eligible Employees shown in the Schedule of Benefits is eligible to
be insured on the Policy Effective Date, or the day after he or she completes the Eligibility Waiting
Period, if later. The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Employee must be in Active
Service to be eligible for coverage. It will be extended by the number of days the Employee is not in
Active Service.

Except as noted in the Reinstatement Provision, if an Employee terminates coverage and later wishes to
reapply, or if a former Employee is rehired, a new Eligibility Waiting Period must be satisfied. An
Employee is not required to satisfy a new Eligibility Waiting Period if insurance ends because he or she is
no longer in a Class of Eligible Employees, but continues to be employed and within one year becomes a
member of an eligible class.

11-004710

EFFECTWE DATE OF INSURANCE

An Employee who is required to contribute to the cost of this insurance may elect to be insured only by
authorizing payroll deduction in a form approved by the Employer and the Insurance Company. The
effective date of this insurance depends on the date coverage is elected.

Insurance becomes effective for an eligible Employee who applies and agrees to make required
contributions subject to the provision below:
1. New hires. Coverage is effective first of the month following 30 calendar days from the date of

hire
2. Life Status Change. Coverage will become effective first of the month following the date of the

change.
3. Annual Enrollment. Coverage becomes effective on the Policy Anniversary Date.

Ifan Employee is not in Active Service on the date insurance would otherwise be effective, it will be
effective on the date he or she returns to any occupation for the Employer on a Full-time basis.

TL.004712

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE

An Employee’s coverage will end on the last day of the month after the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date the Employee is eligible for coverage under a plan intended to replace this coverage;
2. the date the Policy is terminated;
3. the date the Employee is no longer in an eligible class;
4. the day after the end of the period for which premiums are paid;
5. the date the Employee is no longer in Active Service;
6. the date benefits end for failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the Policy.

Disability Benefits will be payable to an Employee who is entitled to receive Disability Benefits when the
Policy terminates, ifhe or she remains disabled and meets the requirements of the Policy. Any period of
Disability, regardless of cause, that begins when the Employee is eligible under another group disability
coverage provided by any employer, will not be covered.

TL-007505.00

4

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE

This Continuation ofInsurance provision modifies the Termination ofInsurance provision to allow
insurance to continue under certain circumstances if the Insured Employee is no longer in Active Service.
Insurance that is continued under this provision is subject to all other terms of the Termination of
Insurance provisions.

Disability Insurance continues if an Employee’s Active Service ends due to a Disability for which benefits
under the Policy are or may become payable. If the Employee does not return to Active Service, this
insurance ends when the Disability ends or when benefits are no longer payable, whichever comes first.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to an approved leave pursuant to the Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA), insurance will continue up to the later of the period of his or her approved FMLA
leave or the leave period required by law in the state in which he or she is employed. Premiums are
required for this coverage.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to medical leave of absence approved in writing by the
Employer, insurance will continue for an Employee for up to 12 months. Premiums are required for this
coverage. An approved leave of absence does not include Furlough, Temporary Layoff or termination of
employment.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to non-medical administrative leave of absence approved in
writing by the Employer in accordance with the Employer’s reporting requirements, insurance will
continue for an Employee for up to 12 months. Premiums are required for this coverage. An approved
leave of absence does not include Furlough, Temporary Layoff or termination of employment.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to Temporary Layoff, insurance will continue for an Employee
for up to the end ofthe month in which the layoffbegins. Premiums are required for this coverage.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to any other excused short term absence from work that is
reported to the Employer timely in accordance with the Employer’s reporting requirements for such short
term absence, insurance for an Employee will continue until the last day of the month in which the
earliest of the following occurs:
a. the date the Employee’s employment relationship with the Employer terminates;
b. the date premiums are not paid when due;
c. the end of the 30 day period that begins with the first day of such excused absence;
d. the end of the period for which such short term absence is excused by the Employer.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this policy, if an Employee’s Active Service ends due to
termination of employment or any other termination of the employment relationship, insurance will
terminate and Continuation of Insurance under this provision will not apply.

If an Employee’s insurance is continued pursuant to this Continuation of Insurance provision, and he or
she becomes Disabled during such period of continuation, Disability Benefits will not begin until the later
of the date the Eliniinstion Period is satisfied or the date he or she is scheduled to return to Active
Service.

Th-009970.OO

5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TAKEOVER PROVISION

This provision applies only to Employees eligible under this Policy who were covered for short term
disability coverage on the day prior to the Policy Effective Date under the Prior Plan provided by the
Policyholder or by an entity that has been acquired by the Policyholder.

A. This section A applies to Employees who are not in Active Service on the day prior to the Policy
Effective Date due to a reason for which the Prior Plan and this Policy both provide for continuation
of insurance. If required premium is paid when due, the Insurance Company will insure an Employee
to which this section applies against a Disability that occurs after the Policy Effective Date for the
affected employee group. This coverage will be provided until the earlier of the date: (a) the
Employee returns to Active Service, (b) continuation of insurance under the Prior Plan would end but
for termination of that plan; or (c) the date continuation of insurance under this Policy would end if
computed from the first day the Employee was not in Active Service. The Policy will provide this
coverage as follows:

1. If benefits for a disability are covered under the Prior Plan, no benefits are payable under this
Plan.

2. If the Disability is not a covered disability under the Prior Plan solely because the plan
terminated, benefits payable under this Policy for that Disability will be the lesser of: (a) the
disability benefits that would have been payable under the Prior Plan; and (b) those provided by
this Policy. Credit will be given for partial completion under the Prior Plan of Elimination
Periods and partial satisfaction ofpre-existing condition limitations.

B. The Elimination Period under this Policy will be waived for a Disability which begins while the
Employee is insured under this Policy if all of the following conditions are met:

1. The Disability results from the same or related causes as a Disability for which weekly benefits
were payable under the Prior Plan;

2. Benefits are not payable for the Disability under the Prior Plan solely because it is not in effect;
3. An Elimination Period would not apply to the Disability if the Prior Plan had not ended;
4. The Disability begins within 14 days of the Employee’s return to Active Service and the

Employee’s insurance under this Policy is continuous from this Policy’s Effective Date.

C. Except for any amount ofbenefit in excess of a Prior Plan’s benefits, the Pre-existing Condition
Limitation will not apply to an Employee covered under a Prior Plan who satisfied the pre-existing
condition limitation, if any, under that plan. Ifan Employee, covered under a Prior Plan, did not fully
satisfy the pre-existing condition limitation of that plan, credit will be given for any time that was
satisfied under the Prior Plan’s pre-existing condition limitation.

Benefits will be determined based on the lesser of (1) the amount of the gross disability benefit under
the Prior Plan and any applicable maximums; and (2) those provided by this Policy.

If benefits are payable under the Prior Plan for the Disability, no benefits are payable under this
Policy.

11.005101

6

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DESCRIPTION OF BENEFITS

The following provisions explain the benefits available under the Policy. Please see the Schedule of
Benefits for the applicability of these benefits to each class of Insureds.

Disability Benefits
The Jnsurance Company will pay Disability Benefits if an Employee becomes Disabled while covered
under this Policy. The Employee must satisfy the Elimination Period, be under the Appropriate Care of a
Physician, and meet all the other terms and conditions of the Policy. He or she must provide the
Insurance Company satisfactoiy proof of Disability before benefits will be paid. The Disability Benefit is
shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

The Insurance Company will require continued proof of the Employee’s Disability for benefits to
continue.

Elimination Period
The Elimination Period is the period of time an Employee must be continuously Disabled before
Disability Benefits are payable. The Elimination Period is shown in the Schedule ofBenefits.

A period of Disability is not continuous if separate periods of Disability result from unrelated causes.

Disability Benefit Calculation
The Disability Benefit Calculation is shown in the Schedule of Benefits. Weekly Disability Benefits are
based on the number of days in a normally scheduled work week for the Employee immediately before
the onset ofDisability. They will be prorated ifpayable for any period less than a week. If an Employee
is working while Disabled, the Disability Benefit Calculation will be the Return to Work Incentive.

Return to Work Incentive
The Return to Work Incentive is shown in the Schedule ofBenefits. An Employee may work for wage or
profit while Disabled. In any week in which the Employee works and a Disability Benefit is payable the
Return to Work Incentive applies.

The Insurance Company will, from time to time, review the Employee’s status and will require
satisfactory proofof earnings and continued Disability.

Minimum Benefit
The Insurance Company will pay the Minimum Benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits despite any
reductions made for Other Income Benefits. The Minimum Benefit will not apply if benefits are being
withheld to recover an overpayment of benefits.

7

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Other Income Benefits
An Employee for whom Disability Benefits are payable under this Policy may be eligible for benefits
from Other Income Benefits. If so, the Insurance Company may reduce the Disability Benefits by the
amount of such Other Income Benefits.

Other Income Benefits include:
1. any proceeds payable under any group insurance or similar plan. If other insurance applies to the

same claim for Disability, and contains the same or similar provision for reduction because of
other insurance, the Insurance Company will pay for its pro rats share of the total claim. ‘Pro
rats share” means the proportion of the total benefit that the amount payable under one policy,
without other insurance, bears to the total benefits under all such policies.

2 any amounts received (or assumed to be received*) by the Employee under any workers’
compensation, occupational disease, unemployment compensation law or similar state or federal
law payable for Injury or Sickness arising out of work with the Employer, including all
permanent and temporary disability benefits. This includes any damages, compromises or
settlement paid in place of such benefits, whether or not liability is admitted.

*See the Assumed Receipt of Benefits provision

Increases in Other Income Benefits
Any increase in Other Income Benefits during a period of Disability due to a cost of living adjustment
will not be considered in calculating the Employee’s Disability Benefits after the first reduction is made
for any Other Income Benefits. This section does not apply to any cost of living adjustment for Disability
Earnings.

Lump Sum Payments
Other Income Benefits or earnings paid in a lump sum will be prorated over the period for which the sum
is given. If no time is stated, the lump sum will be prorated over five years.

Ifno specific allocation of a lump sum payment is made, then the total payment will be an Other Income
Benefit.

Assumed Receipt ofBenefits
The Insurance Company will assume the Employee is receiving benefits for which they are eligible from
Other Income Benefits if (assumed to be received) is applicable to the benefit. The Insurance Company
will reduce the Employee’s Disability Benefits by the amount from Other Income Benefits it estimates are
payable to the Employee.

The Insurance Company will waive Assumed Receipt of Benefits, except for Disability Earnings for work
the Employee performs while Disability Benefits are payable, if the Employee:

1. provides satisfactory proof of application for Other Income Benefits;
2. signs a Reimbursement Agreement;
3. provides satisfactory proof that all appeals for Other Income Benefits have been made unless the

Insurance Company determines that further appeals are not likely to succeed; and
4. submits satisfactory proof that Other Income Benefits were denied.

8

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Recovery of Overpayment
The Insurance Company has the right to recover any benefits it has overpaid. The Insurance Company
may use any or all of the following to recover an overpayment:
1. request a lump sum payment of the overpaid amount;
2. reduce any amounts payable under this Policy; and/or
3. take any appropriate collection activity available to it.

The Minimum Benefit amount will not apply when Disability Benefits are reduced in order to recover any
overpayment.

If an overpayment is due when the Employee dies, any benefits payable under the Policy will be reduced
to recover the overpayment.

Successive Periods of Disability
A separate period ofDisability will be considered continuous:
1. if it results from the same or related causes as a prior Disability for which benefits were payable;

and
2. il after receiving L)isability Benefits, the Employee returns to work in his or her Regular

Occupation for less than 14 days; and
3. if the Employee earns less than the percentage of Covered Earnings that would still qualify him or

her to meet the definition ofDisability/Disabled during at least one week.

Any later period ofDisability, regardless of cause that begins when the Employee is eligible for coverage
under another group disability plan provided by any employer will not be considered a continuous period
ofDisability.

For any separate period of disability which is not considered continuous, the Employee must satisfy a new
Elimination Period.

LIMITATIONS

Pre-Existing Condition Limitation
The Insurance Company will not pay benefits for any period ofDisability caused or contributed to by, or
resulting from, a Pre-existing Condition. A ‘Pre-existing Condition” means any Injury or Sickness for
which the Employee incurred medical expenses, received medical treatment, care or services including
diagnostic measures, or took prescribed drugs or medicines within 3 months before his or her most recent
effective date of insurance.

This limitation will not apply to a period of Disability that begins after an Employee is covered for at least
12 months after his or her most recent effective date of insurance, or the effective date of any added or
increased benefits.

Th-OO75.44

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADDITIONAL BENEFITS

Rehabilitation During a Period of Disability
If the insurance Company determines that a Disabled Employee is a suitable candidate for rehabilitation,
the Insurance Company may require the Employee to participate in a Rehabilitation Plan. The Insurance
Company has the sole discretion to approve the Employee’s participation in a Rehabilitation Plan and to
approve a program as a Rehabilitation Plan. The insurance Company will work with the Employee, the
Employer and the Employee’s Physician and others, as appropriate, to perform the assessment, develop a
Rehabilitation Plan, and discuss return to work opportunities.

The Rehabilitation Plan may, at the Insurance Companys discretion, allow for payment of the Employee’s
medical expense, education expense, moving expense, accommodation expense or family care expense
while he or she participates in the Rehabilitation Plan.

If an Employee fails to fully cooperate in all required phases of the Rehabilitation Plan and assessment
without Good Cause, no Disability Benefits will be paid, and insurance will end.
TL-007S0L00

TERMINATION OF DISABILiTY BENEFITS

Benefits will end on the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date the Employee earns from any occupation, more than the percentage of Covered Earnings

set forth in the definition ofDisability;
2. the date the Insurance Company determines he or she is not Disabled;
3. the end of the Maximum Benefit Period,
4. the date the Employee dies;
5. the date the Employee refuses, without Good Cause, to fully cooperate in all required phases of

the Rehabilitation Plan and assessment;
6. the date the Employee is no longer receiving Appropriate Care;
7. the date the Employee fails to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the administration of the

claim. Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any information or documents
needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount due.

Benefits may be resumed if the Employee begins to cooperate fully in the Rehabilitation Plan within 30
days of the date benefits terminated.

TL-OO75O2.

10

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



EXCLUSIONS

The Insurance Company will not pay any Disability Benefits for a Disability that results, directly or
indirectly, from:
1. suicide, attempted suicide, or self-inflicted injury while sane or insane.
2. war or any act of war, whether or not declared.
3. active participation in a riot.
4. commission of a felony.
5. the revocation, restriction or non-renewal of an Employee’s license, permit or certification

necessary to perform the duties of his or her occupation unless due solely to Injury or Sickness
otherwise covered by the Policy.

6. any cosmetic surgery or surgical procedure that is not Medically Necessary; “Medically
Necessary” means the surgical procedure is: (a) prescribed by a Physician as required treatment
of the Injury or Sickness; and (b) appropriate according to conventional medical practice for the
Injury or Sickness in the locality in which the surgery is performed. (The Insurance Company will
pay benefits if the Disability is caused by the Employee donating an organ in a non-experimental
organ transplant procedum)

In addition. the Insurance Company will not pay Disability Benefits for any period of Disability during
which the Employee is incarcerated in a penal or corrections institution.

TL.007503.OO

CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim
Written notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
must be given to the Insurance Company within 31 days after a covered loss occurs or begins or as soon
as reasonably possible. Ifwritten notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized
by the Insurance Company, is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that notice was given as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given at our home office
in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania or to our agent. Notice should include the Employer’s Name, the Policy
Number and the claimant’s name and address.

Claim Forms
When the Insurance Company receives notice ofclaim, the Insurance Company will send claim forms for
filing proofof loss. If claim forms are not sent within 15 days after notice is received by the Insurance
Company, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the time required under the “Proofof
Loss” section, written proof, or proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the
insurance Company, of the nature and extent of the loss.

Claimant Cooperation Provision
Failure of a claimant to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the administration of the claim may
result in termination of the claim. Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any
information or documents needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount
due.

Insurance Data
The Employer is required to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the review of claims and
applications for coverage. Any information the Insurance Company provides in these areas is
confidential and may not be used or released by the Employer if not permitted by applicable privacy laws.

11

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ProofofLoss
Written proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company, must be given to the Insurance Company within 90 days after the date of the loss for which a
claim is made. Ifwritten proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by
the Insurance Company, is not given in that 90 day period, the claim will not be invalidated nor reduced if
it is shown that it was given as soon as was reasonably possible. In any case, written proof of loss, or
proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, must be given not
more than one year after that 90 day period. If written proof of loss, or proof by any other
electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, is provided outside of these time
limits, the claim will be denied.. These time limits will not apply while the person making the claim lacks
legal capacity.

Written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
that the loss continues must be furnished to the Insurance Company at intervals required by us. Within 30
days of a request, written proof of continued Disability and Appropriate Care by a Physician must be
given to the Insurance Company.

Tune of Payment
Disability Benefits will be paid at regular intervals of not less frequently than once a month. Any
balance, unpaid at the end of any period for which the Insurance Company is liable, will be paid at that
time.

To Whom Payable
Disability Benefits will be paid to the Employee. Ifany person to whom benefits are payable is a minor
or, in the opinion of the Insurance Company, is not able to give a valid receipt, such payment will be
made to his or her legal guardian. However, ifno request for payment has been made by the legal
guardian, the Insurance Company may, at its option, make payment to the person or institution appearing
to have assumed custody and support.

If an Employee dies while any Disability Benefits remain unpaid, the Insurance Company may, at its
option, make direct payment to any of the following living relatives of the Employee: spouse, mother,
father, children, brothers or sisters; or to the executors or a1mini.ctrators of the Employee’s estate. The
Insurance Company may reduce the amount payable by any indebtedness due.

Payment in the manner described above will release the Insurance Company from all liability for any
payment made.

Physical Examination and Autopsy
The Insurance Company, at its expense, will have the right to examine any person for whom a claim is
pending as often as it may reasonably require. The Insurance Company may, at its expense, require an
autopsy unless prohibited by law.

Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover benefits under the Policy less than 60 days after
written proof of loss, or proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company, has been furnished as required by the Policy. No such action shall be brought more than 4
years after the time satisfactory proof of loss is required to be furnished.

12

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Time Limitations
If any time limit stated in the Policy for giving notice of claim or proof of loss, or for bringing any action
at law or in equity, is less than that permitted by the law of the state in which the Employee lives when
the Policy is issued, then the time limit provided in the Policy is extended to agree with the minimum
permitted by the law of that state.

Physician/Patient Relationship
The Insured will have the right to choose any Physician who is practicing legally. The Insurance
Company will in no way disturb the Physician/patient relationship.

TL-004724. (TX)

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Premiums
The premiums for this Policy will be based on the rates cunently in force, the plan and the amount of
insurance in effect.

Changes in Premium Rates
The premium rates may be changed by the Insurance Company from time to time with at least 180 days
advance written notice but only on the Policy Anniversary Date. No change in rates will be made until 36
months after the Effective Date. An increase in rates will not be made more often than once in a 12 month
period and only on the Policy Anniversary Date. However, the Insurance Company reserves the right to
change the rates even during a period for which the rate is guarantee, ifany of the following events take
place.
1. The Policy terms change.
2. A division, subsidiary, eligible company, or class is added or deleted.
3. There is a change of more than 10% in the number of Tnsureds.
4. Federal or state laws or regulation affecting benefit obligations change.
5. Other changes occur in the nature of the risk that would affect the Insurance Company’s original

risk assessment
6. The Insurance Company determines the Employer fails to furnish necessary information.

Reporting Requfrements
The Employer must, upon request, give the Insurance Company any information required to detennine who
is insured, the amount of insurance in force and any other information needed to administer the plan of
insurance.

Payment of Premium
The &st premium is due within 30 day of the delivery of the Policy. After that, premiums will be due
monthly unless the Employer and the Insurance Company agree on some other method of premium
payment.

Ifany premium is not paid when due, the plan will be canceled as of the Premium Due Date, except as
provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

Notice Of Cancellation
The Employer or the Insurance Company may cancel the Policy as ofany Premium Due Date by giving 180
days advance written notice. Ifa premium is not paid when due, the Policy will automatically be canceled
as of the Premium Due Date, except as provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

13

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Policy Grace Period
A Policy Grace Period of 31 days will be granted for the payment of the required premiums under this
Policy. This Policy will be in force during the Policy Grace Period. The Employer is liable to the Insurance
Company for any unpaid premium for the time this Policy was in force.

Grace Period fbr the Insured
If the required premium is not paid on the Premium Due Date, there is a 31 day grace period after each
premium due date after the first. If the required premium is not paid during the grace period, insurance
will end on the last day for which premium was paid.

Reinstatement of Insurance
An Employee’s insurance may be reinstated if it ends because he or she is on an unpaid leave of absence. If
an Employee’s Active Service ended due to an approved leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave
Act (FMLA) and Continuation of Insurance is not applicable, an Employee’s insurance may be reinstated
at the conclusion of the FMLA leave.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to an Employer approved unpaid leave of absence, other than
an approved FMLA leave, insurance may be reinstated only:
1. If the reinstatement occurs within 12 weeks from the date insurance ends, or
2. When returning from military service pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment Act of

1994 (USERRA).

For insurance to be reinstated the following conditions must be met:
1. An Employee must be in a Class of Eligible Employees.
2. The required premium must be paid.
3. The Insurance Company must receive a written request for reinstatement within 31 days from the

date an Employee returns to Active Service.

An Employee’s Insurance may be reinstated if it ends because he or she is terminated and later reinstated
in his or her position as a result of a settlement in or judicial determination of an employment law claim
and the reinstatement of benefits is a term of the settlement or judicial determination.

Reinstated insurance will be effective on the date the Employee returns to Active Service. If an
Employee did not fully satis1’ the Eligibility Waiting Period or the Pre-Existing Condition Limitation (if
any) before insurance ended due to an unpaid leave of absence or Temporary Layoff, credit will be given
for any time that was satisfied.

TL-009960.OO

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entire Contract
The entire contract will be made up of the Policy, the application of the Employer, a copy of which is
attached to the Policy, and the applications, if any, of the Insureds.

Incontestability
All statements made by the Employer or by an Insured are representations not warranties. No statement
will be used to deny or reduce benefits or as a defense to a claim, unless a copy of the instrument
containing the statement is signed by and has been furnished to the claimant. In the event of death or
legal incapacity, the beneficiary or representative must receive the copy.

After two years from an Insured’s effective date of insurance, or from the effective date of any added or
increased benefits, the validity of an Insured’s coverage will not be contested using such statements.

14

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Policy Changes
No change in the Policy will be valid until approved by an executive officer of the Insurance Company.
This approval must be endorsed on, or attached to, the Policy. No agent of Ours or the Policyholder may
change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
The Policy is not in lieu of and does not affect any requirements for insurance under any Workers’
Compensation Insurance Law.

Certificates
An individual certificate of insurance will be delivered to the Employer for delivery to Insureds. Each
certificate will list the benefits, conditions and limits of the Policy. It will state to whom benefits will be
paid.

Assignment of Benefits
The Insurance Company will not be affected by the assignment of an Insured’s certificate until the
original assignment or a certified copy of the assignment is filed with the Insurance Company. The
Insurance Company will not be responsible for the validity or sufficiency of an assignment. An
assignment of benefits will operate so long as the assignment remainc in force provided insurance under
the Policy is in effect. This insurance may not be levied on, attached, garnisheed, or otherwise taken for a
person’s debts. This prohibition does not apply where contrary to law.

Clencal Error
A person’s insurance will not be affected by error or delay by Insurance Company or Employer in keeping
records of insurance under the Policy. If such an error is found, the premium will be adjusted fairly.

Agency
The Employer is the agent of the Employee for transactions relating to insurance under the Policy. The
Insurance Company is not liable for any of their acts or omissions.

TL-004726a (IC)

DEFINITIONS

Please note, certain words used in this document have specific meanings. These terms will be capitalized
throughout this document. The definition of any word, if not defmed in the text where it is used, may be
found in this Definitions section or in the Schedules ofBenefits or on the Policy cover page.

Accident
An Accident is a sudden, unforeseeable external event that causes bodily Injury to an Insured while
coverage is in force under the Policy.

Active Service
An Employee is in Active Service on a day which is one of the Employer’s scheduled work days if either
of the following conditions are met.

1. The Employee is performing his or her regular occupation for the Employer on a full-time basis.
He or she must be working at one of the Employer’s usual places ofbusiness or at some location
to which the employer’s business requires an Employee to travel.

2. The day is a scheduled holiday or vacation day and the Employee was performing his or her
regular occupation on the preceding scheduled work day.

An Employee is in Active Service on a day which is not one of the Employer’s scheduled work days only
if he or she was in Active Service on the preceding scheduled work day.

15

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Annual Enrollment Period
The period in each calendar year when an eligible Employee may enroll for or change benefit elections
under the Policy. This period must be agreed upon by the Employer and the Insurance Company.

Appropriate Care
Appropriate Care means the Employee:
I. Has received treatment, care and advice from a Physician who is qualified and experienced in the

diagnosis and treatment of the conditions causing Disability. If the condition is ofa nature or
severity that it is customarily treated by a recognized medical specialty, the Physician is a
practitioner in that specialty.

2. Continues to receive such treatment, care or advice as often as is required for treatment of the
conditions causing Disability.

3. Adheres to the treatment plan prescribed by the Physician, including the taking of medications.

Disability Earnings
Any wage or salary for any work performed for any employer during the Employee’s Disability,
including commissions, bonus, overtime pay or other extra compensation.

Employee
For eligibility purposes, an Employee is an employee of the Employer in one of the “Classes of Eligible
Employees.” Otherwise Employee means an employee of the Employer who is insured under the Policy.

Employer
The Policyholder and any affiliates or subsidiaries covered under the Policy. The Employer is acting as
an agent of the Insured for transactions relating to this insurance. The actions ofthe Employer shall not
be considered the actions of the Insurance Company.

Full-time
Full-time means the number of hours set by the Employer as a regular work day for Employees in the
Employee’s eligibility class.

Furlough
Furlough means a temporary suspension or alteration of Active Service initiated by the Employer, for a
period of time specified in advance not to exceed 30 days at a time.

Good Cause
A medical reason preventing participation in the Rehabilitation Plan. Satisfactory proof of Good Cause
must be provided to the Insurance Company.

Injury
Any accidental loss or bodily harm which results directly and independently of all other causes from an
Accident.

Insurance Company
The Insurance Company underwriting the Policy is named on the Policy cover page.

16

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Insured
A person who is eligible for insurance under the Policy, for whom insurance is elected, the required
premium is paid and coverage is in force under the Policy.

Physician
Physician means a licensed doctor practicing within the scope of his or her license and rendering care and
treatment to an Insured that is appropriate for the condition and locality. The term does not include an
Employee, an Employee’s spouse, the immediate family (including parents, children, siblings or spouses
of any of the foregoing, whether the relationship derives from blood or marriage) of an Employee or
spouse, or a person living in an Employee’s household.

Prior Plan
The Prior Plan refers to the plan of insurance providing similar benefits sponsored by the Employer in
effect directly prior to the Policy Effective Date. A Prior Plan will include the plan of the Policyholder in
effect on the day prior to the Policyholder’s commencement of this Policy after the Policy Effective Date.

Regular Occupation
The occupation the Employee routinely performs at the time the Disability begins. In evaluating the
Disabiity the Insurance Company will consider the duties of the occupation as it is normally performed
in the general labor market in the national economy. It is not work tasks that are performed for a specific
employer or at a specific location.

Rehabilitation Plan
A written plan designed to enable the Employee to return to work. The Rehabilitation Plan will consist of
one or more of the following phases:
1. rehabilitation, under which the Insurance Company may provide, arrange or authorize

educational, vocational or physical rehabilitation or other appropriate services;
2. work, which may include modified work and work on a part-time basis.

Sickness
Any physical or mental illness.

Temporary Layoff
Temporary Layoff means a temporary suspension of Active Service for a period of time determined in
advance by the Employer, other than a Furlough as defmed. Temporary Layoff does not include the
permanent termination of Active Service (including but not limited to a job elimination), which shall be
treated as termination of employment.

TL-007500.44 as modified by TL-0099€O

17

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT ChANGES FOR STATE REQUIREMENTS

If an Employee resides in one of the following states, the provisions of the certificate are modified for
residents of the following states. The modifications listed apply only to residents of that state.

Louisiana residents:
The percentage of Covered Earnings, if any, that qualifies an insured to meet the definition of
Disability/Disabled may not be less than 80%.

Minnesota residents:
The Pre-existing Condition Limitation, if any, may not be longer than 24 months from the insured’s
most recent effective date of insurance.

lSr

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA

PHILADELPIUA, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms ofGroup
Policy Number VDT-960952 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Thisformistobesignedinduplicate. OnepartistoberetainedbyTravisCounty;theotherpartistobe
returned to the LIFE iNSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:

_______________________________________

Date:________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Returned To LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA)

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group
Policy Number VDT-960952 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County; the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:

_______________________________________

Date:________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Retained By Travis County)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT NOTICE

To obtain information or make a
complaint:

You may call the toll-free telephone
number for infonnation or to make a
complaint at

1400-547-5515

You may contact the Texas Department
of Insurance to obtain information on
companies, coverages, rights or
complaints at:

1-800-252-3439

You may write the
Texas Department of Insurance
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX # (512) 475-1771

PREMIUM OR CLAIM DISPUTES:
Should you have a dispute concerning
your premium or about a claim you
should contact the agent or company
first. If the dispute is not resolved, you
may contact the Texas Department of
Insurance.

ATTACH THIS NOTICE TO YOUR
POUCY: This notice is for information
only and does not become a part or
condition of the attached document

AVISO IMPORTANTE

Para solicitar infonnación o presentar
una queja:

Usted puede llamar al numero do
telefono gratis para información o pare
someter una queja al:

1-800-547-5515

Puede comunicarse con ci Departamento
de Seguros do Texas para obtener
información sobre compafiuas,
coberturas, derechos o quejas ilamando
al:

1-800-252-3439

Tambi6n puede escribir al Texas
Department of Insurance (Departamento
do Seguros do Texas)
P.O. Box 149091
Austin, TX 78714-9104
FAX # (512) 475-1771

CONFLICOS POR PRIMAS 0
RECLAMACIONES: En caso de tener
Un conflicto relacionado con su prima o
ima reclaniación, debe comunicarse
primero con ci agente o la compañla. Si
ci conflicto no se resuelve, usted puede
comunicarse con el Departamento do
Segums de Texas.

UNA ESTE AVISO A SU POUZA:
Este aviso es solo pam proposito do
informacion y no se convierte en parte o
condicion del documento adjunto.

Attachment IC-S Policy Number VDT 960953
Long Term Disability

TL-004426

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE TEXAS LIFE, ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after September 1, 2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service
Insurance Guaranty Association (the “Association”), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or health
insurance company fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which are members of the
Association are eligible for this protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the
Association law. (The law is found in the Texas Insurance Code, Chapter 463.)

It is possible that the Association may not cover your policy in full or in part due to statutory
limitations.

ELIGIBILITY FOR PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

When a member insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a
court or designated as impaired by the Texas Commissioner of Insurance the Association provides
coverage to policyholders who are:
• Residents of Texas at that time (irrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy issue)
• Residents of other states, ONLY if the following conditions are met:

1) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas;
2) The policyholder’s state of residence has a similar guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyhold&s

state of residence.

LIMITS OF PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance,
and $200,000 for other types of health insurance.

-Life Insurance:
• Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life; or
• Death benefits up to a total of$300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner of multiple non-group life policies.
Individual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contracts on any one life.
Group Annuities:
• Present value of allocated benefits up to a total of $100,000 on any one life; or
• Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of

the number ofcontracts.
Aggregate Limit:
• $300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000

multiple owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limit.

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the existence of the Association
for the purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you
are selecting an insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
1601 CHESTNUT STREET GROUP POLICY
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235
(800) 732-1603 TDD (800) 552-5744
A STOCK INSURANCE COMPANY

POLICYHOLDER: Travis County

POLICY NUMBER: VDT-960953

POLICY DESCRIPTION: Long Term Disability Insurance

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE: October 1, 2011

POLICY ANNIVERSARY DATE: October 1

This Policy describes the terms and conditions of coverage. It is issued in Texas and shall be governed by
its laws. The Policy goes into effect on the Policy Effective Date, 12:01 a.m. at the Policyholder’s
address.

In return for the required premium, the Insurance Company and the Policyholder have agreed to all the
terms of this Policy.

‘4
Scott Kern, Corporate Secretary Matthew G. Manders, President

TLOO47OO O v-2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SCHEDULE OF BENEFiTS I

SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 1 2

ELIGIBILITY FOR INSURANCE 5

EFFECTiVE DATE OF INSURANCE 5

TERMINATION OF INSURANCE 5

CONTINUATION OF iNSURANCE 6

DESCRIPTION OF BENEFITS 8

EXCLUSIONS 14

CLAIM PROVISIONS 14

ADMINISTRATiVE PROVISIONS 16

GENERAL PROVISIONS 18

DEFINITIONS 19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCUEDULE OF BENEFITS

Policy: Group policy identified as Policy Number: VDT-960953 on the policy cover
page

Premium Due Date: The last day of each month

Classes of Eligible Employees

Class I All active, Full-time Employees of the Employer regularly working a minimum of 20
hours per week.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS FOR CLASS 1

Eligibility Waiting Period

For Employees hired on or before the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

For Employees hired after the Policy Effective Date:
The first of the month following 30 calendar days after the date of hire.

Definition ofDisabilityfDisabled
The Employee is considered Disabled if, solely because of Injury or Sickness, he or she is:
1. unable to perform the material duties of his or her Regular Occupation; and
2. unable to earn 80% or more of his or her Indexed Earnings from working in his or her Regular

Occupation.

After Disability Benefits have been payable for 24 months, the Employee is considered Disabled if, solely
due to Injury or Sickness, he or she is:
1. unable to perform the material duties of any occupation for which he or she is, or may reasonably

become, qualified based on education, training or experience; and
2. unable to earn 60% or more of his or her Indexed Earnings.

The Insurance Company will require proof of earnings and continued Disability.

Definition of Covered Earnings
Covered Earnings means an Employee’s wage or salary as reported as of August 3 1’ of each year by the
Employer for work performed for the Employer as in effect just prior to the date Disability begins.
Covered Earnings are determined initially on the date an Employee applies for coverage. A change in the
amount of Covered Earnings is effective on August 31st, if the Employer gives us written notice of the
change and the required premium is paid.

It does not include amounts received as bonus, commissions, overtime pay or other extra compensation.

Any increase in an Employee’s Covered Earnings will not be effective during a period ofcontinuous
Disability.

Elimination Period 90 calendar days

Gross Disability Benefit The lesser of 60% of an Employee’s monthly Covered Earnings
rounded to the nearest dollar or the Maximum Disability Benefit.

Maximum Disability Benefit $6,000 per month

Minimum Disability Benefit The greater of $100 or 10% ofan Employee’s Monthly Benefit
prior to any reductions for Other Income Benefits.

2

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Disability Benefit Calculation
Disability Benefits means either the Minimum Disability Benefit or what remains of the Gross Disability
Benefit after the following disability benefit calculations are completed, whichever is larger.

The Disability Benefit payable to the Employee is figured using the Gross Disability Benefit, Other
Income Benefits and the Return to Work Incentive. Monthly Benefits are based on a 30-day month. The
Disability Benefit will be prorated if payable for any period less than a month.

During any month the Employee has no Disability Earnings, the monthly benefit payable is the Gross
Disability Benefit less Other Jncome Benefits. During any month the Employee has Disability Earnings,
benefits are determined under the Return to Work Incentive. Benefits will not be less than the minimum
benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits except as provided under the section Minimum Benefit.

“Other Income Benefits” means any benefits listed in the Other Income Benefits provision that an
Employee receives on his or her own behalf.

Return to Work Incentive
During any month the Employee has Disability Earnings, his or her benefits will be calculated as
follows.

The Employee’s monthly benefit payable will be calculated as follows during the first 24 months
disability benefits are payable and the Employee has Disability Earnings:

I. Add the Employee’s Gross Disability Benefit and Disability Earnings.
2. Compare the sum from 1. to the Employee’s Indexed Earnings.
3. If the sum from 1. exceeds 100% of the Employee’s Indexed Earnings, then subtract the

Indexed Earnings from the sum in 1.
4. The Employee’s Gross Disability Benefit will be reduced by the difference from 3., as

well as by Other Income Benefits.
5. If the sum from 1. does not exceed 100% of the Employee’s Indexed Earnings, the

Employee’s Gross Disability Benefit will be reduced by Other Income Benefits.

After disability benefits are payable for 24 months, the monthly benefit payable is the Gross
Disability Benefit reduced by Other Tncome Benefits and 50% ofDisability Earnings.

No Disability Benefits will be paid, and insurance will end if the Insurance Company determines
the Employee is able to work under a modified work arrangement and he or she refuses to do so
without Good Cause.

3

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Additional Benefits

Catastrophic Disability Benefit
Amount of Benefit: 20% of an Employee’s monthly Covered Earnings to a maximum

monthly benefit of $5,000.

Survivor Benefit
Amount of Benefit: 100% of the sum of the last fill Disability Benefit plus the

amount of any Disability Earnings by which the benefit had been
reduced for that month.

Maximum Benefit Period A single lump sum payment equal to 6 monthly Survivor
Benefits.

Maximum Benefit Period
The later of the Employee’s SSNRA or the Maximum Benefit Period listed below.

Age When Disability Bealns Maximum Benefit Period
Age 62 or under The Employee’s 65th birthday or the date the 42nd Monthly

Benefit is payable. if later.
Age 63 The date the 36th Monthly Benefit is payable.
Age 64 The date the 30th Monthly Benefit is payable.
Age 65 The date the 24th Monthly Benefit is payable.
Age 66 The date the 21st Monthly Benefit is payable.
Age 67 The date the 18th Monthly Benefit is payable.
Age 68 The date the 15th Monthly Benefit is payable.
Age 69 or older The date the 12th Monthly Benefit is payable.

*SSNRA means the Social Security Normal Retirement Age in effect under the Social Security Act on the
Policy Effective Date.

Initial Premium Rates

$.50 per $100 of Covered Payroll

Covered Payroll for an Employee will mean his or her Covered Earnings as reported as of the August 3 l
prior to the date the determination is made. However, an Employee’s Covered Payroll will not include
any part of his or her monthly Covered Earnings which exceed $10,000.

Th-004774

4

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ELIGIBILiTY FOR INSURANCE

An Employee in one of the Classes of Eligible Employees shown in the Schedule of Benefits is eligible to
be insured on the Policy Effective Date, or the day after he or she completes the Eligibility Waiting
Period, if later. The Eligibility Waiting Period is the period of time the Employee must be in Active
Service to be eligible for coverage. It will be extended by the number of days the Employee is not in
Active Service.

Except as noted in the Reinstatement Provision, if an Employee terminates coverage and later wishes to
reapply, or if a former Employee is rehired, a new Eligibility Waiting Period must be satisfied. An
Employee is not required to satis1 a new Eligibility Waiting Period if insurance ends because he or she is
no longer in a Class of Eligible Employees, but continues to be employed and within one year becomes a
member of an eligible class.

1V004710

EFFECTIVE DATE OF INSURANCE

An Employee who is required to contribute to the cost of this insurance may elect to be insured only by
authorizing payroll deduction in a form approved by the Employer and the Insurance Company. The
effective date of this insurance depends on the date coverage is elected.

Insurance becomes effective for an eligible Employee who applies and agrees to make required
contributions subject to the provision below:
1. New hires. Coverage is effective first of the month following 30 calendar days from the date of

hire.
2. Life Status Change. Coverage will become effective first of the month following the date of the

change.
3. Aniiual Enrollment. Coverage becomes effective on the Policy Anniversary Date

If an Employee is not in Active Service on the date insurance would otherwise be effective, it will be
effective on the date he or she returns to any occupation for the Employer on a Full-time basis.

1L-004712

TERMiNATION OF INSURANCE

An Employee’s coverage will end on the last day of the month after the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date the Employee is eligible for coverage under a plan intended to replace this coverage;
2. the date the Policy is terminated;
3. the date the Employee is no longer in an eligible class;
4. the day after the end of the period for which premiums are paid;
5. the date the Employee is no longer in Active Service;
6. the date benefits end for failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the Policy.

Disability Benefits will be payable to an Employee who is entitled to receive Disability Benefits when the
Policy terminates, if he or she remains disabled and meets the requirements of the Policy. Any period of
Disability, regardless of cause, that begins when the Employee is eligible under another group disability
coverage provided by any employer, will not be covered.

TL.007505.OO

5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CONTINUATION OF INSURANCE

This Continuation of Insurance provision modifies the Termination of Insurance provision to allow
insurance to continue under certain circumstances if the Insured Employee is no longer in Active Service.
Insurance that is continued under this provision is subject to all other terms of the Termination of
Insurance provisions.

Disability Insurance continues if an Employee’s Active Service ends due to a Disability for which benefits
under the Policy are or may become payable. Premiums for the Employee will be waived while
Disability Benefits are payable. If the Employee does not return to Active Service, this insurance ends
when the Disability ends or when benefits are no longer payable, whichever occurs first.

Ifan Employee’s Active Service ends due to an approved leave pursuant to the Family and Medical
Leave Act (FMLA), insurance will continue up to the later of the period ofhis or her approved FMLA
leave or the leave period required by law in the state in which he or she is employed. Premiums are
required for this coverage.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to medical leave of absence approved in writing by the
Employer, insurance will continue for an Employee for up to 12 months. Premiums are required for this
coverage. An approved leave of absence does not include Furlough, Temporary Layoff or termination of
employment.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to non-medical administrative leave of absence approved in
writing by the Employer in accordance with Employer’s reporting requirements, insurance will continue
for an Employee for upto 12 months. Premiums are required for this coverage. An approved leave of
absence does not include Furlough, Temporary Layoffor termination of employment.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to Temporary Layoff, insurance will continue for an Employee
for up to the end of the month in which the layoff begins. Premiums are required for this coverage.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to any other excused short term absence from work that is
reported to the Employer timely in accordance with the Employer’s reporting requirements fir such short
term absence, insurance for an Employee will continue until the last day of the month in which the
earliest of the following occurs:
a. the date the Employee’s employment relationship with the Employer terminates;
b. the date premiums are not paid when due;
c. the end of the 30 day period that begins with the first day of such excused absence;
d. the end of the period for which such short term absence is excused by the Employer.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this policy, if an Employee’s Active Service ends due to
termination of employment or any other termination of the employment relationship, insurance will
terminate and Continuation of Insurance under this provision will not apply.

If an Employee’s insurance is continued pursuant to this Continuation of Insurance provision, and he or
she becomes Disabled during such period of continuation, Disability Benefits will not begin until the later
of the date the Elimination Period is satisfied or the date he or she is scheduled to return to Active
Service.

TL-009970.OO

6

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TAKEOVER PROVISION

This provision applies only to Employees eligible under this Policy who were covered for long term
disability coverage on the day prior to the Policy Effective Date under the Prior Plan provided by the
Policyholder or by an entity that has been acquired by the Policyholder.

A. This section A applies to Employees who are not in Active Service on the day prior to the Policy
Effective Date due to a reason for which the Prior Plan and this Policy both provide for continuation
of insurance. If required premium is paid when due, the Insurance Company will insure an Employee
to which this section applies against a Disability that occurs after the Policy Effective Date for the
affected employee group. This coverage will be provided until the earlier of the date: (a) the
Employee returns to Active Service, (b) continuation of insurance under the Prior Plan would end but
for termination of that plan; or (c) the date continuation of insurance under this Policy would end if
computed from the first day the Employee was not in Active Service. The Policy will provide this
coverage as follows:

1. If benefits for a disability are covered under the Prior Plan, no benefits are payable under this
Plan.

2. If the Disability is not a covered disability under the Prior Plan solely because the plan
terminated, benefits payable under this Policy for that Disability will be the lesser of: (a) the
disability benefits that would have been payable under the Prior Plan; and (b) those provided by
this Policy. Credit will be given for partial completion under the Prior Plan of Elimination
Periods and partial satisfaction ofpre-existing condition limitations.

B. The Elimination Period under this Policy will be waived for a Disability which begins while the
Employee is insured under this Policy if all of the following conditions are met:

1. The Disability results from the same or related causes as a Disability for which monthly benefits
were payable under the Prior Plan;

2. Benefits are not payable for the Disability under the Prior Plan solely because it is not in effect;
3. An EIimintion Period would not apply to the Disability if the Prior Plan had not ended
4. The Disability begins within 6 months of the Employee’s return to Active Service and the

Employee’s insurance under this Policy is continuous from this Policy’s Effective Date.

C. Except for any amount of benefit in excess of a Prior Plan’s benefits, the Pre-existing Condition
Limitation will not apply to an Employee covered under a Prior Plan who satisfied the pre—existing
condition limitation, if any, under that plan. Ifan Employee, covered under a Prior Plan, did not fally
satisfy the pre-existing condition limitation of that plan, credit will be given for any time that was
satisfied under the Prior Plan’s pre-existing condition limitation.

Benefits will be determined based on the lesser of: (1) the amount of the gross disability benefit under
the Prior Plan and any applicable maximums; and (2) those provided by this Policy.

Ifbenefits are payable under the Prior Plan for the Disability, no benefits are payable under this
Policy.

Th-oo5Io

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DESCRIPTION OF BENEFITS

The following provisions explain the benefits available under the Policy. Please see the Schedule of
Benefits for the applicability of these benefits to each class of Insureds.

Disability Benefits
The Insurance Company will pay Disability Benefits if an Employee becomes Disabled while covered
under this Policy. The Employee must satis1’ the Elimination Period, be under the Appropriate Care of a
Physician, and meet all the other terms and conditions of the Policy. He or she must provide the
Insurance Company satisfactory proof ofDisability before benefits will be paid. The Disability Benefit is
shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

The Insurance Company will require continued proof of the Employee’s Disability for benefits to
continue.

Elimination Period
The Elimination Period is the period of time an Employee must be continuously Disabled before
Disability Benefits are payable. The EliminRtion Period is shown in the Schedule ofBenefits.

A period of Disability is not continuous if separate periods of Disability result from unrelated causes.

Disability Benefit Calculation
The Disability Benefit Calculation is shown in the Schedule of Benefits. Monthly Disability Benefits are
based on a 30 day period. They will be prorated if payable for any period less than a month. If an
Employee is working while Disabled, the Disability Benefit Calculation will be the Return to Work
Incentive.

Return to Work Incentive
The Return to Work Incentive is shown in the Schedule of Benefits. An Employee may work for wage or
profit while Disabled. In any month in which the Employee works and a Disability Benefit is payable,
the Return to Work Incentive applies.

The Insurance Company will, from time to time, review the Employee’s status and will require
satisfactory proofof earnings and continued Disability.

Minimum Benefit
The Insurance Company will pay the Minimum Benefit shown in the Schedule of Benefits despite any
reductions made for Other Income Benefits. The Minimum Benefit will not apply if benefits are being
withheld to recover an overpayment of benefits.

8

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Other Income Benefits
An Employee for whom Disability Benefits are payable under this Policy may be eligible for benefits
from Other Income Benefits. If so, the Insurance Company may reduce the Disability Benefits by the
amount of such Other Income Benefits.

Other Income Benefits include:
1. any amounts received by the Employee under:

- the Canada and Quebec Pension Plans;
- the Railroad Retirement Act;
- any sick leave pay provided by Employer;
- any work loss provision in mandatory “No-Fault” auto insurance

2. any amounts received (or assumed to be received) by the Employee under:
- any local, state, provincial or federal government disability plan or law payable for Injury

or Sickness provided as a result of employment with the Employer;
- any Social Security disability benefits the Employee receives on his or her own behalf

because of his or her entitlement to such benefits.
3 any proceeds payable under any similar group insurance or similar plan. If other insurance applies

to the same claim for Disability, and contains the same or similar provision for reduction because
of other insurance, the Insurance Company will pay for its pro rats share of the total claim. ‘Pro
rats share” means the proportion of the total benefit that the amount payable under one policy.
without other insurance, bears to the total benefits under all such policies.

4 any amounts received (or assumed to be received) by the Employee under any workers’
compensation, occupational disease, unemployment compensation law or similar state or federal
law payable for Injury or Sickness arising out of work with the Employer, including all
permanent and temporary disability benefits. This includes any damages, compromises or
settlement paid in place of such benefits, whether or not liability is admitted.

5 any amounts paid because of loss of earnings or earning capacity through settlement, judgment,
arbitration or otherwise, where a third party may be liable, regardless of whether liability is
determinecL

*See the Assumed Receipt of Benefits provision

Increases in Other Income Benefits
Any increase in Other Income Benefits during a period ofDisability due to a cost of living adjustment
will not be considered in calculating the Employee’s Disability Benefits after the first reduction is made
for any Other Income Benefits. This section does not apply to any cost of living adjustment for Disability
Earnings.

Lump Sum Payments
Other Income Benefits or earnings paid in a lump sum will be prorated over the period for which the sum
is given. If no time is stated, the lump sum will be prorated over five years.

If no specific allocation of a lump sum payment is made, then the total payment will be an Other Income
Benefit.

9

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Assumed Receipt ofBenefits
The Insurance Company will assume the Employee is receiving benefits for which they are eligible from
Other Income Benefits if (assumed to be received*) is applicable to the benefit. The Insurance Company
will reduce the Employee’s Disability Benefits by the amount from Other Income Benefits it estimates are
payable to the Employee.

The Insurance Company will waive Assumed Receipt ofBenefits, except for Disability Earnings for work
the Employee performs while Disability Benefits are payable, if the Employee:

1. provides satisfactory proofof application for Other Income Benefits;
2. signs a Reimbursement Agreement;
3. provides satisfactory proof that all appeals for Other Income Benefits have been made unless the

Insurance Company determines that further appeals are not likely to succeed and
4. submits satisfactory proof that Other Income Benefits were denied.

Social Security Assistance
The Insurance Company may help the Employee in applying for Social Security Disability Income
(SSD1) Benefits, and may require the Employee to file an appeal if it believes a reversal of a prior
decision is possible.

The Insurance Company will reduce Disability Benefits by the amount it estimates the Employee will
receive, if the Employee refuses to cooperate with or participate in the Social Security Assistance
Program.

Recovery of Overpayment
The Insurance Company has the right to recover any benefits it has overpaid. The Insurance Company
may use any or all of the following to recover an overpayment:
1. request a lump sum payment of the overpaid amount;
2. reduce any amounts payable under this Policy; and/or
3. take any appropriate collection activity available to it.

The Minimum Benefit amount will not apply when Disability Benefits are reduced in order to recover any
overpayment.

If an overpayment is due when the Employee dies, any benefits payable under the Policy will be reduced
to recover the overpayment.

Successive Periods ofDisability
A separate period of Disability will be considered continuous:
I. if it results from the same or related causes as a prior Disability for which benefits were payable;

and
2. if, after receiving Disability Benefits, the Employee returns to work in his or her Regular

Occupation for less than 6 consecutive months; and
3. if the Employee earns less than the percentage of Indexed Earnings that would still qualify him or

her to meet the definition of Disability/Disabled during at least one month.

Any later period of Disability, regardless of cause, that begins when the Employee is eligible for coverage
under another group disability plan provided by any employer will not be considered a continuous period
of Disability.

For any separate period of disability which is not considered continuous, the Employee must satisfy a new
Elimination Period.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIMiTATIONS

Limited Benefit Periods for Mental or Nervous Disorders
The Insurance Company will pay Disability Benefits on a limited basis during an Employee’s lifetime for
a Disability caused by, or contributed to by, any one or more of the following conditions. Once 24
monthly Disability Benefits have been paid, no further benefits will be payable for any of the following
conditions.

a) Anxiety disorders
b). Delusional (paranoid) disorders
c) Depressive disorders
d) Eating disorders
e) Mental illness
f) Somatoform disorders (psychosomatic illness)

1f before reaching his or her lifetime maximum benefit, an Employee is confined in a hospital for more
than 14 consecutive days, that period of confinement will not count against his or her lifetime limit. The
confinement must be for the Appropriate Care of any of the conditions listed above.

Limited Benefit Periods for Alcoholism and Drug Addiction or Abuse
The Insurance Company will pay Disability Benefits on a limited basis during an Employee’s lifetime for
a Disability caused by, or contributed to by, anyone or more of the following conditions. Once 24
monthly Disability Benefits have been paid, no further benefits will be payable for any of the following
conditions.

1) Alcoholism
2) Drug addiction or abuse

If, before reaching his or her lifetime maximum benefit, an Employee is confmed in a hospital for more
than 14 consecutive days, that period ofconfinement will not count against his or her lifetime limit. The
confinement must be for the Appropriate Care of any of the conditions listed above.

Pre-Existing Condition Limitation
The Insurance Company will not pay benefits for any period of Disability caused or contributed to by, or
resulting from, a Pre-existing Condition. A “Pre-existing Condition” means any Injury or Sickness for
which the Employee incurred medical expenses, received medical treatment, care or services including
diagnostic measures, or took prescribed drugs or medicines within 6 months before his or her most recent
effective date of insurance.

This limitation will not apply to a period ofDisability that begins after an Employee has been in Active
Service for a continuous period of 12 months during which the Employee has received no medical
treatment, care or services in connection with the pre-existing conditions or is covered for at least 24
months after his or her most recent effective date of insurance, or the effective date of any added or
increased benefits.

TL-007500.44

Ii

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ADDiTIONAL BENEFITS

Rehabilitation During a Period ofDisability
If the Insurance Company determines that a Disabled Employee is a suitable candidate for rehabilitation,
the Insurance Company may require the Employee to participate in a Rehabilitation Plan and assessment
at its expense. The Insurance Company has the sole discretion to approve the Employee’s participation in
a Rehabilitation Plan and to approve a program as a Rehabilitation Plan. The Insurance Company will
work with the Employee, the Employer and the Employee’s Physician and others, as appropriate, to
perfonn the assessment, develop a Rehabilitation Plan, and discuss return to work opportunities.

The Rehabilitation Plan may, at the Insurance Company’s discretion, allow for payment of the Employee’s
medical expense, education expense, moving expense, accommodation expense or family care expense
while he or she participates in the Rehabilitation Plan.

If an Employee fails to fully cooperate in all required phases of the Rehabilitation Plan and assessment
without Good Cause, no Disability Benefits will be paid, and insurance will end.

Th-007501.OO

Catastrophic Disability Benefit

Definitions
The definitions that follow apply to this benefit provision. They are in addition to those definitions in the
General Definitions section.

“Activities of Daily Living” are:
1. Bathing (i.e., washing oneself in a shower or tub, including getting into or out of the tub or

shower, or washing oneself by sponge bath.)
2. Dressing oneself by putting on and taking off from one’s own body all items of clothing and

needed braces, fasteners and artificial limbs.
3. Continence (i.e., the ability to maintain control of one’s own bowel and bladder function; or when

unable to maintain bowel or bladder function, the ability to perform associated hygiene, including
caring for a catheter or colostomy bag).

4. Toileting oneselfby getting to and from the toilet, getting on and off the toilet, and performing
personal hygiene associated with toileting.

5. Feeding oneselfby getting nourishment into the one’s own body either from eating food that is
made available to you in receptacle such as a plate, cup or table, or by feeding oneself by a
feeding tube or intravenously.

6. Transferring (i.e., the ability to get oneself into or out of a bed, a chair or wheelchair; or the
ability to move from place to place either by wailcing, use of a wheelchair, or some other means).

“Catastrophic Disability” means the Employee is:
1. Unable to perform, without Substantial Assistance, at least two Activities ofDaily Living, or
2. Has a severe Cognitive Impairment that requires Substantial Supervision to protect the Employee

or others from threats to health and safety.

“Cognitive Impairment” means the loss or deterioration in intellectual capacity that meets these
requirements:
1. The loss or deterioration in intellectual capacity is comparable to and includes Alzheimer’s

disease and similar forms of irreversible dementia;
2. The loss or deterioration in intellectual capacity is measured by clinical evidence and

standardized tests that reliably measure impairment in the individual’s short-term and long-term
memory, orientation as to person, place, or time and deductive or abstract reasoning.

12

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



“Substantial Assistance” means the physical assistance of another person without which the Employee
would not be able to perform an activity of daily living; or the constant presence of another person within
arm’s reach that is necessary to prevent, by physical intervention, injury to the Employee while the
Employee is performing an activity of daily living.

“Substantial Supervision” means continual oversight that may include cueing by verbal prompting,
gestures, or other demonstrations by another person, and which is needed to protect the Employee from
threats to health and safety.

Benefits Payable
Catastrophic Disability Benefits are payable when the Insurance Company determines that the Employee
has a Catastrophic Disability that is due to the same sickness or injury for which Disability Benefits are
payable under this Policy.

The benefits are payable only while these conditions are met:
1. The Employee is receiving monthly Disability Benefits under the Policy.
2. The Employee’s Catastrophic Disability lasted for at least the EliminRtion Period duration shown

in the Schedule of Benefits.
3. The Employee submits, at his/her own expense, satisfactory proofof Catastrophic Disability to

the Insurance Company, when required by the Insurance Company.

Amount Payable
Benefits are payable monthly at the Catastrophic Disability Rate shown is the Schedule ofBenefits. This
benefit will not be reduced by any other source of income.

For periods of less than one month, the Insurance Company will pay 1130th of the monthly benefit for
Catastrophic Disability for each day.

Termination ofBenefiIs
Catastrophic Disability Benefits end on the earliest to occur of:
1. the date the Employee’s Catastrophic Disability ends;
2. the date the Employee is no longer receiving monthly disability benefits under the Policy;
3. the date the Employee fails to submit proof of continuing Catastrophic Disability; or
4. the date the Employee dies.
5. the end of the Maximum Benefit Peiiod shown in the Schedule of Benefits.

No survivor benefits are payable for the Catastrophic Disability Benefit.

n -0088%-)

Survivor Benefit
The Insurance Company will pay a Survivor Benefit if an Employee dies while Monthly Benefits are
payable. The Employee must have been continuously Disabled before the first benefit is payable. These
benefits will be payable for the Maximum Benefit Period for Survivor Benefits.

Benefits will be paid to the Employee’s Spouse. If there is no Spouse, benefits will be paid in equal
shares to the Employee surviving Children. If there are no Spouse and no Children, benefits will be paid
to the Employee’s estate.

“Spouse” means an Employee’s lawful spouse. “ChildreW’ means an Employee’s unmarried children
under age 21 who are chiefly dependent upon the Employee for support and maintenance. The term
includes a stepchild living with the Employee at the time of his or her death.

TT..-00S 107

13

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TERMINATION OF DISABILiTY BENEFITS

Benefits will end on the earliest of the following dates:
1. the date the Empioyee earns from any occupation, more than the percentage of Indexed Earnings

set forth in the definition ofDisability applicable to him or her at that time;
2. the date the Insurance Company determines he or she is not Disabled;
3. the end of the Maximum Benefit Period
4. the date the Employee dies;
5. the date the Employee refuses, without Good Cause, to fully cooperate in all required phases of

the Rehabilitation Plan and assessment;
6. the date the Employee is no longer receiving Appropriate Care;
7. the date the Employee fails to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the administration of the

claim. Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any information or documents
needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount due.

Benefits may be resumed if the Employee begins to cooperate fully in the Rehabilitation Plan within 30
days of the date benefits terminated.

TL-OO7SW.OO

EXCLUSIONS

The Insurance Company will not pay any Disability Benefits for a Disability that results, directly or
indirectly, from:
1. suicide, attempted suicide, or self-inflicted injury while sane or insane;
2. war or any act of war, whether or not declared
3. active participation in a riot;
4. commission ofa felony or;
5. the revocation, restriction or non-renewal of an Employee’s license, permit or certification

necessary to perform the duties of his or her occupation unless due solely to Injury or Sickness
otherwise covered by the Policy.

In addition, the Insurance Company will not pay Disability Benefits for any period of Disability during
which the Employee is incarcerated in a penal or corrections institution.

TL-007303.OQ

CLAIM PROVISIONS

Notice of Claim
Written notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
must be given to the Insurance Company within 31 days after a covered loss occurs or begins or as soon
as reasonably possible. Ifwritten notice, or notice by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized
by the Insurance Company, is not given in that time, the claim will not be invalidated or reduced if it is
shown that notice was given as soon as was reasonably possible. Notice can be given at our home office
in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania or to our agent. Notice should include the Employer’s Name, the Policy
Number and the claimant’s name and address.

Claim Forms
When the Insurance Company receives notice of claim, the Jnsurance Company will send claim forms for
filing proof of loss. If claim forms are not sent within 15 days after notice is received by the Insurance
Company, the proof requirements will be met by submitting, within the time required under the “Proof of
Loss” section, written proof, or proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the
Insurance Company, of the nature and extent of the loss.

14

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Claimant Cooperation Provision
Failure of a claimant to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the administration of the claim may
result in termination of the claim. Such cooperation includes, but is not limited to, providing any
information or documents needed to determine whether benefits are payable or the actual benefit amount
due.

Insurance Data
The Employer is required to cooperate with the Insurance Company in the review of claims and
applications for coverage. Any information the Insurance Company provides in these areas is
confidential and may not be used or released by the Employer ifnot permitted by applicable privacy laws.

ProofofLoss
Written proof of loss, or proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company, must be given to the Insurance Company within 90 days after the date of the loss for which a
claim is made. Ifwritten proof of loss, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by
the Insurance Company, is not given in that 90 day period, the claim will not be invalidated nor reduced if
it is shown that it was given as soon as was reasonably possible. In any case, written proofof loss, or
proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, must be given not
more than one year after that 90 day period. Ifwritten proof of loss, or proofby any other
electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company, is provided outside of these time
limits, the claim will be denied. These time limits will not apply while the person making the claim lacks
legal capacity.

Written proof, or proof by any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance Company,
that the loss continues must be furnished to the Insurance Company at intervals required by us. Within 30
days of a request, written proof of continued Disability and Appropriate Care by a Physician must be
given to the Insurance Company.

Time of Payment
Disability Benefits will be paid at regular intervals of not less frequently than once a month. Any
balance, unpaid at the end of any period for which the Insurance Company is liable, will be paid at that
time.

To Whom Payable
Disability Benefits will be paid to the Employee. If any person to whom benefits are payable is a minor
or, in the opinion of the Insurance Company, is not able to give a valid receipt, such payment will be
made to his or her legal guardian. However, ifno request for payment has been made by the legal
guardian, the Insurance Company may, at its option, make payment to the person or institution appearing
to have assumed custody and support.

If an Employee dies while any Disability Benefits remain unpaid, the Insurance Company may, at its
option, make direct payment to any of the following living relatives of the Employee: spouse, mother,
lather, children, brothers or sisters; or to the executors or administrators of the Employee’s estate. The
Insurance Company may reduce the amount payable by any indebtedness due.

Payment in the manner described above will release the Insurance Company from all liability for any
payment made.

Physical Examination and Autopsy
The Insurance Company, at its expense, will have the right to examine any person for whom a claim is
pending as often as it may reasonably require. The Insurance Company may, at its expense, require an
autopsy unless prohibited by law.

15

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Legal Actions
No action at law or in equity may be brought to recover benefits under the Policy less than 60 days after
written proof of loss, or proofby any other electronic/telephonic means authorized by the Insurance
Company, has been furnished as required by the Policy. No such action shall be brought more than 4
years after the time satisfactory proofof loss is required to be furnished.

Time Limitations
If any time limit stated in the Policy for giving notice of claim or proof of loss, or for bringing any action
at law or in equity is less than that permitted by the law of the state in which the Employee lives when
the Policy is issued, then the time limit provided in the Policy is extended to agree with the minimum
permitted by the law of that state.

PhysicianIPatient Relationship
The Insured will have the right to choose any Physician who is practicing legally. The Insurance
Company will in no way disturb the Physician/patient relationship.

Th-004724i (IX)

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS

Premiums
The premiums for this Policy will be based on the rates currently in force, the plan and the amount of
insurance in effect.

Changes in Premium Rates
The premium rates may be changed by the Insurance Company from time to time with at least 180 days
advance written notice but only on the Policy Anniversary Date. No change in rates will be made until 48
months after the Efièctive Date. An increase in rates will not be made more often than once in a 12 month
period and only on the Policy Anniversary Date. However, the Insurance Company reserves the right to
change the rates even during a period for which the rate is guarantee, ifany of the following events take
place.
1. The Policy terms change.
2. A division, subsidiary, eligible company, or class is added or deleted.
3. There is a change of more than 10% in the number of Insurals.
4. Federal or state laws or regulation affecting benefit obligations change.
5. Other changes occur in the nature of the risk that would affect the Insurance Company’s original

risk assessment.
6. The Insurance Company determines the Employer fails to furnish necessary infonnation.

Ifan increase or decrease in rates takes place on a date that is not a Premium Due Date a pro rats
adjustment will apply from the date of the change to the next Premium Due Date.

Reporting Requirements
The Employer must, upon request, give the Insurance Company any information required to determine who
is insured, the amount of insurance in force and any other information needed to administer the plan of
insurance.

Payment of Premium
The first premium is due within 30 days of the delivery of the Policy. After that, premiums will be due
monthly unless the Employer and the Insurance Company agree on some other method ofpremium
payment.

If any premium is not paid when due, the plan will be canceled as of the Premium Due Date, except as
provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

16

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Notice Of Cancellation
The Empioyer or the Insurance Company may cancel the Policy as ofany Premium Due Date by giving 180
days advance written notice. Ifa premium is not paid when due, the Policy will automatically be canceled
as of the Premium Due Date, except as provided in the Policy Grace Period section.

Policy Grace Period
A Policy Grace Period of3l days will be granted for the payment of the required premiums under this
Policy. This Policy will be in force during the Policy Grace Period. The Employer is liable to the Insurance
Company for any unpaid premium for the time this Policy was in force.

Grace Period for the Insured
If the required premium is not paid on the Premium Due Date, there is a 31 day grace period after each
premium due date after the first. If the required premium is not paid during the grace period, insurance
will end on the last day for which premium was paid.

Reinstatement of Insurance
An Employee’s insurance may be reinstated if it ends because he or she is on an unpaid leave ofabsence. If
an Employee’s Active Service ended due to an approved leave pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave
Act (FMLA) and Continuation of Insurance is not applicable, an Employee’s insurance may be reinstated
at the conclusion of the FMLA leave.

If an Employee’s Active Service ends due to an Employer approved unpaid leave of absence, other than
an approved FMLA leave, insurance may be reinstated only:
1. If the reinstatement occurs within 12 weeks from the date insurance ends, or
2. When returning from military service pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment Act of

1994 (tJSERRA).

For insurance to be reinstated the following conditions must be met:
1. An Employee must be in a Class of Eligible Employees.
2. The required premium must be paid.
3. The Insurance Company must receive a written request for reinstatement within 31 days from the

date an Employee returns to Active Service.

An Employee’s Insurance may be reinstated if it ends because he or she is terminated and later reinstated
in his or her position as a result of a settlement in or judicial determination of an employment law claim
and the reinstatement ofbenefits is a term of the settlement or judicial determination.

Reinstated insurance will be effective on the date the Employee returns to Active Service. If an
Employee did not fully satisI’ the Eligibility Waiting Period or the Pre-Existing Condition Limitation (if
any) before insurance ended due to an unpaid leave of absence or Temporary Layoff, credit will be given
for any time that was satisfied.

TL-009960.aO

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Entfre Contract
The entire contract will be made up of the Policy, the application of the Employer, a copy ofwhich is
attached to the Policy, and the applications, if any, of the Insureds.

Incontestability
All statements made by the Employer or by an Insured are representations not warranties. No statement
will be used to deny or reduce benefits or as a defense to a claim, unless a copy of the instrument
containing the statement is signed by and has been furnished to the claimant. In the event of death or
legal incapacity, the beneficiary or representative must receive the copy.

After two years from an Insureds effective date of insurance, or from the effective date of any added or
increased benefits, the validity of an Insured’s coverage will not be contested using such statements.

Misstatement ofAge
If an Insured’s age has been misstated, the Insurance Company will adjust all benefits to the amounts that
would have been purchased for the correct age.

Policy Changes
No change in the Policy will be valid until approved by an executive officer of the Insurance Company.
This approval must be endorsed on, or attached to, the Policy. No agent of the Insurance Company or
Employer may change the Policy or waive any of its provisions.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance
The Policy is not in lieu of and does not affect any requirements for insurance under any Workers’
Compensation Insurance Law.

Certificates
An individual certificate of insurance will be delivered to the Employer for deiveiy to Insureds. Each
certificate will list the benefits, conditions and limits of the Policy. It will state to whom benefits will be
paid.

Assignment ofBenefits
The Insurance Company will not be affected by the assignment of an Insured’s certificate until the
original assignment or a certified copy of the assignment is filed with the Insurance Company. The
Insurance Company will not be responsible for the validity or sufficiency of an assignment. An
assignment of benefits will operate so long as the assignment remains in force provided insurance under
the Policy is in effect. This insurance may not be levied on, attached, garnisheed, or otherwise taken for a
person’s debts. This prohibition does not apply where contrary to law.

Clerical Error
A person’s insurance will not be affected by error or delay by the Insurance Company or Employer in
keeping records of insurance under the Policy. If such an error is found, the premium will be adjusted
fairly.

Agency
The Employer is the agent of the Employee for transactions relating to insurance under the Policy. The
Insurance Company is not liable for any of their acts or omissions.

TL-004726i C1C)

18

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



DEFINITIONS

Please note, certain words used in this document have specific meanings. These terms will be capitalized
throughout this document. The definition of any word, if not defined in the text where it is used, may be
found in this Definitions section or in the Schedules ofBenefits or on the Policy cover page.

Active Service
An Employee is in Active Service on a day which is one of the Employer’s scheduled work days if either
of the following conditions are met.

1. The Employee is performing his or her regular occupation for the Employer on a full-time basis.
He or she must be working at one of the Employer’s usual places ofbusiness or at some location
to which the employer’s business requires an Employee to travel.

2. The day is a scheduled holiday or vacation day and the Employee was performing his or her
regular occupation on the preceding scheduled work day.

An Employee is in Active Service on a day which is not one of the Employer’s scheduled work days only
if he or she was in Active Service on the preceding scheduled work day.

Annual Enrollment Period
The period in each calendar year when an eligible Employee may enroll for or change benefit elections
under the Policy. This period must be agreed upon by the Employer and the Insurance Company.

Appropriate Care
Appropriate Care means the Employee:
1. Has received treatment, care and advice from a Physician who is qualified and experienced in the

diagnosis and treatment of the conditions causing Disability. If the condition is of a nature or
severity that it is customarily treated by a recognized medical specialty, the Physician is a
practitioner in that specialty.

2. Continues to receive such treatment, care or advice as often as is required for treatment of the
conditions causing Disability.

3. Adheres to the treatment plan prescribed by the Physician, including the taking of medications.

Consumer Price Index (CPI-W)
The Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers published by the U.S.
Department of Labor. If the index is discontinued or changed, another nationally published index that is
comparable to the CPI-W will be used.

Disability Earnings
Any wage or salary for any work performed for any employer during the Employee’s Disability,
including commissions, bonus, overtime pay or other extra compensation.

Employee
For eligibility purposes, an Employee is an employee of the Employer in one of the “Classes of Eligible
Employees.” Otherwise Employee means an employee of the Employer who is insured under the Policy.

Employer
The Policyholder and any affiliates or subsidiaries covered under the Policy. The Employer is acting as
an agent of the Insured for transactions relating to this insurance. The actions of the Employer shall not
be considered the actions of the Insurance Company.

Full-time
Full-time means the number of hours set by the Employer as a regular work day for Employees in the
Employee’s eligibility class.

19

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Furlough
Furlough means a temporary suspension or alteration ofActive Service initiated by the Employer, for a
period of time specified in advance not to exceed 30 days at a time.

Good Cause
A medical reason preventing participation in the Rehabilitation Plan. Satisfactory proof ofGood Cause
must be provided to the Insurance Company.

Indexed Earnings
For the first 12 months Monthly Benefits are payable, Indexed Earnings will be equal to Covered
Earnings. After 12 Monthly Benefits are payable, Indexed Earnings will be an Employee’s Covered
Earnings plus an increase applied on each anniversary of the date Monthly Benefits became payable. The
amount of each increase will be the lesser of:
1. 10% ofthe Employee’s Indexed Earnings during the preceding year of Disability; or
2. the rate of increase in the Consumer Price Index (CPI-W) during the preceding calendar year.

Injury
Any accidental loss or bodily harm which results directly and independently of all other causes from an
Accident.

Insurance Company
The Insurance Company underwriting the Policy is named on the Policy cover page.

Insured
A person who is eligible for insurance under the Policy, for whom insurance is elected, the required
premium is paid and coverage is in force under the Policy.

Life Status Change
A Life Status Change is an event recognized by the Employer’s Flexible Benefits Plan as qualif’ing an
Employee to make changes in benefit selections at a time other than an Annual Enrollment Period.

If there is no Employer sponsored Flexible Benefits Plan, or if it is no longer in effect, the following
events are Life Status Changes.
1. Marriage
2. Divorce, annulment or legal separation
3. Birth or adoption of a child
4. Death of a spouse
5. Termination of a spouse’s employment
6. A change in the benefit plan available to the Employee’s spouse
7. A change in the Employee’s or spouse’s employment status that affects either’s eligibility for

benefits

Physician
Physician means a licensed doctor practicing within the scope of his or her license and rendering care and
treatment to an Insured that is appropriate for the condition and locality. The term does not include an
Employee, an Employee’s spouse, the immediate family (including parents, children, siblings or spouses
of any of the foregoing, whether the relationship derives from blood or marriage), of an Employee or
spouse, or a person living in an Employee’s household.

Prior Plan
The Prior Plan refers to the plan of insurance providing similar benefits sponsored by the Employer in
effect directly prior to the Policy Effective Date. A Prior Plan will include the plan of the Policyholder in
effect on the day prior to the Policyholder’s commencement of this Policy after the Policy Effective Date.

20

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Regular Occupation
The occupation the Employee routinely performs at the time the Disability begins. Jn evaluating the
Disability, the Insurance Company will consider the duties of the occupation as it is normally performed
in the general labor market in the national economy. It is not work tasks that are performed for a specific
empioyer or at a specific location.

Rehabilitation Plan
A written plan designed to enable the Employee to return to work. The Rehabilitation Plan will consist of
one or more of the following phases:
1. rehabilitation, under which the Insurance Company may provide, arrange or authorize

educational, vocational or physical rehabilitation or other appropriate services;
2. work, which may include modified work and work on a part-time basis.

Sickness
Any physical or mental illness.

Temporary Layoff
Temporary Layoff means a temporary suspension of Active Service for a period of time determined in
advance by the Employer, other than a Furlough as defined. Temporary Layoff does not include the
permanent termination of Active Service (including but not limited to a job elimination), which shall be
treated as termination of employment.

lt-0075C0.44 modi8cd by Th-OO9O

21

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT ChANGES FOR STATE REQUIREMENTS

If an Employee resides in one of the following states, the provisions of the certificate are modified for
residents of the following states. The modifications listed apply only to residents of that state.

Louisiana residents:
The percentage of Indexed Earnings, if any, that qualifies an insured to meet the definition of
Disability/Disabled may not be less than 80%.

Minnesota residents:
The Pre-existing Condition Limitation, if any, may not be longer than 24 months from the insured’s
most recent effective date of insurance.

22

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group
Policy Number VDT-960953 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County; the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:

_________________________________________Date:________________________

(This Copy Is To Be Returned To LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA)

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA
PHILADELPHIA, PA 19192-2235

We, Travis County, whose main office address is Austin, TX, hereby approve and accept the terms of Group
Policy Number VDT-960953 issued by the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

This form is to be signed in duplicate. One part is to be retained by Travis County the other part is to be
returned to the LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA.

Travis County

Signature and Title:

______________________________________Date:_______________________

(This Copy Is To Be Retained By Travis County)

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT COVERAGE UNDER THE TEXAS LIFE. ACCIDENT,
HEALTH AND HOSPITAL SERVICE INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

(For insurers declared insolvent or impaired on or after Sqweatber 1,2005)

Texas law establishes a system, administered by the Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Service Insurance
Guaranty Association (the “Associations), to protect Texas policyholders if their life or heahh insurance cerspany
fails. Only the policyholders of insurance companies which arc members of the Association are eligible for this
protection which is subject to the terms, limitations, and conditions of the Association law. (The law is found in
the Texas Insurance Code Chapter 463.)

It Is possible that the Association may not cover your policy In full or In part due to statutory ftndtadons.

ELIGIBILITY FOR PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

When a nieither insurance company is found to be insolvent and placed under an order of liquidation by a court
or designated as impaired by the Texas Coaunissioner of Insurance, the Association provides coverage to
policyholders who are:

• Residents ofTexas at that time (Irrespective of the policyholder’s residency at policy Issue)
• Residents ofother states, ONLY if the following conditions are mat
I) The policyholder has a policy with a company domiciled in Texas
2) The policyholder’s state ofresidence has a similar guaranty association; and
3) The policyholder is not eligible for coverage by the guaranty association of the policyholder’s state of

residence.

LIMITS OP PROTECTION BY THE ASSOCIATION

Accident, Accident and Health, or Health Insurance:
• For each individual covered under one or more policies: up to a total of $500,000 for basic hospital,

medical-surgical, and major medical insurance, $300,000 for disability or long term care insurance, and
$200,000 for other types of health insurance

Life Insurance:
• Net cash surrender value or net cash withdrawal value up to a total of $100,000 under one or more

policies on any one life; or
• Death benefits up to a total of $300,000 under one or more policies on any one life; or
• Total benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 to any owner ofmultiple non-group life policies.

IndIvidual Annuities:
• Present value of benefits up to a total of $100,000 under one or more contmcts on any one life

Group Annuities:
• Present value ofallocated benefits up to a total of$ 100,000 on any one life; or
• Present value of unallocated benefits up to a total of $5,000,000 for one contractholder regardless of the

number of contracts.
Aggregate Linit:

$300,000 on any one life with the exception of the $500,000 health insurance limit, the $5,000,000 multiple
owner life insurance limit, and the $5,000,000 unallocated group annuity limiL

Insurance companies and agents are prohibited by law from using the exIstence of the Association for the
purpose of sales, solicitation, or inducement to purchase any form of insurance. When you are selecting an
insurance company, you should not rely on Association coverage.

Texas Life, Accident, Health and Hospital Texas Department of Insurance
Service Insurance Guaranty Association P.O. Box 149104
6504 Bridge Point Parkway, Suite 450 Austin, Texas 78714-9104
Austin, Texas 78730 800-252-3439 or www.tdi.state.tx.us
800-982-6362 or www.txlifega.org

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attachment A-i Claim Audit Agreement

CLAIM AUDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made between_____________________________
(“Emp1oyer’, and LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA (“Company”).

WHEREAS, Company desires to cooperate with requests by group Employers to permit the
auditing of its claim administration; and

WHEREAS, Employer recognizes Company’s legitimate interests in maintaining the
confidentiality of claim infonnation, protecting the proprietary nature of Company’s systems and
processes, preserving its business reputation, avoiding unnecessary disruption of its claim
athninistration, and protecting itself from legal liability;

IN CONSIDERATION OF the premises and the mutual promises contained herein, Company
and the Employer hereby agree as follows regarding an audit (the “Audit”) of Company’s claim
administration:

1. Audit Specifications. The Employer will specify to Company in writing at least thirty (30)
days prior to the commencement of the Audit the following “Audit Specifications”:

a. the name and title of the individual auditors;

b. the Claim Office locations to be audited;

c. the Audit objectives;

d. the scope of the Audit (time period, lines of coverage and number of claims);

e. the process by which cLaims will be selected for audit;

f. the records/information required by the auditors for purposes of the Audit; and

g. the length of the time contemplated as necessary to complete the Audit.

2. Review of Specifications. Company will have the right to review the Audit Specifications
and to require any changes in, or conditions on, the Audit Specifications which may be
necessary to protect Company’s legal and business interests identified in Paragraph B
above.

3. Access to Information. Company will make the records/information called for in the
Audit Specifications available to the Employer at a mutually acceptable time and place.

4. Audit Report. The Employer will provide Company with a copy of its Audit Report.

5. Comment on Audit Report. Company reserves the right to provide the Employer with its
comments on the Audit Report.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



6. Confidentiality. The Employer understands that Company is permitting the Employer to
review claim records/information solely for purposes of the Audit. Accordingly, the
Employer will ensure that all information pertaining to individual insureds will be kept
confidential in accordance with all applicable laws and/or regulations. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Employer specifically agrees to adhere to the following
conditions:

a. The Employer shall not make photocopies or remove any ofthe claim
records/information without the express written consent of Company;

b. The Employer shall not disclose any ofthe claim records/information to any third
party, or to any employee of the Employer not involved in the conduct of the Audit,
without the express written consent of Company.

c. The Employer agrees that its Audit Report or other summary prepared in connection
with the Audit shall contain no individually identifiable information.

7. Indemnification. The Employer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Company, its
officers, employees and agents harmless from any loss or damage resulting from the
violation of Paragraph 6 hereof by Employer, its officers, employees or agents.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to be legally bound, the parties have signed this
Agreement.

(“Employer”)

Date__________________________

__________________________________

By:
Title:

LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF
NORTH AMERICA (“Company”)

Date________________

____

By:
Title:

—2—

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ATTACHMENT E-1
STATE OF TEXAS)
COUNTY OF TRAVIS)

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date:______________________________________________________

Name ofAffiant:______________________________________

Title ofAffiant:_________________________________________

Business Name of Proponent:

County of Proponent:

Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

I. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of Key Contracting Persons associated with this solicitation which is

attached to this affidavit as Exhibit “A”.

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit “A” to this Affidavit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any Key Contracting Person on Exhibit “A” with whom Proponent is doing

business or has done business during the 365-day period immediately before the date of this affidavit

whose name is not disclosed in the solicitation.

Signature of Affiant

Address

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by on .20.

Notary Public, State of

Typed or printed name ofnotary
My commission expires:

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Proposer acknowledges that Proposer is doing business or has done business during the 365-day period
immediately prior to the date on which this proposal is due with the following key contracting persons
and warrants that these are the only such key contracting persons:

Ifno one is listed above, Proposer warrants that Proposer is not doing business and has not done
business during the 365-day period immediately prior to the date on which this proposal is due with any
key contracting person.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



EXHIBIT A -

LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS
June 6. 2012

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding OfficefPosition Individual is Associated
County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant Cheryl Aker
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct I (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Wilhite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Kurt Sauer Daffer McDaniel, LLP
Executive Assistant Loretta Farb
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Leonard Huber Retired
Executive Assistant Garry Brown
Executive Assistant Julie Wheeler*
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Susan Spataro, CPA
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services.Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.*
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety. .Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Chief Information Officer Joe Harlow
Director, Records Mgnt & Comms Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escamilla
First Assistant County Attorney Steve Capelle
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Collins
Director, Land Use Division Tom Nuckols
Attorney, Land Use Division Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Vacant
Attorney, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Attorney, Transactions Division Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aidredge
Director, Health Services Division Vacant
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittlnafter*
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lan Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scott Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant W George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P.
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant ifi Shannon Pleasant, CTPM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Waich
Purchasing Agent Assistant Ill Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant ifi Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant Ill C.W. Bruner, CT?
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Jayne Rybak, CTP*
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis
HRMD Director Diane Blankenship
Benefits Administrator Cindy Purinton
Benefits Manager John Rabb
Budget Director Leroy Nellis
Budget Analyst Senior Travis Gatlin
HRMD Dan Mansour

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant lv Oralia Jones, CPPB 07/31/12
County Executive, Planning & Budget Rodney Rhoades 08/19/12
Purchasing Agent Assistant lv Diana Gonzalez 12/16/12
Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery 03/09/13
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M 03/14/13
Attorney, Transactions Division Tamara Armstrong 03/30/13
Executive Assistant Lori Duarte 06/15/13

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 

HRMD 

Human Resources Management 
Department 

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) 854-6677 • • • 

 
August 24, 2012 
 
TO:  C.W. Bruner, Purchasing Agent  
 
 
FROM: Cindy Purinton, Benefit Administrator  
  John Rabb, Benefit Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Contract # 06T000610  (SAP 4400001100) 

Cigna Supplemental Life/AD&D 
(Includes retiree life, dependent and spouse life) 
Long and Short Term Disability 
Cigna Voluntary Benefit Coverage (Stand Alone Ad&D) 

 
 
Vendor services related to the above contract have been performed to the 
County’s satisfaction. Please issue first novation under current contract, that  
will now include all of the coverages shown above. 
This Employee funded contract is funded from liability account: 8001-220110 
 
If you have any questions, please contact John Rabb at 854-2742 or Cindy 
Purinton at 854-9626. 
 
Fund account number 
Supplemental Life AD&D             8001-220110 coverage Paid by Employees 
Short and Long Term Disability       8001-220110coverage Paid by Employees 
Cigna Voluntary Benefit Coverage  (stand alone AD&D) 8001-220110 Paid by Employees 

  
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner (854-9760) 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Approve the following twelve-month extensions to Contract No. 
4400000006 (H.T.E. Contract No. 02T00005OJ), United Healthcare 
Services, Inc.: 
 
(A) Modification No. 16 for Administrative Services Agreement 
 
(B) Modification No. 12 for COBRA Administrative Services 

Agreement 
 
(C) Modification No. 12 for Customer Reporting System Internet 

Access Agreement 

for Travis County employees, retirees, and their dependents. 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets compliance requirements as outlined by the 
statutes. 

This contract provides the group health benefit plans to Travis County 
employees, retirees and their dependents.  The Commissioners Court 
approved the contract for Group Health Benefits on September 25, 
2001. 

The modifications will extend the contract for the self-funded health care 
services and coverage with UnitedHealthcare Services, Inc., for an 
additional twelve (12) months, through September 30, 2012.  The 
contract extension is permitted pursuant to Section 9 of the contract, 
entitled “Term of the Agreement.”  The Commissioners Court approved 
the rates and services being provided by United Healthcare on 
September 13, 2011. 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 33



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last twelve (12) months 
$2,764,546.60 has been spent against this contract. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: Not Applicable 
Modification Type: Bilateral 
Modification Period: October 1, 2011 – September 30, 2013 

 
 Funding Information: 
   Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: 

  Comments: Shopping carts are to be processed monthly based on 
current eligible members and the contract rates. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 02T00005OJ, Administrative Services       PAGE 1  OF 8  PAGES 

                                                                     (SAP # 4400001092) 
 
ISSUED BY: 

 

PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA STREET, 8
TH

 FLOOR 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 

 

CW Bruner 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 

FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

 

September 14, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO: 
United HealthCare Services, Inc. 

Attn:  Frank Sievel 
185 Asylum Street 

Hartford, Connecticut 06103-3408 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

 

16 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

 

September 18, 2001 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  _October 1, 2001-October 1-2002 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2012-September 30, 

2013 
 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:   O riginal Contract Amount: $____N/A__________  Current Modified Amount $___N/A_____________ 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as 

heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 This amendment number sixteen to the Administrative Services Agreement is made by the following parties:  

United HealthCare Services, Inc., formerly known as United HealthCare Insurance Company, a Texas corporation 

(“Our”, “Us”, and “We” in this Amendment) and Travis County, Texas (“You” or “Your” in this Amendment”). 

 RECITALS 

 You and We entered into a contract for administrative services for group employee benefits, such as self funded 

health coverage for county employees, retirees, and their dependents that began October 1, 2001.  

 Section 14.5 Amendment of the Administrative Services Agreement allows Us and You to amend the 

Agreement in writing signed by both of Us.  

 Section 8.2 Changes in Service Fees provides those circumstances under which changes in rates are allowed.  

 We have provided UHC staff member at Your offices to assist with claims resolution on a full time basis.  In 

relation to Your Fiscal Year ending in 2013 and only in relation to that fiscal year, We and You have decided that this 

customer services support will be provided by Our Claims Team that actually processes Your claims through a toll-free 

number instead of a representative at Your offices.  

AGREEMENT TO AMEND CONTRACT 

You and We agree to amend the Administrative Services Agreement as follows: 

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION 

 

1.1 Pursuant to Section 1 Definitions, in the definition of “Agreement Period” and Section 9.1 Services 

Begin of the Administrative Services Agreement, as amended herein, You exercise Your option to extend this agreement 

for an additional one year option period from October 1, 2012 through September 30, 2013.  
Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME: United HealthCare Services, Inc. 
 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT  

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE 

 
DATE: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                          PAGE 2of 8  

PAGES 

 

2.0 MODIFICATION TO FEES  

 

2.1 Pursuant to Section 14.5 Amendment of the Administrative Services Agreement, sections 3.1 and 3.2 

of Modification 15 are deleted and the following are inserted in their place: 

 

3.1 FEES FOR FY 2013 

 

3.1 Pursuant to Section 8.2 Changes in Service Fees and Section 9.1 Services Begin of the 

Administrative Services Agreement as amended herein, the fees applicable for the option period from 

October 1, 2012 through October 31, 2013 are as follows: 

 

Administrative Fees for County Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2013 with the following 

components included: 
 

 Pharmacy Fee with Optum Rx  

 United Behavioral Health (UHB) Fee at National Service Center—PPO  

 Optum Fees for Nurseline and Ps Personal Health Support Ps PHS/HeNotes, including 

Diabetes, Coronary Artery Disease and Congestive Heart Failure 

 PHS Nurse team with a Clinical Lead to work directly with Your benefit staff to resolve 

member care management and health issues including predictive modeling results specific 

to you and enhance member specific wellness mailings and messaging  

 Treatment Decision Support for members facing surgical treatment decisions for 

Musculoskeletal (back pain, knee and hip replacement); Women’s Health (benign uterine 

conditions and hysterectomy) Men’s Health (benign prostate disease), Heart Disease 

(coronary disease, CABG, angioplasty) Obesity (bariatric surgery—not covered by Your 

plan)  

 Spectera Fee 

 Medicare Part D Reporting 

 On Site Customer Service Representative 

 Data Extracts and Expanded Employer Customer Reporting (eCR) 

 Systems Interface and Reporting services for stop-loss 

  

The sum of the following prior to rebates: 

 

 $39.91 per month per Employee covered under the “United HealthCare Choice Plus” portion of the 

Plan. 

 $39.91 per month per Employee covered under the “United HealthCare Choice” portion of the Plan. 

 $39.91 per month per Employee covered under the “United HealthCare Coinsured Exclusive Provider 

Network” portion of the Plan. 
 

Pharmacy Average Wholesale Price (AWP) Contract Rates 

 

There is more than one applicable rate for pharmacy services because of the variety of services 

involved.  Your contract rates for prescription drugs are stated in Attachment A to this 

Modification. We use Medispan’s national drug data file as the source for average wholesale price 

(AWP) information.  We reserve the right to revise the pricing and adopt a new source or 

benchmark if there are material industry changes in pricing methodologies and will give you notice 

of any revisions or new sources or benchmarks at least 30 days before they are implemented. 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                         PAGE 3 of 8  

PAGES 

Service Fee for Facility Reasonable Charge Determination and Negotiation 
 

You will pay a fee for our services, as described in Section 12, equal to thirty (30%) of the amount 

of the reductions obtained through our efforts. 
 

We will bill you for the amounts that you owe us.  The bill will reflect reductions obtained during 

the preceding month and adjustments, if any, from previous months. 
 

Service Fees for Shared Savings Program 
 

You will pay a fee equal to thirty-five (35%) of the “Savings Obtained” as a result of the Shared 

Savings Program as described in Section 12. “Savings Obtained” means the amount that would 

have been payable to a health care provider, including amounts payable by both the Participant and 

the Plan, if no discount were available, minus the amount that is payable to the health care provider, 

again, including amounts payable by both the Participant and the Plan, after the discount is taken. 
 

Service Fees for Medicare Cross-over Program 
 

$1.46 per month per Employee covered as a Medicare Eligible Participant  
 

Service Fees for Benefit Plan for Prescriptions ONLY for Retirees Only 
 

$2.10 per month per Employee covered by the Benefit Plan for Prescriptions ONLY for Retirees 
 

3.2 If You exercise Your option to extend this Administrative Services Agreement for an 

additional one year option period from October 1, 2013 through September 30, 2014, We will provide a 

UHC staff member at Your offices to assist with claims resolution on a full time basis as provided prior 

to October 1, 2012, and the fees applicable to the Administrative Fee, including that service, for that option 

period are as follows: 
 

Administrative Fees for County Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2013 with the following 

components included: 
 

 Pharmacy Fee with Optum Rx  

 United Behavioral Health (UHB) Fee at National Service Center—PPO  

 Optum Fees for Nurseline and Ps Personal Health Support Ps PHS/HeNotes, including 

Diabetes, Coronary Artery Disease and Congestive Heart Failure 

 PHS Nurse team with a Clinical Lead to work directly with Your benefit staff to resolve 

member care management and health issues including predictive modeling results specific 

to you and enhance member specific wellness mailings and messaging  

 Treatment Decision Support for members facing surgical treatment decisions for 

Musculoskeletal (back pain, knee and hip replacement); Women’s Health (benign uterine 

conditions and hysterectomy) Men’s Health (benign prostate disease), Heart Disease 

(coronary disease, CABG, angioplasty) Obesity (bariatric surgery—not covered by Your 

plan)  

 Spectera Fee 

 Medicare Part D Reporting 

 On Site Customer Service Representative 

 Data Extracts and Expanded Employer Customer Reporting (eCR) 

 Systems Interface and Reporting services for stop-loss 

 

 The sum of the following prior to rebates: 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                         PAGE 4 of 8  

PAGES 

 $42.16 per month per Employee covered under the “United HealthCare Choice Plus” portion of the 

Plan. 

 $42.16 per month per Employee covered under the “United HealthCare Choice” portion of the Plan. 

 $42.16 per month per Employee covered under the “United HealthCare Coinsured Exclusive Provider 

Network” portion of the Plan. 
 

Pharmacy Average Wholesale Price (AWP) Contract Rates 

 

There is more than one applicable rate for pharmacy services because of the variety of services 

involved.  Your contract rates for prescription drugs are stated in Attachment A to this 

Modification.  We use Medispan’s national drug data file as the source for average wholesale 

price (AWP) information.  We reserve the right to revise the pricing and adopt a new source or 

benchmark if there are material industry changes in pricing methodologies and will give you 

notice of any revisions or new sources or benchmarks at least 30 days before they are 

implemented. 
 

Service Fee for Facility Reasonable Charge Determination and Negotiation 
 

You will pay a fee for our services, as described in Section 12, equal to thirty (30%) of the amount 

of the reductions obtained through our efforts. 
 

We will bill you for the amounts that you owe us.  The bill will reflect reductions obtained during 

the preceding month and adjustments, if any, from previous months. 
 

Service Fees for Shared Savings Program 
 

You will pay a fee equal to thirty-five (35%) of the “Savings Obtained” as a result of the Shared 

Savings Program as described in Section 12. “Savings Obtained” means the amount that would 

have been payable to a health care provider, including amounts payable by both the Participant and 

the Plan, if no discount were available, minus the amount that is payable to the health care provider, 

again, including amounts payable by both the Participant and the Plan, after the discount is taken. 
 

Service Fees for Medicare Cross-over Program 
 

$1.46 per month per Employee covered as a Medicare Eligible Participant  
 

Service Fees for Benefit Plan for Prescriptions ONLY for Retirees Only 
 

$2.10 per month per Employee covered by the Benefit Plan for Prescriptions ONLY for Retirees 

 

3.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT  
 

3.1 You and we hereby incorporate this amendment into the Administrative Services Agreement as 

amended by Modifications One, Two, Three, Four, Five, Six, Seven, Eleven, Fourteen and Fifteen. You and we 

hereby ratify all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement as amended. 
 

4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

4.1 The changes stated in this amendment are effective October 1, 2012. 

 

 

 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                         PAGE 5 of 8  

PAGES 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A– PHARMACY PRICING AND GUARANTEES 

 

The fees in this Attachment are for Pharmacy Services, and are in addition to fees specifically listed elsewhere 

in the Agreement.  Except for the Pharmacy Average Wholesale Price (AWP) Contract Rates, all other fees 

in section 2 of Modification 16 (“Service Fees”) payable by You under this Agreement will be adjusted through 

a credit to your Service Fees in accordance with the guarantees below unless otherwise defined in the guarantee 

if we fail to pay You and will provide appropriate documentation about the calculation of the credit.  These 

guarantees apply to pharmacy benefits and are effective for the period beginning October 1, 2012 and ending on 

October 1, 2013 (each twelve month period is a “Guarantee Period”).  With respect to the aspects of our 

performance addressed in this Attachment, these fee adjustments are your exclusive financial remedies.  

 

The guarantees will become effective upon the later of (1) the effective date of the Guarantee Period; or (2) the 

date this Agreement is signed by both parties. 

 

We reserve the right from time to time to replace any report or change the format of any report referenced in 

these guarantees.  In that event, the guarantees will be modified to the degree necessary to carry out the intent of 

the parties.  We shall not be required to meet any of the guarantees provided for in this Agreement or 

amendments to it to the extent Our failure is due to Your actions or inactions or if We fail to meet these 

standards due to fire, embargo, strike, war, accident, act of God, acts of terrorism or Our required compliance 

with any law, regulation, or governmental agency mandate or anything beyond Our reasonable control. 

 

Prior to the end of the Guarantee Period, and provided that this Agreement remains in force, We may specify to 

You in writing new guarantees for the subsequent Guarantee Period.  If We specify new guarantees, We will 

also provide you with a new Attachment that will replace this Attachment for that subsequent Guarantee Period.  

 

“Claim” is defined as an initial and complete written request for payment of a Plan benefit made by an enrollee, 

physician, or other healthcare provider on an accepted format. 
 

Retail Network 

Discounts and Dispensing Fees 

 Access to 62,000 pharmacies nationwide 

 Rates exclude compound and DMR claims 

 Aggregate average discount off AWP for MAC and non-

MAC generics: 69% 

Brand: 

AWP –13.7% Post Rollback 

AWP –17.0% Equivalent Pre-Rollback 

$1.50 Dispensing Fee 

Generic: 
MAC 

$1.50  Dispensing Fee 

Mail Service 

Discounts and Dispensing Fees 

 Postage included 

 Based on an average days supply of 84 or greater for all 

claims with the exception of all specialty and certain non-

specialty injectable drugs 

 Rates may vary for claims not covered under pharmacy 

benefit 

 Aggregate average discount off AWP for MAC & non-MAC 

generics: 71%  

Brand: 

AWP –22% Post Rollback 

AWP –25% Equivalent Pre-Rollback 

$0.00 Dispensing Fee 

Generic: 
MAC 

$0.00  Dispensing Fee 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                         PAGE 6 of 8  

PAGES 

Rebate Management 

 Adoption of Our PDL, PDL management, and utilization 

management in conjunction with You 

 Collection and distribution of funds received 

 Rebate ineligible paid claims such as those from 340B 

pharmacies or entities eligible for federal supply schedule 

prices (e.g., Dept. of Veterans Affairs, US Public Health 

Service, Dept. of Defense) are excluded from rebate 

guarantees 

 Your Plan is accountable for at least half of the aggregate 

drug costs annually 

 

 

Retail: 

 

 

 

Mail: 

 

 

 

100% Pass Through 

 

 

 

100% Pass Through 

Standard Services 

 Dedicated Implementation and Client Management Team  

 Help Desks – Toll-free access for members, physicians, and pharmacies 

 DUR and System Edits – Standard Concurrent DUR and flexible plan 

designs 

 Real-Time Audit – Filters 100% of claims before payment–outliers sent 

to audit team 

 Safety Notifications for Providers and/or Members (e.g., drug recalls) 

$0.81 per Paid Claim 

Clinical Programs 

Clinical Prior Authorization 

 Overrides requiring clinical intervention or evaluation 
Included 

Physician Reviewed Prior Authorization Included 

Clinical Initiatives 

 Standard Targeted Disease Intervention Programs 

 Provider and Member Education Programs 

4 programs included, $0.08 PMPM per 

additional program selected 

Core Clinical Programs 

 Programs Include: DIAP, Geriatric Monitor, Narcotic, and PolyPharmacy 

Included 

Health, Wellness, and Disease Education provided through website 
Included 

Customized Clinical Programs 

Quoted Separately Upon Request.  

Client claims data required for 

custom analysis and presentation 

Appeals Services for Prior Authorization 
Included 

Translation for Prior Authorization Appeals $220 per Letter 

Additional Services 

Custom Programming/Report Generation  Minimum $500 
$150 per hour 

E-Prescribing $0.18 per Eligibility Check 

Non-Standard or Manual Eligibility Maintenance $1.50 per Member 

Direct Member Reimbursement (DMR) 

Entered by Us, includes creation and mailing of letters for denied claims, in 

accordance with state or federal requirements. 

$4.50 per Claim plus postage 

Appeals Services for DMR 
Included 

Translation for DMR Appeals 

 

Included 

 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                         PAGE 7 of 8  

PAGES 

Pricing Terms 

 Fees are adjusted annually based on CPI-U % change over the prior year.  CPI-U is published by the US Department of 

Labor. 

 Generic rates exclude generic drugs during the exclusivity period as granted by the FDA, which is typically 180 days, or as 

authorized by the original patent holder. 

 Generic discounts exclude high cost generic drugs with a monthly cost of at least $600. 

 Rebate guarantees and generic AWP discounts may be adjusted proportional to the impact of unexpected releases of 

generic products to market, or the withdrawal/recall of existing branded products. 

 Mail service rates exclude specialty and certain non-specialty injectable products. 

  “AWP” means and refers to the average wholesale price of medication, drugs or ancillary supplies, as applicable, as 

dispensed and as set forth in the latest edition of the Medi-Span Prescription Pricing Guide (with supplements) or any other 

nationally recognized pricing source mutually agreed upon by the parties (the "Pricing Source"). 

(a) You acknowledge that We are entitled to rely on Medi-Span and the publisher of any mutually agreed upon pricing 

source to determine AWP for purposes of establishing the pricing provided to You under this Agreement.  You further 

acknowledge that We do not establish AWP, and We have no liability to You arising from the use of the Medi-Span 

Pricing Guide or information received from any other pricing source that is mutually agreed upon in a written 

modification to this Agreement. 

(b) You further acknowledge that to account for the rollback of AWP implemented by Medi-Span on or after 

September 26, 2009 ("AWP Rollback"), We use the following AWP adjustment processes for all pricing based on 

AWP (including, without limitation, guarantees) that is provided to You under this Agreement: 

(1) We shall adjust the Medi-Span AWP Pricing Information for each of the Affected National Drug Codes 

(NDCs) to reflect the markup factors utilized by Medi-Span immediately prior to the AWP Rollback.  

“Affected NDCs” means all NDCs with adjusted markup factors by the pricing source pursuant to the AWP 

Rollback. 

(i) We adjust Affected NDCs with markup changes on or after September 26, 2009, to reflect the 

markup factors utilized by Medi-Span immediately prior to the AWP Rollback, and   

(ii) New NDCs with markup factors used by the pricing source are adjusted by Us to reflect a 

markup factor of 1.25.  New NDCs means those NDCs first issued and listed on the Medi-Span 

AWP Pricing Information after the effective date of the AWP Rollback. 

(2) We shall continue to adjust the AWP Pricing Information, as described in this section, until AWP is no 

longer published by Medi-Span. 

(3) If We decide to utilize a pricing benchmark other than AWP or We are required to do so because the 

Pricing Source discontinues publication of AWP and such change would materially affect Your economic 

benefit under this Agreement (“Material Pricing Change”), then We shall provide You with the modified 

pricing terms at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of that change.  If We and You fail to mutually 

agree upon the modified pricing terms before the effective date of the Material Pricing Change, then Our 

proposed modified pricing terms go into effect until otherwise agreed.  Additionally, if no agreement is 

reached concerning the Material Pricing Change, either party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) 

days prior written notice to the other party. 

 

Specialty Pharmacy Rates 

Specialty Products including 

 Ancillary supplies, needles, syringes, and sharps containers 

 Express overnight shipping 

See pricing schedule 

Unmixed Chemotherapeutic Agents 

 Shipped to physician’s office or infusion clinic 
See pricing schedule 

Chemotherapy Adjunctive Medications See pricing schedule 

Value-added services provided at no additional charge 

 Care management: “High Touch” monitoring of patient response, 

side effects and disease progression 

 Clinical Management Programs to improve quality of care through 

education and communication for patients with Multiple Sclerosis, 

Hepatitis, or Rheumatoid Arthritis. 

 Patient Care Coordinators will proactively call 

members prior to each refill to help manage 

inventory of specialty products to ensure 

continuity of care 

 Member access to clinical pharmacists 24/7 

 Provide access to patient advocate and 

assistance programs 

Home Infusion Network/Access to Exclusive Drugs Rates 

Selection varies by geographic area  (includes infusion services, specialty 

products and nursing) 

Rates vary per contract and may include 

dispensing or per diem fees.  See pricing 

schedule 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: #02T00005OJ Administrative Services                                         PAGE 8 of 8  

PAGES 

Case Review Rates 

Authorization, Denial, Utilization and Case Management $55.00 per case 

Physician Reviewed Prior Authorization $390.00 per case 

Other Rates 

Standard Reports Included 

Online Reporting Tool Included 

Custom system or reporting configurations  $150 per hour, as approved by Client 

Implementation set up fees  Included 

Direct Member Reimbursement (DMR) 

Entered by Us, includes creation and mailing of letters for denied 

claims, in accordance with state or federal requirements. 

$4.50 per Claim plus postage 

Case Review Charges 

A client may choose to have all or some specialty products go through the case review process (recommended) and reviewed by 

a licensed clinical pharmacist.  Authorization, Denial & Limited Case Management, $55 per case.  Services listed below are 

included. 

Utilization Management 

 Specialty Product Authorization accepted by phone or fax 

 Verify eligibility of member 

 Review requests for any specialty product.  If no guideline exists, utilize FDA indications as basis for review, and 

perform additional research for off label use requests if necessary 

 Request additional information, if needed 

  

  

 (Or convert to Non-FDA limited case management review) 

  

  

 State Regulation & NCQA Denial Letters to be completed by Optum Rx (members and providers) 

Off label Use 

 At Direction of Client: Review medical necessity of off label use 

 Medical Director review of submitted documentation (i.e. studies) 

 External expert consultant if needed 

Case Management 

 Direct Case to appropriate delivery mechanism (i.e. home health vs. specialty product) 

 Manage specialty product formulary when developed (i.e. direct to formulary Low Molecular Weight Heparin) 

 Limited Case Management (i.e. proactive monitoring of EPO/ Neupogen lab parameters for re-auths) 

Reporting – Case Log 

 Drug, Date, Physician & Patient 

 Decision 

 Outcome notes (when applicable) 

Clinical Support 

 Guideline Development 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
UHC document identification number:  

TCCA document identification number: 277054v1 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 02T00005OJ,Reporting, UHC (SAP # 4400001092) PAGE 1  OF 1   

PAGE 
 
ISSUED BY: 

 

PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA STREET, 8
TH

 FLOOR 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 

 

CW Bruner 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 

FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

 

September 14, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO: 
United HealthCare Services, Inc. 

9900 Bren Road, East 

Minneapolis, MN 55440 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

 

12 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

 

September 11, 2001 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  October 1, 2001-October 1-2002 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  _ October 1, 2012-September 30, 2013 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:   O riginal Contract Amount: $____N/A__________  Current Modified Amount $___N/A_____________ 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as 

heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 

 This amendment number twelve to Customer Reporting System Internet Access Agreement is made by the following 

parties:  United HealthCare Services Inc., a Texas corporation (“UHS“) and Travis County, (“User”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 User and UHS entered into a contract for Customer Reporting System Internet Access in conjunction with an 

Administrative Services Agreement with United HealthCare Insurance Company for group employee benefits, such as self 

funded health coverage for county employees, retirees, and their dependents that began October 1, 2001.  

 Section 6 Term and Termination of the Customer Reporting System Internet Access Agreement with UHS grants 

User the option to extend this agreement for additional one year periods if the option to extend the Administrative Services 

Agreement with United HealthCare Insurance Company for that period has also been exercised by User, with all terms and 

conditions remaining unchanged except the term of the agreement. 
 

EXERCISE OF OPTION TO EXTEND CONTRACT 

 

Pursuant to Section 6 Term and Termination of the Customer Reporting System Internet Access Agreement, as amended 

herein, User hereby exercises its option to extend this agreement for an additional one-year period from October 1, 2012 

through September 30, 2013. 
 

User and UHS hereby incorporate this amendment into the Customer Reporting System Internet Access Agreement. User and 

UHS hereby ratify all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement as amended in Modifications 1, 3, 4, 5 and 6.  The 

changes stated in this amendment are effective when it is executed by both User and UHS. 
Note to Vendor:  

[  X  ]  Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME: United HealthCare Services, Inc. 
 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT  

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  

 
DATE: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



.. 

MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 02T00005OJ, COBRA                                        PAGE 1  OF 3  

PAGES 

                                                                    (SAP # 4400001092) 
 
ISSUED BY: 

 

PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 LAVACA STREET, 8
TH

 FLOOR 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST: 

 

CW Bruner 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 

FAX NO:    (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

 

September 14, 2012 

 
ISSUED TO: 
United HealthCare Services, Inc. 

185 Asylum Street 

Hartford, Connecticut 06103-3408 

MODIFICATION NO.:  

 

12 

EXECUTED DATE OF ORIGINAL 

CONTRACT:  

 

September 18, 2001 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES:  _October 1, 2001-October 1, 2002__ CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  __ October 1, 2012-September 30, 2013 

 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY:   O riginal Contract Amount: $____N/A__________  Current Modified Amount $___N/A_____________ 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as heretofore 

modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

 This amendment number twelve to COBRA Administrative Services Agreement is made by the following parties:  

United HealthCare Services, Inc., formerly known as United HealthCare Insurance Company, a Texas corporation 

(“UnitedHealthcare”) and Travis County, Texas (“Contractholder”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

 Contractholder and UnitedHealthcare entered into a contract for administrative services for COBRA benefits for self 

funded health coverage for county employees, retirees, and their dependents that began October 1, 2001.  

 Section VIII General Provisions of the COBRA Administrative Services Agreement with UnitedHealthcare allows 

Contractholder and UnitedHealthcare to amend this agreement if the amendment is in writing and signed by both parties.

 Section X Term of Agreement of the COBRA Administrative Services Agreement with UnitedHealthcare grants 

Contractholder the option to extend this agreement for additional one year periods, with all terms and conditions remaining 

unchanged except the Agreement Period and negotiated rate changes.  

 

AGREEMENT  

1.0 EXERCISE OF OPTION 

 

1.1 Pursuant to Section X Term of Agreement of the COBRA Administrative Services Agreement, as 

amended herein, Contractholder exercises its option to extend this agreement for the one year period from 

October 1, 2012 through October 1, 2013. 
Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[    ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
LEGAL BUSINESS NAME: United HealthCare Services, Inc. 
 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT  

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: #02T00005OJ,  COBRA                  PAGE 2  OF 3  PAGES 

 

2.0 RATE CHANGES 

 

2.1 Pursuant to Section VI Fees and Charges; Due Dates, Payments and Penalties 

of the COBRA Administrative Services Agreement and Exhibit A – Services Fees of the 

Administrative Services Agreement as amended in Amendment One, the rates applicable 

for this option period from October 1, 2012 to October 1, 2013 are as follows: 
 

COBRA/Direct Billing Set Up and Maintenance 
 

 This annual fee has been waived.  
 

 

Service Fee for Open Enrollment Services 
 

$11.75 per person for partial Open Enrollment Services which includes a custom letter 

and plan change form 
 

COBRA Services 
 

On-going Continuant per month charge   $11.25 
 

Qualifying Event notification    $30.00 per Qualifying Event  

(includes timely distribution of Qualifying  

Event notices and election form via proof mail  

with instructions and processing of enrollment  

forms returned to set up those individuals for  

premium billing services) 
 

 COBRA Initial Rights Notifications   $4.46 per notice 
 

 Retro COBRA Initial Rights Notifications  $4.46 per notice 
 

 Texas State Continuation Notice   No fee per notice 
 

 Past Due Notices to Continuants   No fee per notice 

 

Direct Billing Administration (Billing and Collection) 
 

Retiree Direct Billing for Retirees covered  

by UnitedHealthcare Options PPO or  

Choice EPO or Coinsured EPO or Rx Only Plan $7.35 per retiree per month 

 

Past Due Notices to Retirees    No fee per notice 

 

Open Enrollment Services 
 

Partial Open Enrollment Service     $11.75 per person 

Includes custom letter and plan change form  

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: #02T00005OJ,  COBRA                  PAGE 3  OF 3  PAGES 

 
 

Outside Carrier 

 

Outside carrier eligibility feeds and premium remittance  $41.21 per carrier per month.  

 

QUALIFIED BENEFICIARY CHARGE 
 

On-Going Service 
 

2% of Premium included in Qualifying Beneficiary billing rate collected from 

Continuants to be credited back to Contractholder. 
 

3.0 INCORPORATION OF CONTRACT  

 

3.1 Contractholder and UnitedHealthcare hereby incorporate this amendment into the 

COBRA Administrative Services Agreement, Modification One, Modification Three, 

Modification Four, Modification Five, Modification Six, Modification Seven, and 

Modification Eight. Contractholder and UnitedHealthcare hereby ratify all of the terms 

and conditions of the Agreement as amended.  

 

4.0 EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

4.1 The changes in this amendment are effective October 1, 2012. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



09/17/12 agenda backup UHC renewal-fy13-draft       clp   1 

 
Backup Memorandum 

 
DATE: August 27, 2012 
 
TO:  Members of the Commissioners Court 
   
FROM: Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office 
  Diane Poirot, Director, Human Resources Management Department 
  John Rabb, Benefits Manager 
  Cindy Purinton, Benefit Administrator (transition) 
  Shannon Steele, Benefits Administrator 
 
Subject: United Healthcare – Fiscal Year 2013  Administrative rates   
 
Proposed Motion 

 
A. Consider and take appropriate action to renew United Healthcare as the Third Party 

Administrator for the Travis County Employee Benefit Plan and to approve administrative 
rates as shown below for Fiscal Year 2013 

B. Consider and take appropriate action to renew United Healthcare Cobra and Retiree 
Billing administration.  

 
Summary   
 
United Healthcare has been the County’s Third Party Administrator for the healthplan since 
October 1, 2001, the inception of the self-funded plan.  For FY2012, Travis County negotiated a 
significant reduction in UHC’s administrative fees with a two-year rate guarantee.  The 
administrative rates below reflect the negotiated rates, with an additional 1.1% reduction for 
FY2013.   
 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
A.  Staff recommends approval of United Healthcare as the Third Party Administrator and 
recommends approval of UnitedHealthcare administrative rates for the Fiscal Year 2013 
B.  Staff recommends approval of UnitedHealthcare Cobra/ Retiree Billing Administration and 
the rates for the Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
The following bulleted items are the important points or changes for the plan renewal with 
UnitedHealthcare. 
 
 The Plan administration fee will decrease by approximately 1.1%. (.46) from $40.37 to 

$39.91 PSPM (per subscriber per month) for all three plans.   

  
 

HRMD  

Human Resources Management 

700 Lavaca Street, Suite 420 P.O. Box 1748 Austin, Texas 78767 (512) 854-9165 / FAX(512) • • • 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



09/17/12 agenda backup UHC renewal-fy13-draft       clp   2 

  
 The administrative rates for Cobra Administration and Retiree Billing Administration will 

remain the same for Fiscal Year 2013. 
 
 Front-line customer service support will be provided by the UHC Claims Team who 

actually process Travis County’s claims via the toll-free number provided by UHC (on the 
back of every ID card) rather than an on-site UHC representative.  This change expands 
the service hours for front-line customer support and reduces the administrative fees by 
1.1%.   
 

 Escalated issues may be handled via HRMD Staff or directly through the UHC Service 
Center.   
 

 Prescription Solutions has undergone a name change to Optum Rx. 
 

The following items are included in the UHC administration fee:  
 
 Personal Health Support (PHS) 2.0 Nurse Team  

 The PHS Nurse team will be assigned to Travis County.  There will be a Clinical 
Lead who can work directly with Travis County Benefit Staff to resolve 
members care management/health issues. 
 Customer specific predictive modeling results; 
 Enhanced member-specific wellness mailings and messaging 

 
 Treatment Decision Support  

 They have added these two services in an effort to help us with our ongoing high 
 claimants and specifically high cost back surgery claims. 

 The Treatment Decision Support program is designed for members facing 
surgical treatment decisions for nine conditions with high practice variations or 
outcomes, including: 
 Musculoskeletal: back pain / Knee and hip replacement 
 Women’s Health: benign uterine conditions / hysterectomy 
 Men’s Health: Benign prostate disease 
 Heart Disease: Coronary disease / CABG / Angioplasty 
 Obesity: Bariatric surgery   (note: Travis County plan does not cover 
 Bariatric Surgery. 

 
Budgetary and Fiscal Impact 

The monthly fixed costs of the plan will decrease 1.1% due to negotioation, and removal 
of onsite representative. 

 
  Current Fiscal Year 2012   Fiscal Year 2013   
Average Monthly Cost $199,428 $197,153 
Average Annual Cost $2,393,134 $2,365,841 
  -1.1% 
Note: costs shown above do not include Individual Stop Loss premiums.  This item is currently 
under bid and will be brought to the Court in a agenda item. 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



09/17/12 agenda backup UHC renewal-fy13-draft       clp   3 

 
Authorizations 
 
 X  Planning and Budget Office (854-9106) 
 X  Human Resources Management Department (854-9165) 
  X  Purchasing Office (854-9700) 
 X  County Attorney’s Office (854-9415) 
 X  County Auditor’s Office (854-9125) 
 
            Page # 
Attachment 1……… UnitedHealthcare Administrative rates exhibit………………….4 
Attachment 2 …….. UnitedHealthcare COBRA and Retiree Direct 
    Billing renewal exhibit……………………………………………..5   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



09/17/12 agenda backup UHC renewal-fy13-draft       clp   4 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
UNITEDHEALTHCARE ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES ONLY (ASO) RENEWAL EXHIBIT 
 
Fixed Costs Current fiscal year 

2012 
administrative 

rates 

Renewal- fiscal 
year 2013 

administrative 
rates 

Administration Fee   
Plan name                                    Enrollment   
Choice EPO                                 910 $40.37 $39.91 
Choice CoInsured EPO              700 $40.37 $39.91 

Choice Plus PPO                        3330 $40.37 $39.91 

                Total Subscribers      4940   
Composite Fee per Subscriber per month-PSPM $40.37 $39.91 
   
Fixed cost PSPM (per Subscriber per month) $40.37 $39.91 
Monthly Fixed Cost $199,428 $197,153 
Annual Fixed Cost $2,393,134 $2,365,841 

% of increase or decrease  -1.1% 
   
Expected Claims PSPM (per Subscriber per 
month) 

$815.52 $842.96 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



09/17/12 agenda backup UHC renewal-fy13-draft       clp   5 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Fiscal Year 2013 COBRA AND RETIREE Direct Billing and Administrative Fees  
 (NO INCREASES) 

 

Cobra/ Retiree billing-UnitedHealthcare 
Benefit Services 

Fiscal 
Year20 09 

Fiscal 
Year 2010 

Fiscal 
Year 2011 

Fiscal 
Year 2012 

Fiscal Year 
2013 

On going maintenance Fee (once a yr charge) $1,155.00 $1,155.00 $1,155.00 Fee waived Fee waived 
Cobra continuant takeover charge (1 time chg per 
current continuant from previous Cobra 
Administration) (should not apply in our case as we 
haven’t changed) 

$16.54 $16.54 $16.54 $16.54 $16.54 

Ongoing Cobra Continuant per month charge $11.25 $11.25 $11.25 $11.25 $11.25 
Outside carrier eligibility feeds and premium 
remittance –per carrier per month 

$41.21 $41.21 $41.21 $41.21 $41.21 

Qualifying Event- fee per qualifying event $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 $30.00 
Cobra Initial Rights Notifications-per notice $4.46 $4.46 $4.46 $4.46 $4.46 
Retro Cobra Initial Rights notices- per notice $4.46 $4.46 $4.46 $4.46 $4.46 
TX State Continuation- per notice $11.00 $11.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Past Due notices to continuants -per notice $2.10 $2.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

Direct Billing Services      
Retiree Billing-per retiree per month $7.35 $7.35 $7.35 $7.35 $7.35 
Past Due notice- per notice $2.10 $2.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

OPTIONAL SERVICES      

Employee notification Services 
HIPAAis abbreviation for - 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

     

HIPAA Initial rights notifications –per notice $4.25 $4.25 $6.25 $6.25 $6.25 
Retro HIPAA Initial Rights Notifications –per notice $4.25 $4.25 $6.00 $6.00 $6.00 
Post-COBRA HIPAA certificates of coverage on 
outside COBRA members – per certificate $6.25 $6.25 

Not 
indicated 

on renewal 

Not 
indicated 

on renewal 

Not 
indicated on 

renewal 
HIPAA Privacy Notices- per notice 

$6.00 $6.00 
Not 

indicated 
on renewal 

Not 
indicated 

on renewal 

Not 
indicated on 

renewal 
Women’s Health Cancer Rights Act- per notice 

$3.25 $3.25 
Not 

indicated 
on renewal 

Not 
indicated 

on renewal 

Not 
indicated on 

renewal 

Open Enrollment Services      
Partial Open Enrollment Service- per person 
Includes custom letter and plan change form 

$11.75 $11.75 $11.75 $11.75 $11.75 

Full open enrollment Services- per person 
Same as partial Plus packaging and distribution of all 
related benefit materials and or informational 
documents as designated and provided by the client 

$23.50 $23.50 $23.50 $23.50 $23.50 

 
UnitedHealthcare returns the 2% COBRA administrative fee that is charged to COBRA participants to the County. 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the 
next week's meeting. 

 
 
Meeting Date:  9/25/2012, 9:00 AM, Voting Session 
Prepared By/Phone Number:  John E. Pena, CTPM; Marvin Brice, CPPB, 
Purchasing Office, 512-854-9700 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:  Judge, Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: APPROVE CONTRACT AWARD FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2012 HMAC OVERLAY PROGRAM, IFB NO. 1207-003-JE TO THE LOW BIDDER 
APAC OF TEXAS, INC., (WHEELER COMPANIES) FOR GROUPS A, B, C, D, E, 
G AND ADD ALTERNATES E1 AND G1.  
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs with 
department and recommends approval of requested action.  This procurement 
action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by the statutes. 

 IFB No. 1207-003-JE, Fiscal Year 2012 HMAC Overlay Program was issued 
on July 25, 2012.  The project consist of services for the HMAC Overlay 
Program in Precincts 1(Group A); 2 (Group B); 3 (Group C); 4 (Group D); 
LCRA/Travis County Parks (Group E); (There is no Group F); Criminal Justice 
Facilities Projects (Group G); Facilities Management Projects (Group H); City 
of Lakeway Projects (Group I) and City of Rollingwood Projects (Group J). 
However, after the solicitation was issued, Facilities Management Projects 
(Group H) and City of Rollingwood Projects (Group J) were removed from the 
bid solicitation by Addenda 1 and 2 due to the lack of funding. 

 Of the thirty-seven (37) bids either downloaded or viewed via Travis County’s 
third party e-procurement vendor system, BidSync, three (3) bids were 
received in response to this solicitation when subject IFB was opened on 
August 22, 2012 at 2:00 P.M., CST.  The apparent low bidders were APAC of 
Texas, Inc. (Wheeler Companies) and Austin Material d/b/a J.D. Ramming 
Paving Company Ltd., as follows:  

 

 

 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 34



 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the 
next week's meeting. 

APAC of Texas-Wheeler Companies 

Precinct 1 Group A $ 1,759,399.20 

Precinct 2 Group B $      99,366.50 

Precinct 3 Group C $    910,418.30 

Precinct 4 Group D $    849,494.20 

LCRA/Travis County Parks Groups E & E1 $    232,232.50 

Criminal Justice Facilities Groups G & G1 $      70,324.00 

Total Recommendation for Award $ 3,921.234.70 

*Austin Material d/b/a J.D. Ramming Paving Co., Ltd. 

City of Lakeway Group I $    394,245.00 

Total Recommendation Pending Award  $    394,245.00 

*NOTE:   Award recommendation correspondence from the TNR and funding 
from the City of Lakeway has not been received for Group I.  Upon receipt of 
recommendation correspondence and funds from the City of Lakeway, 
contract award recommendation to Austin Material d/b/a J.D. Ramming 
Paving Company, Ltd., for Group I will be presented to the Court. 

 Contract Expenditures:  Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been spent 
against the 2012 HMAC Overlay Program. 

 Contract-Related Information: 
Award Amount: $3,921,234.70 (APAC of Texas, Inc. Wheeler Co.) 
Contract Type: Construction 
Contract Period: Through Completion 

 Contract Modification Information:  N/A 
Modification Amount:    
Modification Type:     
Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information:   

Solicitations Sent:  37  Responses Received:  3 
HUB Information:  None  % HUB Subcontractor:   0% 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a pdf 
to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the 
next week's meeting. 

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 
  Comments:   

 Funding Information: 
  Funds Reservation:  300000189 
  Cost Center:  As shown below 

 
 

Funds Center/Fund 

Funded 
Program 

 

GL Account 

 

Amount 

Precinct 1 (Group A) 
1490200000/4072 600140 521040 $1,759,399.20 
    
Precinct 2 (Group B) 
1490200000/4072 600140 521040 99,366.50 
    
Precinct 3 (Group C) 
1490200000/4072 600140 521040 910,418.30 
    
Precinct 4 (Group D) 
1490200000/4072 600140 521040 502,248.00 
1490200000/4063 600031 521040 347,246.20 
    
LCRA/Travis County Parks Projects (Groups E & E1) 
1490220109/0109 600175 521060 161,476.00 
1490274049/4049 600163 521060 70,756.50 
    
Criminal Justice Facilities (Groups G & G1) 
*Funds Reservation 
being prepared by 
Juvenile Justice 

TBD TBD $70,324.00 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES
STEVEN M. MAN ILLA, RE., COUNTY EXECUTIVE, TNR

411 West 13th Street
Executive Office Building, 1 1th Floor
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383
FAX (512) 854-4697

September 13, 2012

MEMORANDUM

TO: Cyd Grimes, County Purchasing Agent

FROM: StnfrI3 illa, P.E., County Executive, TNR

SUBJECT: P1ciVon onimissioners Court Agenda to Award a Construction Services
Contract for the FY 2012 HMAC Overlay Program — (Group A, B, C, D and G)

Proposed Motion: Award construction service contract for the above project in the amount of
$3,921,234.70 to the apparent low bidder APAC of Texas — (Wheeler Companies).

Summary and Staff Recommendation: On Wednesday, August 22, 2012, Travis County
received bids from three vendors in response to IFB 1207-003-JE. TNR has reviewed the bids
and would like to award the construction contract for work in Precincts 1, 2, 3, 4
($3,618,678.20), parking lots at Gardner Betts ($70,324) and park roads at Pace Bend and
Hamilton Pool parks ($232,232.50) to the apparent low bidder APAC-Texas, Inc.
The total for all sites is $3,921,234.70. The $3,921,234.70 is encumbered under funds
reservation number 300000189.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact: The account numbers for this work are as follows:

Precinct 1 (Group A)

Funds Center! Funded
Fund Program GL Account Amount

1490200000/4072 600140 521040 $ 1,759,399.20

Total Precinct 1 $ 1.759,399.20

Precinct 2 (Group B)

Funds Center I Funded
Fund Program GL Account Amount

1490200000/4072 600140 521040 $ 99,366.50

J

-“C)
‘1=

C-,

—4
C-, ;‘o
r, >o

<P1

-o D<

()

Total Precinct 2 $ 99.366.50

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Page 2
September 13, 2012
Award Construction Contract for the FY 2012 Hot Mix Overlay

Precinct 3 (Group C)

Funds Center I Funded
Fund Program GL Account Amount

1490200000/4072 600140 521040 $ 910,418.30

Total Precinct 3 $ 910.41830

Precinct 4 (Group D)

Funds Center I Funded
Fund Program GL Account Amount

1490200000/4072 600140 521040 $ 502,248.00
1490200000/4063 600031 521040 $ 347,246.20

Total Precinct 4 $ 849.494.20

LCRA/Travis County Parks Projects (Groups E & El)

Funds Center I Funded
Fund Program GL Account Amount

1490220109/0109 600175 521060 $ 161,476.00
1490274049/4049 600163 521060 $ 70,75650

Total LCRAJTravis County Parks $ 232.232.50

Criminal Justice Facilities (Groups G & Gi)

Funds Center! Funded
Fund Program GL Account Amount

Funds Reservation Being Entered
by Juvenile Justice will Provide Info
When Ready $ 70,324.00

Total Criminal Justice Facifities $ 70,324.00

Required Authorizations: Planning and Budget, County Attorney’s Office, Auditor’s Office.

Exhibits: Bid tabulation summary.

DWJ:SMM:dwj

Copy: Jessica Rio, Planning & Budget Office
John Peña, Purchasing
Don Ward, TNR
Tawana Gardner, TNR

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
BID TABULATION FORM

:: .
.

..
. :...::

BID NO.: 1207-003-JE I - 8/22/2012 - BIDS SOLICITED: 3230
DESCRIPTION: 2012 HMAC Overlay Program - 2:00 PM - HUBS SOLICITED: 54
DEPARTMENT: TNR I - 11/21/2012 - BIDS ACT. VIEWED: 37
CONTACT/NO.: D.Ward I x49317

- - BIDS RECEIVED: 3
HUBS RECEIVED: 0

•.
. . .-.• —

GROUP A (PRECINCT ONE)

Angel Brothers Enterprises, APAC of Texas - . Austin Material dbaBIDDERS NAME
LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co.

BID ITEM Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid
Group A Items Group A Items Group A Items

IA Levelup 6,833.00 $96.00 $655,968.00 6,833.00 $53.00 $362,149.00 6,833.00 $75.00 $512,475.00
2A 1&1/2 HMAC 248,502.00 $7.50 $1,863,765.00 248,502.00 $5.60 $1,391,611.20 248,502.00 $5.50 $1,366,761.00
3A Excavation 340.00 $42.00 $14,280.00 340.00 $10.00 $3,400.00: 340.00 $50.00 $17,000.00
4A Tabs 2,239.00 $1.20 $2,686.80 2,239.00 $1.00 $2,239.00 2,239.00 $1.00 $2,239.00

GROUP-A BASE BID $2,536,699.80 $1,759,399.20 $1,898,475.00
. -•. •...- .

.

GROUP B (PRECINCT TWO)

Angel Brothers Enterprises APAC of Texas - . Austin Material dbaBIDDERS NAME
. . .LTD Wheeler Companies . JD Ramming Paving Co.

BID ITEM Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid
Group B Items Group B Items Group B Items

lB Levelup 332.00 $96.00 $31,872.00 332.00 $61.00 $20,252.00 :. 332.00 $75.00 $24,900.00
2B 1&112” HMAC 12,061.00 $7.50 $90,457.50 12,061.00 $6.50 $78,396.50 12,061.00 $6.50 $78,396.50
3B Excavation 20.00 $60.00 $1,200.00 20.00 $17.00 $340.00 20.00 $175.00 $3,500.00
4B Tabs 126.00 $1.20 $151.20 - 126.00 $3.00 $378.00 126.00 $1.00 $126.00

GROUP-B BASE BID $123,680.70 $99,366.50 $106,922.50
—

IFB No. 1207-003-JE FY2012 HMAC OVERLAY PROGRAM 1 OF 5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

BID TABULATION FORM

GROUP C (PRECINCT THREE)

BIDDERS NAME
Angel Brothers Enterprises, APAC of Texas - Austin Material dba

LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co

BID ITEM
Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid

Group C Items Group C Items Group C Items

1C Levelup 3,227.00 $96.00 $309,792.00 3,227.00 $59.00 $190,393.00 3,227.00 $65.00 $209,755.00
2C 1&1/2” HMAC 117,413.00 $7.50 $880,597.50 117,413.00 $6.10 $716,219.30 117,413.00 $5.85 $686,866.05
3C Excavation 176.00 $42.00 $7,392.00 - 176.00 $15.00 $2,640.00 - 176.00 $75.00 $13,200.00
4C Tabs 1,166.00 $1.20 $1,399.20 - 1,166.00 $1.00 $1,166.00 - 1,166.00 $1.00 $1,166.00

GROUP-C BASE BID $1,199,180.70 $910,418.30 $910,987.05

GROUP D (PRECINCT FOUR)

Angel Brothers Enterprises. APAC of Texas - = Austin Material dba
BIDDERS NAME -

LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co.

BID ITEM
Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid

Group D Items Group D Items Group D Items

ID Levelup 3,296.00 $96.00 $316,416.00 3,296.00 $53.00 $174,688.00 3,296.00 $80.00 $263,680.00
2D 1&112” HMAC 119,837.00 $7.50 $898,777.50 119,837.00 $5.60 $671,087.20 119,837.00 $5.75 $689,062.75
3D Excavation 172.00 $42.00 $7,224.00 172.00 $15.00 $2,580.00 172.00 $70.00 $12,040.00
4D Tabs 1,139.00 $1.20 $1,366.80 1,139.00 $1.00 $1,139.00 1,139.00 $1.00 $1,139.00

GROUP-D BASE BID $1,223,784 30 $84949420 $965 921 75

IFB No. 1207-003-JE FY2012 HMAC OVERLAY PROGRAM 2 OF 5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
BID TABULATION FORM

GROUP E (LCRAITRAVIS COUNTY PARKS PROJECTS)

BIDDERS NAME
Angel Brothers Enterprises, APAC of Texas - Austin Material dba

LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co.

BID ITEM Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid
Group E Items Group E Items Group E Items

IE Flexbase 10,000.00 $14.35 $143,500.00 10,000.00 $6.00 $60,000.00 10,000.00 $15.00 $150,000.00
2E 2” HMAC 10,000.00 $11.50 $115,000.00 - 10,000.00 $9.10 $91,000.00 10,000.00 $11.35 $113,500.00
3E Excavation 17.00 $90.00 $1,530.00 - 17.00 $28.00 $476.00 17.00 $175.00 $2,975.00
4E Pnmecoat 2,000.00 $4.75 $9,500.00 : 2,000.00 $5.00 $10,000.00 2,000.00 $4.00 $8,000.00
N/A $0.00 * $0.00 $0.00

$269,530.00 $161,476.00 $274,475.00

GROUP E (LCRAITRAVIS COUNTY PARKS PROJECTS) HAMILTON POOL

Angel Brothers Enterprises. APAC of Texas - Austin Material dba
BIDDERS NAME .

LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co.

BID ITEM Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid
Group G Items Group G Items Group G Items

IEI Flexbase 1,081.00 $24.00 $25,944.00 1,081.00 $8.00 $8,648.00 1,081.00 $25.00 $27,025.00
2E1 2” HMAC 1,081.00 $14.00 $15,134.00 - 1,081.00 $10.00 $10,810.00 1,081.00 $20.00 $21,620.00
3E1 Excavation 3.00 $120.00 $360.00 - 3.00 $168.00 $504.00 - 3.00 $300.00 $900.00
4E1 1&112” HMAC 6,571.00 $8.50 $55,853.50 6,571.00 $7.50 $49,282.50 . 6,571.00 $7.00 $45,997.00
5E1 Primecoat 216.00 $4.75 $1,026.00 - 216.00 $7.00 $1,512.00 -. 216.00 $4.00 $864.00

$97,291.50 $70,756.50 $96,406.00

THERE WILL BE NO GROUP F IN THIS SOLICIATION

IFS No. 1207-003-JE FY2012 HMAC OVERLAY PROGRAM 3 OF 5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

BID TABULATION FORM
-

GROUP G (CRIMINAL JUSTICE FACILITIES PROJECTS)

BIDDERS NAME
Angel Brothers Enterprises, APAC of Texas - Austin Material dba

LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co

BID ITEM
Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid

Group G items Group G items Group G items

IG Prep 2,015.00 $3.50 $7,052.50 2,015.00 $9.50 $19,142.50 2,015.00 $5.00 $10,075.00
2G 2” HMAC 2,015.00 $13.50 $27,202.50 - 2,015.00 $2.00 $4,030.00 2,015.00 $13.50 $27,202.50
3G Removal 2,015.00 $3.65 $7,354.75 - 2,015.00 $3.50 $7,052.50 2,015.00 $4.00 $8,060.00
4G Primecoat 403.00 $4.75 $1,914.25 403.00 $5.00 $2,015.00 403.00 $4.00 $1,612.00

GROUP-G BASE BID
400

& ADD ALTERNATE
$43,52 . $32,240.00 $46,949.50

:::.:.

GROUP G (CRIMINAL JUSTICE FACILITIES PROJECTS)

Angel Brothers Enterprises, APAC of Texas - Austin Material dba
BIDDERS NAME . .

LTD - Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co.

BID ITEM
Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid

Group G items - Group G Items Group G items

IGI Prep 2,308.00 $3.50 $8,078.00 - 2,308.00 $2.00 $4,616.00 2,308.00 $4.50 $10,386.00
2G1 2” HMAC 2,308.00 $11.92 $27,513.00 - 2,308.00 $9.50 $21,926.00 2,308.00 $12.50 $28,850.00
3G1 Removal 2,308.00 $4.00 $9,232.00 - 2,308.00 $4.00 $9,232.00 2,308.00 $5.70 $13,155.60
4G1 Pnmecoat 462.00 $5.00 $2,310.00 - 462.00 $5.00 $2,310.00 462.00 $4.00 $1,848.00

GROUP-G BASE BID 4 3 00 38 08400 54 239 60
&ADD ALTERNATE

$ 7,13 . $ , . $ ,

GROUP H AND ADD ALTERNATE GROUP HI WAS REMOVED BY ADDENDA NO.2

IFS No. 1207-003-JE FY2012 HMAC OVERLAY PROGRAM 4 OF 5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
BID TABULATION FORM

GROUP I (CITY OF LAKEWAY)

BIDDERS NAME
AneI Brothers Enterprises, APAC of Texas - Austin Material dba

LTD Wheeler Companies JD Ramming Paving Co

BID ITEM
Base Bid Base Bid Base Bid

Group A items Group A items :. Group A Items

IA 1&1/2” HMAC 51,713.00 $7.50 $387,847.50 51,713.00 $7.00 $361,991.00 51,713.00 $7.00 $361,991.00
2A Edge Milling 16,127.00 $3.65 $58,863.55 16,127.00 $3.40 $54,831.80 16,127.00 $2.00 $32,254.00

GROUP-i BASE
$446,711 05 $416,822 80 $394,245 00

:.r - :

GROUP J WAS REMOVED BY ADDENDA NO. I

Award Sep 2012, Group A Precinct 1 $1,759,399.20

Award Sep 2012, Group B Precinct 2 $99,366.50

Award Sep 2012, Group C Precinct 3 $910,418.30

Award Sept 2012, Group D Precinct 4 $849,494.20

Subtotal Pcts 1-4 $3,618,678.20
Award Sept2012, Group E, LCRA Parks $161,476.00

Award Sept 2012, Group El, Hamilton Pool Park $70,756.50
Subtotal LCR.AlTravis County Parks $232,232.50

Award Sep 2012, Group G Criminal Justice Facilities $32,240.00

Award Sep 2012, Group GI Criminal Justice Facilities $38,084.00

Subtotal Criminal Justice Facilities $70,324.00
Overall Total to Award APAC $3,921 23470

Award on Hold Pending Receipt of Funds form City Lakeway
Group I, JD Ramming Paving $394,245.00

Total Award JD Ramming Paving Co. $394,245.00

IFB No. 1207-003-JE FY2012 HMAC OVERLAY PROGRAM 5 OF 5

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County - TNR
Review of Funding Needs for FY2012 HMAC/Alternative Paving Program

S:\CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP)\CIP INVOICE SUMMARIES\hot mix & f mix\HOT MIX (HMAC)\FY 201 2\[FY2012 HMAC Contract Award Bgt Shortfall lnfo.xlsx]Budget Needs FY20

Travis County - Precincts 1-4 Budget Review
Entity Vendor Bid Amt Available Bgt ShortfalllSurplus Comments

Recommending Award to Comm. Court Sept 2012 to
Pct 1 -4, Groups A-D APAC $ 3,618,678.20 $ 3,271,432.00 $ (347,246.20) APAC
Rejuvenation Program TBA $ 305,664.00 $ - $ (305,664.00) Project not yet bid out, $300,000 is Eng. Estimate

$ 3,924,342.20 $3,271,432.00 $ (652,910.20) Funding Shortfall

TNR Recommended Funding Source for Pct 1-4 Funding Shortfall

Fund Center GL Account Fund Amount Comment

1490200000 521040 4063 $ 541,010.00 FY2O1 0 Overlay Savings
1490200000 521040 4068 $ 111,901.00 FY2O11 Overlay Savings

$ 652,911.00 Savings TNR is applying to FY12 Overlay Program Shortfall

Travis County Parks & Other Facilities Budget Review
LCRA Parks, Group E APAC $ 161,476.00 $ 200,000.00 $ 38,524.00 LCRA Approval Received 9/13/12

$ 161,476.00 $ 200,000.00 $ 38,524.00

LCRA Parks, Group El APAC $ 70,756.50 $ 70,756.50 $ - Parks Division - Hamilton Pool

$ 70,756.50 $ 70,756.50 $ - Funding from Parkiand Dedication Fees

CJ Facilities, Group G APAC $ 32,240.00 $ 32,240.00 $ -

CJ Facilities, Group Gi APAC $ 38,084.00 $ 38,084.00 $ -

$ 70,324.00 $ 70,324.00 $ - Mary Nieves wICJD is setting up funds reservation

City Lakeway, Group I JD Ramming $ 394,245.00 $ 394,245.00 $ -

S 394,245.00 $ 394,245.00 $ - Invoiced City Lakeway, Waiting for Payment

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

STEVEN P. MANILLA, PE. COUt1fl EXECU11VI!

411 West 131h Street
Exocutive Office Building
P0 Box 1748
Austin. Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383
FAX (512)854.9436

September 13, 2012

Carolyn Nelson
Parks Director
Lower Colorado River Authority
3700 Lake Austin Blvd.
Austin, Texas 78703

Subject: Pace Bend Park Paving Project

Dear Ms. Nelson:

We are requesting that the ECRA authorize funding from the LCRA/Travis County CIP Account
for improvements and upgrades to the existing unimproved roadways lots at Pace Bend Park.

The County is in the process of awarding a new paving contract for FY12113. In the contract, the
cost for 2” UMAC overlay will be awarded at a very low cost to the County. We would like to
take advantage of this contract and its low cost HMAC application to upgrade unimproved
roadways at Pace Bend. In addition, the HMAC overlay will provide increased protection for the
roadways and the natural environment in the long run by offering a defined roadway that will
help keep visitors from driving wherever they want.

Pace Bend Park — Unimproved Roadway IIMAC Overlay:

The County is requesting to continue to upgrade an additional 4,500 linear feet of major
unimproved roadways to provide safer access for our park visitors. These roadways are located
in the camping areas on the west side of the park. These paved roadways will not only benefit our
park visitors, but will enable timelier and safer responses for emergency responders and law
enforcement.

The LCRA has approved escrow funding for HMAC overlay upgrades at Pace Bend in the past.
This has included Pace Bend Park Road, Grishain Trail, the Improved Campground roadways
and various transition areas and previously unimproved roadways throughout the park.

The table that follows details the costs of the Pace Bend Park paving projects based on the lowest
bid received for this year’s contract. We would Like to add this project to the existing contract
and take advantage of this year’s low paving costs.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Park Road Name Length Width SY HMAC Flex Base Total
(Fl) (Fl’) Cost materials, Cost

prep,
excavation &

prime coat
S 9.10 SY $ 7.0476 SY

Pace Bend Unimproved Roadways 4500 20 $ 91,000 S 70,476 $ 161,476

GRAND TOTAL I I I I $ 91,000 j $ 70,476 1 $ 161,476

Because there are still some unknown costs associated with erosion control measures and
possibly other unforeseen costs relating to these projects, we are requesting an additional 10°!.

contingency to cover these expenses, or $16,150.

xc: Cynthia McDonald, Financial Manager
Donna Williams, Financial Services
lsabelle Lopez, Financial Services
Robert Armistead, Parks Division Manager
Dan Perry, Parks District Manager
Keith Rawlings, Pace Bend Park Supervisor

lapprov this FundinReciuest:

Signature:

/ LI
Printed Name: (3&roLJ i- L? t- W FJ

Title: PA,2_ \G_L-

Organization;

_____

CL448-€Lo jJk,4JJ4tL

your review and consideration of this request. If you have any questions, please
me at 854-9408.

Parks

CB:dp
4501 LCRA Parks - Paving Request

óA4,d(44

Date: I -. 2 I 2_

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



ID #7168 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Consider and Take Appropriate Action on Request to 
Renew List Of Certain Health and Human Services and Veterans Services 
Social Service Contracts which Expire September 30, 2012. 
 
Travis County Health and Human Services and Veteran Services 
Department has requested the Purchasing Office to place on the Court’s 
Agenda the attached list of Social Services Contracts which will expire 
September 30, 2012. HHS & VS is currently working with the County 
Attorney’s office on finalizing the Statement of Work and funding of these 
contracts; and as such they were not ready for presentation to the Court at 
the time of this agenda preparation. Once the contracts are finalized, and 
funding secured, they will be presented to the Court for signature. 
However, in order to prevent contract expiration, the attached list 
(Attachment A) is being presented for Court approval.  
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 

 
APPROVE (  )      DISAPPROVE (  ) 
 
___________________________                         _________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge                               Date 
 

 Contract-Related Information:  See Attachment A 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 35



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



CONTRACT NO. DESCRPITION PERIOD FUNDING ACCOUNT NO.

4400000683 Encompass Medical Management, Inc. (Renewal) 9/30/12 – 9/29/13

Grant Number: 800079                                                  
I/O Number: 100148                                             
Account Number: 511890

4400000694 Foundation Communities (Renewal)  9/30/12 – 9/29/13

Grant Number: 800079                                                   
I/O Number: 100148                                             
Account Number: 51141

4400000372 Austin Travis County Integral Care - SAMSO (Renewal) 10/1/12 – 9/30/13

Grant Number: 800079                                             
I/O Number: 100148                                               
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511124

4400000374 Austin Travis County Integral Care -  System of Care (Renewal)  10/1/12 – 9/30/13

Grant Number (Milburn Trust): 800080
I/O Number: 100147
Grant Number (The Children’s Continuum): 800190
I/O Number: 100081
Grant Number (Parenting in Recovery): 800079
I/O Number: 100148
Cost Center: 1580190001
Account Number: 511300

4400000996 Court Appointed Special Advocates (CASA) (Renewal)  10/1/12 – 9/30/13

Grant Number: 800190
I/O Number: 100081
Account Number: 518120

4400001018 ATCIC Child Therapist and Supervisor (Renewal)  10/1/12 – 9/30/13

Grant Number: 800190
I/O Number: 100081
Account Number: 518120

4400000367 Austin Community College Teacher TRAC (Renewal) 10/1/12 – 9/30/13
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511440

4400000349 Travis County ESD #4 – Firefighter Academy (Renewal)  10/1/12 – 9/30/13
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511440

4400000819 Workforce Solutions Childcare Local Match Contribution 10/1/12 – 9/30/13
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511441

4400000347 ATCIC CAN Coordinator (Policy Forum Modification) 9/1/12 - 10/31/12 

Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511440
Shopping Cart Number: 1000009842

4400000354 Austin ISD After Collaborative After School Program (Modification) 10/1/11 - 12/31/12

Cost Center: 1580270001
Account Number: 511441

4400000747 Planned Parenthood of Austin Family Planning, Inc. (Modification) 1/1/12 – 12/31/12
Cost Center: 1580540001
Account Number: 511441

4400000389 City of Austin Public Health Interlocal 10/1/12 - 9/30/13 To be determined later by HHS & VS

New Contract to be 
determined City of Austin Animal Services Public Health Interlocal Agreement 10/1/12 - 9/30/13 To be determined later by HHS & VS

Attachment A
Health and Human Services and Veterans Services Social Service Contracts

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date: 09/25/2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jesse Herrera 512.854.1184 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  

A. Approve contract awards for Telecom Equipment, IFB #B120198-JH, to 
the following lowest bidders: 
 

1. TigerDirect Corporation: Lot 2 – Plantronics and Lot 4 
Miscellaneous 

 
2. Call One Inc,: Lot 3 - Northern Telecom / Meridian Equipment 

 
B. Reject All Bids for Lot 1 – Cisco  

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with ITS and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 
 
IFB #B120198-JH was issued on April 25, 2012 to 44 vendors. Six bids 
were received on May 14, 2012.  This bid is to provide various 
telecommunications equipment and accessories, including Cisco, 
Plantronics, and Northern Telecom / Meridian products.  
 

1) TigerDirect Corporation.  This contract provides the necessary 
Plantronics equipment and miscellaneous accessories needed to 
replace defective and/or malfunctioning equipment.     
2) Call One, Inc. This portion of the contract provides for the 
procurement of telephones for the legacy Northern Telecom / Meridan 
systems.  
B) Cisco will not be awarded because it was not in the best interest of 
the County.  Cisco products will be procured through DIR. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 36



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months an estimated 
$18,000.00 has been spent against this requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: Estimated Quantity   
Contract Type: Annual Contract   
Contract Period: September 25, 2012 through September 24, 2013  

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 44  Responses Received: 6  
HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 
  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 

notified. 
  Comments:   

 
 Funding Information: 

  Purchase Requisition in SAP: N/A  
  Funding Account(s): 112-004-00001-510060 
  Comments: Department enters requisitions on an as needed basis. 

 
 

 
 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



TRAVIS COUNTY INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

700 Lavaca, Suite 501, Austin, Tx 78767 (512) 854-9372 Fax (512) 854-4401

DATE: August 3, 2012

MEMORANDUM ,7fl

TO: Cyd V. Grimes, C.P.M. — Travis County Purchasing Aent/
C,

FROM: Walter LaGrone, Interim Chief Information Officer
Leslie Browder, County Executive for Planning and Budget

SUBJ: Recommendation to Award IFB B120198-JH to the following vendors Call One, Inc.,
and TigerDirect Corporation.

Proposed Motion:
To approve IFB B120198-JH for Telephone Equipment for one-year with a two-year option for renewal
to Call One Inc. and TigerDirect Corporation.

Summary and Staff Recommendation 4

ITS recommends selecting Call One and TigerDirect for items within ur three different telephone
equipment inventory lots. Those three lots are as follows: Plantronics Equipment (TigerDirect,
$6,946.98), Northern Telecom I Meridian Parts (Call One, $3,899.89) and Miscellaneous (TigerDirect,
$3,958.75). Through the selection of the lowest bidders, Travis County is receiving new and quality parts
at an excellent price for our departments.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
The funds for these purchases for the next fiscal year ‘are budgeted in the following accounts:

112-004-00001-510060 ($14,805.62)

Issues and Opportunities:
Telecommunications equipment is critical to the operation of Travis County offices. Should components
fail, they must be replaced to ensure that County operations are not adversely impacted. Scheduling and
completing departments’ requests for new installations are dependent upon the parts and equipment
availability.

Required Authorizations:

Travis County Courthouse, Austin, Texas

LEGAL:
PURCHASING:
BUDGET:

CC: Tanya Acevedo, Rod Brown, Sally Green, ITS

John Hille - County Attorney’s Office
Bonnie Floyd, Jesse Herrera - Purchasing
Katie Petersen - PBO

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Bid #B120198-JHTelecom Equipment Inventory

LOT: PLANTRONICS

Item # Item Product Code Qty Unit Price

B120198-JH--02-01HEADSET B230/WG200B VOYAGER CONNECT TO PC & MOBILE  - UC P1 WG200/BUC P1 WG200/B 4 each 115.27
B120198-JH--02-02HEADSET BW C610 USB SNGLE  EAR OVERHEAD STYLE  -  BWC610BWC610 10 each 59.58
B120198-JH--02-03HEADSET C210 USB SNGL EAR OVERHEAD STYLE (LT/MED USE)  - C210-P1-BW C210C210-P1-BW C210 2 each 30.51
B120198-JH--02-04HEADSET HW251N SINGLE EAR OVER HEAD STYLE  -  HW251N/DA-MHW251N/DA-M 46 each 56.82
B120198-JH--02-05HEADSET  NOISE CANCEL PLANTRONICS P/N: H41NH41N 3 each 63.36
B120198-JH--02-06HEADSET  NOISE CANCEL PLANTRONICS P/N: H61NH61N 10 each 67.75
B120198-JH--02-07FIT KIT EARLOOPS/EARBUDS   - P3-84604-01P3-84604-01 1 each 10.53
B120198-JH--02-08W740 SAVI 3IN1 CONVERTIBLE UC  -  P1-W740P1-W740 1 each 218.78
B120198-JH--02-09SPARE HEADBAND OVER-THE-HEAD   - P3-84605-01P3-84605-01 1 each 11.97
B120198-JH--02-10SPARE HEADBAND BTH   -  P3-84606-01P3-84606-01 1 each 10.53
B120198-JH--02-11BASE DELUXE CHARGING KIT  - P3-84601-01P3-84601-01 1 each 26.32
B120198-JH--02-12BLACKWIRE C610 PLANTRONICS HEADSET 10 each 59.58
B120198-JH--02-13APC 4 HEADSET CABLES PLANTRONIC 15 each 42.11
B120198-JH--02-14APC 4 HOOK SWITCH CABLE PLANTRONICS 20 each 42.11

LOT: NORTHERN TELECOM SL-1 / MERIDIAN EQUIPMENT

Item # Item Product Code Qty Unit Price

B120198-JH--03-01PHONE MERIDAN DIGITAL   M3904 (NEW)M3904 5 each 163.16
B120198-JH--03-02PHONE MERIDIAN DIGITAL  M3902 (NEW)  - NTZK1CA35NTZK1CA35 14 each 110.53
B120198-JH--03-03PHONE MERIDIAN DIGITAL  M3904 (REFURBISHED)M3904 10 each 78.95
B120198-JH--03-04PHONE MERIDIAN DIGITAL  M3902 (REFURBISHED)M3902 3 each 52.63
B120198-JH--03-05DIGITAL TELEPHONE  WITH DISPLAY M2008 (REFURBISHED)M2008 2 each 47.37
B120198-JH--03-06PHONE HAND FREE  DISPLAY  HFD M2008 (REFURBISHED)M2008 8 each 52.63
B120198-JH--03-07NORSTAR DIGITAL SET  P/N 7310 (REFURBISHED)7310 14 each 52.63
B120198-JH--03-08NORSTAR DIGITAL SET NEW N.T. SL-1 PART M7100M7100 5 each 47.37
B120198-JH--03-09NORTHERN TELECOM W/DISPLAY   SL-1 PT M2616 (REFURBISHED)M2616 1 each 52.63

TigerDirect

TigerDirect

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



LOT: MISCELLANEOUS

Item # Item Product Code Qty Unit Price

B120198-JH--04-01MISC - PANASONIC SPEAKERPHONE WITH DISPLAY985 10 each 25.12
B120198-JH--04-02MISC - STANDARD 2500 DESK SET W/MSG WAIT LAMP SCITEC 2510  - COLOR ASHSCITEC 2510 96 each 20.75
B120198-JH--04-03MISC - EP31cHC 425 MC HANDSET CORD 25FT. (COMPATIBLE WITH CISCO PH) DARK GREYEP31cHC 425 200 each 2.63
B120198-JH--04-04MISC - EP31 HC 412 MG HANDSET CORD 12FT. (COMPATIBLE WITH CISCO PH) DARK GREYEP31 HC 412 200 each 1.58
B120198-JH--04-05MISC - 4 CONDUCTOR SILVER SATIN LINE CORD  - 1000FT. ROLL2 each 41.54
B120198-JH--04-06MISC - 4 CONDUCTOR LINE CORD MOD PLUGS  - BOX 2 each 42.1
B120198-JH--04-07MISC - T-TYPE SPLITTER 2677  - BOX 1 each 9.75
B120198-JH--04-08MISC - MODULAR ADAPTER SUTTLE - BOXSE-267B 1 each 238
B120198-JH--04-09MISC - CROSS CONNECT WIRE BL/W-W/BL 2C 24 AWG  - ROLLS4 each 32.63
B120198-JH--04-10MISC - HANDSET CORD ASH COLOR 12ft AWC920012AWC920012 100 each 1.26
B120198-JH--04-11MISC - HANDSET CORD ASH COLOR 25ft AWC920025AWC920025 100 each 2.02

TOTAL COST:

TOTAL COST:

TIGER DIRECT; $15,758.42

ATS; $24,641.65

Synergy Telcom; $16,101.27

FlexSolv Networks; $28,882.65

Call One Inc; $14,639.29

Mutual Telecom Services; $18,268.92

TigerDirect

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Total Prod Code Price Total Prod CodePrice Total

461.08 38885-01 175 700 132.28 529.12
595.8 81964-41 89 890 68.1 681
61.02 80298-03 65 130 34.81 69.62

2613.72 64338-31 95 4370 64.88 2984.48
190.08 H41N 95 285 72.37 217.11
677.5 64339-31 95 950 77.36 773.6
10.53 84604-01 25 25 14.42 14.42

218.78 83542-01 275 275 249.55 249.55
11.97 84605-01 250 250 19.48 19.48
10.53 84606-01 30 30 14.42 14.42
26.32 84601-01 48 48 36.07 36.07
595.8 81964-41 89 890 68.15 681.5

631.65 37978-01 59.95 899.25 32.47 487.05
842.2 37978-01 65 1300 57.72 1154.4

6946.98 11042.25 7911.82

Total Prod Code Price Total Prod CodePrice Total

815.8 M3904 95 475 159.76 798.8
1547.42 M3902 115 1610 108.1 1513.4

789.5 M3904-RF 75 750 65.71 657.1
157.89 M3902-RF 65 195 31.75 95.25
94.74 M2008 55 110 24.98 49.96

421.04 M2008 HFD 79.95 639.6 31.62 252.96
736.82 M7310 65 910 32.15 450.1
236.85 M7100 55 275 31.95 159.75
52.63 M2616 55 55 35 35

4852.69 $5,019.60 4012.32

TigerDirect ATS - Austin Tele-Services Synergy Telcom Inc.

TigerDirect ATS - Austin Tele-Services Synergy Telcom Inc.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Total Prod Code Price Total Prod CodePrice Total

251.2 KX-T7030 155 1550 39.96 399.6
1992 2510 35 3360 24.3 2332.8
526 15-700-025 FMG 5.5 1100 1.4 280
316 15-700-012 FMG 4.5 900 1 200

83.08 CAPC00 59.95 119.9 117.72 235.44
84.2 ICC-ICMP4P4CHS 29.95 59.9 13.34 26.68
9.75 25 25 294 294
238 45 45 37.25 37.25

130.52 55 220 36.59 146.36
126 5 500 1 100
202 AWC920025 7 700 1.25 125

3958.75 $8,579.80 4177.13

$15,758.42 $24,641.65 16,101.27

TigerDirect ATS - Austin Tele-Services Synergy Telcom Inc.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Prod CodePrice Total Prod CodePrice Total

146.72 586.88 B230 111.83 447.32
77.07 770.7 BW C610 57.5 575
39.88 79.76 BW C210 29.43 58.86

146.85 6755.1 HW251N/ DA-M110.78 5095.88
81.61 244.83 H14N 61.19 183.57
72.96 729.6 HW261N 65.4 654
14.94 14.94 84604-01 10.55 10.55

277.72 277.72 W740 211 211
20.11 20.11 84605-01 26.38 26.38
15.32 15.32 84606-01 10.55 10.55
36.25 36.25 84601-01 26.38 26.38
77.07 770.7 BW C610 57.5 575
59.22 888.3 37978-01 45.37 680.55
14.81 296.2 37978-01 45.37 907.4

11486.41 8555.04

Prod CodePrice Total Prod CodePrice Total

208.71 1043.55 M3904 128.62 643.1
112.14 1569.96 M3902 88.22 1235.08
77.73 777.3 RM3904 65.1 651
52.2 156.6 RM3902 48.22 144.66

39.99 79.98 RM2008D 37.1 74.2
35.55 284.4 RM2008HFD 41.25 330
65.52 917.28 RM7310 41.25 577.5
77.73 388.65 RM7100 41.25 206.25
72.18 72.18 RM2616D 38.1 38.1

$5,289.90 3899.89

FlexSolv Networks Call One Inc.

FlexSolv Networks Call One Inc.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Prod CodePrice Total Prod CodePrice Total

34.44 344.4 KXTS105 26.82 268.2
55.53 5330.88 2510DE 19.96 1916.16

7.8 1560
17.79 3558
82.71 165.42
1.25 2.5

16.68 16.68
67.74 67.74
52.68 210.72
3.43 343
5.07 507

12106.34 2184.36

$28,882.65 $14,639.29

FlexSolv Networks Call One Inc.

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Prod CodePrice Total

141.92 567.68
72.97 729.7
37.35 74.7
70.32 3234.72
78.44 235.32
83.85 838.5
13.39 13.39

267.78 267.78
18.08 18.08
13.39 13.39
33.48 33.48
72.97 729.7
53.56 803.4
53.56 1071.2

8631.04

Prod CodePrice Total

176.74 883.7
123.72 1732.08
94.26 942.6
47.13 141.39
47.13 94.26
53.03 424.24
58.92 824.88
53.03 265.15
53.03 53.03

5361.33

Mutual Telecom Services

Mutual Telecom Services

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Prod CodePrice Total

42.49 424.9
21.84 2096.64
2.66 532
1.48 296

83.05 166.1
9.14 18.28
2.63 2.63

35.25 141
2.23 223
3.76 376

4276.55

$18,268.92

Mutual Telecom Services

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By: Carol B. Joseph Phone #: 854-9383 
Division DirectorlMana?,r:. .' . 

~~~0·~0~ 
Department Head: Steven M. Manilla(?·E~;Couhty Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to approve the 

acceptance of the following substandard roads in Precinct Two: Rick Whinery Drive, 

Emmett Parkway, and Quiet Pond Court in the Wells Branch Phase 2-A Subdivision. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Staff has completed the requirements of the Transportation Code Title 6, Subtitle C, 

Chapter 253: County Improvement of Subdivision Roads to collect their contribution 

to the project. The final step before the work can begin is the acceptance of the 

roads, therefore TNR recommends acceptance of the roads. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Wells Branch Phase W-2A is located in Travis County Precinct 2, north of Wells 

Branch Parkway, west of IH 35 and east of Loop 1 in northern Travis County. The 

roads in the Wells Branch Phase W-2A subdivision do not meet Travis County 

standards and cannot be accepted onto the Travis County maintained roadway 

system. On August 10, 2010 residence of the subdivision submitted a petition and 

an application to be included on the Travis County Substandard Road Program. 

Many of the sidewalks in the subdivision do not meet minimum ADA standards and 

have cracked and deflected enough to make walking and other uses of the sidewalk 

hazardous. Lack of an organized and routine roadway maintenance program will 

cause further deterioration of roadway conditions which will decrease the safety of 

the roads. 


Since the substandard road program requires some participation by the affected 

homeowners, the residences of the subdivision have asked Travis County to hold an 

assessment election in accordance with the Transportation Code Title 6, Subtitle C, 

Chapter 253: County Improvement of Subdivision Roads to collect their contribution 

to the project. This allows the County to issue ballots to the homeowners and if it 

passes by a simple majority the homeowners will be assessed annually. Ballots 

were issued and the majority of the ballots received voted "FOR" the assessment. 

The final step is to accept the roads in order for work to begin. 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 37



The construction work will be completed by the TNR's Road and Bridge Division 

over a five year period, and the property owners will be assessed during the same 

period. This project will supply the improvements necessary to bring the specified 

roadways up to minimum County standards so that they can be accepted for 

maintenance by the County. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

TNR will use the substandard road funds as well as the assessed funds from the 

homeowners in the Wells Branch Phase 2-A. 


ATTACHM ENTS/EXHIBITS: 

N/A 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc: 

, Nicki Riley County Auditor 854-9125 
. David Jungerman County Auditor's Office 854-9125 
Dana Debeauvoir County Clerk 
Michael Winn County Clerk's Office 
Loretta Farb Precinct Two Office 854-9222 
Tom Nuckols County Attorney's 854-9415 
Julie Joe County Attorney's 854-9415 
Lee Turner TNR 854-9383 
Donna Williams Jones TNR 854-9383 
Don Ward TNR 854-9383 I 

0101 - Administrative 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County. Commissioner::s Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By: Kurt Nielsen Phone #: 854-7218 
Division Director/Mana ·harle ergh, Division Director of Parks 

~ 

Department Head: Stev aniIJ ,P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Davis, Precinct One 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action regarding a License 
Agreement with Tracy Limon for purposes of having exclusive use of Webberville 
Park to host the annual Limon family reunion October 1ih - 14th, 2012, in Precinct 
One. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
For the past 26 years the Limon family has celebrated their annual reunion at Travis 
County's Webberville Park. The reunion has always been held in mid October, a 
time when normal park usage has declined. 

In October of 2006 the Commissioners' Court approved a rule prohibiting the display 
of the consumption of alcoholic beverages. Ms. Limon has requested entering into a 
License Agreement with Travis County to allow them exception to the rule. The 
Limon family has traditionally enjoyed the responsible consumption of alcoholic 
beverages during their annual reunion festivities. Considering the size of the Limon 
family reunion and its 26-year history at Webberville Park for this annual event, park 
staff recommends a licensing agreement be approved to allow the Limon family to 
have exclusive use of the park for the weekend of October 12th - 14th 2012. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of this licensing agreement. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
This is an opportunity to continue with this traditional use of Webberville Park for this 
family event. This licensing agreement will continue to allow the Limon family to host 
their annual reunion at Webberville Park and to responsibly consume alcoholic 
beverages without violating park rules. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 38



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: 9/25/12 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Randy Nicholson #854-4603 
Division Director/Manager: An~q.-Boin, Division Director, Development 
Services. C::-k" 
Department Head: Ste~M. Maml , .., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on a request to hold a 

Water Supply Forum. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 

TNR is preparing a Land, Water, and Transportation Plan (LWTP) that will become a 

framework for comprehensively planning, managing, and regulating the land, water, 

and transportation systems that TNR provides to county residents. The plan will 

include long term goals, programs, and strategies the court will use to guide the 

unincorporated areas orderly development and preservation of land and water 

resources. The plan is comprised of three key components: the Background Report, 

the Growth Guidance Policy Plan, and Public Engagement. 


As part of the Background Report, TNR will convene a Water Supply Forum to elicit 

advice from a panel knowledgeable in this field. The charge of the panel is to identify 

specifically what the county can do to encourage and facilitate stewardship and the 

wise use of our water resources in new and existing private developments, some of 

which are currently faced with uncertain future water supplies, as well as our public 

parks, preserves, and green spaces. Guidance from the panel will be sought on how 

best to achieve any desired goals and objectives recommended. 


Areas of interest could include but are not limited to: 

• Subdivision development standards 
• Sustainable site design, construction, operation, and maintenance 
• Property protection from fires including wildfires 
• Conservation Development Subdivision Rules 
• Water conservation and reuse 
• Surface water protection through development rules 
• Adequate groundwater availability rules 
• Surface water capture and storage 
• Roles of Travis County in water supply and distribution 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 39



• Water availability for economically distressed areas 
• The proliferation and reliability of water wells 
• Travis County funding or providing financial support for water supply 
• Water supply plans-do they assurance water service in the future? 

Note that the county's authority to implement some recommendations may be limited 
by state law in some ways but a recommendation to pursue legislative change may 
be considered. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
TNR recommends holding a forum on Water Supply planning and that each court 
member appoint up to three members of the panel. The forum proceedings will 
become part of the LWTP Plan Background report. Suggested stakeholder 
categories for the panel include but are not limited to the following: 

1. Private Sector Land Developer 
2. Private Sector Utility Provider 
3. Home Builders Association 
4. Water Issues Attorney 
5. Texas Water Development Board -Region K Staff 
6. Lower Colorado River Water Planning Group Region K 
7. LCRA 
8. Travis County Groundwater Management Area 10 
9. Travis County Public Interest (HOA or POA) 
10. Municipal Utility 
11. Travis County Small Business 
12. Travis County Agriculture 
13. Environmental 

The forum is anticipated to require four hours and should be held this fall depending 
upon panel availability. 

TNR staff members Jon White, Anna Bowlin, and Tom Weber will facilitate the panel 
of the experts with legal assistance to be provided by Tom Nuckols. Randy 
Nicholson will coordinate and administer logistics for the forum. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The LWTP Background Report is a tool to educate and inform about factors that are 
utilized to establish county policy. There are several issues related to comprehensive 
planning where water supply is important to gain a better understanding as to 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



potential County roles. This discussion will become part of the Background Report. 
In addition to including an overview of the current state of our water supply, it is 
appropriate to include a section of the plan on initiatives Travis County could 
undertake if it desires to take a leadership role in managing water supply resources. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
None. Forum administration, logistics, and facilitation will utilize the resources of 
TNR staff and the panel will be asked to serve at no cost to the County. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla Cou nty Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc: 

Jon White 

0101 - Administrative 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: David A. Salazar 854-4107 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sherri E. Fleming, 
County Executive for Health and Human Services and Veterans Service 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and Take Appropriate Action to Approve the FY2013 Customer 
Assistance Program Plus 1 Funding (CAPS) Application. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
City of Austin - Austin Energy allocates funding to provide emergency 
utility assistance to low income individuals and families at or below 200% of 
the current Federal Poverty Income Guidelines on a quarterly basis to 
recipient agencies within the City of Austin. Those agencies submit the 
granted client assistance amount to Austin Energy for customer billing 
credits. The amount of the allocation from the City of Austin - Austin 
Energy last year was $90,000. 

Staff requests the acceptance and authorization to apply for funding during 
the FY2013 period. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends that the Court accept and authorize the application for 
funding to the City of Austin's Customer Assistance Program Plus 1 
(CAPS). 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The department has participated in this program for a number of years. 
Within the current program period, the department has assisted over 377 
households with their Austin Energy utility bills. 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, ChervI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 40



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 41



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Christy Moffett  854-3460 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  
Sherri E. Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health and Human 
Services & Veterans Service  
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Consider and take appropriate action on the request to continue the administration and 
planning project and fair housing project of the Community Development Block Grant for 
the 2012 Program Year with internal HHSVS resources until a fully executed contract is 
obtained from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
The Department requests permission to use general fund operating resources to cover 
CDBG expenses until the grant agreement for Program Year (PY) 2012 can be 
executed.  It is necessary to implement this practice for two reasons – 1) historically the 
grant contract from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is 
not ready for execution until the first quarter of the new program year, and 2) expenses 
will need to occur prior to the end of the first quarter.  The general fund expenditures 
identified as CDBG are reclassified into grant expenses when there is a fully executed 
grant contract. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:  
Staff recommends approval as this delay is normal for the grant and all previous costs 
have been reclassified successfully in years past.   
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
The use of general funds allows the administrative and planning staff to continue with 
general business functions related to CDBG Administration and Planning as well as 
allows clients to continue to receive services until the grant funds are available.   
 
The use of general funds for the fair housing contract allows us to start services with 
minimal delay.   
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us
akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 42



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
The Health and Human Services and Veterans Service Department will reallocate 
funding for costs associated with: 
 
Fair housing activities         $43,451 
Administrative operating expenses:      $  6,000 
Advertisement, cell phone allowance, and other necessary items to meet deadlines 
Temporary salaries:            $15,000  
for the temporary Planner position needed to help transition the work of a staff person 
leaving in November.   
 
The operating costs will come from the CDBG General Fund Cost Center 158006001 
line item (500050) into the advertising line item (same cost center, 511680) to provide 
dollars for advertising and into the translation line item (same cost center, 511850) to 
provide dollars for translation prior to the execution of the grant agreement.  The 
estimated dollar amount is $5,000, which is based on the advertising costs for the 
Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report, which occurs in November.  
Additionally, the Department will also use approximately $210 from the cell phone 
allowance line item of (same cost center, 511710)  and $70 from the to pay for CDBG 
staff cell phone allowance.   
 
Fair housing activities costs will come from the HHS General Fund Cost Center 
15854001 line item (511430) into the CDBG General Fund Cost Center 158006001 line 
item (511440) to provide dollars for the social services contract for Austin Tenant’s 
Council totaling $43,451. 
 
Temporary salary costs totaling $15,000 will come from the CDBG Cost Center 
158006001 line item (500050) into the temporary salaries line item (500070). 
 
All of the appropriate general fund expenditures will be reclassified as CDBG grant 
expenditures when the grant budget is established by the County Auditor’s office, 
resulting in a zero impact on the general funds resources.  No matching funds are 
required.  The department anticipates a contract, with an allocation of $869,341 will be 
available before December 31, 2012. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
PBO 
 
Cc: Leslie Browder, PBO 

Diana Ramirez, PBO 
Kathleen Haas, HHS/VS, Finance 
Caula McMarion, HHS/VS, Finance 
Nicki Riley, Auditor’s Office 
DeDe Bell, Auditor’s Office 
Janice Cohoon, Auditor’s Office 
Christy Moffett, HHS/VS, CDBG 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

mailto:Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 43



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 45



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Elizabeth Montgomery, 854-3124 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action on 
recommendation to replace members to the Compensation Committee. 

A. Appoint a member to replace Susan Spataro 
B. Appoint a member to replace Joe Harlow 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
James W. Collins, County Attorney, 854-9415 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 46



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Gillian Porter, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the 
Voting Sessions of August 21 and 28, 2012. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C3



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, August 21, 2012  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 

78714-9325 

August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on August 21, 2012, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputies Gillian Porter and Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

 
 

Special note: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court is now located at 700 Lavaca St. 
 
However, please review future agendas carefully for meeting location for budget and tax rate 
items. 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments on Fiscal Year 2013 Travis County District Clerk’s Records Management 

Plan. (Action Item #24) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Karen L. Huber 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Michelle Brinkman, Chief Deputy, District Clerk's Office 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Karen L. Huber 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

2. Receive comments regarding the annual written plans for the 0108 (028) Records Management 
Preservation Fund and 0129 (057) County Clerk's Records Archival Fund. (Action Item #25) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Karen L. Huber 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dana DeBeauvior, County Clerk 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Karen L. Huber 

 
3. Receive comments regarding fee increase proposals for the use of the MyPermitNow web-

based permitting application by the Transportation and Natural Resources Department and 
Travis County Fire Marshal’s Office. (Action Item #11) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Karen L. Huber 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director, Engineering Services, TNR 
Stacey Scheffel, Program Manager, On-site Sewage Facilities, TNR 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
Dr. John K. Kim, Travis County Resident 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ms. Philip A. Dick, Travis County Resident 
Anthony Walker, Travis County Resident 
Dr. John K. Kim, Travis County Resident 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
4. Consider and take appropriate action on Proclamation recognizing Susan Spataro, County 

Auditor, upon her retirement after 24 years of dedicated service. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Susan Spataro, Travis County Auditor 
April Bacon, Chief Assistant II, Travis County Auditor's Office 
Leroy Nellis, Transition Budget Director, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 
Brett Spicer, Senior Deputy, Law Enforcement, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) and 

President, Travis County Law Enforcement Association (TCLEA) 
Bruce Elfant, Constable Precinct Five 
Dolores Ortega-Carter, Travis County Treasurer 
Dan Mansour, Risk Manager, Human Resources and Management Department (HRMD) 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 
Shyra Darr, Former Travis County Employee 
Keith Zimmerman, Travis County Resident 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
 

MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 4. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Special Item 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains in place. 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
6. Declare certain items surplus property and sell at public auction, pursuant to Section 263.151. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Approve Services Agreement for software product demonstration to the producer, COPsync, 

Inc., and authorize the Purchasing Agent to sign the agreement. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

8. Approve order exempting the purchase of Zumro Air Shelters from Progressive Emergency 
Products from the competitive procurement process pursuant to Section 262.024(a)(2) of the 
County Purchasing Act. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
9. Approve order exempting the purchase of tree removal and pruning services at Webberville 

Park from Davey Tree Expert Co. from the competitive procurement process, pursuant to 
Section 262.024(a)(2) of the County Purchasing Act. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Approve Contract Award for imaging and document management system, Contract No. 

4400001068, to the highest qualified respondent, Image Soft, Inc. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Dana DeBeauvior, Travis County Clerk 
Bonnie Floyd, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Bob Trautman, Division Director, Information Technology, Travis County Clerk's Office 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 10. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Sarah Eckhardt 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
11. Consider and take appropriate action on fee increase proposals for the use of the MyPermitNow 

web-based permitting application by:   
 

a. The Transportation and Natural Resources Department; and   
 
b. The Fire Marshal's Office. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on the following:    
 

a. Briefing on regional transportation partnership funding mechanisms; and    

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 12.a would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 
Steve Metcalf, Whisper Valley Development 
Jenny Harris, representing Ed Wolf, landowner 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director, Engineering Services, TNR 
Tom West, Park Springs Neighborhood Association 
Maura Phelan, Park Springs Neighborhood Association 
Tom Nuckols, Assistant County Attorney 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

 
b. The Lazy Nine Municipal Utility District No 1A's application for approval of road powers. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Anna Bowlin, Division Director, Engineering Services, TNR 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 12.b. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge noted that without objection the Court, on approving Item 12.b, 
reflects the approval of the request from both Lazy Nine MUD 1A and Lazy Nine MUD 1B for 
road powers. 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security Agreement with Gehan Homes Ltd. for 

sidewalk fiscal for Steiner Ranch Phase 1 Section 10E Lots 1-2 Block B, in Precinct Two. 
(Commissioner Eckhardt) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
14. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

 
RESULT: NOT NEEDED 

 
15. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and 

permissions to continue:    
 

a. Ratification of an amended application to the Office of the Governor, Criminal Justice 
Division, to receive United States Department of Justice one-time resources for a 
command and support vessel for the Lake Travis Patrol Unit of the Travis County Sheriffs 
Office;   

 
b. Annual contract with the Office of Attorney General to continue the Victim Coordinator and 

Liaison Grant Program in the District Attorney's Office;   
 
c. Annual contract with the Texas Department of Transportation to continue the Underage 

Drinking Prevention Program in the County Attorney's Office; and    
 
d. Permission to continue the Family Violence Accelerated Prosecution Program in the 

County Attorney's Office until a forthcoming agreement is fully executed. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$1,381,884.98 for the period of August 3 to August 9, 2012. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed routine personnel amendments. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on draft newspaper advertisements, including:   
 

a. Public hearing at 314 West 11th Street, Granger Building, Austin, Texas on September 25, 
2012 regarding the proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Travis County Budget;   

 
b. Notice of public hearings on tax increase at 700 Lavaca Street, Austin, Texas on 

September 11 and 14, 2012; and   
 
c. Notice of vote on tax rate at 314 West 11th Street, Granger Building, Austin, Texas on 

September 25, 2012. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Jessica Rio, Budget Director, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 18.a–c. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
19. In accordance with the Travis County Policies, Procedures and Regulations Manual, Sections 

10.043 Holidays and 10.044 Personal Holidays, respectively, discuss and approve holidays 
effective October 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Norman McRee, Financial Analyst, HRMD 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 19. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
20. Receive and take appropriate action on results of a County employee survey regarding cafeteria 

services at the Ned Granger Building. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management 
 

RESULT: DISCUSSED 
 
21. Receive update and take appropriate action regarding the 700 Lavaca building cafeteria. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Doris Zagst, Building Manager, 700 Lavaca Street 
Tenley Aldredge, Assistant County Attorney 
Ed Davis, representing Luby's 
Roger El Khoury, Director, Facilities Management 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/4/2012 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Justice and Public Safety Items 

 
22. Consider and take appropriate action to terminate the Interlocal Agreement with the Lower 

Colorado River Authority and Mutual Aid Agreements with the Capital Area Council of 
Governments and other jurisdictions and use the State Mutual Aid Agreement to request and/or 
provide assistance. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 
Barbara Wilson, Assistant County Attorney 

 
MOTION: Approve the Resolution terminating the agreements and authorize the 

County Judge to sign on behalf of the Commissioners Court, and that the 
Court be advised of any misunderstandings that occur.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Clerk's Note: By approving the Resolution the Court directs Staff to distribute the signed 
Resolution to all affected parties. 

 
23. Consider and take appropriate action on authorizing the Travis County Emergency 

Management Coordinator to sign the Fire Mitigation Assistance Grant Project Worksheets 
submitted by the Federal Emergency Management Agency for The Hodde Lane, Steiner Ranch 
and Pedernales Fires. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 

MOTION: Approve Item 23. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Other Items 

 
24. Consider and take appropriate action on Fiscal Year 2013 District Clerk’s Records Management 

Plan. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the annual written plans for the 0108 (028) 

Records Management Preservation Fund and 0129 (057) County Clerk's Records Archival 
Fund. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

26. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a status report from the County Auditor on 
issues regarding the office and the financial condition of the County, including updates and 
information on projects, committees, office activities and any other issues potentially affected by 
her transition from office. 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 26 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Susan Spataro, Travis County Auditor 
Rick Miller, Project Manager, Labyrinth Solutions, Inc. (LSI) 
Lee Nelson, Partner, LSI 
Christina Adair, Chief Assistant II, Travis County Auditor's Office 
Leroy Nellis, Transition Budget Director, PBO 
The Honorable Lora Livingston, Judge, 261

st
 District 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 
27. Receive briefing and take appropriate action on County Judge’s duty to call the November 6, 

2012 election as required by Section 3.004 of the Election Code. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
28. Receive briefing from County Attorney and take appropriate action concerning whether to file 

suit against Steffon Banks to recover damages to a County-owned guardrail. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 28 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Authorize the County Attorney's Office to file suit against Steffon Banks. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
29. Receive briefing from County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding whether to appeal 

FEMA’s decision pertaining to Travis County’s applications for financial assistance under the 
Fire Management Assistance Grants Nos. 2957, 2959 and 2960. 

1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 29 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Authorize the County Attorney to file an appeal on the Commissioners 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

Court's behalf in these three claims. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action on a counter-offer received by Travis County from Rodney 

Dean Grobowsky and Jon David Grobowsky for sale of various parcels of property needed for 
right-of-way and associated easements, and required for transportation-related improvements 
planned as part of the Slaughter Lane (East) Roadway Improvement Project in Precinct Four. 
(Commissioner Gómez) 

2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

MOTION: Instruct Staff to counter with an offer of $80,000.00. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
31. Consider and take appropriate action to acquire a conservation easement in eastern Travis 

County, as part of the 2011 Bond Program in Precinct One. (Commissioner Davis) 
1 and 2

 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 31 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 

MOTION: Approve the letter with general terms in Item 31. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
32. Receive briefing from County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding Susan Roehm 

claim. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Take no action, which will leave the parties where they were before today. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
33. Receive briefing and take appropriate action regarding Circuit of the Americas and Formula 

One. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 33 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

MOTION: Authorize Staff to sign the proposed agreements on Kellam Road. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
NAYS: Sarah Eckhardt 

 
34. Consider and take appropriate action on Economic Development Agreement with Austin 

Executive Airport. 
5
 

 
RESULT: POSTPONED  Reset for: 8/28/2012 

 
35. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding Michael Cargill v. 

Jaime Adan Ballesteros et al.; Cause No. D-1-GN-12-002377, including whether to authorize 
County Attorney to hire outside counsel

. 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 35 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 8/28/2012 

 
36. Consider and take appropriate action on annual grant contract with the Texas Department of 

Housing And Community Affairs to continue the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program 
managed by Health and Human Services. 

1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 36 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Execute the contract and direct Staff to start working on the issues 
discussed. 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 1] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
NAYS: Margaret J. Gómez 

Consent Items 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1-C3 (excluding July 17 and 24, 2012) 

and Agenda Items 6, 7, 8, 9, 11.a-b, 13, 15.a-d, 16, 17, 24, 25, and 27. 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 11 
 

C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Sessions of July 10, 17, 24 and 31, 
2012. 

 
 
MOTION: Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the July 17 and 24, 2012 Voting 

Sessions. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



 Minutes for the  
 Travis County Commissioners Court 
 Tuesday, August 28, 2012  

 Voting Session 

Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 1 

Call to Order 

Meeting called to order on August 28, 2012, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputies Gillian Porter and Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present   
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present   
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present   
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present   
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 

Public Hearings 

 
1. Receive comments on behalf of Health Facilities Development Corporation of Central Texas, 

Inc. regarding issuance of Health Facilities Development Corporation of Central Texas, Inc. 
Revenue Bonds (Lutheran Social Services of the South Obligated Group Project), Series 2012 
related to the financing of certain administrative offices of Lutheran Social Services of the 
South. (Action Item #26) 

MOTION: Open the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Sarah Eckhardt, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSENT: Karen L. Huber 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cliff Blount, General Counsel, Naman, Howell, Smith & Lee, LLP 
Andrea Shields, Manager, Travis County Corporations 
 

MOTION: Close the Public Hearing. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Citizens Communication 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, Travis County Health, Human Services, and Veterans’ 

Services (TCHHS&VS) 
Dr. Phil Huang, Medical Director, Austin Travis County Health and Human Services (A-TCHHS) 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 2 
 

Gus Peña, Travis County Resident 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

Special Item 

 
2. Consider and take appropriate action on an order concerning outdoor burning in the 

unincorporated areas of Travis County. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

Clerk's Note: The County Judge announced that by taking no action, the prohibition against 
outdoor burning remains in place. 

Resolutions and Proclamations 

 
3. Approve Proclamation declaring the month of September 2012 as “National Preparedness 

Month” in Travis County and encourage all residents of Travis County to remember the 2011 
fires one-year anniversary, become fire wise and implement necessary changes to reduce the 
risk of loss from wildfires, hurricanes, floods and other destructive events that can impact the 
County. (Commissioner Huber) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Pete Baldwin, Travis County Emergency Management Coordinator 
Flo Solis, Chief, Emergency Services District #4 (ESD #4) 
Ron Moellenberg, Chief, ESD #2 
Jim Linardos, Chief, ESD #6 
Mike Elliott, Chief, ESD #9 
John Jackson, Member, Board of Commissioners, ESD #10 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 

 
MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 3. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
4. Approve Proclamation commending the Spicewood Long Term Recovery Committee for work 

on behalf of the Spicewood area residents in the year after the 2011 Labor Day fires. 
(Commissioner Huber) 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Karen Lacey, Secretary and Treasurer, Spicewood Long Term Recovery Committee 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the Proclamation in Item 4. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 3 
 

Transportation and Natural Resources Dept. Items 

 
5. Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security Agreement with Highland Homes, Ltd-

Austin for sidewalk fiscal for West Cypress Hills Phase 1 Section 2 Lot 18 Block 1 in Precinct 
Three. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
6. Consider and take appropriate action on a Cash Security Agreement with Russell Eppright 

Custom Homes for sidewalk fiscal for Lake Pointe Section 7 Lot 2 Block C in Precinct Three. 
(Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
7. Consider and take appropriate action to approve the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan 

public participation fee structure for Fiscal Year 2013. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
8. Consider and take appropriate action on a request for a partial plat vacation of the Ridgeview 

Phase I Final Plat in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Huber) 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Health and Human Services Dept. Items 

 
9. Consider and take appropriate action on items related to environmental clearance for Travis 

County’s Community Development Block Grant Homebuyer Assistance Program with funding 
provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development:   

 
a. Certificate of Exemption for $78,927 for program management, conducting environmental 

clearances for individual properties, marketing and other allowable project delivery 
activities; and   

 
b. Delegate signature authority to the Travis County Health and Human Services and 

Veterans Service County Executive to environmentally clear each property so long as 
neither a full environmental assessment nor any mitigation measures are required. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
10. Receive update from Texas AgriLife Travis County on the Master Gardener Program. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Dolores Sandman, Director, Texas AgriLife Extension Service 
Daphne Richards, County Extension Agent-Horticulture, Texas AgriLife Extension Service 
Jackie Johnson, President, Master Gardeners Association 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 4 
 

11. Consider and take appropriate action to approve a request from Travis County Health and 
Human Services and Veterans Service for permission to use general fund for the Children's 
Continuum to send staff from partner agency to training. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
12. Consider and take appropriate action on the following budget issues in the Health and Human 

Services and Veterans Service Department:   
 

a. Transfer $28,000 from the Fiscal Year 2012 budget to ITS for the purchase of laptop 
computers instead of desktop equipment; and   

 
b. The need for departmental personnel for the pickup and delivery of food for pantry services 

to residents. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
 Consider and take appropriate action on the following budget issues in the Health and Human 

Services and Veterans Service Department:   
 

a. Transfer $28,000 from the Fiscal Year 2012 budget to ITS for the purchase of laptop 
computers instead of desktop equipment; and   

 
b. The need for departmental personnel for the pickup and delivery of food for pantry services 

to residents. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Sherri Fleming, County Executive, TCHHS&VS 
Steve Manilla, County Executive, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/4/2012 

Planning and Budget Dept. Items 

 
13. Consider and take appropriate action on budget amendments, transfers and discussion items. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Steven Broberg, Director, Records Management and Communication Resources (RMCR) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 13. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
14. Review and approve requests regarding grant programs, applications, contracts and 

permissions to continue:    
 

a. Application to the Texas Parks and Wildlife Department for Transportation and Natural 
Resources to construct a boat ramp at Pace Bend Park at Tournament Point;   

 
b. Application to the Lady Bird Johnson Wildflower Center for the Transportation and Natural 

Resources Department to restore habitat for the Black Capped Vireo on conservation 
easement lands;   

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 5 
 

c. Amendment to the existing Flood Mitigation Assistance Planning Grant with the Texas 
Water Development Board in the Transportation and Natural Resources Department;    

 
d. Permission to continue the Family Drug Treatment Court in the Civil Courts until an 

agreement is fully executed;    
 
e. Permission to continue the Travis County Veterans Court in the Criminal Courts until an 

agreement is fully executed;   
 
f. Permission to continue the Drug Diversion Court Program in Pretrial Services until an 

agreement is fully executed;   
 
g. Permission to continue the Juvenile Accountability Block Grant Local Assessment Center 

Program in Juvenile Probation until an agreement is fully executed; and   
 
h. Permission to continue the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Program in Juvenile 

Probation until an agreement is fully executed. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
15. Review and approve the immediate release of reimbursement payment to United Health Care 

for claims paid for participants in the Travis County Employee Health Care Fund for payment of 
$705,900.25 for the period of August 10 to August 16, 2012. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
16. Consider and take appropriate action on the following items for Human Resources Management 

Department:   
 

a. Proposed routine personnel amendments; and   
 
b. Non-routine request from District Clerk as approved by the Commissioners Court in 

Agenda Item #15 on September 8, 2009. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
17. Consider and take appropriate action on request to authorize the Strategic Planning Manager in 

the Planning & Budget Office and one Civil Judge to travel to Toronto to be guest speakers at 
the American Institute of Architects Academy of Architecture for Justice Conference in October 
2012. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget Office (PBO) 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 17. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 2] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Sarah Eckhardt, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 
NAYS: Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 

 
18. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve order amending Chapter 23 

(Investment Policy and Procedures) of the Travis County Code. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Debbie Laudermilk, Investment Manager, Cash/Investment Management 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 6 
 

MOTION: Approve Item 18. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
19. Consider and take appropriate action on request to approve amendments to 2011 Depository 

Contract schedule of fees. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Debbie Laudermilk, Investment Manager, Cash/Investment Management 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 19. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
20. Consider and take appropriate action on proposed Fiscal Year 2013 indirect cost rates. 

 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
21. Consider and take appropriate action on the following space allocations for the renovation of the 

Ned Granger Building, pursuant to the Central Campus Facilities Master Plan and the recent 
relocation of several County offices and departments from the Granger Building to the 700 
Lavaca Building:   

 
a. Allocation of all office suites on the 2nd floor to the District Attorney;   
 
b. Allocation of Office Suite 100A on the 1st floor, and all office suites on the 3rd, 4th, and 5th  

floors to the County Attorney;   
 
c. Allocation of the former Commissioners Courtroom to become a large conference room;   
 
d. Allocation of Office Suite 110 and 140 to the Records Management and Communication 

Resources Law Library/Self Help Center; and   
 
e. Relocation of the cafeteria from the 3rd floor to the 1st floor and approve allocation of Suite 

160 on the 1st floor for the cafeteria. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 
Leslie Stricklan, Project Manager, Facilities Management 
Gabriel Stock, Senior Architectural Associate, Facilities Management 
John Carr, Engineering Division Manager, Facilities Management 
John Hille, Assistant County Attorney 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/11/2012 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 7 
 

Purchasing Office Items 

 
22. Approve Modification No. 13 to Interlocal Agreement No. 4400000374 (HTE Contract No. 

IL070037RE), Austin Travis County Mental Health and Mental Retardation Center D/B/A Austin 
Travis County Integral Care for system of care services. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
23. Approve Modification No. 6 to Contract No. 4400000014 (HTE Contract No. 05AE0138JJ), 

MWM Design Group, for Howard Lane I Design Project. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
24. Approve twelve-month extension (Modification No. 10) to Contract No. 4400000013 (HTE 

Contract No. 03T00288OJ), Appriss, Inc., for the Texas VINE Services Agreement. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
25. Consider and take appropriate action regarding a Chief Information Officer (CIO) in the 

Information and Technology Services Department (ITS), RFS No. 06032012, Including:   
 

a. Whether to interview the top recommended candidate and when;   
 
b. Whether to authorize the Purchasing Agent to engage in further contract negotiations with 

the Lucas Group for Interim CIO and IT Assessment Services;   
 
c. Whether to authorize the Purchasing Agent to engage in contract negotiations with the 

Lucas Group to perform a gap analysis of the ITS Department; and/or   
 
d. Whether to direct the County Executive of Planning and Budget to develop a process to 

recruit a Chief Information Officer. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent 
Leslie Browder, County Executive, PBO 

 
MOTION: Approve Item 25.d, start the process to hire a Chief Information Officer (CIO) 

and undertake an assessment of the Information Technology Department 
once the new CIO is in place. 

MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 

 
FRIENDLY 
AMENDMENT: That PBO bring a process for hiring the CIO back to the Commissioners 

Court for approval. 
MOVER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
RESULT: FRIENDLY AMENDMENT ACCEPTED 
 
Clerk’s Note: A Vote on the Standing Motion was taken. 
 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 8 
 

Other Items 

 
26. Consider and take appropriate action to approve Resolution approving the issuance of Health 

Facilities Development Corporation of Central Texas, Inc. Revenue Bonds (Lutheran Social 
Services of the South Obligated Group Project), Series 2012. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

 
27. Consider and take appropriate action on request to change towing fees for Travis County 

Sheriff's Office. 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Phyllis Clair, Major, Law Enforcement, Travis County Sheriff's Office (TCSO) 
Enrique Patino, Deputy, TCSO 
Jackie Milhim, Big A Towing 
Jim Connolly, Assistant County Attorney 
Billy Davenport, Austin Towing Association 
Steve Harper, Harpers Towing 
Danny Hobby, County Executive, Emergency Services 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the recommended fee increases effective January 1, 2013. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
28. Consider and take appropriate action regarding the agreement for assessment and collection 

services between Travis County and Lazy Nine Municipal Utility District No. 1B. 
 
RESULT: ADDED TO CONSENT 

Executive Session Items 

The Commissioners Court will consider the following items in Executive Session. The 
Commissioners Court may also consider any other matter posted on the agenda if there are issues 
that require consideration in Executive Session and the Commissioners Court announces that the 
item will be considered during Executive Session. 
 
Note 1: Gov’t Code Ann 551.071, Consultation with Attorney 
Note 2: Gov’t Code Ann 551.072, Real Property 
Note 3: Gov’t Code Ann 551.074, Personnel Matters 
Note 4: Gov’t Code Ann 551.076, Security 
Note 5: Gov’t Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations 
 
29. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding a pending enforcement 

action involving a developer and violations of development regulations in the Mountain View 
subdivision. 

1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 29 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/11/2012 

 
30. Consider and take appropriate action on a counter-offer received by Travis County from Quarry 

Lot 8, Ltd. for sale of various parcels of property needed for right-of-way and associated 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 9 
 

easements, and required for transportation-related improvements planned as part of the 
Slaughter Lane (East) Roadway Improvement Project in Precinct Four. (Commissioner  
Gómez) 

2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 30 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/11/2012 

 
31. Consider and take appropriate action on a counter-offer received by Travis County from 

Dannelly Tract, Ltd. for sale of various parcels of property needed for right-of-way and 
associated easements, and required for transportation-related improvements planned as part of 
the Slaughter Lane (East) Roadway Improvement Project in Precinct Four. (Commissioner 
Gómez) 

2
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 31 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney and Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.072, Real 
Property. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/11/2012 

 
32. Consider and take appropriate action on request for financial incentives for Project Panther. 

5
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 32 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov't. Code Ann 551.087, Economic Development Negotiations. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/4/2012 

 
33. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding Circuit of the Americas 

and Formula One. 
1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 33 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/4/2012 

 
34. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding Michael Cargill v. 

Jaime Adan Ballesteros et al.; Cause No. D-1-GN-12-002377, including whether to authorize 
County Attorney to hire outside counsel.

 1
 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 34 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 

MOTION: Appoint John F. McCormick to represent Constable Ballesteros, Precinct 
Two as outside legal counsel on this matter. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Samuel T. Biscoe, Judge 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
35. Consultation with County Attorney and take appropriate action regarding:   
 

a. Requirements in contracts with Labyrinth Solutions, Inc. (LSI Consulting) and SAP for 
implementation of Better Enterprise Financial Information for Travis County (BEFIT); and   

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Commissioners Court Page 10 
 

b. Roles and responsibilities of County Auditor and Commissioners Court on accounting and 
audit services and County programs. 1 

Judge Biscoe announced that Item 35 would be considered in Executive Session pursuant to 
Gov’t. Code Ann. 551.071, Consultation with Attorney. 
 
RESULT: DISCUSSED Reset for: 9/4/2012 

Consent Items 
 

Members of the Court heard from: 
Hershel Lee, Travis County Fire Marshal 
Ronnie Gjemre, Travis County Resident 

 
MOTION: Approve the following Consent Items: C1–C4 and Agenda Items 5, 6, 7, 8, 9.a–b, 

11, 12.a, 14.a–h, 15, 16.a–b, 20, 22, 23, 24, 26, and 28. 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 
 
C1. Receive bids from County Purchasing Agent. 
 
C2. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest County funds. 
 
C3. Approve the Commissioners Court Minutes for the Voting Session of August 7, 2012. 
 
C4. Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, September 18, 2012 to receive comments 

regarding a request to authorize the filing of an instrument to vacate the two five foot wide public 
utility easements located along the common lot line Lots 1083 and 1084 of Apache Shores 
Section 2 in Precinct Three. (Commissioner Huber) 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Com,missioners Court Agenda Request 


M,eeting Date: September 25,2012 
Prepared By: Joe Arriaga Phone #: 854-7562 
Division Director/Manager:" , Division Director, Development Services 

Department Head: Steven M. ilia, P .. , County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 


AGEN,DA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a publ'ic hearing on Tuesday, October 30, 

2012 to receive comments regarding prat for recording: Roundmountain Oaks, 

Revised Pilat of Part of Lot 31- Final Plat (Revised Plat of Lot 31, Roundmountain 

Oaks - Subdivision Final Plat - Two Lots - Faubion Trail - Leander ET J) in Precinct 

Three. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The proposed revised plat is for the purpose of creating two additional single family 

lots totaling 12.02 acres out of the 29.87 acre of Lot 31 of the Roundmountain Oaks 

Subdivision Final Plat. Lot 31 has been split into 4 tracts, two of the tracts are part of 

the request. There are no new public or private streets proposed with this final plat. 

This plat is not subject parkland fees. Fiscal surety is not required for this short form 

plat. Water service to be provided by a private water supplier - Hills of Texas Bulk 

Water and wastewater service to be provided by on-site septic facilities. Applicant 

was granted a subdivision exemption from the City of Leander, therefore, the 

property owner did not have to plat and not subject to the city's subdivision 

regulations. 


STAFF RECO,MMENDATIONS: 

As this revised final plat meets all Travis County standards and baring any new 

information, TNR Staff recommends approval. 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

Notification 

Public Notification of this revised plat was mailed to all lot owners of the original 

subdivison, Roundmountain Oaks. In addition, a newspaper noticed was also done 

as well a public notice sign. The sign was posted on the subject property to 

announce the date, time, and location of the public hearing. Should staff receive any 

inquiries from adjacent property owners as a result of the mailout or sign placement, 

an addendum to this back up memorandum wii~ 1I be provided to the Court prior to the 

public hearing. 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C4



Deed Restrictions 
The property is subject to the deed restrictions approved when the subdivision was 
platted in 1977. The applicant has met with the homeowners association for 
approval to create the additional two lots. The proposed revised plat meets the deed 
restriction requirement of one acre per lot for future resubdivisions of the original 
lots. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 
Precinct map 
Location map 
Existing final plat 
Proposed final plat 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla County Executive TNR 854-9429 

cc: 


SM:AB:ja 

1101 - Development Services - Roundmountain Oaks, Revised Plat of Part of Lot 31) 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



2011 Commissioner Precincts 

Precinct 1: Ron Davis 
314 W. 11th St. #510 
Austin, TX 78701 
Phone: (512) 854-9111 
Fax: (512) 854-4897 

~~;f ; Precinct 2: Sarah Eckhardt 

314 W. 11th St.1I530 

Austin , TX 78701 

Phone: (512) 854-9222 

Fax· 


314 W. 11th St. 11500 

Austin, TX 78701 

Phone: (512) 854-9333 

Fax: (512) 854-9376 


~::;f:3 Precinct 4: Margaret Gomez 
314 W. 11th St. #525 
Austin, TX 78701 
Phone : (512) 854-9444 
Fax: (512) 854-9535 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



SllE 


NOT TO SCALE 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



J",,"ctI TV....~ 
vb/vn?-= ~t'~/ P""9c ~9P 

~l~~ 
I.~~/.,~ ~.''''w~ t'n... · IIM'n,r ~,. 

<7' 

AC 

,II'~dd# /I.!e. ••• 
PD.?? ' 

~ 

12 
11.24 AC 

17 
10.00 AC 

29 ~----t_r---
'" la92 AC 
~ --".,.,: 
'" 

_",,,,, - .". 
4416.77' I nJ.J4' 

TRAIL 

"JtIM~..v 

~ 
~ 28 

laoo AI: 

~~ ~-~ Ii: ",....«>j.I Al&N.M· J 
~ 7.'a".~.e~~~t:'. - ~_#'ir.A 

l~ 
~ 

\\ ? 
,( ~ 27 

(~ ~ 10.00 AC 

~~ 
'( 

/I 

CISCO TRAIL 

8 
1/7AC 

7 
T66AC 

0J 

5 
10.031 AC 

4 
10.01 AC 

3 
10.00 AC. 

2 
10.01T AC 

10.016 AC 

,~ 

~ 
'U§7j,/ /~.;>I>·l \"'\ ji.ul:21W ,Ji~ ' 

,~{', ,.A:'.ic u,~_ +'~~' ~~ /.~<I . ~.
,<$6 . ,t., ~""-1"~-------.!I 

- -~~<""" ~ - "A~,~~ ~ ~s ~----=:.- _\-_~, 

~ oY'F\c~ ) ,~'A}JC/-IES ~~ /.~~ ~ 
1 \<;>L- I . I ~ 

1.r.4 ~ /7(': ,'.7.1 £/~"J J. 1.10 \ /~/
--I.. ' \~-1 I'--;I-IA~~T 1':':;;/ /;' .6~:,h~. 3 
"'i-~-r7~ I ,<-;4Gff <1~!44 

}\) ~ 

77.i1 

""6~.as · 

~M~ ' 

7, . 

30 
.'S.694 AC 

~I 

~ 
~ 
~ 

~ 

J~, 
~ 

<? '~ 
~ ~ 

\ ~1, 33 
t! \J 40.004 AC. 
j) 

~ 
.~ 

32 
29.747 AC 

r 

¥ 
31 

29.673. 

Il~ 

,~ 

~ 

'£{-/JE ~'. M 

43 
24.963 AC 

~ 

: I t ~ 
:: 

''''__1t" &04~ ' 

~ 
~-

~ 
~ 

40 
~ 

2S.l6TAC 

"f1 
fJ-,FJ 

~1, ~ 
O~ 

~l> 

36 
26.039 AC 

,JdWZ 7iIM.'" 

VICINITY MAP 
(., SCA~. J 

1I1'~P.J~· 

~'(7ioI-,I1!1A' 

""~.r~ 
'11""';" 4."" 

1~·16"· 

~~'Ll"_~ 

«'~ 
~ ~ 

t! '0 ~1, 
-y 

37 
2S.002 AC i 

~ 
~ 
~ 

--, """"Dr? . .... 1 ~ •.vc.r I~ 
j - ~ ?a.,.bF...::,er~r....,.,.~""'" ~ 

LEGEND 
.C"""~;;;.,,.,.,, 

: P'~ 1t;-,r~;,t' 
: Z::~1:1d 

.<" 

'o~Z-->...,.., 
-~:i: 

<c
o. 

45 
58.828 At 

~ 

"":--:.. 

~ 
~I 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



fro,., _.I p",~,,'J

P(4\+ ~i 11 


lPwt) 
LOT 3 
ROUND ~OUNTAIN OAKS WICHAEl L'I'NN SHERL£Y 
73/86 P.R.T.C. WARY E\IEl.YN SHERLEY 

11992/1032 T.C.R.P.R. 

/
LOT 2 
5.002 ACRES 

BLOCK A 
LOT 42 
ROUND ~OUNTAIN 
73/86 P.R.T.C. 

LOT 1 ~ 
~ 

7.000 ACRES 

LOT 43 
ROUND ~OUNTAIN OAKS 
73/86 P.R.T.C. 

GARY DEAN HARROlD 

CHRIS ~ HARROLD 

13377/2301 T.C.R.P.R.

/ 12 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Trav'is County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By: Michael Hettenhausen~hone #: 854-7563 
Division Director/~ger: (n:al wlin, Division Director, Development Services 

Department Head: Steven M.\lM'a'Kill , P.E., County Executive-TNR 
Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Huber, Precinct Three 

AG'ENiDA LANGUAGE: Approve setting a public hearing on Tuesday, October 30, 
2012 to receive comments regarding requests for partial plat vacations of lots 43 
through 53 of the Reserve at Lake Travis Final Plat; lots 43 through 53A of the 
Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103, Block A and Lots 5-9, 13 & 1.4 Block C The 
Reserve at Lake Travis; and lots 43, 44, 45, 46A and 47 A of the Revised Plat of Lots 
53A & 54A Block A and Lot 17, Block C of the Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103, 
Block A and Lots 5-9, 13 & 14 Block C The Reserve at Lake Travis in Precinct 
Three. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
The Reserve at Lake Travis, LLC, owners of Lot 44 of the Reserve of Lake Travis 
Final Plat and lots 46A and 47A of the Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103, Block A 
and Lots 5-9, 13 & 14 Block C The Reserve at Lake Travis, Hal Jones, owner of Lot 
45 Block A, and Russell and Glenda Harbison, owners of Lot 43 Block A of the 
Reserve at Lake Travis Final Plat have applied through Travis County for a partial 
plat vacation of the three plats that show a manina easement on these lots. The 
original subdivison, located on Thurman Bend Road, consisted of 131 total lots on 
291.15 acres and has been modified with several revised plats. The lots proposed 
for vacation, located on Ruffian Heights Lane and Flying J Boulevard, are bordered 
by a marina easement on the original and both revised plats. 

Approval of the three partial plat vacations will return the lots back to raw land and 

remove all easements shown graphical'ly on the three plats. Upon approval of the 

vacation, the owners will be able to replat the lots without the marina easement 

shown on the original plat and shown and referenced on the two succeding revised 

plats. The associated replat (Cliffside at the Reserve at Lake Travis) will be 

scheduled for plat approval on the same agenda as the public hearing for the partial 

plat vacation. 


STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Texas Local Government Code Section 232.008 states that a recorded plat may be 

vacated if 75% of the owners of the original subdivision sign the vacation document. 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item C5



In this case, 80% of the owners of the original subdivision have signed the vacation 

document (see attached Exhibit A). 


ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

As over 75% of the owners of the original subdivision have signed the vacation 

document and all Travis County subdivision requirements have been met, staff 

recommends approval of the motion. 


FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

N/A 


ATTACHMENTS/EXHIBITS: 

Precinct map 

Location map 

Copy of vacation document 

Copy of original final plat and both revised plats 


REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 


TNRFinancial Manager 854-4239Cynthia McDonald 
TNR 854-9429Steve Manilla Count~ Executive 

cc: 


SM:AB:mh 
1101 - Development Services - Reserve at Lake Travis Partial Plat Vacation 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



~~o., 

/ 
<o~, 

City of ~~'hi·/:" '~:~:~)~i'C
l.. \Lago Vista l,' 'l<,Jl"~~5~6~r'"'~, ! 

,,~~.1/'( <~',~~ ,.d' i/>l. 
_./' . "/~)'~~r~ / " 

IV" _ '" ;: ji~~I"!1;'9~1 
r"ii'4¢....1~~~~~~:N~~~;:;~~ . . i " i :)·Jo~'\' I '. ;''i~ 
I, ~ f~C'~ / j If' 'Jl t .j·.· 

' ~ ) ' , .) 
( 

~f, U~lJt··) .
I / y . ;f:iJ,;~__ f 

,*'~. l ' /tJ;W ~!-l; '~1""0. ./ Village of ,.. -I'"l 

! 
J \ 

\ ,0'''''',\ PointI \.1'~ . , "I> '.~"", ' ,jIttd -' ttt"J j>Venture City ()f ",0"'<# . 
( ~D ,~::t/;,,;.'; Lakeway ~·~~.._l ; ~,~:~~;i'~~-

/.J...~( . )
~II 

~ 

1 ~ ~ \,-i~ """" ..:"", -:r~",,'. 
''' t/ ~ :~:~-'.I)~ 

i1/" :.,Q/ \ 
..,.' .... rol ' 

I 
/~,Village of':JI-·

f~~·O~E~'" The Hillsr.. '/I;:-J-"~~~~~r~~\.., 
>'~1"'"~'>{;}:i " ._" ~ ·.?o 

l 

g; ',' " /' "j -'>-l~~'~ ~~'r 
e :.t. J 

o. 

'j, ( 
I 

l ~ 

Y ··"7~,Village of 

Bee Cave 


(1/. <~"'C:-"""
I''''''''''''' 
t': 

r~ 

I 
I '~~-~ ''"'~'''t~ .iO':f:t-"'''' ''':

' r '- \.,. ' ~'. '\ 

PRECINT 3 

t 
I 

~~~=::::i$~S:=~__ '{-':::':;-;:"\ r 
J"t l c .~,... 

--" :.........~ 1~~ 

Legend 

1'.1'(.......,( 
 t,t ~ 
- State Maintained ; , \.w~o\! ~, 

- -2.4""_~""'<~~:'·'__~___ t_ ., I l·~~·~'i, ~ 
------ Park Road _______ ~ \:'\~//)!?__ /~ . "",U~D 

Incorporated 
Travis Count1.!.~cation Map ~ 

-----. Travis County Maintained -.......--. ..---- '> 
Not Maintained _. rr7' ' " · ·.·""-, '-',. ,/ ~~r:-A'\~,- :=1II f" ',--==/ ~ I SH 45---.-.......... ,~~ "-; IPrivate Hays Co u nty 

......cG . 'v "1;"~7J ~J~.~.~Rejection of Dedication 
$' ,Jr r.-",{>,.:.Source(s): City 01 Austin Roads - COA2011 .L 0 .s' 

Unincorporated Roads· Travis County
Undedicated. Private 812011 , Toll Road· various sources, '- .. ,\..,,,,<-// 

Creeks- NHD 2005 . Parks - Travis County 
,~' ------ ---------.1:8~~ 

2011, Commissioner Precincts· Travis County s 
Voter Registrar 2002. 

Precinct 3 

Map Disclaimer: The data is provided 
"as is" with no warranties of any kind Map Prepared by: Travis County, 

Dept of Transportation & Natural 
I Resources. Date: 8/9/2011

MilesTravis County Roadways, Map 0 Cit 
Prp..~~~~ Man 


Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



EXHIBIT A 

PARTIAL VACATION OF "The Reserve at Lake Travis" 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF --!T-'-'ra"-'v'-"is"--__ 

WHEREAS, (The Reserve at Lake Travis LLC), owner of Lot 44 Block A The Reserve at Lake Travis _ a subdivision as recorded in 
Document No. 200800255 of the Official Public Records of Travis ~County Lots 46A and 47A Block A Revised Plat of Lots 53A & 54A 
Block A and Lot 17 Block C of The Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103 Block A and Lots 5-9 13 & 14 Block C The Reserve at Lake 
Travis and Lots 46-52 57-67 & 102-B Block A The Reserve at Lake Travis a subdivision as recorded in Document No. 201100186 
and Lot 53A Block A Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103 Block A and Lots 5-9 13 & 14 Block C The Reserve at Lake Travis a 
subdivision as recorded in Document 2009001 19 WHEREAS, (Harrv (Hal) R. Jones III) owner Lot 45 Block A and (RusseH and 
Glenda Harbison) owner Lot 43 Block A The Reserve at Lake Travis a subdivision as recorded in Document No. 200800255 of the 
Official Public Records of Travis County Texas total' 14.61 acres, did heretofore subdivide the same into the subdivision designated 
(The Reserve at Lake Travis) the plat of which is recorded in Document No. 200800255 and 201100186 of the Travis County. Texas 
Plat Records, and 

WHEREAS, the following lots in said subdivision are now owned by the parties indicated, to wit: 

LOT OWNER 

Lots 44, 46A, 47A and 53A, Block A The Reserve at Lake Travis, LLC 

Lot 43, Block A Russell and Glenda Harbison 

Lot 45, Block A Harry (Hal) R. Jones III 


WHEREAS, (The Reserve at Lake Travis LLC Harry (Hal) R. Jones III and Russell and Glenda Harbison) who collectively constitute 
80.63% of the owners of all original, intact lots in (The Reserve at Lake Travis) are desirous of partially vacating said subdivision plat so 
as to destroy the force and effect of the recording of such subdivision plat insofar and only insofar as the same pertains to Lot(s) 43 44 
45 46A and 47 A Block A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

That The Reserve at Lake Travis LLC Harry (Hal) R. Jones III and Russell and Glenda Harbison for and in consideration of the 
premises and pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 232.008 of the Local Government Code, does hereby vacate Lot(s) 43 44 45 
Block A The Reserve at Lake Travis as recorded in 200800255 of the Official Public Records of Travis County Lots 46A and 47A 
Block A Revised Plat of Lots 53A & 54A Block A and Lot 17 Block C of The Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103 Block A and Lots 5-9 
13 & 14 Block C The Reserve at Lake Travis and Lots 46-52 57-67 & 102-B Block A The Reserve at Lake Travis a subdivision as 
recorded in Document No. 201100186 and Lot 53A Block A Revised Plat of Lots 53-56 & 103 Block A and Lots 5-9 13 & 14 Block C 
The Reserve at Lake Travis a subdivision as recorded in Document 200900119 only. Said subdivision shall , however, remain in full 
force and effect as to all other lots in The Reserve at Lake Travis. 

EXECUTED THE DAYS HEREAFTER NOTED. 

DATE OWNER'S SIGNATURE 

The Reserve at Lake Travis, LLC, Hal Jones, President, Hal Jones, Power of Attorney 
for Russell and Glenda Harbison and Harry (Hal) R. Jones III 

State ofTexas)( 

County of Travis )( 

Before me, the undersigned authority on this day personally appeared Hal Jones, known to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and he acknowledges to me that he executed the same for the purpose on the 
conSideration therin expressed and in the capacity therin stated. 

Notary Public, State of Texas 


Print Notary's Name: _____________ 


My Commissions Expires :,____ ________ 


Witness My Hand, this __Day of ____, 2012, A.D. 


NOTARY STATEMENT REQUIRED FOR EACH SIGNATURE UNLESS ALL OR SOME OWNERS SIGN BEFORE THE SAME 
NOTARY. THE DATE OF EACH INDIVIDUAL NOTARY CERTIFICATE MUST MATCH THE DATE THAT APPEARS OPPOSITE THE 
OWNER'S SIGNATURE IN THE BODY OF THE DOCUMENT. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



_ _ 

REVISED PLAT OF LOTS 53A &: 54A, BLOCK A AND LOT 17. BLOCK C OF THE REVISED 

PLAT OF LOTS 53-56 & 103, BLOCK A AND LOTS 5-9, 13 &: 14, BLOCK C, THE RESERVE 


AT LAKE TRAVIS AND LOTS 46-52, 57-67 &: 102-B. BLOCK A. 

THE RESERVE AT LAKE TRAVIS 


TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 
fEBRUARY 2, 2011 I 

ApproJfimol. South Bank of t"~ 100' 0' 100' 200' 
Colorado RI....,- (per Uarsholl Ford :f~ 5~ 

Oam Rf¢>t-of-Way Sun.!'y. Sheet 

6-1217, Oat~ Jon Jo. 19:J7) 


~ 88"311'01" [ 806.76' ' , S IInrlS" E ~.II' 
S 1III"21'IS" E 1113' S IIII"JO'OO" E 

i 
54A-l 

30.612 ACRES~ 
Iwm 71t! 

8 
}l 

COMMERCIAl 

WPIIOlllIW£ lDCA1ION:f~ g~ f[IIA 1!JO-'IR II.OCO'\JoIj 
I:DR_EASDDlI 

(n2' CDlleu) 

S 11753'211" £ ~4:1J· 
. -UNilliA £lSIlIOO 

00c. No. 2GCIIIOO255 JL - --.. , ......... 

"--~:.----

46A 
5.539 ACRES 

lr.rm:m1 47A 
5.456 ACRES 

lum n31!i'JIa4:, Z~£ 

H l1li,0'28" II' JOe.52' LIn C7J _ _ ::,_...__~1Jh:J~~.NO. 200Il00255

";:VHCiG ~! FLYING JBOUlEYARD ~ 1of 1l;1-~~" 
S l1li,0'28" E 3OC.82' ... In, .~/.t!!14.v.. . ~, 

LEGEND 
o ~>" IRON ROO scr ,,/ CAl' o 

STAMPW '71:1IflA F/fIIIA" ... 
• ~"NfON HOD FOUl/(} A(/INLCSS NOTED) 

( )• ," IRON PtPC FTXJH() (J 
• LCRA ~ONIIIICNr r/

BRASS CAP FOUl/(} 

COrroN SPINDI.C F()(IMJ I 1 
COTTON SPfNOiI SET IoIF1r 

C'ONCRE1E Jlr.iNl.JUENr ser 
NAA. FrXIND 
_scr 
REr:t:JRD /fI/f"OMIA T10N (AdjrWr"'l1 T""'/$)
REr:ORO INf'OfIiIIA T10N _ (__ FonI 

0-. IfIyIIt-or- IftI, s.r-, _t 1S-1217) 

I/ECOIfQ INFORII A T10N ti- r.w. 605. Pf1. ~) 
JIINItIIJJI f1N1SI-ED FLOOR ll.CVA 770N 

BEARING BASIS NOTE: 

HORIZONTAL DAlVII BASED UPON 1£XAS STATE PLANE 

COORDINATE SYSTIOI, NAD63, TEXAS CENTRAL ZONE. 

COORDINATES AND DISTANCES SHOWN ARE SURrACE 

VALUES. COIoIBINED SCALE rACTOR IS 0 .99990156 


9C.M ' 

BLOCK A 

Cf 
0 ' .s- ~ 

$ #~. 
'b" ... '" 


__ltLOCA_ "? ."~' 

~. ;/:~ '" 


FBlA l!JO-lR FI.llCOPl»I 

Tn 
t; ;;~.• DRIoICAC:E EASDENT 

(722' CXlffCUR) If '" t; 

LClI:=lIC111 ji? l ,.."2:;f~~~:'~~~'L~::,, ;", 

I' \ Ll _ 
"reo1...u Lll1ll 
':INIOCXMIUo I 
:,~ 1 

.. 1 
"
, .", 
" =t'" ,
" ~ ,I, '-, 

WATCHLINI: s~:: ~:
L4 rlAlCE~'oISAT UllJIY EASDENT WATCJii:JNE SHEET 8 '1.0- S , 

s __,=:.."~ " "'I s. -._~ 
,,-,....:' ..=..": , 
. 

"8~'2O"1I' 
2Oe.30' 1I:I.4C!' 

f
"JCllAiUHlA1lQf 

"' EASOIEJ(IWIl..~. Pll, l41 z 

I <> 


5=' 
/ :,48 ~! 

:,j ' ' _1[ 

.. LOCAlION 71$' ,,''::~ ( 
OOIIIIUt " ;. ,~, ..:{""'. - ,-, 

~ 103., ~A AN/) \f>-II, (711' COII1QJR) 

~ '''14, Doc. No. 20011110255 


~"o.~2J2 ~ 

"/
\ 

~ 
~ 

",' 

/ 

/ 
/ 

'" 1HE R£ AT lAICE 'M 

DOC. "\..2OOQOO11; ~ < = ' 
"': ,-I . " ,4 I 

,1CII4TUSf~ , ; 

,, , 

terra LAND SURVEYING 
~Irma 

1101 CMrwW1 ~• .... ..aD ' ......... , ••• 711" . SI2/UI-&.J7.S · ra. 6t2/44!-},28& 


/ ' - , -.J ' 

{/ 
\ 

1 

tAl-n. ~fOA..~ ';I 

, . ' Mf ..1IS1DIITt\ . \ '-=.':.::IJItl / 
DOC._~ 

:/ : f.. 

SHEET 8 OF 11 

fIE; ~~'~D01\IIE\1SOPIAT.IlIG 

_0108 NO: _,7_' 1lI*I1r:-1iSt 
6\1[:- - 02-4-2011 CII.t1IID"'-.IQII 
srAI: ---j''';I00' -1!l\!!ii!---.=1a-:-2011 

~r;sQ r£Ar '" lIn7I IS~~ .. 4UA" ,~ A AJI1J lDI" ". 
M4:~ C or f'1U .nan pur 0' lIlTS ~., .. IN, 

JIl.(JC% A AIID lDI"S 6-., " .. '4, III.tJCI C. f'ta .aVWI 
AJ' UD f'MrrS AND UIf'8 4.-", trT-" .. 101-4 MJJCZ A. 
, I'D aDllRrl Ar UD' TurfS 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

http:1Jh:J~~.NO


ApproJrimDtfl Soutll Bank of til. 

CI1Iorodo li'i __ (Pir "~ofI Ford 
 0' " 00' 200' 300' _1IASIS.1I01f:~5~ 	 IICIIDIIITAlMlWlMIII_1EIAS
()Qm Right-of-Woy ~ Sh,..l ~- STAlJ'" CllSllAlE S'ISlDI. -. 
6-1217, Dottld Jon ..Ja 19J7) 1DU i:DnM. IQIE ~1D'" 

:W 	 ===F~S:~~SP'27'1rE'4a I',r E 11:5.00' 

~• 
z 

:£ak. y~ 

'~t/'I----=f__ ! --t 

44 	 4745 	 I ~~I 

I I 51 


RESEIM Af 
TAAVlS 

DOC.~ 200800255-L I I 
46 

1 ' 
j---~~ y~ .. 

· ---~ 
48 

-

49 

54A 
31 .233 ACRES 

im:1rn 

COMMERCiAl 

~m>DCQlf/N 
lIlfltJI(l!fllDl 

I BLOCK A 

~~" . ~~ ~ tC · ·-':E4OUr"" 	 iIUJ \ .u~ ....., 
,/ BLOCK A '; 	 -

54A 
3·, .233 A,CRES 

/ 	 ~33 
stoCKC 

17 
1 t .048 ACR£S -- / COMMERCIAL,,'~--j 

57 ) 
LEGEND 

o ~. /RON ROO scr w/ CAP REVISED PLAT OF LOTS 53-56 &- 103~ BLOCK 	 SHEET 1 OF 5 
• NAIl FOlJNO

sr.uIPtD "mII'lA FJRMA' 

·~:TE1Jr 
• ,'JRCNPJIfl£FrJfJND 

• L~ -.wENr./_SS CAP Fr1UND 

• CO~ SPJNDt£rtJt/M) 
o cor~ Sl'1NDtC set 
a ~_rscr 

A 
( ) 
[) 

I I 
JilT 
IKU 

NA1l seT 
RCr;oRD 1NFrJMIAT1tlN (M.JMin9 TffICb) 
.<iIft'O!r) IN'rJIWArlClN (__ Font 

a.... ~t-Df-"." _y_t '-IZI7) 
~/WI:IIWA~ r- I0Io( _ Pp. 520) 
I!I/IIJM(M F1NISHED FIDQ/f lJ.EYAT1tlN 
"'"1FR QJALJ7Y ZfJNC 

A AND LOTS 5-9, 13 & 14~ BLOCK C~ 
THE RESERVE AT LAKE TRAVIS 

TRAVIS COUNTY. TEXAS 
APRIL 10, 2009 

terra LAND SURVEYINGJlrma 
,.............................. __ .,~ ,_ .QI.....a-

IU:~~.DIII

ali jif9jf& I 
If. 

1IIF1S~D pur 0' LOf'S 68-A 4: '08, 
BLOCK ~ ..uti) UYI'S 6-', '8 4: '4. BLOCK c,

ra RZS~RY~ AI' UJa rlUVIS 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



o· 100' 

-i 
37 ... 

1.218 ACRES ~ 
S 

200' 

36 

~ 
~ 

1.534 ACRES 

300' 

• 

,. 
I 
~ ..35 

1.035 AC1!fS I~ 
!I. 

IM.OCK A 

~a/c"" 5~ 

~LOCKA 

COMMERCIAL 

54 
38,174 ACRES 

~ 

....,!('!> 
, -t".e. ..... r2'f OreInot. 
' , ,'~, [

!',..... , ~L~~JIN[ 
..... ', (25' PIIC11_rlfSlrJOLE) , ' ..
56 " '~:.. 

" v"
15.312 ACRES ,"'~ 

tmlITI ",: 

THE RESERVE AT LAKE TRAVIS 
TRAVIS ' COUNTY, TEXAS 

terri· 
~Irm ' 

.AOGUST 14, 2008 

'''''_Il0l(;
IIlIIZGItAL ~ ... lIN! IBM 

=~T~~1IISrMGIS ... .w..,~V11W15.CIIIIDlm 5eM£ ~ II t __ 

LAND SURVEYING 

'7.1 ~ .................. . ...... ' ,.,.. . I'~.. rn "..,4M-aM 

• Gf 12 

THE RESERVE AT LAKE TRAVIS 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 2



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Gillian Porter, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Northwest Travis County Road 
District No. 3 Minutes for the Voting Sessions of August 21 and 28, 2012. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 3



  

August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, August 21, 2012  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on August 21, 2012, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present 
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
1. Approve the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 Minutes for the Voting Sessions of 

July 10 and 24, 2012. 

MOTION: Approve the minutes for July 10, 2012. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
 Approve the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 Minutes for the Voting Sessions of 

July 10 and 24, 2012. 

MOTION: Approve the minutes for July 24, 2012. 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



  

August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Northwest Travis County 
 Road District No. 3 (Golden Triangle) 
 Tuesday, August 28, 2012  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on August 28, 2012, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District Funds. 

MOTION: Pay the claims in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
2. Approve the Northwest Travis County Road District No. 3 Minutes for the Voting Session of 

August 7, 2012. 

MOTION: Approve Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 2



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Gillian Porter, Commissioners Court 
Specialist, 512-854-4722 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Dana DeBeauvoir, Travis County 
Clerk 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 
Minutes for the Voting Sessions of August 21 and 28, 2012. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 3



  

August 21, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, August 21, 2012  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on August 21, 2012, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present  
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
1. Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 Minutes for the Voting Sessions of July 10 and 24, 

2012. 

MOTION: Approve the minutes for July 10, 2012. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

 
 Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 Minutes for the Voting Sessions of July 10 and 24, 

2012. 

MOTION: Approve the minutes for July 24, 2012 
RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Ron Davis, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Ron Davis, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber 

Adjourn 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



  

August 28, 2012 Minutes of the Travis County Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) Page 1 

 Minutes for the Travis County  
 Bee Cave Road District No. 1 (Galleria) 
 Tuesday, August 28, 2012  

 Voting Session 

 Minutes Prepared by the Travis County Clerk 
512-854-4722 ● www.co.travis.tx.us ● PO Box 149325, Austin, TX 78714-9325 

Meeting called to order on August 28, 2012, in the Travis County Administration Building, 
Commissioners Courtroom, 700 Lavaca Street, 1st Floor, Austin, TX. Dana DeBeauvoir, County 
Clerk, was represented by Deputy Robert Resnick. 
 
Samuel T. Biscoe County Judge Present 
Ron Davis Precinct 1, Commissioner Present 
Sarah Eckhardt Precinct 2, Commissioner Present 
Karen L. Huber Precinct 3, Commissioner Present 
Margaret J. Gómez Precinct 4, Commissioner Present 
 
 
1. Approve payment of claims and authorize County Treasurer to invest Road District Funds. 

MOTION: Pay the claims in Item 1. 
RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Samuel T. Biscoe, Sarah Eckhardt, Karen L. Huber, Margaret J. Gómez 
ABSTAIN: Ron Davis 

 
2. Approve the Bee Cave Road District No. 1 Minutes for the Voting Session of August 7, 2012. 

MOTION: Approve Item 2. 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Margaret J. Gómez, Commissioner 
SECONDER: Karen L. Huber, Commissioner 
AYES: Biscoe, Davis, Eckhardt, Huber, Gómez 

Minutes approved by the Commissioners Court 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 

Date of Approval 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 

 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Receive update on the reimbursement process for the Corporation's 
Neighborhood Stabilization Program. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
None. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: None. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Manager/854-9066 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, CheryI,Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 2



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 3



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



• 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
Travis County Cultural Education Facilities Finance Corporation 

Meeting Date: September 25, 2012 

Prepared By/Phone Number: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116 

Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President 

AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action to (a) approve Resolution approving 
an Agreement to Issue Bonds and other matters in connection therewith 
related to Wayside Schools to finance or refinance the Eden Park Academy 
and Real Learning Academy campuses of the school and (b) set date and 
time for public hearing to receive public comment on issuance of bonds to 
finance Wayside School facilities. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: See 
attached backup . 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: None. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Andrea Shields, Manager/854-9116; 
Leroy Nellis, Budget Manager/854-9066 

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, ChervI.Aker@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 2



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
Item 1



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:  September 28, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jose Palacios, 854-9131 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Nicki Riley, CPA, County Auditor 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Approve Claims and Budget Transfers for 2012 Fiscal  

       Year End. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:   N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  N/A 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  N/A 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.

akerc
Typewritten Text
SPECIAL VOTING SESSION, SEPTEMBER 28, 2012



 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY 

 AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

 

 

NICKI RILEY, CPA 

COUNTY AUDITOR 

 

 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY  

700 LAVACA, 12TH FLOOR 

P.O BOX 1748 

AUSTIN, TX. 78767 

(512) 854-9125 

FAX: (512) 854-9164 

   
 

TO:  Members of Commissioners’ Court 

   

FROM: Jose Palacios, Chief Assistant County Auditor I  

 

DATE: September 12, 2012 

 

RE:  Court Session on Friday, September 28, 2012  

 

 

In fiscal years where September 30th does not fall on the regularly 

scheduled Tuesday Commissioners’ Court voting session, we 

request that Commissioners’ Court convene on that day (usually a 

maximum 10-minute meeting) to approve claims, automatic budget 

adjustments, and any budget transfers required as part of the year-

end process.  Since September 30th falls on a Sunday this year, we 

respectfully request that the Commissioners’ Court meet on Friday, 

September 28, 2012, to approve claims and budget transfers.  By 

Commissioners’ Court convening on September 28th to approve 

these two items, it helps to shorten the period vendors get paid as 

the result of closing one fiscal year and having budget available for 

the next fiscal year.  I will provide Judge Biscoe’s office an agenda 

request for this purpose. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 854-

9131. 

Updated 9/20/12, 4:00 p.m.


	Item 02
	Item 04
	Item 05
	Item 06
	Item 07
	Item 09
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Item 28
	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 35
	Item 36
	Item 37
	Item 38
	Item 39
	Item 40
	Item 41
	Item 42
	Item 43
	Item 45
	Item 46
	Item C3
	Item C4
	Item C5
	NWTCRD Item 01
	NWTCRD Item 02
	NWTCRD Item 03
	TCBCRD Item 01
	TCBCRD Item 02
	TCBCRD Item 03
	TCHFC Item 01
	TCHFC Item 02
	TCHFC Item 03
	TCCIDC Item 01
	TCCEFFC Item 01
	TCCEFFC Item 02
	TCHFDC Item 01
	Special voting session 09-28-12



